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Thursday, August 8, 1991

RECORD OF THE SENATE , Suspension of Session

The Secretary. Proposed Senate Resolution No.

RESOLUTION

1245, entitled

RESOLUTION URGING THE PRESIDENT OF

THE PHILIPPINES TO DIRECT THE
APPROPRIATE DEPARTMENTS OF
GOVERNMENT TO STUDY AND
DETERMINE THE POSSIBILITY OF USING
FIFTY PERCENT (50%) OF CONSTRUCTION
MATERIALS MADE"™ FROM PINATUBO
ASHES FOR CONSTRUCTION AND
REHABILITATION OF SCHOOL BUILDINGS
AND OTHER PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURES
IN ORDER TO CREATE INCENTIVES FOR
INDUSTRIES THAT WILL MANUFACTURE
MATERIALS OUT OF THE ASHES OF MT.
PINATUBO.

Introduced by Senator Alvarez.

The President. Referred to the Committees on Pub-

lic Works; and Science and Technology.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

SALE OR IMPORTATION OF REPLICA OF
FIREARMS AND EXPLOSIVES OF
WHATEVER NATURE, KIND, CLASS OR
MAKE, INCLUDING FUTURISTIC
WEAPONS, PROVIDING PENALTIES
THEREFOR AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES,

recommending its approval without amendment.
Sponsor: Senator Mercado

The President. To the Calendar for Ordinary Busi-
ness.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President.
The President. Senator Guingona is recognized.
SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

Senator Guingona. I ask for a minute suspension,
Mr. President.

The President. The session is suspended for a min-
ute, if there is no objection. [There was none.]

Itwas 9:29 a.m.

The Secretary. Committee Report No. 1376, sub-
mitted by the Committee on National Defense and Secu-
rity on House Bill No. 27876, introduced by Congress-

RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION

men Isidro, Estrella, Perez and Zarraga, entitled

AN ACT RENAMING THE SANGLEY POINT

NAVAL AND AIR TRAINING STATION TO
MAJOR DANILO ATIENZA NAVAL AND
AIR TRAINING STATION,

recommending its approval with amendments.

Sponsor: Senator Maceda

The President. To the Calendar for Ordinary Busi-

ness.

The Secretary. Committee Report No. 1377, sub-
mitted by the Committee on National Defense and Secu-
rity on Senate Bill No. 778, introduced by Senator Mer-

cado, entitled

AN ACT TO PROHIBIT THE MANUFACTURE,

At 9:35 p.m., the session was resumed.
The President. The session is resumed.
The Majority Floor Leader is recognized.

BILL ON SECOND READING
Senate Bill No. 1861 - Synchronized Elections
on May 11, 1992

Senater Guingona. Mr. President, I move that we
consider Senate Bill No. 1861 as reported out under
Committee Report No. 1373.

The President. Consideration of Senate Bill No.
1861 is now in order. With the permission of the Body,
the Secretary will read only the title of the bill, without
prejudice to inserting in the Record the whole text
thereof.
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The Secretary. Senate Bill No. 1861, entitled

AN ACT PROVIDING FOR SYNCHRONIZED
NATIONAL AND LOCAL ELECTIONS ON
MAY 11, 1992, AND FOR. ELECTORAL
REFORMS, AND AUTHORIZING APPRO-
PRIATIONS THEREFOR.

368

The following is the full text of Senate Bill No. 1861:

SENATE BILL NO. 1861

Introduced by the Committee on Electoral
Reforms and People’s Participation and Committee
on Constitutional Amendments, Revision of Codes
and Laws, Senators Gonzales, Lina, Jr., Guingona,
Ir.,, Aquino, Estrada, Saguisag, Tafiada, Pimentel, Jr.
and Mercado.

EXPLANATORY NOTE

This bill proposes to set the national and local
elections for May 11, 1992 and provide for the
necessary implementing details. It also endorses
reforms and measures to ensure the conduct of free,
orderly, honest, peaceful and credible elections.
Specifically it seeks to:

1. Reduce the number of positions to be voted
for by providing therein that the members of the
Sangguniang  Panlalawigan, Sangguniang
Panlungsod and Sangguniang Bayan be elected not at
large, but by district. The maximun number of
positions to be written by a voter is fixed at 38. For a
visual appreciation of this proposal, there is hereby
appended a table showing the estimated number of
elective positions by districts in the provinces, cities,
municipalities and districts in Metro Manila. Also, a
prototype of the ballot to be used in the elections;

2. Set the election period as provided for by the
Constitution, i.e. ninety days before the day of the
election and thirty days thereafter. In keeping with
the decision of the Supreme Court, the campaign
period is circumscribed within the election period:
for President, Vice-President and Senators, ninety
days before election day; for Members of the House
of Representatives and local elective officials, sixty
days. Nomination and selection of official

candidates, not being considered campaign activities
under the Omnibus Election Code, may be conducted
outside of the election period;

3. Increase the per diem of teachers on election
day from P200 to P400 for the May 11, 1992
elections and provide a mechanism for hazard pay
and incentive and merit awards;

4. Broaden the definition of a ‘‘candidate’’ as
one who aspires for public office, whether or not he
has filed his certificate of candidacy or has been
nominated by a political party as its candidate. This
is an imperative to stop the prevailing practice of
early campaigning. As the law stands the
Commission on Elections is helpless in enforcing the
provisions of law against early campaign in view of
the constricted definition of the term ‘‘candidate’.
Unless one has filed a certificate of candidacy he is
not deemed to be a candidate and all efforts geared to
enhance his aspiration to be elected to a public office
are removed from the prohibition against early
campaign. Itis, therefore, recommended that the law
expand the concept of candidacy in such a way that
mere aspiration for a public elective office, publicly
and openly manifested by a person or his supporters,
be considered campaigning and therefore subject to
certain legal constraints;

5. Remove from the law the requirement of
printing the names of all the candidates (including
their stage names) on the election returns. Instead,
the printing of such names shall be undertaken by the
Commission only when practicable. This is to be
justified by the time constraints between thé last day.
for filing certificates of candidacy and election day,
as well as the withdrawal and substitution of
candidates;

6. Set one registration day for new voters and
qualified voters who are not registered in the voters
list. When there is a significant number of inclusions,
exclusions and corrections, the Commission may
direct the board of election inspectors to convene for
the purpuse of entering such inclusions, exclusions
and corrections on the list of voters. Otherwise, the
board shall not meet, but inclusions, exclusions and
corrections, if any, shall be entered in the list of
voters before the start of voting on election day;

7. Vest the Commission with the authority to
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adjust or split precincts by assigning voters therein
alphabetically and equitably among the precincts
within the barangay, and the flexibility to determine
the design and materials of voting booth;

8. Firm up the power of the Commission to
preserve the integrity of the voters registration
records by giving it the authority to annul motu
proprio_any book of voters prepared under fraudulent
or highly irregular circumstances;

9. Allow absentee voting for President, Vice-
President and Senators as provided for under
Executive Order No. 157. However, this privilege
may be availed of only by the members of the
military and other government personnel who on
election ‘day may be assigned in connection with
election duties to places where they are not
registered;

10. Bring to a more realistic and credible level
the limits on election spending by increasing the
ceiling from one peso and fifty centavos to three
pesos per registered voter for candidates, and five
pesos per registered voter for a political party;

11. Modify the penalty imposed by the Omnibus
Election Code for the non-submission of statements
of contributions and-expenditures by candidates and
treasurers of political parties. This is consistent with
the bill submitted by Senator Ernesto Maceda.
Instead of imprisonment and disqualification to hold
public office, it is suggested that the penalty for the
first offense be an administrative fine without the
stigma of a criminal conviction. The present law,
considering the context and the unrealistic
expenditure limits, tends to fall on candidates for
grassroots public offices, namely barangay and local
offices, where a broadening of citizen participation is
being encouraged. The potential violators number by
the thousands even as candidates for national offices
probably comply with the nominal requirements by
way of inaccurate statements. Given the five-year
prescriptive period and the fact that investigations
and complaints filed have not proceeded evenly
nationwide, the present systefn of penalty would be
unfairly draconian in application.- The proposed
amendment would clean the slate for everybody to
start anew, together with more realistic expenditure
limits, withoiit resorting to outright amnesty or
pardon for_ those already convicted or under
investigation;

12. Provide a mechanism for the summary
disposition of pre-proclamation controversies. A pre-
proclamation controversy is a unique extraordinary
remedy in the Philippine election law. It is supposed
to be summary in character by the nature of the
proceedings. Yet, the Commission is continually

‘faced with prolonged and broadened issues that are

more properly pursued through an election protest.
Two major reasons for delays are the requirement of
‘“‘due notice and hearing’’ and the scope for raising
objections on election returns at the Commission
level, even when such were not raised with the board
of canvassers. The proposed amendments would
authorize the Commission to dispose of pre-
proclamation controversies on the basis of the records
and evidence presented to the board of canvassers
and mandates short time periods for their resolution
and execution;

13.  Require the chairman of the board of
election inspectors to authenticate a ballot given to a
voter by affixing his signature at the back thereof and
to consider any ballot not so authenticated as
spurious. This is intended to address the election
mischief of substituting official ballots with fake
ones;

14. Enhance the transparency of the elections by
providing the ruling and dominant opposition parties
with copies of the election returns and certificates of
canvass.

As an additional reform, the Commission will
provide a color code to allow for easy identification
of copies of the election returns to be distributed to
the offices and parties entitled thereto. Likewise, the
Commission will authorize the use of two tally
boards, one for national offices and the other for local
positions. These are measures that can be adopted by
the Commission without the need for a formal
authority in law. They are an exercise of its
constitutional power to ensure that the electoral
process is honest, 6rderly and credible; and

15. Identify definitively the election document
which shall serve as the basis for canvass of the
results of the election for President, Vice-President,
Senators and Members of the House of
Representatives. It is proposed that the election
returns of the precincts in the legislative districts be
canvassed by the Provincial Board of Canvassers,
City Board of Canvassers in the case of cities
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comprising one or more legislative districts, and
District Board of Canvassers in the Metropolitan
Manila Area.

This proposal rests on three considerations:

a) The existing provisions of the Constitution
and election laws are not clear as to the election
document that shall serve as basis for the national
canvass. This bill settles the issue. It points
definitively to the use of the certificates of canvass
prepared by the Provincial, City and District boards
of canvassers. As herein proposed, the Provincial,

City and District boards of canvassers shall canvass

the election returns of the various precincts within

- their respective jurisdictions. The boards will then

prepare certificates of canvass for the election of
President, Vice-President, Senators and Members of
the House of Representatives.  This will be the
document that will serve as the basis for the national
canvass. The process will involve certificates of
canvass from 73 provinces and cities comprising at
least one (1) or more legislative districts.

On the other hand if the election returns were to
be the bases of canvass, between 120,000 and
165,000 of such election formms would have to be
accounted for in the final report of canvass and
proclamation by Congress and the Commission.
Here, time is of primary consideration. The national
canvass for the election of President, Vice-President
and Senators needs to be completed and the
proclamation done before the beginning of the terms
of the candidates-elect on June 30, 1992.

We recognize the risks involved: inaccuracies
and tampering. And as a safeguard we propose to
transmit likewise to Congress and to the Commission
their respective copies of the election returns for

* reference and verification purposes.
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b) As the law stands (EO No. 144), initial
canvass of the election returns for the election of
Senators takes place before the municipal board of
canvassers. Canvassing at this level is too far
removed from the final canvassing to be done by the
Commission. A premature exposure of this vital and
basic election document does not augur well for
credible results. We, therefore, opt to transfer the
initial canvass of the election returns to the
provincial, city and district boards of. canvassers
which shall prepare the certificates of canvass to

serve as bases for the national canvass.

) At the municipal level the Commission lacks
lawyers to chair canvassing boards. Add the fact that
the two other members are likewise not lawyers. For
sensitive offices of President and Vice-President,
Senators and Congressmen, we cannot leave the
canvassing process to municipal board of canvassers
that is wanting of legal wherewithals.

In consideration of the foregoing, the
undersigned eamnestly recommends the immediate
enactment of this bill into law.

(Sgd.) NEPTALI A. GONZALES
Senator
Chainnan, Committee on Electoral Reforms
and People's Participation

(Sgd.) JOSE D. LINA, JR.
Senator
Chairman, Committee on Constitutional Amendments,
Revision of Codes & Laws ‘

SENATE BILL NO. 1861

Introduced by the Committee on Electoral Reforms
and People’s Participation and the Committee on
Constitutional Amendments, Revision of Codes and
Laws, Senators Gonzales, Lina, Jr., Guingona, Jr.
Aquino, Saguisag, Estrada, Tafiada, Pimentel and
Mercado.

AN ACT PROVIDING FOR SYNCHRONIZED
NATIONAL AND LOCAL ELECTIONS ON
MAY 11, 1992, AND FOR ELECTORAL
REFORMS, AND AUTHORIZING
APPROPRIATIONS THEREFOR

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of
Representatives of the Philippines in Congress
assembled:

SECTION 1. Statement of Policy. - 1t is the
policy of the State to synchronize elections so that
there shall be simultancous regular elections for
national and local elective officials once every three
(3) years.

SEC. 2. Date of Election. - In accordance with
the policy hereinbefore declared, there shall be held
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an election for President and Vice-President of the
Philippines, twenty-four (24) Senators, all elective
Members of the House of Representatives, and all
provincial, city and municipal elective officials on
May 11, 1992.

SEC. 3. Term of Office. - The President, the
Vice-President and the Senators shall have a term of
office of six (6) years beginning at noon on the
thirtieth day of June next following their election:
Provided, however, That, of the twenty-four (24)
Senators to be elected on May 11, 1992, the first
twelve (12) obtaining the highest number of votes
shall serve for six (6) years and the remaining twelve
(12), for three (3) years.

The Members of the House of Representatives
and all elective provincial, city and municipal
officials shall serve for a term of three (3) years
which shall begin at noon on the thirtieth day of June
next following their election.

No Vice-President shall serve for more than two
(2) successive terns.

No Senator shall serve for more than two (2)
consecutive terms.

No Member of the House of Representatives
shall serve for more than three (3) consecutive terms.

No elective provincial, city or municipal official
shall serve for more than three (3) consecutive terms.

Voluntary renunciation of the office for any
length of time shall not be considered as an
interruption in the continuity of his service for the full
term for which he was elected.

SEC. 4.  Election of members of the
sangguniang panlalawigan, sangguniang
panlungsod and sangguniang bayan by district. - The
elective members of the sangguniang panlalawigan,
sangguniang panlungsod and sangguniang bayan
shall be elected by the qualified voters of their
respective districts as follows:

(a) For provinces with two (2) or more
representative  districts, the number of elective
members of the sangguniang panlalawigan shall be
equally divided among them: Provided, That, if
equal division is not possible, the remaining member

or members shall be elected in the district or districts
with the greater number of population or, if they be
the same, with the greater number of voters.

(b) For provinces and cities with only one (1)
representative district, the Commission on Elections
shall divide them into two (2) districts for purposes of
provincial or city representation as nearly as
practicable according to the number of inhabitants,
each district comprising a compact, contiguous and
adjacent territory, and the number of elective
members of their respective sanggunian shall be
equally divided between the districts in accordance
with the standard or formula provided in the next
preceding paragraph.

(c) The number and election of elective
members of sangguniang panlungsod and
sangguniang bayan in the Metro Manila area, the city
of Cebu, city of Davao and any other city with two
(2) or more representative districts shall continue to
be governed by the provisions of Sections 2 and 3 of
Republic Act No. 6636:  Provided, That, the
municipalities of Malabon, Navotas, San Juan,

‘Mandaluyong, Muntinlupa, Las Pifias and Taguig

shall have twelve (12) councilors, and Pateros, ten
(10). Provided, Further, That, the Commission on
Elections shall divide each of the municipalities in
Metropolitan Manila into two (2) districts, by
barangay, for purposes of representation in the
sangguniang bayan as mnearly as practicable
according to the number of inhabitants, each district
comprising a compact, contiguous and adjacent
territory.

(@  The Commission on Elections shall
apportion the number of elective members of the
sangguniang panlungsod of component *cities and
sangguniang bayan among the duly constituted
barangays as nearly as practicable, according to the
number of their respective inhabitants, each
councilor district to comprise a compact, contiguous
and adjacent territory: Provided, however, That each
councilor district shall elect at least two (2)
councilors: Provided, further, That in case of any
extra member, he shall be elected in the district with
the greater number of population.

No person shall be elected member of the
sangguniang panlalawigan, sangguniang panlungsod
or sangguniang bayan, as the case may be, unless he
is an actual resident of the constituency of which he is
a candidate. Provided, however, That, for the May
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372

sanggunian who competes in the election for the
same position may run in any - district within the
municipality, city or province where he is a registered
voter.

SEC. 5. Postponement, Jailure of election and
special elections. - The postponement, declaration of
failure of election and the callin g of special elections
as provided in Sections 5, 6 and 7 of the Omnibus
Election Code shall be decided by the Commission
on Elections sitting en banc by a majority vote of its
members. The causes for the declaration of a failure
of election may occur before or after the casting of
voters or on the day of the election.

SEC. 6. Election and campaign periods. -
Unless otherwise fixed by the Commission on
Elections, the election period for the May 11, 1992
regular elections shall commence ninety (90) days
before the day of the election and shall end thirty (30)
days thereafter.

The campaign periods are hereby fixed as
follows: :

(a) For President and Vice-President, ninety (90)
days before the day of the election;

(b) For Senators, sixty (60) days before the day
of the election;

(¢) For Member of the House of Representatives
and local elective provincial, city and municipal
officials, forty-five (45) days before the day of the
election.

However, the foregoing campaign periods shall
not include the day before and the day of the election
itself, Maundy Thursday and Good Friday during
which days campaigning is absolutely prohibited.

Any provision of law to the contrary
notwithstanding, any candidate for Senator, Member
of the House of Representatives or any elective local
office may campaign for the national candidates of
his political party during their campaign periods and
even before his own campaign period.

Any election campaign or partisan political
activity for or against any candidate outside of the
campaign period herein provided is prohibited except

as provided in the next succeeding section.

The term ‘‘candidate’’ when used in connection
with election campaign or partisan political activity,
refers to any person aspiring for or seeking an
elective public office, regardless of whether or not
said person has already filed his certificate of
candidacy or has been nominated by any political
party, organization or coalition of parties as its
candidate.

SEC. 7. Nomination and selection of official
candidates. - No political convention or meetings for
the nomination or selection of the official candidates
of any political party or organization or political
group or coalition thereof, shall be held, nor shall any
campaign or partisan political activity for the purpose
of enhancing the chances of aspirants for nomination
as official candidates of political party, organization
or coalition be conducted, earlier than the following
periods:

(a) For President, Vice-President and Senators,
one hundred fifty (150) days before the day of the
election; and

(b) For Members of the House of
Representatives, and elective provincial, city, or
municipal officials, ninety (90) days before the day of
the election.

SEC. 8. Filing of certificates of candidacy. -
The certificates of candidacy of any person running
for the office of President, Vice-President, Senator,
Member of the House of Representatives or any
elective provincial, city or municipal official shall be
filed in five (5) legible copies with the offices of the
Commission on Elections specified hereunder during
regular office hours not later than the day before the
date legally fixed for the beginning of his campaign
period.

(a) The certificate of candidacy for President,
Vice-President and Senators of the Philippines shall
be filed with the main office of the Commission on
Elections in Manila;

(b) The certificate of candidacy for Members of
the House of Representatives shall be filed with the
provincial election supervisor of -~ the province
concerned. Those for legislative districts in the
National Capital Region shall be filed with the
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regional election director of said region and those for

legislative districts in cities outside the National
Capital Region which comprise one or more
legislative districts shall be filed with the city
election registrar concerned; :

(c) The certificate of candidacy for provincial

offices shall be filed with the provincial election

supervisor concerned; and

(d) The certificate of candidacy for city or
municipal offices shall be filed with the city or
municipal election registrar concered. ‘

The certificate of candidacy shall be filed by the
candidate” or his duly authorized representative
personally. No certificate of candidacy shall be filed
or accepted by mail.

Whenever practicable, the names of registered
- candidates shall be printed in the election returns.

SEC. 9. Precincts and their establishment. -Any
provision of law to the contrary notwithstanding,
where it is not practicable to divide the precinct by
territory, the Commission may adjust or split the
precinct by assigning the registered voters therein
alphabetically and equitably among the precincts.

SEC. 10. Registration of voters. - There shall be
a registration of voters on the fifteenth Saturday
before the day of the election for voters who will
reach the age of eighteen (18) years on or before the
day of the election or for those who are qualified but
not registered in the list of voters: However,  the
Commission on Elections may designate an
additional date of registration in certain areas to
ensure that voters therein are not-deprived of their
right of suffrage. :

Before adjourning on registration day, the board
of election inspectors shall close the list of voters by
affixing their signatures in the space immediately
after the last name; number consecutively the names
of the voters listed therein; and authenticate the list of
voters by affixing their signatures on each and every
page thereof. '

The board of election inspectors shall post the
list of voters in each precinct beginning on the first
working day after registration day until election day.
Failure to post said list shall constitute an election

offense.

When there is a significant number of inclusions,
exclusions and corrections in the list of voters in a
precinct, the Commission shall direct the board of
election inspectors concerned to meet on the eight
Saturday immediately preceding the day of the
election for the purpose of making such inclusions,
exclusions and corrections as may be or may have
been ordered by the courts, stating opposite every

‘name so corrected, added or cancelled, the date of the

order and the court which issued the same, otherwise,
the board shall not meet, but such inclusions,
exclusions and corrections, if-any, shall be made in
the list of voters before the voting starts on election
day. '

.SEC. 11. Annulment of the list of voters. - Any

book of voters the preparation of which has been .

effected with fraud, bribery, forgery, impersonation,
intimidation, force or any other similar irregularity or
which is statistically improbable may, motu proprio,
be annulled by the Commission: Provided, That, no
order, ruling or decision annulling a book of voters
shall be executed within sixty (60) days before an
election.

SEC. 12. Voting Booth. - Any provision of law
to the contrary notwithstanding, there shall be in each
polling place at least ten voting booths of such size,
specifications and materials as the Commission may
provide to enable the voters to fill out their ballots
secretly.

‘SEC. 13. Absentee voting. - Absentee voting as
provided for in Executive Order No. 157 dated
March 30, 1987 shall apply to the elections for
President, Vice-President and Senators only and shall
be limited to members of the Armed Forces of the
Philippines and the Philippine National Police and
other government officers and employees who are
duly registered voters and who, on election day, may
temporarily be assigned in connection with the
performance of election duties to places where they
are not registered voters. ’

SEC. 14. Authorized expenses of candidates and
political parties. - The aggregate amount that a
candidate or registered political party may spend for
election campaign shall be as follows:

(a) For candidates. - Three pesos for every voter
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currently registered in the constituency where he
filed his certificate of candidacy; and

(b) For political parties. Five pesos for every
voter currently registered in the constituency or
constituencies where it has official candidates.

SEC. 15. Penalties for failure to file statement
of contributions and expenditures. - Any candidate or
treasurer of a political party who fails to comply with
the first or second paragraph of Sec. 107 of the

.Omnibus Election Code shall be liable for an
administrative fine corresponding to the table herein
provided:

OFFICE AMOUNT

a) President $30,000.00

b) Vice-President 25,000.00

¢) Senator 20,000.00

| d) Congressman 15,000.00

e) Governor 15,000.00

f) Vice-Governor 10,000.00
g) Members of the Sang-

guniang Panlalawigan 5,000.00

h) City Mayor 10,000.00

i) City Vice-Mayor | 5,000.00
j)  Members of the Sang-

guniang Panlungsod 3,000.00

k) Municipal Mayor 5,000.00

1) Municipal Vice-Mayor 3,000.00
m) Members of the Sang-

guniang Bayan 1,000.00

n) Barangay Official 500.00

0) Treasurer of the Party 100,000.00

The fine shall be paid within thirty (30) days
from receipt of notice of such failure from the

Commission on Elections, to the city or municipal

treasurer of the city or municipality which said
candidate declared as his residence in his certificate
of candidacy. If the offender is the treasurer of a
political party he- shall pay the fine to the city or
municipal treasurer of the municipality where the
political party holds its principal office. In addition,
the offender shall submit the statement of
contributions and expenditures which he failed to file
under the first or second paragraph of Sec. 107 of the
Omnibus Election Code, to the election registrar of
the city or municipality herein referred to. Tender of
payment by the offender shall not be given due
course by the city or municipal treasurer without the
certification of the election registrar concerned that
such sworn statement has already been filed with his
office.

Failure to pay the administrative fine within the
period herein prescribed shall render the candidate or
treasurer of the political party criminally liable for an
election offense' and upon conviction shall be
imposed double the corresponding fine as
hereinbefore provided. Thereafter, any subsequent
offense shall render the offender guilty of an election
offense and shall be punished in accordance with Sec.
264 of the Omnibus Election Code.,

Candidates and treasurers of political parties who
failed to file statements of contributions and
expenditures in the 1986 Snap Presidential Elections,
the May 11, 1987 Senatorial and Congressional
Elections, the January 18, 1988 Local Elections, the
March 28, 1989 Barangay Elections and the February
17, 1990 Regional Elections for the Autonomous
Region in Muslim Mindanao who have béen found
guilty of an election offense under Sec. 107 of the
Omnibus Election Code and are currently serving
sentence  shall be immediately released - from
confinement and shall not be subject to the- fine
herein imposed. In the case of candidates or
treasurers of political parties against whom
complaints have been filed before the Commission on
Elections or informations have been filed before the
Regional Trial Courts or whose cases are on appeal to
higher courts, the investigation, the trial and appeal
proceedings shall continue only for a determination
by the Commission or the court of failure to properly
file the statements required under Sec. 107 of the
Omnibus Election Code. A finding of such failure
shall be punished with an administrative fine
hereinbefore imposed but without a pronouncement
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of criminal conviction upon the party. Candidates or
treasurers of political parties who on the basis of the
records of the Commission on Elections have failed
to file properly such statements of contributions and
expenditures for the above mentioned elections of
1986, 1987, 1988, 1989 and 1990 and against whom
 no formal complaints have been filed shall submit
said statement and pay the corresponding
administrative fine in accordance with the first and
second paragraphs hereof.

SEC. 16. Pre-proclamation controversies: how
commenced. - Questions affecting the composition or
proceedings of the board of canvassers may be
initiated in the board or directly with the
Commission. However, matters raised under
Sections 233, 234, 235 and 236 of the Omnibus
Election Code in relation to the preparation,
transmission, receipt, custody and appreciation of the
election returns shall be brought in the first instance
before the board of canvassers only.

SEC. 17. Summary disposition of pre-
proclamation controversies. - All pre-proclamation
controversies on election returns shall, on the basis of
the records and evidence elevated to it by the board of
canvassers, be disposed of summarily by the
Commission within five (5) days from receipt
thereof. Its decisions shall be executory after the
lapse of five (5) days from receipt by the losing party
of the decision of the Commission.

SEC. 18. Contested composition or proceedings
of the board: period to appeal: decision by the
Commission. - Parties adversely affected by a ruling
of the board of canvassers on questions affecting the
composition or proceedings of the board may appeal
the matter to the Commission within three (3) days
from a ruling thereon. The Commission shall
summarily decide the case within five (5) days from
the filing thereof.

SEC. 19. Procedure in disposition of contested
election returns. - (a) Any candidate, political party
or coalition of political parties contesting the
inclusion or exclusion in the canvass of any election
retuns on any of the grounds authorized under
Article XX or Sections 234, 235 and 236 of Article
XIX of the Omnibus Election Code shall submit his
verbal objection to the chairman of the board of
canvassers at the time the questioned return is
presented for inclusion in- the camvass. Such

objection shall be recorded in the minutes of the
canvass.

(b) Upon receipt of any such objection, the
board of canvassers shall automatically defer the
canvass of the contested returns and shall proceed to
canvass the returns which are not contested by any

party.

(¢) Simultaneous with the verbal objection, the
objecting party shall also enter his objection in the
form for written objections to be prescribed by the
Commission. Within twenty-four (24) hours from
and after the presentation of such an objection, the
objecting party shall submit the evidences in support
of the objection, which shall be attached to the form
for written objections. Within the same period of
twenty-four (24) hours after presentation of the
objection, any party may file a written and verified
opposition to the objection in the form also to be
prescribed by the Commission, attaching thereto
supporting evidences, if any. The board shall not
entertain any objection or opposition unless reduced
to writing in the prescribed forms.

The evidences attached to the objection or
opposition, submitted by the parties, received by
each candidate, and proclaim the candidate receiving
the highest number of votes as elected.

The certificate of canvass shall be distributed as
follows:

1) The first copy shall be transmitted to thé

-Secretary of the House of Representatives;

2) The second copy shall be transmitted to the

- Commission on Elections;

3) The third copy shall be given to the winner;

4) The fourth copy shall be posted in a
conspicuous place in the provincial capitol; and

5) The fifth copy shall be kept by the chairman
of the board.

SEC. 25. Rules and regulations. - The
Commission on Elections shall issue rules and
regulations to implement this Act. Said rules shall be
published in at least two (2) newspapers of general
circulation.
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SEC. 26. Governing laws. - The elections
provided herein and all subsequent elections and
- plebiscites shall be governed by this Act, by the
provisions of the Omnibus Election Code, Republic
Act No. 6646 and other election laws not inconsistent
herewith, -

SEC. 27. Separability clause. - If any provision,
or part thereof, of this Act is declared
unconstitutional, such declaration of
unconstitutionality will not affect the other
‘provisions of this Act,

SEC. 28. Appropriations. - The amount of Nine
“hundred million pesos (#900,000,000.00) is hereby
authorized to be appropriated out of any savings or
unexpended balance in the National Treasury not
otherwise appropriated to cover costs of holding the
May 11, 1992 elections. Hereafter, the amounts
necessary to fund subsequent elections shall be
included in the General Appropriations Act for the
corresponding fiscal year.: Any provision of law to
the contrary notwithstanding, and, for purposes of the
May 11, 1992 elections only, the chairmen and
members of the board of election inspectors shall
each be paid a per diem of four hundred (P400.00)
pesos on election day. The Commission on Elections
may provide hazard pay, where warranted, incentive
and merit awards to members of the boards of
election inspectors, boards of canvassers and
personnel of the Commission and its deputized
agencies.

SEC. 29. Amending and repealing clause. - All
provisions of the Omnibus Election Code, Republic
Act No. 6646, Executive Order No. 144 and other
laws, executive orders, or any parts thereof,
inconsistent with the provisions of this Act are hereby
repealed accordingly.

SEC. 30. Effectivity clause. - This Act shall take
effect upon its approval.

~ RECORD OF THE SENATE

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that we
recognize Senator Gonzales to sponsor the measure.

The President. Senator Gonzales is recognized.

SPONSORSHIP SPEECH OF SENATOR GCNZALES

Senator Gonzales. Mr. President, distinguished
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Members of this august Chamber, following the decision
of the Supreme Court declaring as unconstitutional, and
null and void, Republic Act No. 7056, which provided
for separate elections for national and local officials in
1992, Senator Lina filed Senate Bill No. 1854, entitled

AN ACT PROVIDING FOR THE HOLDING OF
SYNCHRONIZED AND SIMULTANEOUS
ELECTIONS FOR ALL NATIONAL AND
LOCAL OFFICIALS ON THE SECOND:
MONDAY OF MAY 1992, PROVIDING
MEASURES TO ENSURE THAT THE SAID
ELECTIONS SHALL BE FREE, ORDERLY,
HONEST, PEACEFUL, AND CREDIBLE,
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

Likewise, Senator Guingona, Jr. filed Senate Bill
No. 1840, entitled

AN ACT PRESCRIBING A GRADUATED
PENALTY OF FINE FOR FAILURE OF ANY
CANDIDATE OR TREASURER OF A
POLITICAL PARTY TO COMPLY WITH
SECTION ONE HUNDRED SEVEN OF THE
OMNIBUS ELECTION CODE, OTHERWISE
KNOWN AS THE BATAS PAMBANSA
BILANG 881.

In accordance with an agreement that has been
reached in caucus, the members of the Bicameral Confer-
ence Committee, which submitted their Conference
Committee Report on the bill which later was approved
into law as Republic Act No. 7056, held a meeting at the
Senators’ Lounge at the Manila Hotel for the purpose of
discussing the need for the enactment of a new election
law for 1992 that will conform with the decision of the
Supreme Court.

On the same occasion, Mr. President, we also invited
Chairman Monsod of the Commission on Elections.
During the said meeting, most of the members of the
Bicameral Conference Committee, representing the Sen-
ate and the House panels were there. Not only Chairman
Monsod came, but practically all the Commissioners of
the Commission on Elections were present. They pre-
sented to us a draft bill prepared by the COMELEC
immediately upon learning of the declaration of the un-
constitutionality of Republic Act No. 7056 because of the
urgency of the situation.
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Several things came up during our discussion. I think
we have secured an admission, again, from the COME-
LEC that a simultaneous election for national and local
elections, where 51 to 53 names will have to-be written

~on a long ballot, cannot just be done. It would, in the
words of then Acting Commissioner Yorac, be consid-
ered as an administrative nightmare.

So, in a sense, that was one of our justifications--if
we will recall, Mr. President--in holding separate elec-
tions. The COMELEC then was the advocate for
separate elections, believing that a simultaneous election,
where 51 to 53 names will have to be written in the
ballot, just cannot be done in one single occasion.

But then, to comply with the Supreme Court deci-
-sion, and even before it has become final, we have de-
cided to act in pursuance of the same.

There are apparently two condition precedents: (1) to
reduce the mumber of candidates to be voted for in a
ballot to not more than 38; and, (2) to see to it that an
election precinct will not have more than 200 registered
voters.

How can we now reduce to 38 the names of candi-
dates to be voted for in that simultaneous election? That
could only be done by providing the reapportionment of
the members of the Sangguniang Panlalawigan,
Sangguniang Panlungsod, and Sangguniang Bayan,

which was actually the mechanism that we have provided

in Republic Act No. 7056, the only difference being, that
under the law that was declared unconstitutional.

With respect to the reapportionment of the councilor
districts for purposes of municipal representation, we
thought then that the COMELEC, to whom we have
delegated that power under certain guidelines provided
by law, cannot do it before the 1992 elections. We
thought that this will be a very controversial process, and
that this would require time, because, understandably this
would involve a very sensitive political exercise, and
issues, questions and charges of gerrymandering cannot
be prevented.

That is why we said we are giving the COMELEC a
three-year period within which to effect this apportion-
ment. However, since we are now confronted with a

reality of the Supreme Court decision, then the proposed
draft would make the apportionment effective in the 1992
elections. .

So we told the COMELEC people that, basically, we
wanted this, and that is why we provided for apportion-
ment for purposes of provincial, city and national repre-
sentation in the bill that was nullified. The big question
is: Can we do it before the 1992 elections? They were
confident that they can do it because, according to them,
No. 1, for as long as there is no requirement of notice of
hearing; and No. 2, that the new election law will be
enacted within the month of August. Beyond that, it may
be too late already for them to effect an apportionment of
the Sanggunian districts. '

We, of course, warned them that this apportionment
may be questioned by parties who may feel that the
apportionment is not equitable, and has not followed the
standards provided for by law. But the most that they
would settle with is the provision of consultations with
the local officials.

So, on that assurance, we find no way but to abide by

their suggestion.

With respect to the approval of this law, this is some-
thing we would want to be taken up with dispatch consid-
ering its urgency. That is why both the House and the
Senate members of the Conference Committee decided to
make the draft bill presented by the Commission on Elec-
tions as the common election bill to be filed in the House
as well as in the Senate. So, with certain minor changes
and modifications, we filed the same: However, we
realize that there has already been bills of the same nature
that have been filed: Senate Bill No. 1854 and Senate
Bill No. 1840.

What our Committee on Electbral Reforms .and

. People’s Participation, and the Committee on Consti-

tutional Amendments, Revision of Codes and Laws did
was to make this bill a substitute bill for Senate Bill No.
1861, and we made it a committee bill, with the original
authors of Senate Bill No. 1861.

We consolidated in this bill, the one filed by Senator

Guingona--Senate Bill No. 1840--prescribing a graduated
penalty of fine for failure of any candidate or treasurer of
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a political party to comply with Section 7 of the Omnibus
Election Code, otherwise known as Batas Pambansa Blg.
881.

Likewise, we consolidated in this bill the Maceda bill
and the calling of the 1992 elections.

Now, this bill has been certified by the President, and
I will read into the Record the certification issued by the
Office of the President. This is under date of August 6,
1991:

Honorable Jovito R. Salonga
Senate President

Senate of the Philippines
Quezon City

Sir:

1 have the honor to transmit the letter of even
date of Her Excellency, the President of the
Philippines, certifying as to the necessity of the
immediate enactment of Senate Bill No. 1861,
entitled

AN ACT PROVIDING FOR SYNCHRONIZED
NATIONAL AND LOCAL ELECTIONS ON
MAY 11, 1991 AND FOR ELECTORAL
REFORMS AND AUTHORIZING
APPROPRIATIONS THEREFOR.

Very truly yours,

(Sgd.) FRANKLIN M. DRILON
Executive Secretary

Attached thereto is the certification signed by President
Corazon C. Aquino under the same date and -addressed
likewise to the Senate President.

The principal features of this bill are now as follows:
The number of positions to be voted for had been reduced
by providing for the apportionment or districting of the
members of the Sangguniang Panlalawigan, Sangguni-
ang Panlungsod and Sangguniang Bayan, who, instead
of being elected at large will hereafter be elected by dis-
tricts. How will this apportionment be done?

. As far as provinces are concerned, which have two or
. more legislative districts, the elective members of the
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Sangguniang Bayan will be divided equally between or
among them. In the évent that there be an excess, then
the excess member will now be given to the legislative
district with the greater number of population. In the
event that two or more districts have the same population,
then the excess member will be given to the district
having the bigger number of registered voters.

"An example would be this: If a Sangguniang Panla-
lawigan has ten members and it has two legislative dis-
tricts, then each of this legislative district will elect five
members of the Sanggunian. In the event, however, that
ithas 12, then six each for the district.

The trouble, however, is with respect to big provinces
where we have five or six districts. In which case, if, let
us say, there are only 12 of them, and it is a five-district
province, then each district will elect one, then there will
be an excess of two. The two will now be assigned to the
district or districts with the greatest number of popula-
tion.

With respect to provinces which constitute a. lone
congressional district, then the COMELEC, in accor-
dance with the standards that this bill provides, will di-
vide it into two districts for purposes of representation in
the Sangguniang Panlalawigan. The elective members
will be divided among these two districts and the excess
member, if any, will be assigned to the district with the
greater number of population.

As far as the cities of Manila, Quezon, Cebu, Davao
and other cities are concerned, which have two or more
representative districts, the number of their elective mem-
bers and their division among the districts will continue
to be governed by Republic Act No. 6636.

However, as far as the municipalities in Metro Ma-
nila are concerned--and there are 13 of them--they shall,
in accordance with the standards provided for in this bill,
be divided into two districts, Mr. President. The elective

members are to be divided equally among these. two .

districts, and any excess member will be assigned to the
district with the greater population.

Now, as far as the municipalities are concerned, Mr.
President, the elective members will be divided and will
be apportioned among the . so-called councilor dis-
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tricts.
upon the number of elective members, with the require-
ment that each councilor district will elect two coun-
cilors.

We are avoiding, Mr. President, a manu-mano fight,
because if it is a one-on-one fight for a councilor district,
we know that it is too frontal and adversarial a fight that,
probably, it will become too partisan, too expensive, and
we will divide the municipality into so many districts.

Let us take a situation of a municipality with 10
elective members. It will be divided into five councilor
districts, each councilor district to elect two members,
Mr. President. In those municipalities where there are
12 members or less than that, then it will still be on the
basis of two councilors per district, the excess to be
assigned to the district having the biggest number of
population.

Now, who will undertake the apportionment, Mr.
President? We know that Congress cannot do it. We
neither have the time, the manpower and the means to
undertake such apportionment.  That is why this bill
delegates that authority to the Commission on Elections.
However, in order that the delegation will not run riot, we
provided for standards: that the apportionment should be
done as nearly as practicable by the number of inhabi-
tants, and each district to comprise a compact, contiguous
territory. And, as far as municipalities are concerned, the
apportionment shall be by barangays, Mr. President.

Now, there is a requirement that any candidate for a
Sanggunian district must be an actual resident of that
district. However, for purposes of the 1992 elections,
incumbents can run in any district of their choice. That is
how the districting is to be made which, I repeat, the
COMELEC says is a condition precedent to the holding
of a simultaneous election.

Now, as far as the decrease or the delimiting of the
number of registered voters in a precinct is concerned,
then it shall not be more than 200.

The experience of the COMELEC, Mr. President,
shows that while there are 200 registered voters in a
_precinct, actually less than that will really vote. At least
20 percent, on the basis of their experiences, would not

The councilor districts will, of course, depend

vote so it will be less and it will be manageable.

Commissioner Haydee Yorac's original proposal or
limiting the number of voters in a precinct to 100 just
cannot be done because the precincts will be so increased
to a number where we would require no less than 900,000
teachers in order to man the polling places. We only have
about a total of 460,000 public and private schoolteach-
ers. '

Mr. President, we realize that the Constitution pro-
vides that the election period shall be 90 days before the
election and 30 days after the election, except in such
special cases as may be determined by the Commission
on Elections. That is one of the reasons why the Supreme
Court voided the election periods longer than 90 days
that we have provided in R.A. 1056. The Supreme Court
categorically stated that the campaign period and the
ensuing political activities will have to be circumscribed
within the election period provided for by the Constitu-
tion. Therefore, the campaign period for President and
Vice-President which we earlier fixed at 150 days before
the election had to be reduced to 90 days before the
election.

Now, for Senators, we are suggesting that it be 60
days, although the original recommendation is 90 days.
For the representatives and elective local officials, 45
days, Mr. President. This, of course, may be increased or
decreased, whichever is the decision of this Body. So,
this is not an open-and-shut question, Mr. President. We
are leaving the duration of the campaign period to the
collective wisdom of this Body.

Now, consistent with our agreement reached in cau-
cus, we have requested the Commission on Elections to
file a motion for clarification with the Supreme Court in
respect of two things: o -

First, can we fix the date of the holding of the politi-
cal convention for the nomination or selection of the
official candidates of a polmcal party or group beyond

the 90-day perlod"

It the President will recall, under RA 1056, we fixed
it at 180 days before the day of the election., Considering
the very strict and, I would say, narrow interpretation
made by the Supreme Court, it would seem that all politi-
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political activities must be circumscribed within the elec-
tion period. We have to accept the reality that nomina-
tion of official candidates, certainly, can be considered as
a political activity. :

Second, whether or not we can repeat the redistricting
or the apportionment of the sangguniang members, be-
cause the entire law which contained all of these things
had been declared null and void. '

‘COMELEC says that, except on the four aspects,
which had been ruled by the Supreme Court expressly as
violating specific constitutional provisions, where it ap-
pears clear to them, they are not tainted with unconstitu-
tionality. But that is, of course, a very debatable one, and
that is why we told them that this was a request reached
by the Senate in caucus, because we feel that we cannot
afford another constitutional setback when we enact a
new election law. However, COMELEC says that they
find it not necessary to do so.

I am glad that through the representations of the
Senate President, I think the COMELEC will file the
.appropriate motion for clarification. .

Just before this bill was called, I had on the line.

Solicitor General Chavez, whom I tried to reach in vain
before this date, but I transmitted to him the Senate’s
request. I am very happy to be informed that they are
actually already preparing a motion for clarification on
these points, and-they will file it by tomorrow. He even
requested me to give whatever materials we may feel
must be included in the motion for clarification, '

At any rate, in this bill, following the suggestion of
the Supreme Court, we set the date of the nominating
convention to be held not earlier than 150 days instead of
the 120 days as recommended by the COMELEC,

Again, Mr. President, all periods here will be subject to

whatever this Body may finally decide on.

Then we realize that members of the board of election
inspectors--who are teachers--on election day will proba-
bly receive more than double of what they usually do in
ordinary elections. That is why there is a provision here
increasing the per diems of teachers on election day from
P200 to P400 for May 11, 1992 elections, and making,
likewise, a provision for a mechanism of hazard pay, and
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incentive and merit awards.

The Maceda bill, Mr. President, would provide for an

increase in the per diems of teachers from the regular

P200 to P60, but, as we have said, we have decided on
the COMELEC bill. So that matter will have to be open
during the period of individual amendments.

Then, Mr. President, probably many presidentiables,
and many senatorial, congressional and even provincial
governor aspirants may not want this, but there has been a
broadening under this bill of the definition of a *‘candi-
date’” as one who aspires for a public office, whether or
not he has filed his Certificate of Candidacy or’ has been
nominated by a political party as its candidate.

Now, I think this is COMELEC'’s reaction to the
present situation where many people believe that those
aspiring for elective offices are, in effect, already cam-
paigning, although it is claimed that they are merely
campaigning for the nomination of their respective
political parties. Therefore, in a sense, they are not really
candidates. I think that is borne out by the COMELEC’s
repeated ruling to the effect that, certainly, under these
circumstances, there is no law violated. But they have
suggested that probably if we really go into the substance
and the purpose of this prohibition against too early cam-
paigning, then the definition of candidates should be
broadened. ‘

Then, Mr. President, under the Omnibus Election
Law, there is a requirement of the printing of the names
of all candidates in the election returns. Now, COME-
LEC does not want an ironclad rule on this particular
matter, and the requirement has been eliminated. How-
.ever, the printing of such names can still be undertaken
by the COMELEC when practicable. But I think this is a
very good provision, Mr. President.

In the 1987 election, the names of one Roberto
Gonzales and one Gil Sanchez had been printed in the
election returns. The election returns were printed way
ahead of the election, so that even if, later, I was able to
obtain a disqualification of Roberto Gonzales as a nui-
sance candidate, and our own Colleague in our own sena-
torial ticket Bobit Sanchez had obtained a disqualifica-
tion of Gil Sanchez, their names still appeared in the
election returns. :
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It was already too late to notify them. I did every-
thing to notify the Board of Election Inspectors by send-
ing through telegram the decision of the COMELEC
disqualitying Roberto Gonzales. It costs me I think al-
most P200,000 at the last day of the election, when prac-
tically all our resources had already dried up. Pero, hindi
nakarating. O nakarating man, hindi naman inintindi
sapagkat printed nga naman iyong mga pangalan nitong
mga kandidatong ito sa election returns.

So, I think there is great merit here, Mr. President,
because the disqualifications of certain candidates for
whatever reason under the law, come very much later
than the printing of the election returns.

Then we have actually provided in Republic Act No.
7056 two registration days and one revision day. The
COMELEC felt that one registration day would be suffi-
cient. Probably, there was no need in most cases to have
a revision day, because large percentage of these pre-
cincts ay wala namang mga excluded or included. So, the
whole day, the board of election inspectors sit in the
polling place doing nothing.

So they advocate a selective process: revision day
will be held only in those precincts where there are sub-
stantial names, either included or excluded. However,
when there are only a few received, then before starting
the vote on election day, the Board of Election Inspectors
should already make the appropriate adjustments in the
registry of voters.

Mr. President, we are also putting already into law
what has been practiced by the COMELEC before, and
that is to make the necessary adjustments and the splitting
of the precincts by assigning voters therein alphabetically
and equitably among the precincts within the barangay.
This has been done--a big precinct is sometimes divided
into two or more, and they are called daughter precincts.
Normally, the division is done by alphabetical names.
However, there is a requirement of notice to the voter, as
well as publication in the newspaper.

If we will recall, Mr. President, in the Lina Bill, he
had provided for flexible cardboard voting booths to in-
crease the number of voting booths in a precinct at little
or at no expense at all. The essence of that suggestion has
been captured in the provision, giving the COMELEC

flexibility to determine the design and the materials of the
voting booth. :

Then the COMELEC insists that its power to pre-
serve the integrity of the voters’ registration records be
firmed or strengthened by giving it the authority to annul
motu proprio any book of voters prepared under fraudu-
lent or highly irregular circumstances. Under the law, it
could be done only through a verified petition and after
due notice and hearing. I obtained an admission from
them that, whenever evidence alluded to is required to
constitute a ground for annulment, they cannot do away
with notice and hearing. They admit that, but they want
to be given a motu proprio power. For example, on the
basis of records along, the number of registered voters
would be statistically improbable.

Then, absentee voting for president, vice-president,
and senators is provided for under Executive Order No.
952. However, the privilege can be availed of only by
members of the military and other government personnel
who, on election day, may be assigned in connection with
election duties to places where they are not registered.

A teacher who lives in Pasig and a registered voter
therein, but is assigned to teach in Mandaluyong, and
assigned to be a chairman of a precinct in Mandaluyong,
under this provision, may vote in that precinct, not for
local officials but only for President, Vice-President,
Senators, and Congressmen.

Then, this increase in the expenses that a candidate
and a political party can make for his election campaign
had always come from the COMELEC. I recall that in
Republic Act No. 7056, we reduced it because of fears
expressed by the Honorable Senate President that too
much expenditure may lead to inflation, and we do not
even want a repetition of the 1970 tloating rate that was

the consequence of the lavish spending in the 1969 elec-

tions.

But here, they say that in order to bring to a more
realistic and credible level the limits on election spend-
ing, they increase the ceiling from P1.50 to P3.00 per
registered voter for candidates, and P5.00 per registered
voter for a political party.

Of course, a candidate can spend only if he has the
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resources. This represents merely a ceiling, and he is not
required to spend this much. Probably, for a senatorial
candidate, it may really be too much because P3.00, with
an estimated 30 million voters for 1992, would give a
senatorial candidate a ceiling of election expenditures in
the amount of P90 million. But when we look at the
Congressman, the President, the Vice President, and local
elective officials, these amounts may appear to be reason-
able, Mr. President.

Then, the modification of the penalty captures the
intent of the Guingona and the Maceda bills on this
particular point. Instead of imposing imprisonment and
disqualification, then a more liberal and humanitarian
attitude is reflected by merely allowing the imposition of
administrative fines for first offense. The fine ranges
from P5.00 to P20,000 or even P100,000, depending on
whether he is a candidate for a barangay office, a munici-
pal office, a congressional office, a provincial office, or a
treasurer of a political party, Mr. President.

According to the COMELEC, if they strictly enforce
the law now, probably 80 percent of all these incumbent
officials who failed to report their election expenses will
be imprisoned and/or disqualified, Mr. President.

- So, this being a law that will liberalize the penalty for
the offense, it is made retroactive, in the sense, Mr. Pres-
ident, that if one had already been convicted and still
serving term, he should be released. If the information
has been filed, and the case is pending, then it should also
be considered dismissed. If an appeal is pending, then
the appellant can take advantage of the provisions of this
law.

Probably, one of the innovations that had been intro-
duced in our electoral system is the institution of pre-
proclamation proceedings. This was a reaction to the

- practice of ‘‘grab the proclamation and prolong the pro-
test’’ to the extent that cheating is done, then proclama-
tion is rushed, at pagkatapos ng proclamation, sasabihin
ng nanalo sa natalo, ‘“‘Maghabol ka na sa tambol
mayor.”” Then they can always prolong the protest.

Pre-proclamation, as a part of the political process, is
good, Mr. President. The trouble is that it can also be
abused. Lawyers are very, very imaginative and they are
inventive of causes.
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There are so many pre-proclamation proceedings,
and the result is that, sometimes, one who really was
elected could not be proclaimed elected until after three
or even four years. And so, this bill now provides for a
mechanism for a summary disposition of pre-proclama-
tion controversies by shortening the periods within which
to appeal. Sapagkat kahit na po nakakaabot na sa
COMELEC, pagkatapos, ise-certiorari pa sa Supreme
Court. We hope that with the summary and simplified
mechanism provided for herein, this evil of delaying of
proclamation through pre-proclamation controversies
could be minimized.

This has already been provided for in our law, and
that is to require only the Chairman of the Board of
Election Inspectors to authenticate a ballot given to a
voter by affixing his signature at the back thereof and to
consider any ballot not so authenticated as spurious.
Simpleng mechanism lamang po ito kung magagawa.
But this is intended to address the election mischief of
substituting official ballot with fake ones.

To enhance the transparency of the elections, this bill
provides the ruling and the dominant opposition parties
with copies of the election returns and the certificates of
canvass. Mr. President, there will be difficulty here, and
we will have to put our collective minds together in order
to determine the standards in the determination of the
political parties which shall be entitled to receive copies
of the election returns and the certificates of canvass, as
well as in the authentication of the election returns them-
selves. Obviously, Mr. President, not all political parties
could be given this privilege. Otherwise, with the num-
ber of political parties--and there are more than 100 of
them--baka wala nang mapagsulatan sa election returns
iyong mga inspectors. So they continued with the Omni-
bus Election Code providing for a ruling party or a ruling
coalition, as the case may be, and a dominant opposition

party.

In 1987, there was not much of a problem because the
lines were drawn up between what we now call the ruling

coalition--others would call it colorfully as the ‘‘rainbow .

coalition’’--and the dominant opposition party. But in
the forthcoming election, there will be a tremendous
problem. Therefore, we should lay down clear, definite,
fair and equitable standards. That would leave the
COMELEC without discretion in the determinition of
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which are these parties that are entitled not only to
appoint official watchers but also to authenticate the
election returns, and also to receive copies of the election
returns and the certificatec of canvass.

This law now provides the basis of canvass of the
results of the election of the President, Vice-President,
Senators and Members of the House of Representatives.

It is here proposed that the election returns of the
precincts in the legislative districts be canvassed by the
Provincial Board of Canvassers, the City Board of Can-
vassers in case of cities comprising one or more legisla-
tive districts, and the District Board of Canvassers in the
Metropolitan Manila area.

Actually, Mr. President, there will be two election
returns: one for national officials, and one for local offi-
cials. There will also be two tally boards: one for na-
tional officials and one for local officials.

Now, who would canvass the results of the election
for municipal officials? Obviously, Mr. President, it will
be the Municipal Board of Canvassers. On the part of the
provincial elective officials as well as the Members of the
House of Representatives, it will be the Provincial Board
of Canvassers. For the Senators, it is the COMELEC,
which is the National Board of Canvassers. And for the
election of President and Vice-President, it will be the
Congress of the Philippines, pursuant to the express pro-
visions of the Constitution.

Now, what will be the basis of canvass, Mr. Pres-
ident? On the four municipal offices, actually, the basis
of canvass will be the election returns coming from all the
precincts of the same. However, the Board of Canvassers
will prepare a certificate of canvass which will now be
sent to the Provincial Board of Canvassers, and this will
be the basis of the canvass for the provincial officials and
the members of Congress.

Ang mangyayari po rito, ang Board of Canvassers sa
ibaba, gagawa po ng three certificates of canvass. Ganito
po ang sabi:

For president and vice president, the Board of Can-
vassers shall prepare in five copies a certificate of canvass
supported by a statement of votes by precinct received by

each candidate and distribute them as follows:

The first copy shall be transmitted to the President of

_the Senate for use in the canvass for president and vice-

president.

In short, the basis of the canvass by Congress will not
really be the election returns. We could imagine the
number of election returns throughout the country.

The Constitution explicitly says it will be the certifi-
cate of canvass. It says: ‘“The President shall then open
the certificate of canvass and the votes shall then be
counted.”’ '

Ito po iyong sinasabing ‘‘certificate of canvass’’.
Then the second copy, to the COMELEC; the third copy,
to the Chairman of the Board; the fourth copy, to the
representative of the ruling party; and the fifth copy, to
the representative of the dominant party.

For Senators - the Board shall prepare four copies of
a certificate of canvass. Again, a certificate of canvass
supported by a statement of votes by precinct received by
each candidate.

Ang distribution ay ganito: The first copy shall be
transmitted to the Commission on Elections for the can-
vass of the results of the election for Senators, because
the COMELEC is the National Board of Canvassers for
the senatorial election; the second copy to be retained by
the Chairman,; the third and fourth copies to the represen-
tatives of the ruling party and the dominant opposition
party, as the case may be. -

Dalawa na po itong certificates of canvass. Pangatlo
po, for Members of the House of Representatives. The
board shall canvass the election returns, prepare in five
copies a certificate of canvass supported by a statement of
votes by precinct received by each candidate.

Ang distribution ganito: The first copy shall be
transmitted to the Secretary of the House of Representa-
tives, the second copy shall be transmitted to the Com-
mission on Elections; the third copy shall be given to the
winner; the fourth copy to be posted in a conspicuous
place; and, the filth copy shall be kept by the board,
sapagkat ang Provincial Board of Canvassers ang siyang
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magka-canvass, and make the proclamation of the win-
-ning candidate for a congressional position.

Incidentally, as an additional safeguard in the canvass
of the presidential and vice-presidential election--while
the Constitution merely speaks that the returns of every
election for President and Vice-President duly certified

by the Provincial or City Board of Canvassers shall be
transmitted to the seat of Congress, addressed to the
President of the Senate, who, in the presence of the Mem-
bers of the Senate and the House of Representatives shall
open the certificates of canvass--in addition to the certifi-
" cates of canvass, the first copy of the election returns will
be sent to the Senate President which shall be used for
"p\urposes of comparison and verification during the can-
vass of the results of the election for President and Vice-
President. ‘

Mr. President, this may appear long. In fact, if we
will recall, in the first bill, Senate Bill No. 1777 that I
prepared, most of these matters were already there. But
then, 1 was advised na ang importante lamang iyong date
of election, campaign period, convention, alisin na iyong
other matters to ensure a speedy passage of the law,
because we were conscious that there are certain serious
constitutional questions that may be raised. We antici-
pated--in fact, welcome--a suit in order that there will be
a final judicial determination of the same, and I abided,
Mr. President. Inalis kong lahat ang mga probisyong
iyon, pero nakapasok ngayong iahat sa bill na ito.

Ang masasabi ko, kung mapagtitibay natin ang ba-
gong batas na ito. kahit na hindi natin mapagtibay itong
Revised Election Code Tor lack of time--although we will
try to do it within the remainder of our session--morc or
less, a great step has already been done in effecting elec-
toral reforms which would be in place by the 1992 elec-
tions. :

Thank you, Mr. President.

Senator Guingona. There is another Sponsor, Mr.
President, Senator Lina, and I ask that he be recognized.
After which, the interpellations can be directed to either

Sponsor.

The President. Senator Lina is recognized.
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Senator Lina. Thank you, Mr. President. This will
just be very brief. I have a prepared sponsorship speech; 1
will not present it anymore. I join the Chairman of the
Committee on Electoral Reforms and People’s Participa-
tion in his sponsorship speech. So, I will just summarize
the things that I prepared in this sponsorship speech.

As Chairman of the Senate Committee on Consti-
tutional Amendments, Revision of Codes and Laws, I
cosponsor this measure which upholds the majesty of the
law and follows the Constitutional mandate that we con-
duct national and local elections which are simultaneous
and synchronized.

I will immediately jump to page 3 of the speech, Mr.
President, on the matter of districting.

The districting should be determinable as far as pos-
sible by facts alréady established. namely: contiguity,
compactness, and being adjacent; population based on the
1990 census; and number of voters based on the 1988
elections.

To my mind, Mr. President, the primary purpose of
districting is for attaining true and participatory democ-
racy among our people.  Hahati-hatiin po natin iyong
province, municipality and city to elect the provincial
board members and councilors of municipality and city
by district.

Under the districting proposal, voters will be able to
choose their representative to the sanggunian who comes
from the area where they live. In past elections, many of
the sanggunian members who arc elected reside in the
more populous and urbanized arcas. Now, the outlying
barangays of a municipality have a better chance to elect
a sanggunian member who resides in their part ol the
municipality, city or province. I feel that this is more in
consonance with the constitutional mandate of represen-
tation.

The other reason, of course, is already mentioned by
the earlier Speaker, and that is to lessen the number of
positions that a voter needs to elect and thereby decrcase
the size of the ballot and number of positions that a voter
needs to write on election day. '
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The provision in the Constitution on the election
period is that it shall ‘‘commence ninety days before the
day of election and end thirty days thereafter.”” Ang
problema po rito ay ipinaliwanag na ni Senator Gonzales,
na may isang bahagi sa desisyon ng Supreme Court that
the campaign period shall be circumscribed within the
90-day election period.

Now, the COMELEC proposal is that the nominat-
ing convention should be held 120 days before election
day. Sa Supreme Court decision, sinabi na ang 180-day
campaign period ay unconstitutional. = Ngayon, ang
problema po natin, ano kaya ang magiging desisyon? Is
the nominating convention part of the campaign period?
In the bill that we have presented here this morning,
under the joint sponsorship of the two committees, we
propose 120 days prior to the election day will be the
nominating convention.

We need to approve this bill, Mr. President, as soon
as possible. Going back to the districting, mayroon po
kaming proposal na gagawin, and the proposal is: No
barangay, municipality or city shall be divided in the
districting. Hindi ho puwedeng hatiin ang barangay in a
municipality para sa pagbuo ng councilor district.
Where possible and should this august Body approve the
idea, the division into two districts should be either north
to south or east to west, so that division based on narrow
partisan or personal considerations will be eliminated.

Kinakailangan po ay may standard. Baka sa pagha-
hati ng province, iyong isa ay north to south; iyong iba
naman ay east to west. Kinakailangang may definite na
standard para ang discretion ay hindi na malaki.

The more specific and spatial the criteria for the
division into districts, the less likely there will be a divi-
sion that will be questionable and controversial.

Mayroon lamang isang concern na dapat malaman ng
ating mga Kasamahan dito. Aywan ko po kung na-
banggit ito ni Senator Gonzales. Iyon pong districting
based on a COMELEC proposal will no longer require
notice and hearing. Iyon po ang baka ma-question. Sa-
pagkat kung may notice ang hearing in the districting,
baka hindi matapos ng COMELEC, although they as-
sured us that they can finish the districting in two
months--province, city, and municipality.

The other concern is, if there is a suit filed question-
ing the districting, there is a possible spectacle of 1,500
legal suits. That is really a problem that is not remote,
and we have to anticipate what we should do in case that
situation arises.

That will be all, Mr. President. 1 will just distribute a
copy of my sponsorship speech to abbreviate the proceed-
ings.

Thank you very much.

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

The President. Let us just suspend the session for
one minute, if there is no objection. [There was none.}

Itwas 10:47 p.m.
RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION

At 10:50 p.m., the session was resumed.

The President. The session is resumed.

Senator Maceda is recognized.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, with the permis-
sion of Senator Maceda, many Senators feel that they
would like to study more closely the bill, and they are

suggesting that the interpellations be made on Monday.

The President. Maikli lamang naman ang interpel-
lation ni Senator Maceda.

Senator Maceda. Mr. Pregident.
The President. Senator Maceda is recognized.

Senator Maceda. Mr. President, maybe we can raise

some points now, which I would like the other Members ,

to study, and it might be useful. I am not going to raise
definitive proposals. What I intend to do is to ask the
Sponsors to consider certain points precisely for more
study by all Members of the Senate.

Senator Guingona. Certainly. After that, maybe,
we can suspend consideration, Mr. President.



Interpellations

RECORD OF THE SENATE

VOL Iy NO- 10

Senator Maceda. Will the distinguished Chairman
of the Committee on Electoral Reforms and People’s
Participation yield to a few questions?

Senator Gonzales. Paano ko po matatanggihan ang
Kagalanggalang na Senador?

Senator Maceda. Salamat po. Sa palagay ko po,
kahit na ngayon, both Chairmen have already anticipated
that the more controversial portion of this bill will be the
redistricting of the board members into districts, and the
councilors into districts.

Puwede po bang pag-aralan 0 napag-aralan na ninyo
ang proposal at komentaryo ng ilang mga board members
at mga gobernador na nakausap natin na, especially be-
cause of the four additional appointed members, masyado
nang lumaki ang numero ng provincial boards, municipal
councils, and city councils?

Senator Gonzales. Totoo po iyon. Kaya lamang, sa
pakiramdam namin ay hindi dito sa bill na ito. The bill
works on the existing membership. Sapagkat sa amin
pong paniwala, kung kailangang baguhin ang bilang nito,
hindi sa bill na ito kundi, marahil, sa Local Government
Code. That would appropriately belong to the jurisdic-
tion of the Committee on L.ocal Governments, Mr. Pres-
ident. ’

Senator Maceda. Be that as it may, Mr. President,
just to go direct to the point, would the Committee study
or consider two alternative proposals? That is, one, to
reduce the number of board members and councilors
across the board and, two, in the context of the COME-
LEC recommendations which the Gentleman in his bill
and we, also in our bill, in principle, accept.

I am thinking of this alternative para wala nang hati-
hatian, and that is to follow existing districts. Ngayon
po, sampu ang malalaking probinsiya. Sa maliliit na
probinsiya, walo ang elected members.

To begin with, there are three provinces with six
districts: Pangasinan, Cebu, and Negros Occidental. If
we bring that up to 12, it will be two each. Wala nang
problema. Ang five-district provinces which are existing
with ten, maski sabihin nating nandoon na iyon, walang
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problema, tiglilima. - If . we bring the four-district prov-
inces to eight, accepting probably this reduction, it will
be two each. If we bring the three-district provinces to
six, two each, wala nang kailangang hati-hatian pa. Then
the two-district provinces could either be four for the
whole province or two each. And definitely, the one-
district province will go down to four. The four, plus the
four appointive members, plus the vice-governor and the
governor would still have a ten-member provincial
board.

So, ito po ang gusto ko lamang pag-usapan, in con-
sultation with the Chairman of the Local Governments’
Committee: one- district province, four; two-district
province, four province-wide, kung gusto ninyo, or two
each; and then, three-district, two each equals six; four-
district, two each equals eight; five-district that is exist-
ing now, and they usually have ten, two each; and, itataas
lamang iyong three provinces. These are provinces with
one million voters each--Pangasinan, Negros Occidental
and Cebu. I can live with increasing them by two mem-
bers each.

If that proposal would be acceptable to the three
Committee Chairmen, mai-eliminate iyong contro-
versy--iyong tagal, iyong question whether there should
be hearings; because, in short, we will be following al-
ready existing districts and boundaries.

Senator Gonzales. Pag-aaralan po naminiyon. Ang
totoo po niyan itong Quezon City at saka Manila ay nag-
complain nang gawin nating anim ang bawat distrito,
sapagkat may anim na distrito yata dito sa Maynila. Kaya
ang kanilang municipal board ay may 36 na konsehal--
mas malaki pa kaysa sa Senado. Sa palagay nila ay sobra
iyon. That would really require a more thorough and
serious study. We cannot do it on our own. We have
really to give also these local officials a chance to be
heard on this particular matter.

Napakahirap po iyong ibinigay na natin at pagkata-
pos ay babawasan natin. Ordinarily, there is a resistance.
They may actually stymie or delay the enactment of this
bill, admittedly, of such an urgency, sapagkat kailangan
naman ng COMELEC na magkaroon ng sapat na
panahon para makapaghanda.
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Senator Maceda. Then the next point, Mr. Pres-
ident, and I shall be very brief: In the bill that we
presented, we did not agree with this requirement for the
chairman of the board to authenticate the ballot. Some-
how, this looks a little problematical because, first of all,
we are penalizing them for not authenticating. Remem-
ber, it is not mandatory for teachers to accept, I think,
appointments to serve as poll clerks. Baka maraming
hindi tumanggap.

Secondly, in the nature of things, lalo na kung
magulo sa closing, baka may kaligtaang hindi pirmahan,

Pangatlo, ang problema nga natin ay iyong time.
Iyong pagdadagdag ng pagpirma ng Chairman will some-
what add about half a minute or so. Kaya, kung puwede
lamang, pag-aralan nating mabuti ang particular na pun-
tong ito.

I have very strong reservations about this need for
the chairman of the board to authenticate a ballot.

Senator Gonzales. Ang masasabi ko lamang sa
mahal na Senador, ito naman ay hindi bagong batas.
Noong 1987 ay nagpasa tayo ng isang batas for local
elections para sa 1988 elections. Naroroon na po ito.
Inulit po lamang dito sa panukalang batas na ito in order
to promote some sort of cohesion and continuity. Ito po,
sa kanilang karanasan at sa aming karanasan din naman,
ay isang napakasimpleng paraan to prevent substitution
of ballots. Pero totoo po na iyon din naman ang mga
concerns. Maaaring hindi mapirmahan ng chairman
iyong likod ng balota dahil sa kaniyang kapaguran. o
pagkakaligta, o maaaring intentional. Napakabigat po ng
consequence niyon. The ballot will be considered as
spurious and will not be counted.

Kaya kailangan sigurong balansihin natin iyong ob-
jective nito, kung anong buti ang magagawa doon naman
sa pinsalang maaaring idulot nito.

The President. I recall that in the 1969 elections,
there were fake election returns, and I think this is an evil
we should guard against.

Senator Maceda. Sa election returns po.

The President. Maraming fake election returns. In

fact, I appeared before the COMELEC and denounced
them. '

Senator Maceda. Totoo po iyon. Iyan nga ang
pinakamalaking problema. Sapagkat sa akin pong karana-
san, ang dayaan ay wala talaga sa actual voting sa pre-
sinto. Iyong substitution of ballots, iyong mga chain o
iyong rota ng mga balota, that is tolerable. Doon sa
substitution of election returns nagkakaroon ng malaking
problema.

Senator Gonzales. Sa aming naging karanasan, lalo
na ni Senador Maceda, noong kumandidato kami bilang

mga Don Quixote sa ilalim ng bandila ng LABAN noong

1978, ang talagang pinakamabigat naming kalaban ay
hindi iyong balota kundi iyong substitution of election
returns. Hindi pa nabibilang iyong mga balota ay yari na
iyong election returns. Iyon po ang nangyari noong
1978, sa Metro Manila.

Ito po naman ay covered ng international press, kung
kaya masasabi natin na, for purposes of record, this is not
sour graping. Sinabi po ni Marcos na iyong pinakama-
lakas na kandidato ng LABAN--at ang lahat ay nani-
niwala na ito ay si Senador Ninoy Aquino--will lose by
350,000 votes to their tail ender. At iyon po ang tala-
gang nangyari dahil sa nakaprograma na iyon. Si Camara
na siyang panghuling kandidato ng KBL ay lumamang ng
350,000 boto kay Ninoy Aquino, na noon ay siyang
nangunguna at pinakamalakas na kandidato sa tiket ng
LABAN. Totoo po iyong sinabi ni Senador Maceda.

Senator Maceda. Ang problema po riyan, sang-
ayon sa ating naging karanasan, lalung-lalo na ng
COMELEC noon, ay iyong security paper on which
election returns are printed, where we are supposed to
have our individual secret marks. Nadu-duplicate po.

Marahil, doon sa sinasabing pagpirma sa likod ng
balota nagagawa kung masisiguro talaga na iyong elec-
tion returns that are being printed, to begin with, ay iilan
lamang ang pasobra, at kung sa actual number o doon sa
pasobrang numero ay papayagang pumirma sa likod ng
election returns ang lahat ng kandidato sa pagka-Pa-
ngulo, ang lahat ng kandidato sa pagka-deputado, at ang
lahat ng kandidato sa pagka-gobernador before it is dis-
tributed. '
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Meaning to say, if there are six presidential candi-
dates, six congressmen and six governors, then 18 of
them should sign or have a mark on the back of the
election returns printed several months before distribu-
tion. If we split the precincts, we are talking of some-
thing like 250,000 election returns on a national basis.

So, that is really the problem. And the other prob-
lem, Mr. President, is when it comes to the signatures of
the provincial, city, district, or municipal board of can-
vassers. When we say ‘‘fake’’, it means to say the
signatures are fake. So, how do we assure the authentic-
ity and genuineness of the signatures of the provincial
treasurer, provincial election registrar, city treasurer, city
election registrar, et cetera?

In addiiion, there must be a strict numbering again
and a color coding process for election returns. Meaning
to say, there should be a minimum of one color per
region. We should have about 13 colors, and the number-
ing wachine in the printing press should also be so or-
dercd.

To begin with, all the political parties should know
what is the corresponding number of the election returns
for every region and, if possible, for every province.,

Senator Gonzales. Mahahalaga po iyon sapagkat
ang talagang mga sensitive portion dito ay iyong printing
of ballots at saka custody and distribution. Tama po ang
inyong sinasabi. Dito po ay may color coding, but only
for purposes of determining which copy should be sent to
the COMELEC and to other officials entitled to the same.

Ngayon, ang sinasabi ni Senador Maceda, for a re-
gion, give them a particular color so that the returns ay
hindi mapupunta sa ibang region, I think we have been
insisting to the COMELEC--sapagkat ito po naman ay
administrative lamang at hindi na kailangan pa ang isang
batas--na bagamat marami ngang kopya iyong returns,
ang nangyayari ay iba-iba ang serial numbers ng election
returns coming from a municipality or coming from a
precinct.

Ang nangyayari po ay isa ang serial number ng origi-
nal copy; another serial number on the second and subse-
quent copies, and so on. Kinakailangan po na iisa lamang
ang serial number ng isang set of election returns. Pero
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talagang huli po pala tayo sa technology kung printing
din lamang ang pag-uusapan. Kung minsan ay marami
silang pinagbibigyan upang mag-imprenta nitong mga
election returns na walang numbering machines. Kaya
ang gagawin ay ipadadala pa roon sa iba for purposes of
numbering. That is the sad state of the printing industry
in our country, Mr. President.

Senator Maceda. Huling bagay na lamang po, sa-
pagkat may hiling ang ating mga Kasama na pag-aralan
muna ang ibang parte ng bagong panukalang-batas na ito.

Noong 1987, kung natatandaan ninyo, tatlumpu’t-
lima ang ibinotong mga kandidato. It really took the
balloting a minimum of two days, and the counting was
the one that took up to the next morning in almost all the
precincts in Metro Manila.

So, on that basis, probably the proposal was made by
the COMELEC to increase the per diems from $200 to
P400. Now, even with the minimum of 38, more or less,
that they were projecting, palagay ko ay aabutin iyon ng
three or more days. Kayo po ba ay sang-ayon na malaki
ang posibilidad na abutin ito ng three or more days?

Senator Gonzales. Palagay ko po, in spite of all the
optimism shown by the COMELEC, we who are exposed
to these realities recognize that this will be really a very
long and arduous process. Most likely, it might be from
two to three days.

Senator Maceda. Lalo na po ngayong may proposal
to deputize private school teachers and other nonteachers.
During the period of amendments, mayroon po kaming
mungkahing ipapasok na gawing P600 iyong $400, kung
maaari.

Senator Gonzales. Humihingi po ang COMELEC
ng P100 milyong gugulin dito saP900 thousand--

Senator Maceda. Nine hundred million.

Senator Gonzales. --P900 million.

madaragdag?

Ilan po ang

Senator Maceda. Palagay ko po ay bata P100 mil-
yon.

Ld
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Senator Gonzales. Isang daang milyqn po lamang
naman pala. Pag-uusapan po natin ito.

Senator Maceda. Opo; salamat po.
Senator Gonzales. Salamat po.

Senator Rasul. Mr. President.

The President. Senator Rasul is recognized.

Senator Rasul. Thank you, Mr. President. I realize
na talagang kailangang pag-aralan ang bagong panuka-
lang batas na ito. But I would just ask the distinguished
Sponsor to clarify just one point.

If we will recall, Mr. President, when we were dis-
cussing the Local Government Code, I introduced an
amendment to provide a sectoral seat for women in all the
sanggunian in the country, and the seat will be contested
by women candidates only. In fact, ito po ay pinagtibay
na in the Conference Committee of both Houses. Now, if
this bill provides for redistricting of the province for all
the sanggunian, the municipal council, and the provincial
board, I wonder how we will tackle the issue of women
representation.

Sapagkat kung ang isang probinsiya ay ire-redistrict
into four, imposible na mabigyan ng isang sectoral seat
ang mga babae in all the four districts. But if we will give
only one seat, saan ninyo ilalagay iyon? That is the point
that I would like to be enlightened, Mr, President.

Senator Gonzales. I know that this is a continuing
concern of the gentle Lady from Sulu.” I wish she could
furnish us with the pertinent provision in the proposed
Local Government Code, and we will find the way so that
we can incorporate it in the bill. Hopefully, we can also
convince our counterparts in the House to accept the
same.

Senator Rasul. Actually, Mr. President, I am not a
member of the Conference Committee; I do not know the
details of the final provision that would allow women
representation. Perhaps the Conference Committee sec-
retariat can provide this Body with copies of that particu-
lar provision. All over the country, Mr. President, the
women are already girding themselves for participation in

the 1992 elections. Kung mabibigo iyan, I think the
proposal that we are presenting will even create more
problems than solutions.

Senator Gonzales. Halimbawa po, kung magkaka-
roon tayo ng process of accommodation, at sasabihin
natin iyong woman representative is to be elected in the
councilor district located in the poblacion--sapagkat kara-
niwan na ang mga lider ng mga kababaihan ay nangga-
galing doon--acceptable ba sa inyo iyan? Kung halim-
bawa na dalawa lamang ang pipiliin, samakatwid, iyong
isa ay nakareserba na kaagad sa babae, ganoon po ba?
Pagbobotohan naman silang lahat--maging lalake o
babae.

Senator Rasul. Yes, Mr. President.

Senator Gonzales. Kung ang lumabas po' ay lima
ang kandidato at panlima ang babae?

Senator Rasul. Mr. President, I would like to clarify
that point.

The amendment which was approved by the Confer-

ence Committee was to allow one seat for women to be
contested by women candidates only. Kung halim-
bawang maghahalal ng ten councilors, nine will be open
to men and women, pero iyong isa will be reserved solely
for women candidates. So, the candidates will be voted
upon by the entire district, ngunit sa seat na iyon, kung
sino ang nakakuha ng pinakamataas na boto sa mga
women candidates for that particular seat ay siyang ma-
hahalal.

Senator Gonzales. Bukas po ang aming isipan para
pag-aralan ito.

We will recall that in the caucus, I warned that what-

ever redistricting is proposed here should more or less

conform with the redistricting provisions of the proposed
Local Government Code. Sapagkat iniiwasan natin iyong
sitwasyon na magpapasa tayo ng batas--kung sabagay ay
applicable lamang ito sa 1992 elections, at maaaring ito
ay maging permanent na--and then, atter a month, we are
going to approve the Bicameral Conference Committee
on the Local Government Code which provides for a
different manner of apportionment or redistricting.
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That was my warning in that caucus, na, more or less,
kailangang magkapareho na in order to preclude that very
embarrassing situation. That we will pass one law now
and then the following week, or the following month, we
will pass a law that provides differently from a law that
we have passed only a month earlier. Ang totoo po, iyon
ang aking concern.

Senator Rasul. Yes, Mr. President. That is pre-
cisely the reason--although we will have the interpella-
tion on Monday--I brought out this point now para
mapag-isipan natin during the weekend. Sapagkat
mahirap po iyong napagtibay na sa Local Government
Code and then the effect of this redistricting might again
change the decision of the Conference Committee and the
two Houses. '

Senator Gonzales. Ang mahirap nga po, katulad
noong sinabi ninyo, wala pa iyong Bicameral Confer-
ence Committee. Hindi po natin alam kung ano ang
magiging final say ng local government structure. Kaya
naman nahihirapan kami. Siguro hihingan natin ng tu-
long si Senador Pimentel tungkol sa bagay na ito.

Senator Rasul. Thank you, Mr. President.
Senator Gonzales. Salamat din po.
The President. The Majority Floor Leader.

SUSPENSION OF CONSIDERATION
OF SENATE BILL NO. 1861

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that we
suspend consideration of this measure.

The President. Is there any objection? [Silence]
Hearing none, the motion is approved.

BILL ON SECOND READING
House Bill No. 31915--Granting Franchise to
Gateway U.H.F. Broadcasting, Inc.
(Continuation)

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that we

resume consideration of House Bill No. 31915 as re-
ported out under Committee Report No. 1318.
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The President. Resumption of consideration of
House Bill No. 31915 is now in order.

Senator Guingona. We are in the period of inter-
pellations, Iask that we recognize Senator Osmefia.

The President. Senator Osmefia is recognized.

Senator Osmefia.  This bill has been before the
Chamber two times already. It has gone through substan-
tial interpellations. The Sponsor is ready to answer any
questions. However, if there are none, perhaps, the Ma-
jority Floor Leader could close the period of interpella-
tions.

Senator Guingona. Yes, Mr, President. 1 move
that we close the period of interpellations.

The President. Is there any objection? [Silence]
Hearing none, the motion is approved.

Senator Guingona. We may now go into the period
of Committee amendments, Mr. President.

The President. Senator Osmefia.
COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Senator Osmefia. Mr. President, on page 2, line 2,
after the word ‘‘stations’’, delete the phrase ‘‘and to
install radio communication facilities for the grantee’s
use inits broadcast services.”’

The President. Is there any objection? [Silence]
Hearing none, the amendment is approved.

Senator Osmena. On page 4, line 6, replace the
word ‘‘approval’’ with the word EFFECTIVITY.

The President. Is there any objection? [Silence]
Hearing none, the amendment is approved.

Senator Osmefia. On the same page, line 8, after
the word ‘‘years”’, insert the phrase FROM THE EFFEC-
TIVITY OF THIS FRANCHISE OR ANYTIME
THEREAFTER.

The President. Is therc any objection? [Silence]
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Senator Tafiada. From the documents that have
gotten into my possession, it appears that what the com-
mercial banks are really interested in including into the
securitization plan is the Bataan Nuclear Power Plant
Debt Papers.

Senator Romulo. But, as I recall, the Bataan Nu-
clear Power Plant is only one, so that in actuality it is
really the entire debt. If they can get the Bataan Nuclear
Power Plant, that is a bonus. '

In other words, correct me if I am wrong--and I am
posing this in a question--to get this loan, they require the
securitization of all the debts, except the Bataan Nuclear
Power Plant. But they are now trying to put the Bataan
Nuclear Power Plant. Nagbabakasakali. Did I get that
correctly?

Senator Tafiada. No, not all the debts. Strictly
speaking, if what would be borrowed would be $250
million, then under the securitization plan, we would
multiply that by four, and then part of the rescheduled
debts would be covered by that amount. That is $250
million times four to include the Bataan Nuclear Power
Piant Debt Papers. -

Senator Romulo. So, the securitization of the P4.35
billion, representing the principal and interest due from
1994 to 1996, is apart from the proposed $250 million
loan. E

Senator Tafiada. That would be my understanding,
Mr. President.

Senator Romulo. Lastly, in the distinguished Gen-
tleman’s privilege speech, he only suggested that we look
into the Bataan Nuclear Power Plant. How about the
securitization of the P4.35 billion? How about the - $250
million loan that would be securitized one to four or one
to five? Is the distinguished Gentleman leaving that out
from his prayer to the Chamber?

Senator Tafiada. No, Mr. President. I would hope
that that would be included. I would propose that this
matter be looked into. While I have already mentioned
the Committee on Finance, I believe the Committee on
Banks could be the lead Committee, together with the
Committee on Finance and the Committee on Economic

Affairs.

~ Senator Romulo. Depending on the Chamber, we
would, of course, welcome any confidence that will be
reposed on us. :

As I have promised the Majority Floor Leader, my 15
minutes is up, so I would like to thank the distinguished
Senator from Quezon for a very brilliant and erudite
presentation of the problems and the issues.

Thank you, Mr. President.

The President Pro Tempore. The Majority Floor
Leader.

- MOTION OF SENATOR GUINGONA
(Referral of Senator Tafiada’s Speech to the
Banks Committee)

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move to refer
the speech of the distinguished Gentleman to the Com-
mittee on Banks.

The President Pro Tempore. Is there any objec-
tion? [Silence] Hearing none, the motion is approved.

BILL ON SECOND READING
Senate Bill No. 1861--Synchronized Elections
(Continuation)

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that we
resume consideration of Senate Bill No. 1861 as reported
out under Committee Report No. 1373.

We are in the period of interpellations. I ask that we
recognize Senator Gonzales.

The President Pro Tempore. Senator Gonzales
and Senator Guingona are recognized.

Senator Gonzales. Thank you, Mr. President. I am
now ready for interpellation. ’

The President Pro Tempore. Are we still in the
period of interpellations?

Senator Gonzales. That is correct, Mr. President.
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The President Pro Tempore. The Majorify Floor
Leader is recognized for interpellation purposes.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, will the distin-
guished Sponsor yield?

Senator Gonzales. Gladly, Mr. President, to the
Majority Floor Leader.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, under the pro-
posed bill, the expenditures have been increased from
P1.50 to P3.00 per voter for the candidate, and from
P3.00 to P5.00 for political parties.

Senator Gonzales. Thatis correct, Mr. President.

Senator Guingona. Does this mean that the political
party can spend P5.00 per voter for each candidate?

Senator Gonzales. No, Mr. President. It is P5.00
per registered voter in the constituency.

Senator Guingona. Yes, for all candidates,

Senator Gonzales. For the party expense, Mr. Pres-
ident, and that would include expenses of the party for all
the candidates of the same.

Senator Guingona. So, the expenditure for the
President, the Vice-President, the Senators, the Congress-
men, up to the Councilors will be P5.00 per voter for all.

Senator Gonzales. Yes, for all the candidates of the
party. That is exclusive of the allowable amounts to be
spent by the candidates themselves for their campaign.

Senator Guingona. Yes. There are registered voters
today of 33 million, is that correct?

Senator Gonzales. The estimate, Mr, President, is
that we shall have about 30 million registered voters in
1992.

Senator Guingona. Times P5.00, that would be

about 150 million.

Senator Gonzales. Yes.
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Senator Guingona. That is for the political party.
Senator Gonzales. That is correct, Mr. President.

Senator Guingona. ‘And there are more than 100
registered parties in the COMELEC, is that correct?

Senator Gonzales. That is correct, Mr. President.
But it does not mean that all parties would have the
wherewithal in order to finance a political campaign to
this extent, Mr. President.

Senator Guingona. So that if we limit the same to
four political parties, we could have an estimated expen-
diture of more than P600 million.

Senator Gonzales. The Gentleman would be proba-
bly correct, Mr. President. Right in this Chamber, I have
heard estimates by certain Senators who are very wise on
this matter that the expenses of a presidential candidate
might even run into billions.

Senator Guingona. All right. For the political
parties, therefore, over P600 million. Considering that
there are more than 30 million voters, times three, each
Senator would spend, at least, a maximum allowed ex-
penditure of 90 million. Is that correct?

Senator Gonzales. That is correct, Mr. President.
But it would have to depend upon the candidate himself
and his capacity to generate funds. Ido not think that any
candidate would be -able to personally bear his campaign
expenses. So, he has to depend upon contributions. And
whether or not he could raise that amount is, of course, a
very great problem for every candidate.

Senator Guingona. Considering that each senatorial
slate has 24, that would mean more than P2 billion per
slate.

Senator Gonzales. If we will put it arithmetically,
that would be correct, Mr. President. But in 1987, we
know as a fact that--I think except for one or two--no
candidate of the ruling coalition spent an amount that
even reached P20 million. Most of them spent from P2 to
P4 million, at most P6 million. There were some excep-
tional ones who spent as much as 19 million, but that is
the exception rather than the rule.

26




Tuesday, August 13, 1991

RECORD OF THE SENATE

Interpellaltions

Senator Guingona. And considering that there
would be at least four complete slates--I am only figuring
on the maximum; let us not go into how much each
would spend, but I am basing it on the maximum--there
would be more than P9 billion.

Senator Gonzales. As I have said, arithmetically,
this is merely a question of multiplication. I am not very
good at figures, but if the Gentleman’s multiplication is
better than mine, probably, he is correct, Mr. President.

Senator Guingona. I am only basing it on the
expenditures that the Gentleman has increased.

Senator Gonzales. I am picking no argument with
the Gentleman. I am saying that these are matters of
arithmetical computation. And if this be the Gentleman’s
computation, then it is so, Mr. President.

Senator Guingona. Yes. But I am not trying to
question the mathematical competence of the distin-
guished Sponsor. I am only basing it on--

Senator Gonzales. He does not have to question it.
It is already open to question.

Senator Guingona. And each presidential candidate
would spend P3.00 per voter, at the maximum, and there
would be an additional P792 million, more or less.

Senator Gonzales. Yes, Mr. President. In fact, I
admitted in my speech that there seems to be a distortion
as far as Senators are concerned because the Senators are
elected countrywide. But as far as local officials and
congressmen are concerned, COMELEC stated that the
amount previously fixed by law at P1.50 per registered
voter is no longer realistic. '

Senator Guingona. And for the total expenditures,
therefore, for the national officials, from President down
to Senators, would be more or less P10 billion.

Senator Gonzales. Yes, Mr. President.

Senator Guingona. And for the municipal officials,
in the same computation, would be about P1 billion.

Senator Gonzales. Elections, indeed, seems to be a

very expensive business.

Senator Guingona. And for the cities--there are, I
think, 16 cities--P792 million; for the provincial, P2.4
million. So that just basing it on the maximum, on the
national scale, the municipal, the city, the provincial, our
figure adds up to more than P15 billion.

Senator Gonzales. Fifteen billion, Mr. President?
Senator Guingona. Yes.

Senator Gonzales. If the Gentleman says so, then
that must be correct.

Senator Guingona. This represents about 20 per-
cent of our money supply and--

Senator Gonzales. M. President, there are two
ways of looking at it. I think we do not print new money.
These are already money in circulation, that will go into
circulation, and probably, spread out. Ang masama po
yata ay dadagdagan natin iyong money supply by print-
ing new money.

Senator Guingona. It is good that the distinguished
Sponsor has assured us that there will be no printing of
additional new money, but we can never tell.

Senator Gonzales. That was done, Mr. President, in
1969. That was the reason why we had a tremendous
inflation that followed, and the result was the floating
rate, if we will recall. But I do not think that that could
happen in this Administration. After all, the President is
not running for re-election, and there will be no reason,
no motive on the part of those in Government to print
new money just to fund the campaign of certain candi-
dates.

Senator Guingona. Yes, but this kind of money
representing a substantial portion of the money supply is
not directed to production or viable investments for the
manufacture of goods.

Senator Gonzales. No, Mr. President. ‘I mean, to
the printing establishment, then to the paper manufactur-
ers, to the woodmakers, to the painters for these banners
and posters, all of these are business and, therefore,
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money will flow into them.,

Senator Guingona. Is it the submission of the dis-
tinguished Sponsor that this kind of expenditure will not
be inflationary?

Senator Gonzales. As I have said, unless we reilly
~print new money and add it to the money stream, then
that is the real danger, Mr. President. But in this particu-
lar case, these are all the money in the money stream. We
caused its circulation and also distribution. Probably,
there will be some sort of inflation brought about by too
much money being put out at the same time or within a
short period, but that will not have a long lasting effect.

Senator Guingona. 1 beg to differ, but since that is
the opinion of the distinguished Sponsor, we will let it go
at that.

} Senator Gonzales. I recognize the Gentleman’s con-
~ cern, Mr. President, but then the alternative to that is no
election at all.

~Senator Guingona. No. Are there other ways of
avoiding a wasteful expenditure of this magnitude?

Senator Gonzales. I am not ready to provide an
alternative. We can reduce, as we, in fact, in the consid-
eration of Senate Bill No. 1777 that eventually became
Republic Act No. 7056, reduced the recommended
amount from P3 per registered voter to only P2 per regis-
tered voter, and the P5 was, I think, eventually lowered.
So it will have to depend upon the action of this Body,
Mr, President, :

Senator Guingona. Now, the intent of this bill is to
allow the COMELEC to reduce the number of persons to
be voted for by redistricting?

Senator Gonzales. That is correct, Mr. President,
and I agree with COMELEC that it seems the only way
by which the number of candidates to be voted for in the
1992 election will not exceed 38, which is the maximum
number.

Senator Guingona. Yes. Is it the intent of this

measure to do the same on a delegated basis to the
COMELEC, without giving due notice and hearing be-
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cause of time constraints to the inhabitants?

Senator Gonzales. Yes, Mr. President. As I have
said, probably during the period of amendments, we will
propose an amendment that it shall be done with prior
consultation with the local officials.

But regarding notice and hearing, we have known so
many apportionments. Apportionments can legislatively
be done. Through the exercise of delegated power, they
do not really require notice and hearing. It is not part of
due process.

So we feel, Mr. President, that the next best thing is
to provide for consultations with the local officials.

Senator Guingona. Yes. Consultation seems to be
a more viable alternative. The only problem that we have
there is in the manner of consultation. For example, in the
matter of tuition fees, there is now a dispute as to what
constitutes consultation.,

Senator Gonzales. That is correct, Mr. President,
because there is as yet no accepted definition of what
constitutes consultation.

Senator Guingona. Yes.

Senator Gonzales. To people being consulted, if
their views are not accepted or adopted, there is no con-
sultation.

Senator Guingona. And is not the right of the voter
a political right to expect universal election for a province
where he lives in? Does he not have that polltlcal right at
the moment?

Senator Gonzales. Mr. President, while it is a politi-
cal right, however, the exercise of the same is subject also
to the police power of the State. I do not think that there
is a vested right on the part of the voter to elect members
of the Sangguniang Panlalawigan atlarge, or members of
the City Council atlarge, or of the Sangguniang Bayan at
large. I think it is within the police power of the State,
especially in circumstances like this where we have no
choice, because the Supreme Court decision says that
there can only be one simultaneous election.
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We have no choice, Mr. President. Even if we would
want to call two elections before June 30, 1992, in the
light of the Supreme Court’s decision and adding Repub-
lic Act No. 1756, we cannot even do it. So, in the
exercise of police power, then we can really provide for
this apportionment.

Senator Guingona. Yes, but the inherent right of a
citizen to vote is at stake here. While it is true that how
he votes may be regulated, the fundamental due process, I
think, should also be accorded.

Senator Gonzales. The right to vote, Mr. President,
is not taken from him.

Senator Guingona. The right to vote is inherent in a
citizen. ’

Senator Gonzales. Yes, Mr. President, there is no
quarrel about that, and it is not being taken away.

Senator Guingona. Itis not, it is being regulated.

Senator Gonzales. Right, Mr. President, in the
interest of making possible an election that is now appar-
ently required by the Constitution, in the light of the
Supreme Court decision.

Senator Guingona. Yes. That is why it is pertinent
that there be, at least, consultations.

Senator Gonzales. That is correct, Mr. President.
That is why I said that in due time we will propose that
amendment.

Senator Guingona. The intent of the bill through the
COMELEC, seems to limit to 38, as much as possible,
the names of the persons to be voted for.

Senator Gonzales. That is correct, Mr. President.

Senator Guingona. Would this not be, therefore,
logical in the case of the fact that the Gentleman is
proposing a redistricting of municipalities, the reappor-
tionment of provinces? Should that not, therefore, go all
the way up to Senators who should be elected by region,
rather than by at large?

Senator Gonzales. I am quite glad to observe that
the Gentleman has already opened up from his stout
refusal to consider even the calling of a Constitutional
Convention to effect certain changes in the Constitution.
Why not, Mr. President?

Senator Guingona. Because if the Senators wanted
to. be voted by region, instead of at large, then there
would be a reduction of at least 22 names, and the num-
ber of persons to vote for would be 12-14 names, well
within the capacity of the voter to cogently select and also-
minimize the massive expenditures already cited.

Senator Gonzales. The Gentleman made a good
case for electing Senators by means of senatorial districts,
and not electing Senators at large as it is presently
provided for by the Constitution. We, of course, do not
know what would be the ultimate: Whether the parlia-
ment to be provided for would be unicameral or whether
it would be bicameral, and if bicameral, they are by
region; whether we shall continue with the Jones Law
division of the country into 12 senatorial districts, each
district electing two senators. ‘ '

Remember that the Jones Law was passed in 1916,
and at that time, we have only nine million voters. Now

‘we have already 62 million voters. Whether or not the

24-Member Senate is already adequate for the Philip-
pines, in the light ‘of the increase in population is, of
course, open to question.

Senator Guingona. Would not two Senators per
region, amongst the 14 regions, make a better equitable
representation?

Senator Gonzales.. As I have said, that will depend
on the Constituent Assembly. It might be two; it might
be four. We really do not know what will be the makeup
of that. But, understandably, until the Constitution is
amended that way, we have to devise a very practical and
workable way by which we could hold the 1992 simulta-
neous election.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, may I know from
the distinguished Sponsor how many election returns are
provided for under this bill?

Senator Gonzales. This bill provides that the elec-
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tion returns should be accomplished in six copies. Mas
madaling sabihin iyong six copies. But I understand that
there will be two sets of election returns with six copies
each. One for the local officials and another for th
national officials, '

Senator Guingona. Instead of canvassing by prov-
ince, would the distinguished Sponsor agree to an
amendment, at the proper time, to make it municipal
returns as the principal basis in case of dispute by and
between or amongst the six election returns?

Senator Gonzales. That would require a remaking
of the system of canvass herein provided, Mr. President.
What would be the basis of the canvass?

Senator Guingona. Because we have observed, Mr.
President, that it takes, sometimes, days before the tally is
completed and the returns are made and sent to the pro-
vincial capital.

Senator Gonzales. Totoo po iyon, especially in the
1992 elections. Because of this, there will be two sets of
election returns to be prepared. Pagkatapos, iyong mu-
nicipal canvassers ay magpe-prepare ng four certificates.
of canvass. Kaya, talagang matagal ngayon ang paper-
work. But then, the time is sought to be avoided by
making smaller precincts, Mr. President. Before, the 300
is a normal composition of one election precinct. But
now, as we have pointed out, no precinct will have more
than 200 registered voters.

Senator Guingona. But of the six election returns,
which one will be the basis for proclamation?

Senator Gonzales. I think the bill specifically pro-
vides for the same. In Section 23 of the bill, it states
here:

The copies of the election returns shall be distributed
as follows:

(A)In the election of President, Vice-President,
Senators and Members of the House of Represen-
tatives:

(1) The first copy shall be delivered to the Pres-
ident of the Senate;
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(2) The second copy, to the Commission on
- Elections;

(3) The third copy, to the provincial, city, dis-
trict board of canvassers for use in the can-
vass of returns for the Members of the House
of Representatives.

(4) The fourth copy, to be known as the advance
election returns, to the city/municipal treas-
urer.

Ito po ang bubuksan at pagkatapos ay ipo-post in a
bulletin board for public display.

(5) The fifth copy shall be deposited inside the
compartment of the ballot box for valid
votes.

Ang tawag po dito ay ballot box copy.

(6) The sixth copy shall be delivered to the rep-

resentatives of the ruling party. Seven copies
po ito.

(7) The seventh copy, to the representatives of
the dominant opposition party.

Dito po ay makikita natin na ang first copy in the
election of President and Vice-President will be delivered
to the President of the Senate. Hindi po ito ang pag-
babasehan ng canvass, because the canvass will be based
upon the certificate of canvass duly signed by the provin-
cial and city board of canvassers. That is provided for in
the Constitution. But we are requiring that the first copy
of the election returns be forwarded to the President of
the Senate for purposes of comparison and verification,
Mr. President.

Senator Guingona. So, in case of dispute or vari-
ance between the sixth and the seventh copies, it is the
certificate of the provincial board of canvassers that will
rule. '

Senator Gonzales. The Constitution expressly pro-
vides that the canvass by Congress is to be based not on
the election returns, but on the certificate of canvass, duly
prepared and signed or authenticated by the provincial or
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city board of canvassers.

But, as an additional safeguard, under this bill, we are
requiring that the first copy of the election returns be sent
or forwarded to the President of the Senate for purposes
of comparison or verification.

Senator Guingona. That is why, my question is: If
there is variance among the seven copies, which one will
dominate?

Senator Gonzales. Ang nangyayari po riyan, kung
may proof that the face has been tampered, or there has
been some interpolations, then we try to get an extra
copy--the COMELEC copy, for example.

~ But, for purposes of comparison, we also get all the

other copies para malaman po natin kung pare-pareho ang
apat o lima. Pagkatapos, ang kopyang ito, which bears
certain tamperings or interpellations, ang nababago. The
COMELEC ordinarily directs a clean copy. Whether it is
the COMELEC copy or the ballot box copy, it is made
the basis of the canvass, Mr. President.

Senator Guingona. Reality tells us that there are
about four or five political parties.

Senator Gonzales. Thatis right, Mr. President,

Senator Guingona. Will the distinguished Sponsor
agree to giving each political party--four or five--the elec-
tion returns?

Senator Gonzales. If that can be done or if that is
feasible, Mr. President. Mangyari po, ang diperensiya,
pagka mahigit na seven copies...

¥

Senator Guingona. Very blurred.

Senator Gonzales. --0 ipagpalagay nating sampu o
labindalawa ang kopyang inyong gusto, ay wala pa
yatang naiimbento na chemically-treated ‘paper na sa
inyong pagsulat ay tatagos ang sulat hanggang doon sa

ikalabindalawang kopya. Ang mangyayari po riyan ay

hahatiin and will be accomplished separately.

Diyan Po nangyayari ang pagkakaiba. The fatigue
factor by that time has already seeped into the members

of the board. Kaya, sa pagsasalin po, bagaman wala
naman talagang intensiyong mandaya, o maaaring dahil
narin sa pagod, nababago ang mga entry. That is why we

have cases of a genuine return that bears a discrepancy

with another genuine return. That is the product of expe-
rience, Mr. President.

Senator Guingona. Yes, but the fact is, there seems
to be undue discrimination here. Only the dominant and
the opposition parties are to be given copies of the
election returns.

Senator Gonzales. At kapag limang kopya lamang
ang ginawa, the other parties will also be complaining.
Bakit wala silang kopya. I mean, we have to make a
policy.

Senator Guingona. The COMELEC, I understand,
has the power to promulgate rules and regulations that are
fair after due hearing. This matter can be brought out.

But to place in the law expressly that it is only the
dominant and the opposition parties, this may, in effect,
revert to the inspector system of old which the Constitu-
tion has...

Senator Gonzales. Ang totoo po, kung iyon ang

Ppag-uusapan ninyo, there is a very strong feeling na hindi -

yata mabuti ang ginawa nating pagbabawal na magka-
roon ng representatives ang political parties in the Board
of Election Inspectors and the Board of Canvassers. It is
true that in the past.there had been cases of anomalies,
pero napakagaling po ang partidong kasali sa proseso ng
pagbilahg ng mga boto.

Tungkol po sa unang puntong ini-raise ng Kgg. na
Senador, there is also-an alternative under the law. Kahit
wala kayong kopya ng election returns, every candidate
or every political party is entitled to obtain from the
Board of Election Inspectors iyong tinatawag na *‘certifi-
cate of votes’’ na kung saan ang lahat ng boto sa presin-
tong iyon ay nasa certificate of votes, and this will have
to be signed by the chairman, as well as all the members
of the Board of Election Inspectors. ‘

Senator Guingona. That is correct, Mr. President.

But, as we all know, between the certificates and the
election returns, the certificate of election returns is based
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on the return itself.
At any rate, we will propose that at the proper time.

Senator Gonzales. Yes, Mr. President. When the
period of amendments comes, we will be happy to dis-
cuss this matter.

Senator Guingona. The final point is on the ballot.
Will it violate the secrecy provision if the number of the
voter who receives the ballot will be affixed to the record,
and the time also? Because we are trying to avoid the
stuffing of election ballots.

Senator Gonzales. That is correct. That is why we
have adopted a very simple process, and this is contained
in one of the electoral reforms in which the Gentleman
had authored and which was used in the 1988 elections.
Iyong pagpirma nga lamang ng chairman sa likod is a
very simple way.

What the Gentleman is proposing is that, the number
of the ballot given to the voter will also be written. In the
first place, napakatagal na proseso iyon.

Ikalawa, doon sa tanong ng Kgg. na Senador kung
ang voter can be identified, my answer is, yes, sapagkat
ang balotang ibinibigay sa isang kandidato ay isinusulat
kaagad sa registry list of voters. The moment that a ballot
is issued to a voter, the number of the ballot is written
there. When the voter returns the ballot, under the law,
kinakailangang i-compare ang serial number ng balotang
isinasauli niya sa. serial number that was recorded in the

_ registry list of voters para walang substitusyon ng ballots
at nang hindi ito makaligtaang gawin.

Ngayon, ang punto ko po lamang bilang sagot sa
katanungan ng Kgg. na Senador, by simply determining
at the back of the ballot the number and cross-referencing
it to the number appearing in the proper column of the
registry list of voters, makikilala na kung sino ang bo-
tante,

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I have more
questions, but to give due time to others, I would like to
thank the Sponsor.

Senator Rasul. Mr. President.
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The President Pro Tempore. The Chair will recog-
nize Senator Rasul, after which, if there is no objection,
we will have our mid-session break.

Senator Rasul. Thank you, Mr. President.

I wonder if the distinguished Senator would care to
answer a few questions.

Senator Gonzales. I will be very happy to oblige.

Senator Rasul. Mr. President, I wonder what is the
reason for specifying that the municipalities of Malabon,
Navotas, San Juan, Mandaluyong, Muntinlupa, Las
Pifias, and Taguig, shall have 12 councilors, but it does
not specify the other cities or towns that should have 12
councilors. What could be the reason, Mr. President?

Senator Gonzales. It has been lifted from the law
that we passed in 1988 providing for the 1988 local
elections, sapagkat iba po ang sitwasyon sa Metro Manila
where we have 12 cities and 14 municipalities. Origi-
nally, we provided that the regular municipalities, with
the exception of Pateros, will have 12 councilors each.
But the Municipality of Pateros shall have only 10 coun-
cilors, sapagkat ito po ang siyang pinakamaliit na bayan.
It is the smallest town among the 14, and we felt at that
time that it ought not to be given 12 councilors like the
other bigger municipalities. Doon po sa probinsya,
sampu ang pinakamarami. Sapagkat sa Metro Manila,
ang isang munisipyo is equivalent to one province al-
ready.

Sa Mandaluyong, ang aming registered voters are
more than 200,000. Isang bayan po lamang iyan. Pasig
is a one-district municipality and so with Marikina. Ang
dahilan kung bakit 12 ang mga konsehal sa mga mu-

nisipyong ito ay dahil talagang saksakan ng laki ang

bilang ng mga mamamayan at ng mga rehistradong bo-
tante ng mga ito.

Senator Rasul. Mr. President, I have no objection to
giving these towns 12 councilors. ButI was just wonder-
ing, Mr. President: Are there no other towns with the
same number of population outside of Metro Manila?

Senator Gonzales. I dare say there is none.
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Senator Rasul. Mr. President, would it not be more
in keeping with impartiality if we just go by a series of
criteria or some kind of a list of qualifications for a city or
a town to have so many councilors based on population?
Tutal, magku-qualify naman kung saksakan ng dami ang
population sa mga munisipyong ito. Kung, halimbawa,
250,000, dapat ay 12 ang councilors.

So anywhere in the country, kung may ganoong ka-
raming voters 0 kaya population ang isang munisipyo, ay
ganoon din ang number of councilors.

So that way, Mr. President, siguro ay wala nang
magki-criticize o kaya ay sasabihin na: ‘‘Kung iyong
ibang mga munisipyong hindi parte ng Metro Manila ay
may ganoon ding karaming population, bakit hindi i-
specify na bibigyan din kami ng 12 councilors?’’

Iyan po ang punto ko, G. Pangulo.

Senator Gonzales. I think the number of councilors
outside of Metro Manila is determined by the Local Gov-
ernment Code. It depends upon the class of municipality.
Kaya hindi pc pare-pareho. Ang first-class, second-class,
third-class municipalities ay mas malalaki ang number of
their councilors. At iyong pinakamaliliit naman, they
have less number of councilors.

So the basis of the classification is different, but the
classification is therc.

Senator Rasul. Ginoong Pangulo, kung, halim-
bawa, ang classification is according to first, second and
third class, hindi ba puwede itong mag-fall under that
kind of classification?

Senator Gonzales. Then we shall have to reword the
Local Government Code, Mr. President.

Senator Rasul. Anyway, what we are doing now,
Mr. President, I think, is that in the process, we will be
repealing some existing laws, I suppose. As a matter of
fact, right now, the Bicameral Conference Committee is
ready to report out the Local Government Code. Pero
dahil sa batas na ito, we are now holding in abeyance
approval of that Code upang hindi magkaroon ng conflict
ang mga probisyon.

Senator Gonzales. Hindi po naman siguro masa-
sabing we are holding it in abeyance. Wala po naman
kaming kapangyarihang pakialaman ang Bicameral Con-
ference Committee. Nagkataon po lamang na we must
recognize the urgency of this bill. Sapagkat ang pinagti-
bay po nating bill ay idineklarang unconstitutional ng
Korte Suprema kung kaya kinakailangang kumilos tayo
agad para matuloy ang eleksiyon sa 1992.

Pero kung sasabihin pong inuuna natin ito at dini-
delay naman natin iyong submission ng Local Govern-
ment Code, malayo sa katotohanan.

Senator Rasul. Siguro po ay hindi ako naintindihan.
Ang sinasabi ko ay hindi naman sinasadyang i-delay
iyon. Kaya lamang daw, if we will come up with this
law, baka itong mga probisyon dito ay hindi na sumang-
ayon doon sa mga probisyon ng Local Government Code.
Iyon ang ibig kong sabihin.

I would like to raise another point, Mr. President.
When we were discussing the Local Government Code, I
proposed an amendment providing for a sectoral repre-
sentation for women in all sanggunian, sa municipal,
provincial and city councils.

Now, this amendment was already approved by both
Houses. It was approved by the Bicameral Conference
Committee. It was already approved, I think, before we
adjourned last time.

The problem that cropped up was how to elect the
woman representative in the province, dahil sa mga
probinsiya ay may mga districts. But as far as the mu-
nicipality’s sanggunian is concerned, wala..g problema
roon sapagkat all the councilors will be elected at large.

Halimbawa, sa Mandaluyong o sa Muntinlupa, there
are 12 councilors, at isa sa 12 na iyan ay ire-reserve for
the women sectoral representative--the seat t¢ e con-
tested by women candidates only. The idea here, Mr.
President, as I explained when I introduced the amend-
ment, was to provide opportunity for women, sapagkat
walang babaing kagawad ng sanggunian sa ilang mga
local government units.

Now, with the redistricting of municipalities and
changing the structure in order to shorten the ballot or to
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reduce the number of names to be elected in the local
government election, paano na ho iyong sectoral seat for
women? How will we determine now which district will
have a woman sectoral representative? Sapagkat kung
idi-divide natin, halimbawa, ang lone district into two,
each district will elect half of the sanggunian. Saan natin
ilalagay ang woman representative? That is the question
I would like to ask, Mr. President.

Senator Gonzales. I consulted with Senator Pimen-
tel on this particular matter and, apparently, wala namang
conflict ang probisyon ng bill na ito with the proposed
Local Government Code.

Ngayon, kung gusto ninyong ipasok ang susog na
iyon bilang bunga ng inyong isip at diwa, marahil sa
panahon ng pagsususog ay maaari nating mapag-usapan
to determine it once and for all.

Senator Pimentel. Mr. President.

The President Pro Tempore. Senator Pimentel is
recognized.

Senator Pimentel. Mr. President, with the permis-
sion of the Gentleman and the Lady on the Floor, may I
just share this information that this morning, our Bicam-
eral Conference Committee on the Local Government
Code agreed that a provision on the election of local
government officials, particularly councilors and mem-
bers of the provincial board, will be worded in this wise:
The Members of the Sangguniang Panlalawigan,
Sangguniang Panlungsod at Sangguniang Bayan will be
elected by district as provided by law.

So, this has to be the law, Mr. President, that will
thresh out the number of councilors and board members
to be apportioned in a particular municipality and prov-
ince, and how they will be elected will be matters for
treatment by this law that we are now considering.

Senator Gonzales. Thank you for the information,
Mr. President,

Senator Rasul. Mr. President, if I may, puwede

bang magtanong kay Senator Pimentel, sapagkat siya ang
Author ng Local Government Code:
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This bill will provide for the procedure of electing the
members of the sanggunian. But the Local Government
Code provides that certain sectors should be represented
in the sanggunian, ‘

Gusto ko lamang ma-clarify, Mr. President, na kung
ilalagay rito ang procedure, ang ibig bang sabihin ay
tatanggalin na iyan sa Local Government Code? The
Code will no longer say that there will be a seat reserved
for women representatives in the sanggunian separate
from the others that will be elected regardless of whether
they are male or female?

Senator Pimentel. That was the thrust of this morn-
ing’s conference, unfortunately, Mr. President, with the
understanding that the provision on women representa-
tion will have to be provided in this legislation.

Senator Rasul. G. Pangulo, iyon nga po ang kinata-
takutan ko. Alam ninyo, sapagkat silent ang Local
Government Code tungkol sa nasabing probisyon, baka
mawala na iyan dahil procedure lamang ang pag-uusapan
natin sa panukalang-batas na ito. There is nothing here na
nagsasabi na may woman sectoral representative.

At gusto ko ring ibalita sa aking mga distinguished
Colleagues na noong aprubahan natin ang amendment to
the Local Government Code providing for the sectoral
seat for women, nalaman agad ng mga kababaihan sa
buong Pilipinas ang bagay na ito. At ngayon nga ay
mayroon na silang mga organisasyon. They have been
going around the country teaching women how to partici-
pate in local elections. Kung malaman nilang tinanggal
na iyon, talagang mabibigo sila. Aywan ko kung ano
ang gagawin nila.

Senator Pimentel. Ililipat naman iyon dito. Any-
way, that was before Pinatubo, kaya mayroon tayong
dahilan. [Laughter)

Seriously speaking, the only reason I agreed to the

“proposal to transfer that provision here was on the assur-

ance that it will be so incorporated in this bill. Otherwise,
we will have to reinstate that provision in the Local
Government Code.

Senator Rasul. Puwede po bang banggitin, G. Pa-
ngulo--I do not know if it is unparliamentary--kay Sen-

44



Tuesday, August 13, 1991

RECORD OF THE SENATE

Interpellations

ator Pimente] na huwag tanggalin iyon sa nasabing probi-
syon, and let this bill provide for the procedure? I won-
der if the distinguished Sponsor will care to give a com-
ment on that,

Senator Gonzales. The Gentle Lady knows more or
less the provisions of this bill. Kung talagang very insis-
tent siya sa bagay na iyan, why does she not prepare an
amendment and submit it during the period of amend-
ments?

Senator Rasul. Isang bagay pa po. Is there anything
unparliamentary, or violative or that would offend the
proceedings of the Senate, kung halimbawang iyon ay
nandito at nandoon pa rin sa Local Government Code?
Gusto ko lamang patibayin ang probisyong iyon para
naman hindi mawala.

In our Senate, we are supportive of women represen-
tation. Hindi natin alam kung nandito pa tayo sa Kong-
1es0 pagkatapos ng 1992. Baka mawala na iyan. Gusto
ko lamang masiguro, G. Pangulo, na ang probisyong
iyan remains in the Local Government Code, and further
strengthened by this bill that we are discussing.

Senator Pimentel. Mr. President, there was no prob-
lem about woman representation in the various sangguni-
ans prior to the decision to elect them by districts. There
was no problem whatsoever, because we had previously
agreed in the Conference Committee to include a woman
representative among the regular members of the
sanggunian who will be elected at large by the people in a
given constituency. But with the decision to go by dis-
trict, to elect them by district, a problem has arisen. But
this problem is surmountable, Mr. President, because the
way it looks, there will hardly be any councilor district
which will elect only one councilor. I think, very likely,
the councilors per district will be more than one. We can
provide that, for example, in the poblacion district, one of
the two, or one of the three councilors should be a
woman. So, in that manner we will protect the amend-
ment that was introduced by Senator Rasul in the Local
Government Code.

Senator Rasul. Iyon po lamang ang gusto kong
liwanagin, G. Pangulo, para naman malagay ito sa
rekord: Na kahit wala na tayo rito sa susunod na taon, at
least nasa rekord ang mga diskusyong pinagtibay natin--

ang partisipasyon ng mga kababaihan sa mga
sanggunian--not only in the procedure but as an integral
part of that Local Government Code which has already
passed both Houses. ‘

Senator Pimentel. At the proper time,‘ we will
support a move to amend the proposed bill so that the
woman representation will be institutionalized in this
law, Mr. President.

Senator Rasul. Maraming salamat po.

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

The President Pro Tempore. So, understood.

The session is suspended, if there is no objection.
[There was none.]

Itwas 6:06 p.m.
RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION

At 6:44 p.m., the session was resumed, with the Sen-
ate President, presiding.

The President. The session is resumed.
The Majority Floor Leader is recognized.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, we are still in the
period of interpellations.

Senator Pimentel. Mr. President,
The President. Senator Pimentel is recognized.

Senator Pimentel. Will His Honor please accom-
modate a few questions?

Senator Gonzales. Gladly, Mr, President, -

Senator Pimentel. Mr. President, during the inter-
pellation that was done by Senator Guingona, he brought
out the issue of the distribution, I think, of election re-
turns to be supplied only to the dominant political party
and the opposition.
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Senator Gonzales. Under this bill, that is correct,
Mr. President. Both appointment of official watchers to
authenticate the returns, as well as the receipt of copies of
the election returns, are limited to the ruling coalition or
the ruling party, as the case maybe, and the dominant
opposition. He has a proposal that the election returns be
prepared in 12 copies, so that, at least, five political
parties will be furnished copies of the electoral returns.

In principle, I have really no objection to that, except
that it has been pointed to us by the COMELEC that there
has been no developed technology here that would pro-
vide for something more than seven. Iyon lamang,
magkaroon ng pitong halos hindi na mabasa iyong
pampitong kopya. If we can overcome it--well, person-
ally, I have no objection to it, Mr. President.

Senator Pimentel. Thank you for that observation,
Mr. President. I think we can provide some definitive
criteria so that the distribution of these election returns
and even the right to authenticate will not just be done on
an arbitrary basis. I was thinking, for example, of making
it a requisite for a political party or a political ag-
groupment to receive copies of the election returns or to
have the right to authenticate the ballots.

Are we talking of the authentication of the ballot
boxes, Mr. President, or the ballots?

Senator Gonzales. There are two things here, where
there will be party participation. Of course, as a party, it
is already entitled to a watcher. What is important is Qe
so-called official watcher who would authenticate
with their signature and thumb mark, the election returns.
Another is, receiving copies of the election returns them-
selves; and, another is, receiving copies of the certificates
. of canvass. Those are the three major steps in the elec-
toral process which should ought to concern the political
parties, Mr. President.

Senator Pimentel. The criteria that I was referring
to, I would suggest, should be the fact that a political

party or a political group received not less than 5 percent

of the vote at the last elections. In other words, there
should be a qualifying percentage of votes received by
that political party in order to be entitled to these rights.

Senator Gonzales. In short, the Gentleman is telling
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us that any political party which obtained at least 5 per-
cent of the total number of votes cast in the last election
shall be entitled to the appointment of official watchers
and to receive copies of the election returns.

Ang sabi ko nga, ang difficulty ay na sa atin po,
because we did not present candidates as such. We were
part,of a coalition. Then GAD, KBL fielded a separate
ticket.
fielded also a separate ticket. But, at any rate, ang magi-
ging problema po ay iyong ruling coalition.

Senator Pimentel. Even in the ruling coalition, Mr.
President, I think several of us ran with a definite political
party. It is easy enough to check that on the basis of the
records of the Commission on Elections. In that way, I
do not foresee more than four political groups being
entitled to these documents that the Gentleman is speak-
ing of, Mr. President.

Senator Gonzales. That is worth exploring. We
have got to consult COMELEC kung ano talaga ang
tamang percentage of the votes cast, because we can also
determine it through the number of the elected officers.

Senator Pimentel. That is correct, Mr. President.

Senator Gonzales. This is as good a time as any
because right now, I am crafting an amendment in the
determination of these political parties. So, these sugges-
tions are indeed timely, Mr. President, because the bill
itself does not provide for the criteria in determining
which is the ruling coalition or party, as well as the
dominant opposition party.

Senator Pimentel. Yes, Mr. President. The reason

I do not know whether the Nacionalista Party

we are pushing for this proposed amendment is the fact

that the Constitution itself recognizes and even urges, I
think, a multi-party setup in this country. So, if alaw of
the kind that the Gentleman is sponsoring would tend to
restrict the implementation of that constitutional provi-
sion, we are afraid that we are, probably, straitjacketing
that provision so that only two groups can come out as
viable political parties in this exercise. '

Senator Gonzales. Actually, Mr. President, this
provision regarding the ruling party and dominant oppo-
sition party is merely a carryover--
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Senator Pimentel. That is true, Mr. President.

Senator Gonzales. --of the 1984, which worked in
1987 but probably may no longer be relevant as far as the
1992 election is concerned. The coalition had already
brokeén up, and component political parties, in all likeli-
hood, will field separate tickets. So, we have to provide
for an equitable way.

The President. We used the term ‘‘ruling coali-
tion’’ for the 1988 elections.

Senator Gonzales. Thatis right, Mr. President.

The President. We did not reproduce that same
term in this bill. What will be the ruling party in light of
the admitted fact that the President does not belong to any
party? ‘

Senator Gonzales. Mr. President, in fact, until this
matter has been raised by Senator Pimentel, I was think-
ing of adopting the guidelines which I have proposed in
crafting the bill, Senate Bill No. 1777. Senator Pimentel
is suggesting some other criteria and, probably, we might
be able to integrate them and arrive at a solution that will
be acceptable, because, to him, it will be the number of
votes received by a political party nationwide in the
preceding election. I do not know what preceding elec-
tion. Would it be 1988 or 19877

Senator Pimentel. I suppose that the best criteria
would be the 1987 for purposes of the nationally elected
officials, and 1988 for purposes of the locally-elected
ones,

Senator Gonzales. There will be two sets, Mr.
President.

Senator Pimentel. We can refine the concept, Mr.
President. We may have only one, but the idea is to have
a.._

Senator Gonzales. As I have said, Mr. President,
probably, we will have to seek the help of the COMELEC
to put this concept into concrete form and proceed on that
basis. Five percent might be 10 percent, if there are too
many of them.
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Ang importante ay: Ano po ba ang tinatarget nating
number of these parties, because we are limited by the
practical realities? Are there sufficient spaces para
mapirmahan ng official watchers ang returns? Do we
have the chemically treated papers which are available
locally, so that there will be more than the seven copies of
election returns required to be prepared?

We want to strike a figure that will be, more or less,
reasonable, Mr. President.

Senator Pimentel. Mr. President, I was listening to
the Gentleman’s comments during the break about the
number of councilors and the number of board members
who will now be distributed among the various districts
of a given constituency.

I'would like to point out, Mr. President, that I agree
with the Gentleman’s observation that it would be very
difficult, to say the least, to reduce the number of coun-
cilors, let us say, of one municipality and also the number
of board members of a given province.

As of now, Mr. President, the elective members of a -

municipality with the lowest classification and a province
of the lowest classification also, is eight councilors and
eight board members. The higher classitication would g0
up to ten. There are special provinces or cities which
have more than that number.

Senator Gonzales. Yes, Mr. President.

Senator Pimentel. In the Local Government Code,
Mr. President, we have tried to--well, for lack of a better
term--"rationalize" the number of the elective local gov-
ernment councilors and board members by requiring that
the sectoral representatives--whom we have identitied, by
the way, as the women sectoral representative, the labor
sectoral representative who can either be industrial or
agricultural in appropriate situations, and one other sector
which can be the fishermen’s sector, the urban poor, et
cetera--would now be included as part of the regularly
elected members of the sanggunian.

So, every political party--this was under the proposed
Code that I am talking about, Mr. President--would be
compelled to field a slate of, let us say, ten councilors.
But three of the ten will be sectoral representatives,
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Under our present predicament, Mr. President, I re-
ally find it quite difficult how to proceed along that line.
But, I suppose, we will have to strike a compromise here
somehow, so that the provisions of the Local Govern-
ment Code will not necessarily contradict the provisions
of this bill under consideration.

Senator Gonzales. In fact, I have always believed in
that, Mr. President, in order to obviate the possibility that
we are now passing this law, and then the following
month, we are passing a law which provides differently.

Not only that, Mr. President. I can also see the
Gentleman’s problem when it comes to sectoral represen-
tatives who are to be voted for. Sino po ba ang boboto sa
kanila, ang kanilang sektor lamang?

I think if they are truly representative of the sector,
then it is only right that only those who belong to that
sector should be allowed to vote. Kung hindi, wala po
silang pagkakaiba roon sa regularly elected by the general
electorate. Mahirap po talaga iyon. Iniisip po natin kung
paano magagawa iyon.

In the Constitution, they found it necessary only to
have them appointed.

Senator Pimentel. Yes.

Senator Gonzales. But, basically, I am against the
appointment of any member of a representative body
because, to me, the moment we do it, we dilute already
the representative character of a legislative body by mak-
ing appointments thereto.

Senator Pimentel. Not only that, Mr. President.
The appointment of sectoral representatives can destroy
the political balance or equilibrium in a given legislative
body.

Senator Gonzales. Yes, as decided by the people in
the election. That is correct, Mr. President.

Senator Pimentel. We can have an even number of
councilors coming from the opposition and the dominant
parties, for example, and the appointment of additional
members can tilt the balance in favor or against either of
the two. ‘
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Senator Gonzales. That is correct, Mr. President.

Senator Pimentel. Then, Mr. President, the sad fact
also is that, the appointive representatives of the sectors
are really considered second-class members of that delib-
erative body.

This is not a secret, by the way. This is common
knowledge, Mr. President. This is true, not only in the
Congress of the Philippines, but in other sanggunians
throughout the Nation.

So, we were really confronted with this problem; yet,
we cannot do without the sectoral representation because
that is provided for by the Constitution.

Senator Gonzales. That is correct, Mr. President.

Senator Pimentel. Mr. President, perhaps, at the
proper time--it is already seven o’clock--we will probably
come up with some formula which can, somehcw, ac-
commodate all our concerns on this issue.

Senator Pimentel. Thank you, Mr. President.
Senator Gonzales. Thank you.

Senator Maceda. Mr. President.

The President. Senator Maceda is recognized.
Senator Maceda. Just one point, Mr. President.

I realize the fact that it would be difficult to give a
copy of the election returns to all candidates. I was
wondering whether we can devise a form where a pres-
idential or a vice-presidential candidate, upon request of
his duly authorized watcher, would be entitled to receive,
and the COMELEC can prepare the form. Maybe, it will
just be half of a coupon bond sheet, printed.

A presidential or a vice-presidential candidate, upon
request of his watcher, will get a statement of the number
of votes that he got in that precinct. So, all that the
Chairman has to fill up is: ‘‘Jovito Salonga, precinct no.
-- 1,100 votes.”’

That will give an additional protection, at least, be-
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cause we know the number of votes obtained, kung kaya
hindi mababawasan iyong boto.

Senator Gonzales. Yes.

Senator Maceda. The seriousness of a presidential
candidate will be circumscribed or assured by the fact
that if one is a serious presidential candidate, he has a
watcher in that precinct. The nuisance presidential candi-
dates will not really be able to appoint a watcher in every
precinct. :

Senator Gonzales. In my answer to Senator Guin-
gona, this is already provided for in the Omnibus Elec-
tion Code. They call it the ‘‘Certificate of Votes.”” It is
issued upon request of the representative of the political
party or each watcher after the preparation of the returns.
The votes of the candidates in that precinct are stated in
figures, as well as in words, opposite their names, and to
be signed by the chairman and all the members of the
Board of Election Inspectors.

Senator Maceda. That will be the complete form?
Senator Gonzales. Hindi po. Kung tawagin po
lamang ay certificate of votes. It is actually in a separate

form that has already been prepared by the COMELEC.

Senator Maceda. Opo, pero isusulat ninyo doon ang
statement of votes of all the candidates.

Senator Gonzales. Yes, ilalagay doon.

Senator Maceda. I am even simplifying it. To
begin with, if I were a presidential or a vice-presidential
candidate--para itong quick count--mayroon kaagad a
statement of the number of votes that I got in that pre-
cinct.

Senator Gonzales. Yes.

Mr. President, simplified po ang Certificate of Votes.
- Ganiyan po iyong concept na sinasabi ninyo.

Senator Maceda. Pero lahat po ng kandidatong
Presidente, Bise-Presidente, Senador, Kongresista...

Senator Gonzales. No. Kung interesado lamang

kayo sa mayor, iyong dalawang kandidato lamang para sa
mayor. '

Gusto nga po ng Board of Inspectors iyon, dahil
magiging simple ang kanilang trabaho.

Senator Maceda. Opo.

Senator Gonzales. Tama po iyon, because it serves
a very practical purpose. First, it gives us already, kung
makukuha ninyong lahat, a state of the polls. Pagkata-
pos, dala po ito ng inyong watcher during the canvass. At
kapag binago iyong binasang figure in the returns kaysa
roon sa Certificate of Votes, then we are already placed at
notice, that something has been tampered. We can now
start from there, and we can already take whatever legal
recourse as provided for in the law.

Senator Maceda. So what the Gentleman is saying
is, even without putting it in this law, this is already
available?

Senator Gonzales. Opo, mayroon na po.

Senator Maceda. We will take a look at the existing
provision and see how it could be adopted or improved.

Thank you.
Senator Gonzales. Thank you.

SUSPENSION OF CONSIDERATION
OF SENATE BILL NO. 1861

Senator Guingona. Mr: President, I move that we
suspend consideration of Senate B’ill No. 1861.

The President. Is there any objection? [Silence]
Hearing none, the motion is approved. '

Senator Gonzales. Mr. President.
~ The President. Senator Gonzales is recognized.
Senator Gonzales. May I make a request or a plea to
my Colleagues in this Body, not only because of the

urgency of this matter, but also because many of the
interpellations can be taken up during the period of
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way. I would assume that the relationship continued, and
Thailand is contented with what has happened after the
American withdrawal.

The President. In fact, an American security assis-
tance to Thailand continued.

In the case of other countries in our region, let us say,
Thailand, Malaysia, and Indonesia, does the Gentleman
know whether the foreign investors have stopped going
there simply because there are no bases?

Senator Aquino. Definitely not, Mr. President. As
-a matter of fact, they are precisely flocking to these
countries, especially Thailand today, Indonesia, and Ma-
laysia.

The President. Ano po ang ibig sabihin ni Mr.
Schrager noong sabihin niya na kung hindi natin aaproba-
han ang Treaty ay mawawala ang status natin, ang mga
privilege natin.

Senator Aquino. Iyon po ang mga kasama, sa tingin
ko, sa pananakot. Iyan ang mga pananakot. At marami
sa ating mga kababayan ay natatakot nga. Kaya ang
gusto kong sabihin sa ating mga kababayan, asahan
ninyong tatakutin tayo. Asahan ninyong gagamitin pa
ang ibang sektor par takutin tayo. Kung hindi business,
baka military, baka kung anu-ano pang gagamitin para
takutin tayo.

The President. Pero iba naman iyong sinasabi ni
Mr. Armitage hindi raw nangangahulugan iyon na kung
hindi natin pagtitibayin ang kasunduan ay wala na tayong
maaasahan sa Amerika. Hindi raw totoo iyon. Sino ang
ating paniniwalaan?

Senator Aquino. Diyan na nga po ako, kung min-
san, may duda kung sino ang paniniwalaan. At kung
minsan, depende iyan sa sinasabi. Ipagpalagay natin na
itong disarmament, strategic arms limitation, strategic
arms reduction, at kung anu-ano pang mga reduction--
iyon pong mga base ay hindi yata kasama sa reduction.
Pero alam naman natin, ang mga base ay kasangkapan sa
giyera. Mukhang hindi iyon nakakasama sa reduction of
military forces.

Kung nais natin ng kapayapaan, sana ay ipagtulakan

natin, ipagdiinan natin ang kapayapaan ng buong mundo
at ng ating rehiyon. '

The President.
questions? [Silence]

All right. Are there any other

Senator Aquino. Thank you, Mr. President.
SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

The President. Shall we have our usual break. if
there is no objection? [There was none.}

Itwas 5:30 p.m.

RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION
At 6:14 p.m., the session was resumed.
The President. The session is resumed.

BILL ON SECOND READING
Senate Bill No. 1861--Synchronized
Elections on May 11, 1992
(Continuation)

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that we
resume consideration of Senate Bill No. 1861 as reported
out under Committee Report No. 1373.

The President. Resumption of consideration of Sen-
ate Bill No. 1861 is now in order.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, we are still in the
period of interpellations. I ask that we recognize Senator
Gonzales.

The President. Senator Gonzales is recognized.

Senator Gonzales. Mr. President, the parliamentary
situation is that we are still in the period of interpella-
tions. If there are no other interpellations--I think Senator
Laurel would want to interpellate.

The President. Senator Laurel is recognized.

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

Senator Laurel. Mr. President, may I just ask for a
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few minutes suspension of the session to be able to look
into my papers.

The President. Is there any objection? [Silence]
Hearing none, the session is suspended for a few minutes.

Itwas 6:16 p.m.
RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION
At 6:22 p.m., the session was resumed.

The President. The session is resumed.

Before the questions of Senator Laurel, the Chair
would like to know the procedure of the canvass of the
election returns according to this bill.

Senator Gonzales. Mr. President, under Section 23,
the boards of election inspectors are required to prepare in
handwriting and sign the election returns in their respec-
tive polling places in septuplicate and in the form to be
prescribed and provided by the Commission on Elec-
tions.

The copies of the election returns are to be distributed
as follows:

(A) In the election of President, Vice-President,
Senators and Members of the House of Representatives:

(1) The first copy shall be delivered to the
President of the Senate;

(2) The second copy, to the Commission on
Elections;

(3) The third copy, to the provincial/city/district
board of canvassers for use in the canvass of returns
for Members of the House of Representatives;

(4) The fourth copy, to be known as advance
election returns, to the city/municipal treasurer who,
in the presence of the election registrar or his
authorized representative, shall immediately and
publicly open the same and post the votes received by
each candidate in an election tally board, sufficiently
large to enable the public to read them, installed in a
public place, preferably within the immediate
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vicinity of the city hall or municipal building;

(5) The fifth copy shall be deposited inside the
compartment of the ballot box for valid ballots;

(6) The sixth copy shall be delivered to the
representative of the ruling party; and

(7) The seventh copy, to the representative of
the dominant opposition party.

Mr. President, the first copy, which is to be delivered |

to the President of the Senate, will not be canvassed
because they are merely sent to the Senate for purposes of
verification or comparison during the canvass, which
shall be undertaken by the Congress when it convenes as
a National Board of Canvassers.

It is the third copy which is to be sent to the provin-
cial/city or board of canvassers which shall be used in the
canvass of the returns for Members of the House of
Representatives.

As far as the election of local officials is concerned,
Mr. President:

1. The first copy shall be delivered to the City/Mu-
nicipal Board of Convassers for use in the city/municipal
canvass.

2. The second copy to the Commission on Elections.

3. The third copy to the Provincial Board of Canvas-
sers for use in the provincial canvass, except in cities/
municipalities that do not participate in the election of
provincial officials, in which case, the copies of the elec-
tion returns shall be kept by the election registrars con-
cerned.

4. The fourth copy, to be known as the advance
election returns, to the city/municipal treasurer, to be
used in posting the results of the local elections in the
same manner as provided in paragraph (a), subparagraph
4 hereof. .

5. The fifth copy shall be deposited inside the com-
partment of the ballot box for valid ballots.

6. The sixth copy shall be delivered to the represen-
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tative of the ruling party.

7. The seventh copy to the representative of the
dominant opposition party.

We will observe, Mr. President, that there are two
sets of election returns to be prepared by the Board of
Election Inspectors.

The first set of election returns is for national offi-
cials.

The second set is for the local elective officials.

So, here, Mr. President, the first copy of the second
set of the election returns for the election of local officials
will be the ones delivered to the city or municipal board
of canvassers for use in the city and municipal canvass.

Then, the third copy to the provincial board of can-
vassers for use in the provincial canvass. That is in the
canvass of the election for the provincial elective officers,
Mr. President.

Then, under Section 24, the provincial, city and dis-
trict board of canvassers, to canvass the election returns
for President, Vice-President, Senators and Members of
the House of Representatives.

Here, it is said that the election returns of the pre-
cincts for the position of President, Vice-President, Sen-
ators and Members of the House of Representatives shall
be canvassed by the provincial board of canvassers, city
board of canvassers, in the case of cities, comprising one
or more legislative districts, and the district board of
canvassers in Metropolitan Manila area.

For President and Vice-President, the Board shall
prepare in five copies a certificate of canvass supported
by a statement of votes by precinct, received by each
candidate, and distributed as follows:

1. The first copy to be transmitted to the President of
the Senate. That will be the one used in the canvass of
the election for President and Vice-President. This is the
so-called certificate of canvass referred to in the Constitu-
tion and in all electoral laws, including the Omnibus
Election Code.

2. The second copy to the Commission on Elections,
the third copy shall be kept by the Chairman of the
Board; the fourth copy shall be given to the representative
of the ruling party; the fifth copy to the representative of
the dominant opposition party.

For the Senators, the Board shall prepare four copies
of certificates of canvass likewise supported by statement
of votes by precincts received by each candidate and
distribute them as follows: The first copy shall be
transmitted to the Commission on Elections for canvass
of the results of the election for Senators; the second copy
to be retained by the Chairman of the Board; the third and
the fourth copies are the party copies.

So we will note, Mr. President, that for the election of
Senators, it is the Commission on Elections which will be
the board of canvassers. But the Board of Canvassers
will not use the returns but rather, it will use the certifi-
cate of canvass, supported by a statement of votes by

precinct which had been prepared by the Board of Can-

vassers. In short, pagdating po sa COMELEC, hindi po
iyong election returns ang gagamitin nila kundi iyong
Certificate of Canvass prepared by the provincial/city
Board of Canvassers.

For Members of the House of Representatives, the
Board shall canvass the election returns of the district and
prepare five copies to be distributed as follows: The first
copy to the Secretary of the House of Representatives; the
second copy shall be transmitted to the Commission on
Elections; the third copy shall be given to the winner; the
fourth copy shall be posted in a conspicuous place in the
provincial capitol; and the fifth copy shall be kept by the
Chairman.

Here, there has already been a canvass undertaken by
the Provincial Board of Canvassers or by the District
Board of Canvassers for every legislative district. They
act as the board of canvassers for the election of the
Members of the House of Representatives. That is why,
magpe-prepare ng tatlong uri ng certificate of canvass.
One, certificate of canvass for the election of President
and Vice-President; two, certificate of canvass for the
election of Senators; and finally, a certificate of canvass
for the election of the Members of the House of Repre-
sentatives. Ganoon po ang canvass under the provisions
of this bill.
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The President. At the lowest level, the canvassing
of elections returns, I assume, will start with the munici-
pal board of canvassers in every municipality.

Senator Gonzales. Yes, Mr. President, that is cor-
rect. And in this case, actually, ang returns ang magiging
batayan ng canvass by the Municipal Board of Canvas-
sers, and this relates to the canvass of votes in the
election of municipal elective officers. '

The President. All right. But the canvass will cover
all positions. The canvass of the election returns which, I
said, will start with the municipal board of canvassers
will cover all positions, whether national or local.

Senator Gonzales. Yes, Mr. President, but there
will be a canvass on the municipal level, because the
COMELEC conducted a hearing on this wherein all the
representatives of the major political parties were invited.
The unanimous agreement there was that there ought to
be a canvass also of national officers at the municipal
level para malaman naman ng mga mamamayan sa ba-
yang iyon kung ano ang naging resulta ng eleksiyon,
bagama't iyong base ng canvass na talaga for those corre-
sponding positions are otherwise provided for here. Para
ralaman po ng mga mamamayan sa isang bayan kung
$ino ang nanalo sa pagka-presidente, sino ba ang nanalo
sa pagka-bise presidente, sino ang mga nahalal na mga
Senador at mga Congressman?

‘The President. Then the municipal certificates will
20 up to the provincial board of canvassers?

Senator Gonzales It says hére that as far as the
election of local officials is concerned, the first copy
shall be delivered to the city/municipal board of canvas-
sers for use in the city or municipal canvass.

The President. Yes.

Senator Gonzales. Samakatwid, iyon pong mis-
mong returns sa probinsiya ang siyang ipadadala roon at
iyong Board of Canvassers in the province will now
canvass the results of the provincial elections.

Sa municipality po naman, the Municipal Board of
Canvassers.

The President. Yes. But the canvass at the provin-
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cial level will be based on the municipal certificates?

Senator Gonzales. Hindi po. It says here that in the
election of local officials, the first copy--we are now
talking of the returns--shall be delivered to the city/mu-
nicipal board of canvassers for use in the city or munici-
pal canvass. But note: The third copy to the provincial
board of canvassers for use in the provincial canvass.

Kaya, maliwanag po na ang magiging batayan ng
canvass by the provincial board of canvassers are the
election returns themselves They are not certificates of
canvass.

The President. Dito sa tinanggap kong sulat mula sa
Commission on Elections, the one who signed this is
Commissioner Regalado Maambong. Ito ang kaniyang
sinasabi:

In the bill formulated by the COMELEC, the
canvassing of election returns starts with the
Municipal Board of Canvassers in every
municipality. This covers all the votes of national as
well as local candidates.

The municipal certificates will then go up to the
provincial board of canvassers which will also
prepare their own certificates containing the totality
of the votes of each candidate taken from the
municipal certificates.

This procedure reached by consensus of the
major political parties gives an added assurance that .
the canvassing in the higher levels for provincial
candidates: Senators, Vice~President, and President,
will be faster because the Provincial Board of
Canvassers will not be canvassing thousands of
election returns in a particular province but, instead,
only the certificates of canvass, the number of which
corresponds to the number of municipalities.

Senator Gonzales. I do not know how Commis-
sioner Regalado reached that conclusion, but it is very
plain, Mr. President, in the provision of the bill that the
basis of the canvass by the provincial board of canvassers
in the election of provincial officials would be the elec-
tion returns themselves. But I agree that there was a
unanimous agreement reached among the leaders of the
political parties that there should also be a canvass at the
municipal level.
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Properly speaking, canvass for the provincial and
municipal is to inform only the people of the results of
the election in that particular province or municipality.
But the official basis of the canvass and the proclamation
will be as provided for in this bill, Mr. President.

The President. Maaari po bang ang kopya ng sulat
naito ay ibigay ko sa inyo para pareho ang pagkakaintin-
dihan natin ng COMELEC?

Senator Gonzales. Yes, Mr. President.
Senator Maceda. Mr. President.
The President. Senator Maceda is recognized.

Senator Maceda. I have been following the debate,
and the Maambong formula is definitely different from
the present bill.

Senator Gonzales. Right, Mr. President.

Senator Maceda. I would just like to state that I
would be in favor, although it would take longer on the
provincial level, that the municipal canvass be done for
all the election returns, and again, the provincial canvass
be done again for all the election returns of the province.

Precisely, in the last 1987 elections, I think that the
fraud or the tampering of certain election returns was
done very easily by the Provincial Election Registrars,
because there was no municipal canvass done for Sen-
ators in the last 1987 elections.

The President. Pero dito po, may canvass at the
municipal level.

Senator Gonzales. Yes, may canvass.
The President. Right. Kaya, nagkakapareho sila.

Senator Maceda. Hindi po.

The President. Ang pagkakaiba lamang, pagdating ‘

doon sa provincial board of cavassers.

Senator Maceda. Canvass the returns again, not
only the certificates per municipality.

The President. Doon sila nagkakaiba.

Senator Maceda. Kaya nga po. Ang sinasabi ko,
kumporme ako rito sa more detailed procedure of a
double canvass of returns. Canvass of return on the
municipal level and canvass of the returns on the provin-
ciallevel,

Senator Gonzales. There is really a canvass at the
municipal level, and there is a canvass at the provincial
board of canvassers level, but the purposes are different.

Iyong purpose ng municipal canvass ay para mala-
man ng mga mamamayan kung ano ang resulta ng e-
leksiyon doon sa bayang iyon. But in the canvass by the
provincial board of canvassers, it is for purposes of proc-
lamation. Ipo-proclaim kung sino ang nanalo doon sa
mga provincial offices after a canvass of the returns.

Senator Maceda. Opo. But, for purposes of a
double insurance against fraud, hindi po puwedeng
magkaiba iyong election return na binilang ng municpal
board of canvassers at iyong election returns na binilang
ng provincial board of canvassers.

Senator Gonzales. Tama po si Senator Maceda. In
that respect that will already be a double check. Pagka
nagkaiba iyong canvass, then they put up notice na may
nagkalukuhan dito or there have been mistakes or machi-
nations that have been made, and that the parties now will
be put on alert and will take whatever remedial measures
are provided for by law.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President.

The President. Senator Guingona is recognized.

Senator Guingona. Yes, Mr. President. From the
answers of the distinguished Sponsor yesterday,
mukhang ang batayan ay iyong provincial returns and not
the municipal.

Senator Gonzales. Batayan ng alin po?

Senator Guingona. Sa canvassing for the national.

Senator Gonzales. The canvass for the election of
Senators can be done by the COMELEC, hindi na po ng
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election returns but on the basis of certificates of canvass
prepared by the board of canvassers. Iyon ding canvass
ng President and Vice-President by Congress will not be
on the basis of the returns , but on the certificate of
canvass prepared and authenticated by the provincial or
city board of canvassers. Kaya lamang, it should be
supported by a statement of the count of votes,

Second, added guarantee. Lahat ng first copy of the
election return for the election of President and Vice-
President shall be transmitted to the President of the
Senate and shall remain in his custody to be used for
purposes of verification and comparison in the event that
during the canvass by Congress, may mga pagkakaiba o
apparent falsification.

Senator Guingona. I would Just like to get the en-
lightenment kung bakit walang pagkakataong magkaroon
ng discrepancy iyong municipal at iyong provincial can-
vass.

Senator Gonzales. If we really follow the law, theo-
retically, there ought not be any difference between the
two, because they are supposed to be copies of the same
set of election returns.

Senator Guingona. But if there is a discrepancy,
which one will prevail?

Senator Gonzales. Kaya mayroon tayong provision
of the law about that. If they are both authentic copies of
the same election return, Judicial proceeding iyan. Pero
kung, halimbawa, ito ay result of apparent tamperings,
which are apparent on the face, then ordinarily what the
board of canvassers will do is to get all available copies
of the election returns for that particular precinct. Then,
through process of comparison, malalaman nila kung
itong lima o0 anim na kopya ay pare-pareho, at ito lamang
May tampering ang naiiba.

" The COMELEC now will authorize the board of
Canvassers to use a clean Ccopy, maaaring COMELEC
Copy. There are even cases wherein the COMELEC had
authorized the opening of ballot boxes for the specific
and limited purpose of retrieving the election returns for
Comparison purposes, when the occasion arises, Mr.
President,
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Senator Guingona. Before proclamation.
Senator Gonzales. Before proclamation.

Senator Guingona. As we asked yesterday, of the
seven copies, duplicate originals, the provincial copy will

~ be the basis in case of discrepancy, in the election of

President.

Senator Gonzales. I was trying to explain that

" under this law, there are two sets of election returns to be:

prepared by the board of election inspectors: one for the
election of national officials and one for the election of
the local officials. As far as the election for President
and Vice-President is concerned, the first copy will be
transmitted to the President of the Senate for the purpose
I have already explained. But for local officials, iba po
ang distribution. Ang distribution nga po ay katulad ng
sinasabi rito;

The first copy shall be delivered to the city/
municipal board of canvassers for use in the city/
municipal canvass,

Dalawa PO ang returns.  Ito po ang second set. That is
the set of election returns for local officials.

Senator Guingona. Is that from the province?

Senator Gonzales. For the province, the third copy,
to the provincial board of Ccanvassers for use in the
provincial canvass. Kaya, iyong canvass ng provincial
board of canvassers will be based on the returns, not
merely on a certificate of canvass prepared at the munici-
pal level, ’

Senator Guingona. May I just be enlightened, Ito
pong returns will come from each precinct,

Senator Gonzales. That is right. It is the one that is
prepared by the board of election inspectors.

Senator Guingona. They all come from municipali-
ties, originally.

Senator Gonzales, Yes, Mr. President,

Senator Guingona. And the municipalities, they
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send to the province.

Senator Gonzales. Hindi po. May mga kopya po.
Ang unang kopya ay ipadadala sa municipal board of
canvassers. Iyon po ang gagamitin sa canvass of the
municipal officials. Iyong third copy, to be sent to the
provincial board of canvassers for use in the provincial
canvass, meaning, in the canvass of the results of the
election for provincial elective officials.

Senator Guingona. Isee. So that there is very little
likelihood that there will be discrepancy.

Senator Gonzales. Kung masipag lamang kayong
mag-check at mag-countercheck, madi-discover ninyo
agad kung kayo ay dinadaya. Alam ninyo agad kung
saan kayo dinadaya. Ang hirap nito, pag natalo na, wala
na, give up naagad. Bihirang-bihiraiyong ‘‘tumututok’’
dito sa mga proceedings.

Senator Guingona. Since the returns start from the
municipal level, can we not use the municipal returns as
the basis for the canvass?

Senator Gonzales. Ang mabigat po roon, tatapusin
muna ninyo ang municipal canvass at saka pa ninyo
ipadadala ito sa provincial board of canvassers. Some-
times, when there are challenges on the genuineness and
authenticity of an election return, it will take a long time.
At saka pa lamang ninyo ipadadala roon sa provincial
board of canvassers. That will cause a delay. Kaya mas
magaling na nga iyong magkaroon ng separate copy of
the returns na ipadadala sa provincial board of canvassers
so that immediately, there will be a canvass of the results
of the election for provincial officials.

Senator Guingona. My onI)v/ worry is, in case of
~ discrepancy, which one will be made the basis?

Senator Gonzales. The Omnibus Election Code
provides specific rules with respect thereto.

Senator Guingona. Thank you, Mr. President.

The President. All right. Let us ask Senator Laurel.
He wanted to ask questions. Ang hangad ko lamang ay
huwag magkaroon ng hidwaan sa pagitan ng interpre-
tasyon ng COMELEC at ng ating interpretasyon.

Senator Gonzales. Opo. Ang pinagbasehan ko po
lamang noon ay iyon ngang pinag-usapan ng mga heads
of the parties, sapagkat hindi ako nagpunta roon. But I
gave the stand of the LDP, that there should also be a
canvass on the municipal level. Lahat po naman ng
partido. Of course, we owe it to our people in the towns
na malaman din nila kung ano ang resulta ng national
elections.

The President. All right. Senator Laurel.

Senator Laurel. Mr. President, in view of the late-
ness of the hour, I shall confine myself to a few ques-
tions, reserving my right to pursue further the other ques-
tions that I would like to ask at a later date.

Mr. President, I am just curious about Section 3,
‘“Term of Office.”” It is very minor, but, perhaps, there is
something omitted here, whether by accident or over-
sight.

We have on page 2, line 9, a provision to the effect
that ‘“‘no Vice-President shall serve for more than two
successive terms,’’ followed by ‘‘no Senator...not more
than two consecutive terms,”’ et cetera, and then ‘‘the
Members of the House to serve for not more than three
consecutive te..ns.”’ The President is not mentioned.

Can the Gentleman kindly tell us why, Mr. Pres-
ident?

Senator Gonzales. Mr. President, the term was bod-
ily lifted from Republic Act No. 7056 which, in turn, we
found it necessary to incorporate in that bill, because we
defined synchronization as a process. Magsisimula sa
1992 at pagkatapos ay magiging complete by 1995.

So, it was important to determine the terms of office
to see how the sychronization will operate. Ito po ay
kinopya rin nila dito sa bill, but we intentionally omitted
the term of the President because that is already provided
for by the Constitution. It is debatable. Hahaba po ang
debate kung ilalagay natin ang ‘‘whether or not the Pres-
ident elected under this Constitution can run for reelec-
tion or no reelection.”” So, we leave it to the provisions
of the Constitution, Mr. President, as it ought to be. We
bodily lifted the other terms from the Constitution.,
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Senator Laurel. So, does this bill adhere to the
- proposition that the President may run for reelection un-
der the present Constitution?

Senator Gonzales. Ayaw ko pong makipag-debate
sa puntong iyon. Makakahaba po lamang ito dahil hindi
naman kailangan dito sa bill. But the Gentleman recog-
nizes the fact that there are some who think that--in fact,
the Gentleman talked to some Constitutional Commis-
sioners. Ang sabi po ng Author ng provision na ito, iyon
daw ang purpose nila, why they say the ‘‘President
elected under this Constitution.”” Kaya raw nila inilagay
iyong “‘elected under this Constitution’’ is to allow the
incumbent President now to be eligible for election.

Pero ayaw na naming pagdebatihan iyon sapagkat
baka makapagtagal lamang sa bill na ito. So, we leftitto
the Constitution, and let any party question it when there
is a proper case, Mr. President.

But, apparently, it is moot and academic because the
President has already publicly said her farewell as an
indication that she will not stand for another term.

Senator Laurel. But that is not at all certain. We
cannot say that that decision of the incumbent President
is fixed or not subject to change. In other words, this was
intentional.

Senator Gonzales. This was to preclude involving
ourselves in a debate of constitutional dimensions, Mr.
President.

Senator Laurel. Going now to page 5, starting from
line 3 to line 6. It says, and I read:

However, the foregoing campaign period shall
not include the day before and the day of the election
itself, Maundy Thursday and Good Friday, during
which days campaigning is absolutely prohibited.

Senator Gonzales. That is correct, Mr. President.

Senator Laurel. I can understand the reason for that
since those days, particularly Maundy Thursday and
Good Friday, are sacred days for us Christians. But here,
this law applies also to the Muslims, does it not? I do not
know that we can prohibit the Muslims who do not be-
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lieve in these days of observance to require them not to
campaign.

Senator Gonzales. Mr. President, we just enact a
law that has a valid reason, and it, somehow, may apply
unequally in specific cases, because sometimes that can-
not be avoided. In this particular case, that situation
apparently has come up.

May I say, Mr. President, na ang probisyong ito ay
reiteration lamang. Re-enactment lamang ito ng old
Election Codes.

Senator Laurel. I understand that, Mr. President,
But what I thought is, perhaps, it is time for us to correct
the provision here.

Senator Gonzales. Baka naman pag ginawa natin
iyon ay umiksi ang campaign period for the Muslims at
humaba para sa mga Kristiyano.

Senator Laurel. Ganoon po ba?
Senator Gonzales. Opo.

Senator Laurel. Maybe, this is something that our
Senators from Mindanao would be in a better position to
consider and comment on.

Senator Gonzales. Siguro, puwede pong gawin na
“Except with respect to Muslim candidates.”” Pero, iyon
nga ang sinasabi ko, na iiksi ang kanilang campaign
period because Maundy Thursday and Good Friday will
be included in the computation of the campaign period.
The idea is to exclude them,sapagkat hindi kayo
makakampanya during those days. '

Senator Laurel. My point is, I do not know that we
should make a statement here applicable to non-Chris-
tians which they certainly do not feel obliged to observe.
That is out of respect for their respective independent and
separate religion.

Senator Gonzales. Unless there is really an expres-
sion of desire on their part, Mr. President, I think it is
better that we adopt a uniform law, although they are not
obliged. Hindi naman sinasabi na they must celebrate or
they must revere, or they must respect or worship during
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Maundy Thursday and Good Friday. Ang sinasabi la-
mang, for reasons of the fact that most Filipinos consider
these days holy, whether Christian or Non-Christian, then
there ought not to be any campaigning. Iyon po lamang
ang sinasabi rito. But we are not required to do any
religious act.

Senator Laurel. Mr. President, I will defer that for
the proper time, when the time for amendments comes

up.
I yield, Mr. President, to the Senator from Sulu.

Senator Rasul. Mr. President, the point raised by
the distinguished Senator from Batangas is well-taken. If
Maundy Thursday and Good Friday are holidays for
Christians, I see no reason why the Muslims should be
bound by these holidays, since these are not holidays for
the Muslims.

Soifthey so decide not,tc; campaign on that day, why
should they prohibit the Muslims from campaigning on
Maundy Thursday and Good Friday?

Senator Gonzales. Mr. President, that actually sub-
tracts nothing from them because they are prohibited but
they are not included in reckoning or counting of the
campaign period. So, nothing is lost.

Senator Laurel. So, why do we place it here when it
does not apply anyhow or should not be made to apply to
non-Christians?

Senator Gonzales. Because, as the Gentleman
knows, our role in the Legislature is to enact a law that
seems to be universal. It might happen that in some
particular cases, it may not apply equally or in full force,
but we cannot cover any possible contingency.

Senator Laurel. Then, Mr. President, I will just
leave the matter at that, and leave it also to our Senators
from Mindanao.

Senator Rasul. Mr. President, will the distinguished
Senator clarify this point: Suppose the Muslim candidate
will campaign among his Muslim brethren, will he be
prohibited from doing so? He will not be campaigning in
a Christian community.

Senator Gonzales. In short, we are merely defining
the campaign period. Sinasabi lamang natin na in two
days, we are prohibited from campaigning, but our cam-
paign period remains.

Senator Laurel. Pero nakalagay po rito: ‘‘which
days, campaigning is absolutely prohibited.”” Then there
is a provision here on penalties.

Senator Gonzales. Yes, that is right, Mr. President.
Sinabi natin na 60 days ang campaign period. Pero sa
pagbilang ng 60, hindi natin isasama iyong dalawang
araw na iyon na ipinagbabawal ang pagkampanya. Can
we not do that, Mr. President?

Senator Laurel. Ipinagbabawal nga po. The cam-
paigning is absolutely prohibited.

Senator Gonzales. Yes, that is right.
campaign period ay nananatili.

Pero iyong

Senator Rasul. Mr. President, during the period of
amendments, puwede bang i-amend iyon, instead of 60
days, sabihin na lamang natin 62 days. Those who do not
want to campaign on Thursday and Friday, okay sa
kanila. Peroiyong mga Muslims, puwede na silang mag-
campaign.

The idea there is to include the two days to make it 62
days.

Senator Gonzales. Mahirap po naman iyang mga
split-level treatment of the law. At any rate, hindi pa
naman po ito ang panahon. We will have time and oppor-
tunity to amply discuss it when the period of amendments
comes. »

Senator Rasul. Mr. President, during the period of
amendments, maybe 1 will introduce an amendment that
will exempt Muslims or non-Christians from this prohibi-
tion. ’

Senator Gonzales. Let us hear that amendmerit later
on. I trust that the collective judgment of this Body will
make 4 ruling on it, Mr. President.

The President. The Majority Floor Leader.
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SUSPENSION OF CONSIDERATION
OF SENATE BILL NO. 1861

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that we
suspend consideration of this measure.

The President. Is there any objection? [Silence]
Hearing none, the motion is approved.

MOTION OF SENATOR GUINGONA
(Ratification of Approval of House Bill No. 27877)

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, due to a slight
oversight, I move that we ratify the earlier approval of the
Conference Committee Report on the disagreeing provi-
sions of House Bill No. 27877, granting franchise to
Progressive Broadcasting Corporation.

The Report was approved with oversight that we

have not formally named the panel representing the Sen-
ate, Mr. President. So, I move that we correct that by
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ratifying the approval previously given.

The President. Is there any objection? [Silence)

Hearing none, the motion is approved.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, tomorrow, we
will take up the Postal Delivery Corporation; the Fisher-
ies Code; Protection Against Child Abuse; Incentive to
Contractors; People’s Television Network and the Satel-
lite Paging System.

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

I move that we suspend the session until nine o’clock
tomorrow morning.

The President. The session is suspended until nine
o’clock tomorrow morning, if there is no objection.

[There was none.]

Itwas 7:05 p.m.
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umalis. Walang nagawa si Castro. Ganiyan din ang
mangyayari sa atin.

Senator Estrada. Kaya, kung magkakaroon ng
constitutional crisis, ito po ay kagagawan ng Amerikano?

Senator Tamano. Kagaggawan din po natin dahil
lumagda ang Presidente natin sa Treaty at iyong mga
Senador ay hindi sumangayon.

Senator Estrada. Karapatan lamang po ng mga
Senador iyon dahil sa ilalim ng Saligang Batas, kaila-
ngang ratipikahan ng Senado ang Treaty sa pamamagitan
ng two-thirds vote. Nasa batas po natiniyan. Kung hindi
igagalang ng mga Senador ang Saligang-Batas natin, sino
pa ang gagalang dito?

Senator Tamano. Iyan po ang problema. Sapagkat
noong tayo ay mag-renegotiate ng Treaty, ang inaasahan
ng mga negotiators, ang inaasahan ng Gobyerno ng
Amerikano, ang inaasahan ni Presidente Cory Aquino,
iyong mga kaibigan niya dito sa Senado, gaya ni Senator
Romulo, ni Senator Saguisag, at ng kaniyang bayaw na si
Senator Aquino, ay kasama rin ang mga ito sa pagsang-
ayon sa Treaty. Hindi nila inaasahan na mare-reject ito sa
Senado.

Senator Estrada. Kahanga-hanga po iyong ginawa
ng ating kasamang Senador Aquino nang magbigay siya
ng statement na bagaman mahal niya ang kaniyang sister-
in-law, mas mahal niya ang kaniyang Inang Bayan, kaya
po siya ay tumututol dito sa Tratado.

Senator Tamano. Huwag po naman nating sabihin
na kaming mga pro-Bases ay hindi nagmamahal sa ating
bansa, sapagkat sa aking sarili, sa gulang na 14 lamang,
ako ay nag-volunteer sa resistance movement, at saka
nasubukan ko rin ang pag-aalalay ng aking buhay para sa
bayan.

Kaya iyon pong sinasabi na para sa Inang Bayan ang
ating ginagawa, pareho rin iyan. Iyong pro-Bases at saka
anti-Bases, ang kanilang iniisip ay ang Inang Bayan.

Senator Estrada. Salamat po, Ginoong Pangulo.

The President Pro Tempore. The Majority Floor
Leader is recognized.

MOTION OF SENATOR GUINGONA
(Referral of Senator Tamano’s Speech to the
Foreign Relations Committee )

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that we
refer the speech of the Distinguished Gentleman to the
Committee on Foreign Relations.

The President Pro Tempore. Is there any objec-
tion? [Silence] Hearing none, the motion is approved.

BILL ON SECOND READING
Senate Bill No. 1861-Synchronized Elections
(Continuation)

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that we
resume consideration of Senate Bill No. 1861, as reported
out under Committee Report No. 1373.

The President Pro Tempore. Resumption of the
consideration of the bill is now in order.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I ask that we
recognize Senator Gonzales.

The President Pro Tempore. Senator Gonzales is
recognized.

Senator Gonzales. Mr. President, yesterday, we
have received several proposed amendments from the
Commission on Elections to the original bill, which they
had submitted to the Members of the Bicameral Confer-
ence Committee and became the basis of the bills which
had been filed both in the Senate and the House of Repre-
sentatives.

There have been some basic changes therein, Mr.
President, especially insofar as the canvass of the returns
of the election and the proclamation of each result.

Now, we feel that it would be better if we prepare
already an amended or a moditied bill that would incor-
porate all of these new or different provisions so that, in
the course of our interpellations, we will be answering the
questions arising from the bill in accordance with the new
provisions, and not in accordance with the bill as origi-
nally filed. We will need some time to do that. I think,
by tomorrow, we will be prepared with this new or modi-
fied bill.
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Therefore, with the consent of the Majority Floor
Leader, may I request that the consideration of Senate
Bill No. 1861 be deferred for tomorrow, Mr. President.

Senator Pimentel. Mr. President.

The President Pro Tempore. Senator Pimentel is
recognized.

Senator Pimentel. Mr. President, we have no objec-
tion to the proposal. However, we would like to request
the Gentleman to consider amending also that provision,
which would limit the distribution of returns only to the
dominant opposition and to the so-called ruling coalition
in the light of the realities of our political setup today,
where very likely there will be more than one, or, shall
we say, the so-called Ruling Coalition might split into
several ways, and in order to flesh out the constitutional
intent whereby the emergence of more than one dominant
party could be justified. We hope that the Gentleman
would take that into account.

Senator Gonzales. I have expressed myself as very
receptive to the proposal made by Senator Pimentel, in
the sense that a political party that had obtained an **X>’
percent of the total number of votes cast in the 1987
election should be entitled to the appointment of a
watcher.

In accordance with my promise to Senator Pimentel,
[ actually brought up this matter to Chairman Monsod of
the Commission on Elections. However, Chairman Mon-
sod said that they are actually limited by technology, in
the sense that the. most number of copies of the election
returns that they can now provide would be seven. And
even at that, the sixth and the seventh copies are hardly
legible.

We had reiterated this. We asked the same question
to Commissioner Yorac, just a few minutes ago before
this bill was called. Again, the answer of Commissioner
Yorac is that the most number of election returns that
they can provide would also be seven. That limits now
the number of the political parties or coalition which
would be entitled to the appointment of the principal
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watchers, two copies of the election returns, and the cer-
tificates of canvass.

We have tried to work out a system. However, as we
have said, we are limited by technology.

The President Pro Tempore. In other words, is it
the position of the Sponsor of the bill that this has to be
resolved more minutely, considering the technical prob-
lems? ’

Senator Gonzales. Yes, I think, there might be
some remedy now that Commissioner Yorac is here. The
number of certificates of canvass are less than seven.
Probably, we can bring it up to seven, therefore, increase
the number of political parties whose representatives
would be entitled to receive a copy of the certificates of
canvass.

After all, under this new system that the COMELEC
is requesting Congress to adopt, the canvass on the pro-
vincial and the city board of canvassers’ level will be
done not on the basis of the election returns but will be on
the basis of the certificates of canvass which will be
prepared by the municipal board of canvassers.

The President Pro Tempore. In other words, this
suggestion of Senator Pimentel is addressed to the Spon-
Sor.

Senator Gonzales. Yes, Mr. President.

The President Pro Tempore. And this is separate
from the request of the Sponsor that the consideration of
this bill be deferred.

Senator Gonzales. That is correct; but then, I think,
Senator Pimentel has every right to suggest that in the
preparation of this modified bill, this concept, which he
had introduced in the course of his interpellation, could
be included.

The President Pro Tempore. In other words, this is
without prejudice to the request of Senator Pimentel.

Senator Gonzales. Yes, Mr. President.

The President Pro Tempore. So, without prejudice
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to the request and resolution by the Sponsor, the motion
or suggestion of the Sponsor of the bill, if there is no
objection, is approved. ’

The Majority Floor Leader.

SUSPENSION OF CONSIDERATION
OF SENATE BILL NO. 1861

Senator Guingona. I move that we suspend consid-
eration of this measure.

The President Pro Tempore. Is there any objec-
tion? [Silence] Hearing none, the motion is approved.

Senator Guingona. I move that we consider Com-
mittee Report No. 918, the logging ban bill.

We have a distinguished group of visitors from the
People’s Republic of China. I ask that the Senate recog-
nize the distinguished visitors.

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

I'move for a suspension of the session.

I'he President Pro Tempore. In view of the visit
with us of the representatives from the National People’s
Congress of the People’s Republic of China, the session
is suspended. [Applause)

Itwas 5:5 p.m,

RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION

At 5:59 p.m., the session was resumed, with the Hon-
oruble Ernesto M. Maceda, presiding.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Maceda]. The ses-
sion is resumed.

The Majority Floor Leader is recognized.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, Senator Alvarez
is not here.

BILL ON SECOND READING
Senate Bill No. 76--Organ Donation
(Continuation)

Mr. President, I move that we resume consideration
of Senate Bill No. 76 as reported out under Committee
Report No. 69.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Maceda). Resump-
tion of consideration of Senate Bill No. 76 is now in
order.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, we are still in the
period of interpellations.

I ask that'we recognize Senator Romulo.
May I ask for a minute suspension, Mr. President.
The Presiding Officer [Senator Maceda]. The ses-
sion is suspended if there is no objection. [There was
none.]
SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

At 6:00 p.m., the session was resumed,

The Presiding Officer [Senator Maceda]. The ses-
sion is resumed.

Senator Romulo is recognized.
Senator Romulo. Thank you, Mr. President.

Senator Guingona. We are still in the period of
interpellations.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Maceda). Are there
any interpellations? [Silence] There being none, we are
now in the period of Committee amendments.

Senator Guingona. I ask, Mr. President, that...

Senator Romulo. ‘Yes, Mr. President. I wonder if
the bill with the Committee Report has been distributed.

Senator Guingona. In that case, we will cause the
distribution of the copies of the bill, hopefully, together

585

S



Tuesday, August 27, 1991 RECORD OF

THE SENATE Bill on Synchronized Elections

good name of any nation signatory thereto is pledged to
what is written in a treaty. I am only trying to say that,
sometimes, things that are not written down will also be
undertaken provided that a bridge of goodwill is existing
between two countries.

Thank you, Mr. President.
Senator Laurel. Thank you also, Mr. President.
The President. Are there any more questions?

The Majority Floor Leader.

MOTION OF SENATOR GUINGONA
(Referral of Laurel’s Privilege Speech to the
Foreign Affairs Committee)

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that the
speech of the distinguished Gentleman from Batangas be
referred to the Committee on Foreign Relations.

The President. Is there any objection? [Silence]
Hearing none, the motion is approved.

BILL ON SECOND READING
Senate Bill No. 1861 - Synchronized Elections
(Continuation)

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that we
resume consideration of Senate Bill No. 1861 on Syn-
chronized Elections.

The President. Resumption of consideration of Sen-
ate Bill No. 1861 is now in order.

Senator Guingona. We are in the period of interpel-
lations. I ask that we recognize Senator Gonzales.

The President. Senator Gonzales is recognized.

Senator Gonzales. Mr. President, as the Majority
Floor Leader stated, we are now in the period of interpel-
lations. However, last time, we begged permission to
suspend consideration of Senate Bill No. 1861 in order to
afford us an opportunity to integrate certain amendments
and changes, as a result of new formulations, which had
been received by our Committee from the Commission

on Elections after the original bill was filed, as well as the
suggested amendments of the Senate President, himself,
on the basis of studies and recommendations made by
former COMELEC Chairman Ramon Felipe, and also of
the Committee on Amendments.

We have, accordingly, prepared this modified or new
version. of Senate Bill No. 1861, and we have furnished
copies of this version, marked, revised, as of August 26,
1991, to all the Members of the Committee yesterday and
today.

Mr. President, before we proceed to the process of
interpellations, may I be permitted to explain the amend-
ments or changes that are now contained and integrated in
this modified bill?

May I have the permission of this Body, Mr. Pres-
ident?

The President. Please proceed.

Senator Gonzales. The first amendment that we
have introduced is on Section 2 which states:

In accordance with the policy hereinbefore
declared, there shall be held an election for President
and Vice-President, twenty-four (24) Senators, all
elective Members of the House of Representatives,
and all provincial, city and municipal elective
officials.

The suggestion of the Senate President is that, since
we -talk of synchronized elections, we must not only
provide for the election on May 11, 1992 but also thereaf-
ter in order to conform it with the policy statement, which
states:

It is the policy of the State to synchronize
elections so that there shall be simultaneous regular
elections for national and local elective officials once
every three (3) years.

That is why the amendment to Section 2 now is the
inclusion of ‘‘ON THE SECOND MONDAY OF MAY,
1992, AND ON THE SAME DAY EVERY THREE
YEARS THEREAFTER EXCEPT THAT WITH RE-
SPECT TO SENATORS ONLY TWELVE (12) SHALL
BE ELECTED IN SUBSEQUENT ELECTIONS IN
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ACCORDANCE WITH THE NEXT FOLLOWING
SECTION.”’

Mr. President, the effect of this is that we do not have
to pass a new election law every three years. Because
this is already provided for in this particular provision.
So, in its totality, we will be able to see that it is truly a
bill that provides for synchronized elections once every
three years.

Now, with respect to Section 4, the election of Mem-
bers of the sangguniang panlalawigan, sangguniang
panlungsod and sangguniang bayan by district, the
mechanism for the apportionment remains. But we have
a particularly difficult problem which we would want to
point out to the Members of this Body.

If we will recall, no less than the Senate President
himself had said that this provision should, as much as
possible, conform with the pertinent provisions of the
Local Government Code. We hate the idea of passing
one law that is contrary to or inconsistent with the Local
Government Code, in the Bicameral Conference Com-
mittee Report which we are supposed to approve in any
of the following days.

So, we did really make the necessary studies and
consultations. We found that under the Local Govern-
ment Code, in addition to the elective members, there are
three sectoral representatives, who, instead of being ap-
pointed, are now to be elected simultaneously with the
regular sangguniang members by district.

Our difficulty is, these three sectoral representatives
are as follows: 1) one for women; 2) one for agricultural
or industrial labor; and 3) other sectors including those of
the cultural communities.

Now, how are we going to integrate that in the elec-
tion of the Sangguniang Bayan members in 19927 We
can consider one thing. We have to elect the three of
them at large throughout the municipality. That is very
logical. Certainly, a sectoral representative for women is
supposed to represent not only the women in a particular
council or district but throughout the whole municipality;
and so with the sectoral representatives for industrial or
agricultural labor or other cultural communities. The
difficulties, however, that we encounter herein are;
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One, that we will have to add three more names on
the ballots because they are now to be added to the
elective members of the Sanggunian who are to be
elected by district.

Two, it would appear that the sectoral representatives
would have a far more difficult way of getting elected
than the elective members who would be elected only by
the registered voters of a district; while, on their part,
they are going to be elected at large.

I have consulted Senator Pimentel who is the head of
the Senate panel to the Bicameral Conference Commit-
tee, and I have permission to put across his suggestion to
the effect that, probably, the sectoral representative for
womea should be elected in addition to the elective coun-
cilors in the district where the poblacion is located, con-
sidering that most of the women leaders are residing in
the poblacion.

The sectoral representative of the agricultural sector
will be represented in that district which includes parts of
the town or municipality which are predominantly farm-
ing or agricultural, probably, the third sectoral represen-
tative in the district which deserves greater representa-
tion.

My only problem with that, Mr. President, is, first, it
will be extremely difficult on the part of the Commission
on Elections to designate the districts wherein the sec-
toral representatives are to be appointed.

Second, it is inconsistent with the idea that as sectoral
representatives, they are supposed to represent, not only
the members of their sectors in a particular councilor
district, but the whole locality.

Apparently, the champion of women in this Cham-
ber, Senator Rasul, had furnished us the solution when
she said that she would propose an amendment that all
the sectoral representatives will have to be elected at large
or throughout the municipality. I think that is very logi-
cal, especially if it comes to the very proponent of a
sectoral representative for women.

Mr. President, I have here prototypes of the ballots
which will be used in the 1992 elections. As we have
said, limiting it to not more than 38 would actually pro-
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duce a ballot only as long as this. This is definitely not
really long. Probably, if there are no insufferable objec-
tions on the part of the COMELEC, then, beneath the
spaces for councilors here--six spaces, Mr. President--we
have to add three additional spaces for sectoral represen-
tatives to be denominated for women, for labor, and for
other sectors. I think that is the best that we can do under
the formulation.

In fact, the proposal of Senator Pimentel is that this
requires further studies. Therefore, whatever method we
are going to adopt should be for purposes of the 1992
clections in order to afford Congress the opportunity to
study in-depth, how this matter of electing the sectoral
representatives in the Samgguniang Bayan should be
elected.

That is the vacuum that is now left in Section 4 of
this bill. We hope to fill that during the period of amend-
ments.

An amendment was likewise integrated upon the sug-
gestion of the Senate President, on the matter of the
certificate of candidacy appearing on page 7, line 10, that
no certificate of candidacy shall be filed or accepted by
mail, as originally provided, and as added by this amend-
ment, telegram or fax.

Another amendment may be found in Section 9, lines
19 and 20.

The Felipe Report on Recommendation would want
to delete completely Section 9. This was opposed by the
COMELEC because COMELEC wants the needed flexi-
bility.

As we have said, one of the conditions sine qua non
for the holding of a simultaneous election in 1992, is that
no precinct should have more than 200 voters. Therefore,
it is necessary to give them this power to adjust and split
or divide the precincts by territory.

On the other hand, we cannot also ignore the concern
expressed by former Chairman Felipe that this might
revive a system that was done during the Martial Law
regime when the voters were actually transferred from
one precinct to another, some of them quite far from each
other, thus creating a lot of confusion especially on elec-

tion day and, therefore, resulting in the disenfranchise-
ment of voters.

We consider that a legitimate concern. While we
recognize the need for flexibility for the Commission on
Elections, then we, however, thought of a safeguard
against the anxieties and apprehensions stated by former
Chairman Felipe. This may be found now on lines 19 or
20, page 7: “‘Provided, That the resulting polling places
must be in the same building.”’

Therefore, exile to faraway precincts is thus pre-
vented by this requirement--that if we split an election
precinct, the polling places for the precinct which had
been split or adjusted should be housed in the same
building.

Then, another amendment that has been integrated
here upon the proposal of the Senate President may be
found on lines 25 and 26 of page 7, to the effect that in
the registration day for 18-year-olds and above, the age
should be shown by certified copies of their birth certifi-
cates or secondary evidence of the same. COMELEC
accepts this amendment, and so does your Committee,
Mr. President.

Then on page 9, we incorporated this, notwithstand-
ing, because we received the comments of the COME-
LEC quite late. We thought that this is a very good
provision. That is now Section 14, page 9, regarding the
National Central File of Voters. This is done through
computerization.

The COMELEC admits that this is a good step, and [

- think the COMELEC is working towards this direction.

But what COMELEC is merely saying is that, probably,
this should not be included in this law because it is not in
a position to put it in place for the 1992 elections; while
it says that in the long view, it will actually go to the
system of a national central file of voters.

As I have said, the Committee feels that it is a good
provision. That is why we integrated it here, but with the
comment, that there is an objection on the part of the
COMELEC, not because it does not believe in the merit
of the provision, but because it feels that it is not in a
position to put it in place for the 1992 elections.

673



RECORD OF

Interpellations

THE SENATE Vol. I, No. 18

Then, Mr. President, with respect to the allowable
expenses, we are proposing certain changes. Even while
we were sponsoring the original provision of this bill
which increased the amount to #3.00 that a candidate for
President, Vice-President, Senator, and any other office
will spend for every voter registered in their national
constituencies, we see, however, a distortion.

Probably, the P3.00 per voter in a constituency may
be good for a candidate for congressman or for provin-
cial, city and municipal offices. But, for those holding
~ national constituencies like the President, the Vice-Presi-
dent and Senators, it might be unduly large. When we go
into the arithmetics of this issue, then we will be indeed
alarmed by the huge amount that will have to be spent not
only by the candidates but also by the political parties.

We recognize that, Mr. President. That is why we
propose the following changes: That for candidates for
President, Vice-President and Senators, there is no in-
crease. It remains as what is now provided by law--P1.50
for every voter currently registered in their national con-
stituencies; For candidates for members of the House of
Representatives and elective local officials--P3.00 for
every voter currently registered in the constituency
where they filed theirs certificates of candidacy; for po-
litical parties, instead of P5.00, we have reduced it to
$3.00 for every voter currently registered in the constitu-
encies where they have official candidates.

We have indicated on the record our sad experience,
meaning Senator Saguisag and I, in our attempt to com-
ply with the requirement of the law on submitting a
statement of expenditures including the names and ad-
dresses of our contributors, we were awakened one morn-
ing by frantic calls from our contributors listed in our
filed statement to the effect that they had been slapped
with the so-called gift tax by the BIR, something which
had never been done before, and which every candidate
and every contributor was not aware of at the time when
the contributions were made. That is why, we thought
that certainly a political contribution should not be rele-
gated to the category of an ordinary gift which is really
for personal use, but we consider it more as an investment
in a representative democracy.

We added now this particular provision, lines 27-32:
“THAT ANY PROVISION OF LAW TO THE CON-
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TRARY NOTWITHSTANDING ANY CONTRIBU-
TION IN CASH OR IN KIND TO ANY CANDIDATE
OR POLITICAL PARTY OR COALITION OF PAR-
TIES FOR CAMPAIGN PURPOSES SHALL NOT BE
SUBJECT TO THE PAYMENT OF ANY GIFT,
MEANING DONOR’S OR DONEE’S TAX.”’

Then, Mr. President, another amendment may be
found as far as the official ballots are concerned. This is
borne out of the Salonga Amendment on the basis of the
recommendations of Mr. Felipe, former Chairman of the
COMELEC.

In this particular case, there are objections of the
COMELEC, and these are:

1. They are not recommending watermarks which is
the main amendment in paragraph 1;

2. That paragraph (B) which says: Any official
ballot and election returns without the required water-
mark shall be wholly null and void ipso facto notwith-
standing the signature or initial of the chairman, or poll
clerk or watcher at the back thereof.”’

Mr. President, COMELEC has put its official posi-
tion in a letter addressed to the Senate President through
me, which I had delivered to the Senate President. So,
the COMELEC’s opposition to this provision is stated
therein. They feel that if this were to go through, even at
the mere counting of the ballot, a watcher of a political
party or of a candidate may immediately, at that time,
object to the counting of a particular ballot on the ground
that it does not bear watermark. That is the whole context
of the objection of the COMELEC.

Now, Mr. President, I think COMELEC would want
to be given some flexibility in determining the form of
the ballot and the contents of the same.

There is also an amendment inserted in Section 24,
because Chairman Felipe pointed out in his report to the
Senate President that, apparently, three laws are conflict-
ing with each other. He suggested that we indicate what
is really the preference of Congress. There is a law that
requires that the Chairman and a Poll Clerk must affix
their signatures at the back of the ballot. There is another
law which says that in addition to that signature, there
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must also be a thumbmark.

On the other hand, Section 24 requires merely the
Chairman of the board of election inspectors, in the pres-
ence of the voter, to affix his signature at the back
thereof. Any ballot which is not so authenticated shall be
deemed spurious.

Now, in order to clarify this law in the light of the
apparent contradictions in the three statutes, then we said:
““Section 15 of Republic Act No. 6646 and Section 210
of the Omnibus Election Code are hereby modified or
repealed.”’

The COMELEC says that it is no longer necessary to
do so because there is already a general repealing provi-
sion, but probably in order to see also the reason for the
recommendation of the Senate President, that this be
expressly provided in this section.

Now, Section 25, Mr. President, ‘‘Manner of Count-
ing of Votes’’, it says:

In addition to the requirement in the 4th par. of Sec.
12, R.A. 6646 and Sec. 210, Omnibus Election Code,
in reading the individual official ballots during the
counting, the Chairman shall face the public with his
back to the tally board, but the table on which the
ballots are laid should be pushed as far forward as
possible to provide sufficient space at his back to
enable all the watchers to stand close behind him to
enable them to read the ballot being read without
touching it.

Mr. President, the COMELEC says that this can be
done through a matter of administrative rules and regula-
tions. In fact, it is embodied in the COMELEC instruc-
tions to the Board of Inspectors. But we would prefer, as
suggested by the Senate President, that it be expressly
stipulated in the law. Because we cannot close our eyes to
experiences in the past wherein the teacher, for one
reason or another, would really position herself during
the reading of the ballot with her back practically against
the tally board and not giving enough or sufficient space
for the watchers to read the ballots as they are being read
without touching it. Ano pa ang gamit nitong mga
watchers if we will not give them the opportunity to
observe the reading of the ballots.

So, we had incorporated it, Mr. President, notwith-
standing the objections of COMELEC.

As far as the official watchers are concerned, we have
taken note of the proposals or suggestions of Senator
Pimentel and have taken it up with the Chairman of the
Commission on Elections. But, he practically repeated
what I have pointed out earlier before this Body. Actu-
ally, much as we wish to appoint more official watchers
for the party, who will in turn receive copies of the
election returns, we are limited by technology in the
sense that the chemically treated paper could not exceed
seven. There is no way. In fact, Commissioner Yorac
came here sometime ago to give her assistance thinking
that the bill will be called at that time.

Senator Saguisag and I tried to plead with her. She
repeated that more than seven is no longer possible. In
fact, they admit that even the sixth and seventh copies of
the election returns are hardly legible. Hence, the need
now for reiterating the provision of existing laws to the
effect that the COMELEC will designate representatives
of the official watchers to two political parties, which we
denominate as the majority party or coalition and the
second, the dominant opposition party or coalition.

Now, who shall determine them? Then, it will be the
COMELEC. But then we provide certain standards
which we feel leaves the COMELEC not much of a
discretion. I think we should frame the standards or crite-
ria in such a manner as to leave the COMELEC practi-
cally without discretion on this matter.

And so, what are the criteria?

Number one, the track record of the said parties,
coalition or groups that now compose them on the basis
of merger, union or consolidated in the 1987 elections.

This 1987 election, Mr. President, came from the
COMELEC. We would have both *87 and ’88 elections.
We do not consider the 1990 barangay elections to be
partisan. But, according to them, this would involve
hundreds of thousands of track records which they will
examine and, probably, millions of votes as a result of the
election. That is why they would limit it to the ’87
election which is a national one.
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Number two, the number of Senators, Members of
the House of Representatives, provincial governors and
vice-governors, city and municipal mayors and vice-may-
ors belonging to them.

Again, this is a COMELEC formulation, Mr. Pres-
ident. They do not include the sangguniang bayan members as
well as the sangguniang panlungsod because they feel that this
would involve so many candidates and the determination of the
political parties to which they belong.

Number three, their verifiable political organization
and strength as evidenced by their organized chapter.

Number four, they or their components must have
polled at least 10 percent of the votes cast in the 1987
election. These are the old criteria under the law.

Number five, other analogous circumstances that
may determine their relative organizations and strengths.

We would welcome further suggestions as to other
criteria which may help the COMELEC in making a fair
and equitable determination of which political parties are
indeed entitled, as a matter of fact and law, to official
party watchers. However, we know, and we will explain
it later, that probably, one of the most important political
documents now are the so-called certificates of canvass.
These are very very sensitive because only the board of
canvassers at the municipal and city level will base the
canvass of the results of the election on the returns.

With respect to the city board of canvassers, the
provincial board of canvassers, the COMELEC as well as
the Congress, they will base their canvass on the certifi-
cates of canvass and not on the election returns.

Now, we notice that there are only five copies. We
said that if we can do it with seven, then more political
parties will be entitled to receive copies of the certificates
of canvass. That is why we included this. The third and
the fourth-ranking political parties or coalitions as deter-
mined by the Commission in accordance with the above
criteria shall be entitled to receive the sixth and seventh
copies of the certificates of canvass which shall be in
addition to the five copies provided in the next succeed-
ing section.

676

So, four parties now will receive copies of the certifi-
cates of canvass. One, the majority party or coalition;
two, the dominant opposition party or coalition; three, the
third-ranking; and, four, the fourth-ranking political party
in accordance with this established criteria as determined
by the COMELEC.

Now, Mr. President, we have Section 27, regarding
the number of copies of the election returns and their
distribution. I would want to take it together with the
canvass.

If we will recall, the Chair actually posed several
questions to me in the light of a letter that was sent to him
and received by him from Commissioner Maambong
wherein he pointed out that the canvass by the city and
the provincial board of canvassers shall not be based on
the returns, but merely on the certificates of canvass.

For example, in a province with 27 municipalities,
the provincial board of canvassers will not canvass the
thousands of election returns coming from all the 27
municipalities but instead, will canvass only the 27 cer-
tificates of canvasss prepared by the municipal board of
canvassers of each and every municipality.

I'think I answered the Senate President that that is not
justified by the language of the bill. I even read the
pertinent provision to the effect that the third copy of the
election returns shall be forwarded to the provincial board
of canvassers for use in the canvass.

So, it was very plain there that the basis of the can-
vass by the provincial board of canvassers is the election
returns, not the certificates of canvass.

Because of that, or probably because COMELEC
itself recognized the incongruity of the original bill that
they have recommended to Congress, then new formula-
tions were passed on to our Committee. And on the
basis now of these new formulations which we integrate
in this revised version of Senate Bill No. 1861, we have
adopted the concept.

So, the board of election inspectors will prepare the
election returns of the election for President, Vice-Pres-
ident, Senators, Members of the House of Representa-
tives, the provincial governor, vice-governor, members of
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the sangguniang panlalawigan, the mayor, the vice-
mayor, the members of the sangguniang bayan.

The next step in the election process will be the
canvass of the results of the election.

We have several boards of canvasser, Mr. President.
In order to proclaim the results of the municipal election,
we have the municipal board of canvassers. For the
results of the election in a city, we have the city board of
canvassers. For the results of the election in legislative
districts composed of two or more component cities or
municipalities, we have the city board of canvassers. For
the canvass and proclamation of the results of the election
for the provincial officers and the Members of the House
of Representatives, we have the provincial board of can-
vassers.

The Commission on Elections is the National Board
of Canvassers in the election for Senators, while the
Congress of the Philippines is the National Canvassing
Body for the results of the election for President and
Vice-President.

May I reiterate that under the new formulation, the
counting of the votes per return, the canvass on the basis
of the election returns, is done at the lowest level which is
the municipal or the city level. Iyon talagang election
returns ang magiging basehan. After the canvass of the
results of all of these elections, the municipal board of
canvassers shall proclaim the winning candidates for mu-
nicipal offices and, thereafter, prepare the Certificates of
Canvass.

Ganoon din po sa city board of canvassers. After the
canvass, the city board of canvassers will proclaim the
elected city officials. Kung may Congressman po roon,
because there are cities which are constituted as such, it
will proclaim also the winning Member of the House of
Representatives and, accordingly, prepare the ceriificates
of canvass. Iyon ngayong mga certificates of canvass ang
ipadadala.

The provincial board of canvassers, I repeat, will no
longer canvass the election returns. Ang kakanbasin po
lamang ay iyong certificates of canvass and, thereafter,
proclaim who have been elected Member of the House of
Representatives or provincial officials. In turn, they will

also prepare their certificates of canvass to be sent to the
COMELEC and also to be sent to the Congress, ad-
dressed to the President of the Senate in the latter in-
stance.

The COMELEC will now canvass the results of the
senatorial elections based on the certificates of canvass
that it received from the provincial and city board of
canvassers and, thereafter, make the proclamation. The
Congress, in turn, will meet as a National Board of Can-
vassers in a joint session presided over by the President
of the Senate to whom the certificates of canvass is ad-
dressed. The said certificates of canvass shall be opened
in the presence of the Senators and the Members of the
House of Representatives and the votes shall then be
counted and, thereafter, proclamation is to be made.

Under the Constitution, Congress is required to adopt
rules and regulations governing the canvass. That is not
provided for in this Election Bill, but I am looking for-
ward to a bill that would define the rules of the game, so
to speak. Sapagkat base sa naging eksperyensiya natin
noong nakaraang panahon, katulad noong snap elections,
kapag may objection, hindi malaman kung ano ang ga-
gawing proceedings. Pinamarkahan na lamang ni Speaker
Yiiguez ng asterisk at pagkatapos ay biglang ipri-
noklama ang resulta on the basis of the totals of these
returns.

So, we have to define, in accordance with the man-
date of the Constitution, the rules and regulations govern-
ing the canvass. As I have said, it is not provided in this
bill.

Mr. President, the per diems, this has been inspired
by the bill that had been filed by Senator Maceda consid-
ering the extraordinary work, the tensions and anxieties,
even exposure of life and limb, and also the long hours--
probably days and hours--that the members of the board
of election inspectors will be called upon to give in the
1992 elections, we are proposing an increase of their per
diems--P250 for each day of registration and revision,
andP500 on election day. ‘

Can we have money for this purpose? I think we
can, because our original proposal calls for two registra-
tion days. Now, there is only one registration day, and
that is not even mandatory, only where it appears that in
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an election precinct, there needs to be held another regis-
tration day, as determined by the COMELEC, to enable
the voters, who were unable to register, to register.

Then, there is no longer any definite revision day. It
is-done on a selective basis.

So, whatever savings that we can derive from this
could go into increasing the per diems of the members of
the board of election inspectors. Not only the members
of the board of election inspectors, because there are
other officials performing election duties, like supervi-
sors, principals, administrators, and other support person-
nel of the Department of Education, Culture and Sports.

Now, there is a proposal from the Senate President,
based on the Felipe studies, requiring that said per diems
shall be paid by the cashier and/or other financial officer
of the said Department in the main or the field offices
within 72 hours after registration, revision and election
days respectively.

Then, there is also a proposal that any delay in the
said payment shall constitute an election offense.

The objection of the COMELEC is that this is too
draconian, and it might be a discouragement to govern-
ment officials called upon to exercise a duty from accept-
ing these responsibilities. That is why they are for the
deletion.

On the other hand, we have proposed that in order
that it may be, more or less, flexible, then we say:
‘“There being funds actually available, any delay in the
said payments to any of the abovementioned personnel,
without justifiable reason shall constitute an election
offense.”’ '

In short, there are two requirements: First, funds
must actually be available; and second, that the delay is
without justifiable reason. Then and only then will the
penal sanction of the law be applicable.

I am submitting this matter to this Body for whatever
consideration it may so please.

We also note that the Department of Education, Cul-
ture and Sports, and the Commission on Elections shall
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provide a reasonable and equitable mechanism for hazard
pay, and incentive and merit awards for all schoolteachers
who perform election duties.

Then, on page 13, Mr. President--I think I missed
this--there is another amendment. Before, the procedure
for correction, whether judicial or administrative, of re-
turns because of apparent falsifications, intercalations,
and others, the remedies were only provided by law for
the correction or amendment of the election returns. But
since certificate of canvass is a new thing created under
this bill, then it is not covered by those provisions. That is
why, together with election returns, we said in this
respect: ‘‘as well as the certificates of canvass.’’

In short, the procedures provided for by law and the
correction, alteration, or amendment, whether judicial or
administrative, of election returns apply equally to this
certificate of canvass.

Then we note that Section 31 is the rule concerning
public bidding: ‘That the Commission shall procure all
forms, supplies, equipment, materials and services for the
holding of an election or other electoral exercises strictly
by public bidding,’’... et cetera.

The Senate President knows the position of the
COMELEC on this matter: they are objecting to the in-
clusion of this particular provision because, according to
them, there are already sufficient auditing laws and audit-
ing rules and regulations governing the procurement of
forms, supplies, equipment, materials and services.

Mr. President, this is the revised version of Senate
Bill No. 1861, and we are willing now to yield to any
interpellations on this matter.

The President. Allright.

Senator Gonzales. There is one point, Mr. Pres-
ident, and I realize that this is a special concern of Senator
Guingona. This is as far as the prohibition against media
political advertisements is concerned and this is embod-
ied in Section 11 of Republic Act No. 6646.

This prohibition has been attacked on constitutional
grounds by no less than 200 publishers and electronic and
broadcast media, on the ground that it violates the free-
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dom of expression provision of the Constitution, and
claiming that candidates should not be denied the right to
explain their views through the widest possible means;
that the people, in turn, have the right to know what
candidates stand for, what are their platforms, and poli-
cies.

On the other hand, we are also confronted with the
realization that the costs of political advertisement by
means of radio, newspapers and television is almost
prohibitive; that only rich and highly favored candidates
could avail themselves of the same.

In order not to degrade the political process, as well
as to equalize opportunities for all candidates, rich and
poor alike, that was the main reason behind the Guin-
gona formulation, which is now Section 11 of Republic
Act No. 6646.

However, we have stated here, that for purposes of
the 1992 elections, Section 11 of Republic Act No. 6646
on prohibited forms of election propaganda is hereby
suspended with respect to the presidential, vice-presiden-
tial and senatorial elections. Instead, Section 85, Prohib-
ited Forms of Election Propaganda, and Section 86,
Regulation of Election Propaganda Through Mass Media
of the Omnibus Election Code, shall apply in full force
and effect.

There have been some Colleagues who suggested
that probably the suspension should apply only for the
President and Vice-President, because they are to be
elected on individual basis. As far as the Senators are
concerned, where 24 of them will have to be elected in
one election, probably, the suspension should not apply
with respect to them. .

We are giving all the sides on this particular matter,
Mr. President. We are willing to yield to reasonable
amendments to this particular provision.

This is the revised version of Senate Bill No. 1861,
and [ am now ready to yield to interpellations.

The President.
then Senator Pimentel.

The Majority Floor Leader, and

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, will the distin-

guished Senator yield to some questions?

Senator Gonzales. Gladly to the distinguished Ma-
jority Floor Leader,

Senator Guingona. We have noted that the cam-
paign period for Senators has been reduced to 60 days.

Senator Gonzales. Yes, Mr. President. The new
campaign period is 90 days for President and Vice-Pres-
ident; 60 days for Senators; and 45 days for the provin-
cial, city, and municipal elective officials.

Senator Guingona. Considering that the Senators
would ordinarily campaign for the presidency, would this
not be impractical in the sense that the Gentleman had
already provided for an escape clause that they would be
exempted if they campaign with the President?

Senator Gonzales. The theory is that we are just
merely being realistic, that when a presidential candidate
of a political party campaigns in a province or city or
even a municipality, then even the Congressman and
local officials belonging to his party are called upon to
campaign for him. However, although they might like-
wise be campaigning for themselves, the essence here is
that they are allowed to campaign for their national candi-
dates and not for themselves, even outside of their respec-
tive campaign periods.

As I have said, this is merely a reflection of the
realities in the Philippine political scene.

Senator Guingona. May I go now to Section 14 on
page 9, and ask the distinguished Sponsor: When will
this computerized National Central File of Voters be ac-
complished?

Senator Gonzales. Mr. President, that is precisely
the reason for the objection of the COMELEC for the
inclusion of this particular provision. They are honest
enough to admit that given the limited time, resources,
and manpower, they are not in a position to put in place
this National Central File of Voters by May 11, 1992.

However, we had prepared this bill before we re-
ceived the comments of the COMELEC. We thought
that this is a good provision, which the COMELEC itself

i
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accepts, and says that it is working towards this direction.
Probably, if we do not want this deleted, and we are
agreed on the merit of this particular provision, we can
insert here by way of amendment, a qualifying clause, so
that it would not be mandatory for the COMELEC to put
itin place by the 1992 elections. After all, we can require
that which cannot possibly be done.

Senator Guingona. On the contrary, I believe that
with the computerization system, if the COMELEC had

the will, it can easily do so and computerize a list of

voters to be compiled and made available to interested
parties on a due date, maybe after registration.

Senator Gonzales. We have no argument with the
Gentleman on that point. We consider this provision
meritorious. In fact, the proof is that we have already
integrated it in the revised version. But I am merely
putting out a caveat that while the provision is there, the
COMELEC, by its own admission, may not be able to
put it in place. So, if we want this as a long-term
measure, as a goal to be attained, then probably that can
be realized through qualifying words in the form of an
amendment.

Senator Guingona. My amendment would be a
little more mandatory on the part of...

Senator Gonzales. The Gentleman will make it
mandatory?

Senator Guingona. Yes.

Senator Gonzales. Mr. President, we have merely
given the Gentleman what the COMELEC says. The
Gentleman and I agree on the merits of this particular
provision.

Senator Guingona. Yes. Now, may we go to the
election expenses. I note that the new bill has now
reduced the amount to P1.50 per voter for President and
Vice-President.
penses?

Senator Gonzales. The political parties, Mr. Pres-
ident, remains at 3.00 for every voter. In the original

version, it was P5.00 per voter.
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How about the political parties ex-'

" Senator Guingona. Is that meant to be on a national
scale, or for every province...

Senator Gonzales. No, Mr. President, this is sup-
posed to be the totality of the expenses of a political
party. Ifitis a national political party, then it will be the
totality of its expenses. It may happen, however, that it
may only be a regional or a local political party, in which

case, it shall be computed on the basis of the registered

voters in their respective constituencies.

Senator Guingona. So that it shall be computed for
the entire slate--

Senator Gonzales. Yes, Mr. President.

Senator Guingona. --not for one Senator allowed to
spend $1.50, and then the political party will put another
$3.00 for him.

Senator Gonzales. No, Mr. President. It is the
totality of the party expense.

Senator Guingona. I heard that the election returns
shall no longer be the basis of canvassing but that it will
be based on the certificate of canvass. Did I hear the
Gentleman right?

Senator Gonzales. There will still be canvass on the
basis of the election returns but at the lower level.

Senator Guingona. Which level?

Senator Gonzales. Which shall be the municipal
and the city board of canvassers, Mr. President.

Senator Guingona. The municipal and city board of
canvassers.

Senator Gonzales. Yes, Mr. President, because the
city board of canvassers will have to canvass the results
of the election for all offices and thereafter proclaim the
results of the city election. Meaning, the winning city
candidates. If there is a Congressman, then also the
Member of the House of Representatives for that city.

Senator Guingona. Now, for any dispute arising
out of the election returns, the protestant has, according
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to this proposal, three days within which to elevate the
same to the Board of Canvassers. Is that correct?

Senator Gonzales. Mr. President, I think what the
COMELEC contemplates are shorter periods to file chal-
lenges and shorter periods to decide the same, also mak-
ing it a requisite that before a challenge can actually be
entertained, it must be put in writing in a form that will be
furnished by the COMELEC.

At this juncture, the President relinquished the Chair
to the President Pro Tempore.

Senator Guingona. Yes, but is this procedure, espe-
cially when it goes to the dispute as to the pre-proclama-
tion, not a little too hasty in the sense that a protestant
will have only three days, and after the resolution of the
Board of Canvassers, he will have only five days within
which to lodge his protest to the COMELEC proper? I
understand- from the bill that the COMELEC must sum-
marily dispose of the protest..

Senator Gonzales. Mr. President, as far as the
summary in nature of pre proclamation proceedings is
concerned, there has been no change.

Under existing laws, procedures in pre proclamation
controversies are indeed summary in nature. But this is
actually a reaction to the delays in pre proclamation pro-
ceedings, so much so that in two or three years after the
election, the winning candidate has not yet been pro-
claimed because delays have been manufactured.

We will notice, Mr. President, that in election con-
tests or election controversies, the periods are short. The
idea is really to make it as the determination of the real
will of the voters as soon as possible. That is the underly-
ing feature.

I think when the COMELEC proposed the shorter
period, it has the benefit of experience in handling thou-
sands of pre proclamation proceedings.

Therefore, I would defer to its judgment, to a conten-
tion that this might be unreasonably short,

Senator Guingona. Would this have to be decided
en banc by the COMELEC, Mr. President?

Senator Gonzales. Mr. President, I think most of
these pre proclamation controversies are en banc.

Senator Guingona. By division?

Senator Gonzales. By division, Mr. Pressident, but
there is always a motion for reconsideration or appeal to
the COMELEC en banc. If one files a motion for recon-
sideration of an order of a division of the COMELEC, it
will be treated as an appeal to the Commission en barnc.
So the final order will really be the order of the
COMELEC en banc.

Senator Guingona. During the elections, it is noted
that most Commissioners are out in the field, and it
would be hard to get a proper quorum within the Stipu-
lated period. Has this been foreseen by the COMELEC
to consider?

Senator Gonzales. Mr. President, in fact, Chairman
Felipe had proposed to Senator Salonga that there should
be a provision there prohibiting any member of the
COMELEC from being absent from the principal office
during the two weeks immediately preceding the election.
The COMELEC interposed an objection.

We agree with that objection, Mr. President. I think
this is an internal matter for the Commission on Elections
to determine. It is so inflexible. Situations may require
that a member of the COMELEC be immediately dis-
patched or sent to the provinces in the light of a very
serious election trouble that may be brewing out or may
actually be happening. If we say that they are prohibited
from leaving their principal station within two weeks
before the elections, we may be unnecessarily tying their
hands.

Senator Guingona. May I know what is the main
objection to a watermark on the ballot?

Senator Gonzales. Mr. President, I will just read,
without any comment, Section 23 regarding official bal-
lots:

We cannot accept the proposal for the same
reasons that we are not recommending watermarking

of election returns.

They have objection to the provision sought to be
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amended by the rest of the proposals.

It says here: For as long as the basic specifications
are outlined in the law, adoption of security measures and
safeguards, including the use of color codes, should be
left to the discretion of the Commission. It is our view
that the proposals will hamper implementation of such
measures and safeguards.

To consider the ballots without the required water-
mark as wholly null and void ipso facto, will create
situations in the precincts where the watchers can demand
the instant nullification of a ballot. This issue is better
left to the judgment of the proper forum in a protest
proceedings.

Senator Guingona. Yes, Mr. President, but the
watermark is, precisely, designed to offset the possibility
of illegal duplications of fake ballots. We have had
experience of the COMELEC purchasing ballots from
abroad; using paper that is purchased from abroad and not
locally. And there is no means for the watcher to deter-
mine whether the ballot is really the same ballot that was
authorized to be printed officially.

Senator Gonzales. Mr. President, I have read to the
Gentleman the objections of the COMELEC. Personally,
I would prefer a watermark paper to be used in the print-
ing of, not only the officials ballots, but the election
returns, and if possible, the certificates of canvass them-
selves to avoid substitution,

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

May I request a one-minute suspension to confer with
the COMELEC representative.

The President Pro Tempore. Very well. The atten-
tion of the Chair has been called to the presence of some
members of the Zambales Municipal Mayors League.
We will suspend the session also, for that reason, in order
to enable Members of this Chamber to greet them.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, some Governors
are also here.

The President Pro Tempore. And some Governors.
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Without objection, the session is recessed for a few
minutes.

Itwas 5:23 p.m.

RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION
At 6:38 p.m., the session is resumed.
The President. The session was resumed.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, we have a ques-
tion concerning the watercolor. I think the distinguished
Sponsor has a suggestion.

Senator Gonzales. Yes, Mr. President. I think that
we can continue with paragraph a) of Section 23, with the
exception that we will have to delete the words ‘‘and’’
after the word ‘‘Ballots’’, and on line 9, the word ‘‘elec-
tion returns’’, because this is actually a paragraph for
official ballots.

Then we continue with the watermarks, but we are
willing to delete paragraph b) from lines 30 to 33 on page
17 to lines 1 and 2 on page 18. We find the second
requirement very, very stringent and it will lead to conse-
quences at the counting level. Then, any inspector or
even any watcher can immediately ask for the exclusion
of a particular ballot on the ground that it is null and void
in accordance with this particular provision.

So the determination of whether or not the ballot is
null and void should be left to the proper forum in a
proper proceedings, Mr. President, together with what-
ever additional evidence that may be introduced to prove
that the ballot is indeed spurious.

Senator Guingona. Yes, Mr. President, at the
proper time.

May I also refer to page 19, where there are watchers
for individual candidates and parties, but the two princi-
pal watchers are limited to the majority party and the
dominant opposition party.

Would this not first violate the constitutional man-
date encouraging multiparty system, and precisely delet-
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ing the inspector system, which now we are putting
back?

Senator Gonzales. Mr. President, I beg to submit
that the two principal watchers, the concept of which is
merely a continuation of existing laws, are required for
purposes of authenticating the official returns by their
signatures and thumbmarks. So it is nothing but an added
guarantee in order to ensure the authenticity of the offi-
cial returns, and not to discharge the duties of the board
of election inspectors, as in fact, there are members of the
Board of Election Inspectors.

Every registered political party, as well as every can-
didate, since time immemorial, has been entitled to
watchers. So I do not think that there could be objections
thereto.

I note that the Gentleman’s objection is merely lim-
ited to the two principal watchers.

Senator Guingona. Two principal watchers.

Senator Gonzales. As I have said, Mr. President,
this is merely a continuation of the provisions of the
Omnibus Election Code. It did not create any problem in
1987 for the simple reason that the ruling coalition and
the dominant opposition Party were identifiable immedi-
ately.

But the problem today is when the coalition de facto
has already broken up, because each of the component
units has opted to maintain its respective identity as a
political party, and probably, will field its own separate
candidates.

If we allow all of the watchers to authenticate the
official returns with their signatures and their
thumbmarks, considering the number of such watchers--
instead of authenticating, they might actually destroy the
official returns--one could imagine the amount of space
that would be consumed for the signatures and the
thumbmarks of all the watchers.

Senator Guingona. We recognize that, Mr. Pres-
ident. But under the mandate that registered political
parties shall have equal status before the law, and the
encouragement under the constitutional mandate for a

multiparty system, this is actually an unequal treatment
of parties and may give due advantage to the dominant
parties of both the Administration and the Opposition,
which, I think, would present an unfair and an unequal
status.

Senator Gonzales. Mr. President, the Gentleman
has invoked equality, which means equal protection of
the laws. But the equal protection of the laws’ guarantee
is not violated when there is a proper classification. The
classification is proper, first, when it is based upon sub-
stantial distinctions which make real differences; and,
second, that the law applies to all parties equally and
similarly situated. ’

Now, we can see the purpose of this law. This is not
an invention of this bill. It is merely a continuation of
what already has been provided for by law and practiced
in this jurisdiction. The only addition that this particular
provision has made is to set the criteria or guideline for
the COMELEC in determining these two parties which
are entitled to appoint or designate the so-called principal
watchers.

That is all the addition, Mr. President. That is why
we are saying that we try to make the criteria in such a
way that they are definite and concrete. We still welcome
additional criteria so that the discretion of the COME-
LEC will be limited, so that it will be practically a minis-
terial duty on its part.

Senator Guingona. ‘Yes, we will go to the criteria
soon. But what would be the disadvantage if we remove
this right from any political party? In other words, place
all parties in the same level. No one sits in the board of
inspectors. They all watch.

Senator Gonzales. Mr. President, I do not think that
the principal watchers sit with the board of election in-
spectors. In fact, whether we like it or not, under exist-
ing laws, they all sit as observers and they cannot perform
the duties of the board of election inspectors other than
the limited function of authenticating the returns. So, let
us not weed the board of election inspectors.

Senator Guingona. So, if that be the case, then we

can give them the same right to sit as observers in the
board of election inspectors.
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Senator Gonzales. When we speak of the function
of the board of election inspectors, it starts from the
preparation of the registered list of voters. The principal
watchers do not participate. In the distribution of the
ballots, in entering the serial number of the ballots in the
proper column in the registry list of voters, in delivering
the ballots, then, in receiving them thereafter, putting the
thumbmark in the proper identification--these are some of
the functions of the board of election inspectors. But,
certainly, the principal watchers there do not participate
in any one of them.

As I'have said, the two principal watchers’ function is
limited to that of authenticating the returns.

Senator Guingona. Can we not extend that same
privilege to other watchers?

Senator Gonzales. Yes, Mr. President, we can do
that. The trouble is...karkulahin po natin. We will go
down. We cannot satisfy. We cannot allow all. We will
again make the selection. Whether it will be two or three
or five or ten, we certainly will have to lay down certain
criteria for the purpose of identifying the political parties
which are authorized to appoint the principal watchers.
So, we are in the same rut; we are in the same problem.

On the other hand, if in order to attain equality, we
remove this guaranty, then it is a choice between these
two things.

I'mean, ito bang additional guaranty na ito in order to
guarantee the genuineness and authenticity of the election
returns, a proper price to pay in the name of equality,
which, after all, cannot be attained?

Senator Guingona. Let us go to the criteria, Mr.
President.

Criteria No. 1. It says: The track record of the said
parties or coalition or groups that now compose them on
the basis of merger, union, or consolidation, in the 1987
election,

That would mean that the Partido ng Masang Pilipino
of Senator Estrada would not fall within this criteria.

Senator Gonzales. Necessarily, if one is a new-
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comer in politics, he accepts the reality. On the other
hand, there are political parties which are existing and
organized after the 1987 election but composed of merg-
ers or consolidations of different political parties.

Now, if a political party, although newly organized,
can prove that it actually fall within this criteria, then
there is no question why it will not be applicable to them.

Senator Guingona. There are, I understand, more
than 100 political parties--

Senator Gonzales. So, we are told, Mr. President.

Senator Guingona. --duly registered, and many of
them are not the result of unions or mergers or coalition
but an individual product of...

Senator Gonzales. Yes, Mr. President.

Senator Guingona. So, under that criteria, if they
have not participated in the 1987 election, they would be
excluded under this criteria?

Senator Gonzales. No way, Mr. President.
Senator Guingona. They would not be?
Senator Gonzales. No.

Senator Guingona. Would PDP Laban be qualified
under this criteria?

Senator Gonzales. Yes, because PDP Laban as a
component of the ruling coalition, participated in the
1987 election. It fielded candidates in 1987, and won a
number of seats in the Senate. And under the second
criteria, there are also governors, vice-governors, mayors
and vice-mayors who belong to the PDP Laban. I think
that any political party complying with this criteria would
be eligible for purposes of election. Ang kuwestiyon la-
mang, who has a better record?

Senator Guingona. The LDP came into being only
in 1988, I understand.

Senator Gonzales. That is correct. It was born out
of merger between the Lakas Ng Bansa, which is the
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political party that, on the basis of certificates of candi-
dacy had fielded the most number of officials. But it
merged with the, what I would call the Cojuangco Wing
of the PDP Laban, if that term is acceptable. So, it has
been born out of merger.

Senator Guingona. The other Cojuangco organized
his own party. That party would not qualify under this
first criteria.

Senator Gonzales. How is that, Mr. President?

Senator Guingona. The other Cojuangco organized
another political party.

Senator Gonzales. As I have said, Mr. President,
itatanong lamang natin: First, did they fall under this
criteria? And second, assuming that they do fall-- be-
cause it may happen that five political parties or coalition
of parties have this criteria, but who has the best and the
second best record of them for purposes of determining
what political parties should be entitled to appointment of
party watchers.

Senator Guingona. I understand, Mr. President.
The only thing is that there seems to be a basic difference
between treating all parties equally and the proposal to
treat them differently because under this system, we
would be actually promoting and reverting to the two-
party system.

Senator Gonzales. In fact, probably, it is a matter of
choice. I think, some parties, with good reason, have
advocated a return to the two-party system. There is
nothing really wrong in that. But then this is far because
until we restore the party inspectors, then certainly it
cannot be truly said that there is indeed a definite direc-
tion to return to two-party system. We must also change
other compositions. For example, the composition of the
Electoral Tribunal of the Senate, or of the House of
Representatives, or of the Commission on Appointments.

In short, not a single thing would actually restore the
two-party system. There must really be a conscious,
deliberate, effort to restore it by actually making them
part and parcel of the very structure of our Government.

Senator Guingona. We were under the impression

that the 1987 Constitution, Mr. President, precisely, did
away with the two-party system to promote a multiparty
system.

Senator Gonzales. It does not mean that all political
parties--and the Gentleman said that there are 100 of
them--would all be entitled to have a watcher who will
authenticate the official returns.

Senator Guingona. We have our reservations there.

Senator Gonzales. Yes, Mr. President. In fact, we
are inviting additional criteria. Or, if the Gentleman has a
better suggestion, we are willing to listen.

Senator Guingona. The political parties are entitled
to receive copies of the certificates of canvass, in addition
to the five copies provided in the next succeeding section,
which are distributed accordingly. Therefore, these are
limited to dominant administration party and the domi-
nant opposition parties. '

Senator Gonzales. No, Mr. President, because
among the five, the fourth and the fifth copies are all
party copies. They are deemed to be delivered to a
representative of the majority party and the dominant
opposition party or coalition, as the case may be. Actu-
ally, the sixth and the seventh copies are additional copies
and this is what I see would be a solution to the problem
posed by some members of this Body, na mientras mas
maraming political parties ang nakakatanggap ng copies
of the returns, the better.

Yes, I subscribe to that, except that, again, we are
limited by technology to only seven legible copies of the
certificate of canvass as well as the election returns.

Senator Guingona. Is it possible to have two sets so
that in the realities of things there are six or seven major
parties who vie for office?

Senator Gonzales. Mr. President, I am just afraid
the evil that will result therefrom will be greater than the
objectives sought to be realized, because I have quite an
experience over election matters.

Even while I was working in the law office of the
Senate President, I had been handling for the office many
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election protests. Ang ginagawa po nila, sapagkat hindi
madidiing sumulat ang mga maestra, they prepare it in
two copies. So, they prepare the first, pagkatapos ay
ililipat, kokopyahin doon sa second copies, sa second set.
Doon na nagkakaroon ng diperensiya. Wittingly and
unwittingly, dahil marahil sa kapaguran nila, ang
nangyayari ay kinokopya na lamang natin, nagkakamali
pa tayo roon sa ating kinokopya.

That is why, I am saying that probably, the evils that
would result would be greater than the objectives sought
to be realized.

Senator Guingona. The seven copies, technologi-
cally speaking, are the only copies that can be produced.

Senator Gonzales. According to the COMELEC,
under the present state of technology as available now,
Mr. President.

Senator Guingona. We will try to come up with the
technological aspect.

Senator Gonzales. Yes. I hope the Gentleman can,
Mr. President.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, it is already
seven o’clock. I'have more questions to ask, but I would
justlike to reserve...

The President Pro Tempore. I just would like to
ask one question with respect to-the two principal watch-
ers, one representing the majority party.,

Senator Gonzales. Yes, Mr. President.

The President Pro Tempore. Is that concept of
majority party a constant concept? Is it possible that a
majority party may split up during the campaign?

Senator Gonzales. I think it will have to be deter-
mined at the time the COMELEC decides on this particu-
larissue.

The President Pro Tempore. Supposing that after
the decision of the COMELEC, something happens to
that so-called majority party?

t
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Senator Gonzales. Mr. President, I think when a
proper petition is filed before the COMELEC, they will
have to reapply. -

The President Pro Tempore. In other words, it is
not meant to be a constant concept?

Senator Gonzales. We have to review it and deter-
mine whether or not the resorting parts of the same still
comply with the criteria set forth under this bill.

The President Pro Tempore. The Majority Floor
Leader.

SUSPENSION OF CONSIDERATION
OF SENATE BILL NO. 1861

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that we
suspend consideration of this measure.

The President Pro Tempore. Is there any objec-
tion? [Silence] Hearing none, the motion is approved.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, there is an Addi-
tional Reference of Business.

The President Pro Tempore. The Secretary will
please read the additional Reference of Business.

ADDITIONAL REFERENCE OF BUSINESS

MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT OF THE
PHILIPPINES

The Secretary.
27 August 1991
Dear Senate President Salonga,

I have the honor to forward herewith one (1)
certified true copy and twenty-two (22) additional
copies of the Treaty of Friendship, Cooperation and
Security Between the Government of the Philippines
and the Government of the United States signed in
Manila on 27 August 1991 by the Secretary of
Foreign Affairs Raul S. Manglapus and United States
Ambassador Frank Wisner. Also enclosed is a letter
dated 23 August 1991 of President George Bush
listing the undertakings of the United States
Government pursuant to the Treaty.

The Treaty, together with its three
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tained in the report.

Abstaining: Senator Mercado - I abstain in view of
the fact that I made the exposé. This, however, does
not mean that I do not support the findings of the
Committee.

Sponsors: Senators Tafiada and Mercado

The President. To the Calendar for Ordinary Busi-
ness.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, to avail himself
of the Personal Privilege Hour, I ask that we recognize
Senator Mercado.

The President. Senator Mercado is recognized.

QUESTION OF PRIVILEGE OF
SENATOR MERCADO
(On the Issue of Double Titling at DAR)

Senator Mercado. Mr. President, I will not take
very long. I rise on a question of Personal Privilege.

In several newspapers, namely, The Manila Times
and The Globe, 1 believe, there are some letters to the
Editor claiming that this Representation has gone cold on
the issue of ‘‘Double Titling’’ at the DAR which I have
exposed on the Floor through a privilege speech.

I would like to go on record that I am still pursuing
the case, although the matter has yet to be scheduled by
the Blue Ribbon Committee. I have not in any way
indicated that I am not going to have the case investi-
gated, and I would like to inquire from the Chairman of
the Blue Ribbon Committee when the same shall be
scheduled.

I do understand that the Blue Ribbon Committee has
just finished a Committee Report on one of the cases that
I broaght to its attention--the matter of Press Secretary
Buddy Gomez. I would like to inquire when the DAR
case can be scheduled.

Senator Tafiada. Mr. President.

The President. Senator Tafiada is recognized.

Senator Tafiada. Mr. President, I would like to
confirm for the record that Senator Mercado has been
following up with this Representation as to when the
Blue Ribbon Committee could schedule its investigation
on the matter which he spoke about. We have already
conducted an initial inquiry. We have already secured
some of the documents that we need to start our formal
inquiry into the matter. It just so happened that the
Committee has been besieged with so many complaints
that it has not been able to put this in its Calendar. ButI
would like to assure the distinguished Senator that, per-
haps, after September 16 , 1991, we will be able to start
our formal inquiry on the matter.

The President. Why September 16 yet?

Senator Tafiada. That is the fateful date, Mr.
President, when our country will finally know what the
decision will be of this Body on the signed Base Treaty
that was sent to us by the President last night.

The President. Is that the magnificent obsession of
the Committee?

The Majority Floor Leader.

BILL ON SECOND READING
Senate Bill No. 1861 - Synchronized Elections
(Continuation)

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that we
resume consideration of Senate Bill No. 1861 as reported
out under Committee Report No. 1373.

The President. Resumption of the consideration of
Senate Bill No. 1861 is now in order.

Senator Guingona. We are in the period of interpel-
lations. I ask that we recognize Senator Gonzales.

The President. Senator Gonzales is recognized.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I was the one
interpellating Senator Gonzales last night, but to give the
others a chance to interpellate, may I just make my reser-

vation to continue the same later on.

The President. The Chair recalls that it asked a
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certain question on the term ‘‘the ruling majority.”” If I
recall last night, I think, the Chair posed a question on the
concept of ruling majority.

Now, when is the COMELEC scheduled to make that
determination as to which is the ruling majority?

Senator Gonzales. Mr. President, there is no defi-
nite period provided for in this bill, but then, the duty of
determining the majority party or coalition or dominant
opposition party or coalition is lodged upon the COME-
LEC.

Therefore, I believe that the said period, as well as the
implementing details concerning the same, can be pro-
vided through the grant of rule-making power to the
COMELEC under this bill.

The President. In the distinguished Sponsor’s view,
should that determination be made before the start of the
election period?

Senator Gonzales. It would be better, Mr. Pres-
ident, if the COMELEC make such a determination be-
fore the election period because, understandably, during
the election period, there will be many other problems
which the COMELEC will have to be confronted with.

Furthermore, it is also to the interest of the political
parties to know in advance the determination of these
parties which shall be entitled to the appointment of
watchers and their substitutes, because it also requires

' some time to select and, thereafter, make the nomination
of the official watchers to be proposed by the political
party, as well as their substitutes.

Senator Enrile. Mr. President.
The President. Senator Enrile is recognized.

Senator Enrile. If the Chair is finished, I would like
to ask some questions.

Mr. President, I would like to be enlightened on
certain matters, if I would be favored with answers to a
few questions?

Senator Gonzales. Gladly, to the Minority Floor
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Leader, Mr. President.

Senator Enrile. I would like to pursue the thrust of
the questions of the Chair.

Now, does the distinguished Sponsor agree that in a
democratic system such as we have, there is always a
ruling majority and minority operating especially within
the Government of the Republic?

Senator Gonzales. I believe that that is one of the
principal features of a representative Government.

Senator Enrile. And that we are actually a represen-
tative Government?

Senator Gonzales. I would like to believe that ours
is a representative democracy.

Senator Enrile. Yes, and that we are bound by this
norm of at least a dichotomy between a ruling majority
and opposition minority.

Senator Gonzales. I think so. In fact, the language
of the bill so explicitly provides it and, historically, that
was the intendment of the original provision of the
Omnibus Election Code from which this provision of the
bill has been lifted.

Senator Enrile. Actually, this matter was easily
identifiable under the 1935 Constitution, which operated
in our country for a long, long time, because at that time,
there were two major political parties in the country, and
these two major political parties were identified as the LP
and the NP, or the NP and the LP.

Senator Gonzales. That is correct, especially under
the 1935 Constitution, which actually recognized and
strengthened the two-party system.

Senator Enrile. And that in spite of the presence of
these two major parties then, there were also smaller
parties operating within our democratic polity.

If I remember correctly, there was the Citizens Party
of the distinguished father of a distinguished Member of
our Senate, and I think there were other smaller parties,
like the Frente Popular. Before that time, there was the
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Democratic Alliance; then there was the PPP of Manuel
Manahan and company.

What was it, Mr. President?

Senator Gonzales. It is called the PPP, Mr.
President. ,

Senator Enrile. Yes, Mr. President.

Senator Gonzales. There was also the Grand Alli-
ance, for a time, with the then Foreign Secretary Romulo
as the head of the ticket. We also had a Democratic
Party. Aside from them, there were smaller political
parties.

Senator Enrile. But, nevertheless, it has always
been an unwritten law in our republican representative
system of government that there was a majority party and
aminority party.

Senator Gonzales. As I have said, this is an essen-
tial feature of a representative democracy.

Senator Enrile. And that, actually, the majority
party is represented not only in the Executive Department
of government, but also in the Congress of the Philip-
pines.

Senator Gonzales. Depending upon the results of
the election, but I do know that however weakened or
depleted the opposition party may be, I cannot recall of a
Congress where there were no minority members.

Senator Enrile. Yes, and that normally-- at least
from the viewpoint of the history of our Republic--so
unlike in other lands, the identification of the so-called
‘“‘Administration’’ starts from Malacafiang, with the
President sitting there, and with these political supporters
in the Congress. Does the Gentleman agree with it?

Senator Gonzales. That is the usual norm, Mr.
President, because historically, the President belongs to a
political party, and that he or she is considered to be the
titular head of that party.

Senator Enrile. And the exemplification of that
ruling of a majority party and opposition party, at least in

our deliberative assemblies, is the fact that the ruling
majority holds all the key positions in the various com-
mittees, and those who are not are actually representing
the minority voice. Is this correct?

Senator Gonzales. The practice is that in committee
assignments, the Committee Chairmen are always nomi-
nated by the party having the largest number of votes in
that Chamber.

Senator Enrile. Now, under the present Administra-
tion that we have, was it not a fact of our political life that
the present Members of Congress, outside of those who
are identified with the opposition parties, were actually
the candidates of the incumbent President for the posi-
tions they now hold?

Senator Gonzales. Yes. At least, as far as the House
of Representatives is concerned, the political divisions
are quite clear, because we have there already a determi-
nation of which is the majority party and the ruling party,
that is why we have the Majority Floor Leader and the
Minority Floor Leader.

However, in the Senate, we still maintain the concept
of a ruling coalition. That does not, however, prevent
this Chamber from recognizing a minority therein. Al-
though, in most instances, many of our Members in the
ruling coalition behave as if we belong to the opposition,
nonetheless, the Chamber has recognized that there is an
opposition, that is why we have the distinguished Gentle-
man as the elected Minority Floor Leader.

Senator Enrile. That is what I was coming to. So
that, in effect, even here in our Chamber--and this is not
meant to cast any offensive idea or thought on anyone, I
am simply defining our political roles--except for two
memberships of this Chamber, all Members of the Cham-
ber were actually candidates of the Administration in the
election of 1987 for the Senate.

Senator Gonzales. I think that is a matter of histori-
cal record--that the ruling coalition fielded a complete
slate for 24 Senators. Of the 24 Senators, 23 were
elected, and two other elected Senators actually do not
belong to that slate.

Senator Enrile. Twenty-two out of 24 were elected
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as belonging to the coalition or Administration’s slate in
1987.

Senator Gonzales. That is correct.

Senator Enrile. It was because of that that these 22,
in the beginning of our term in the Senate, in effect,
constituted the ruling majority, although the other Sen-
ator who was not elected as a candidate of the Admini-
stration opted to join the ruling majority.

Senator Gonzales. That is correct. I think, as a
matter of record, that is the reason the committee chair-
manships are headed by Senators who belong to the rul-
ing coalition, and it continues notwithstanding the fact
that some of the Senators have resigned from their re-
spective political parties to join other political parties or
groups.

Senator Enrile. So that, as of this moment, it could
be said that, as far as the political alignments in the
country are concerned, there are actually only two politi-
cal groupings in the country. We have the dominant
ruling coalition and the dominant opposition political

party.

Senator Gonzales. If the distinguished Gentleman
will ask me as of now, then the answer must be in the
affirmative.

Senator Enrile. Would the distinguished Gentle-
man’s answer be changed if there should be a disagree-
ment and a breakup of the ruling coalition, so much so
that some of the Members of the coalition will now say
that we are an opposition? Would that declaration deter-
mine the character of a party as an opposition for pur-
poses of the Election Laws of this country? Or would
that not simply mean a factionalization of the ruling
coalition that came into power, by virtue of a mandate of
the Filipino people to act as the ruling majority?

Senator Gonzales. The trouble in answering the
Gentleman’s question--and I think I would beg his under-

* standing and indulgence on this particular matter--is that,
a coalition is composed of political parties or groups.
And the political groups or political parties, which are
components of the coalition, still retain their respective
identities. If there is a breakup of that coalition, then we
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note that there is a continuity in their respective political
identities. And a political party hitherto belonging to a
political coalition may decide to assume a different role--
the role of an opposition party. I think that is possible.

In fact, I know what the Gentleman is leading to. But
the trouble is that, I think, our task here is to 1ay down the
criteria, and then leave the determination of which of
these political parties comply with the criteria to the
Commission on Elections.

Senator Enrile. I would like to stop my interpella-
tion on this point and I would like to reserve the right to
continue at some later date to give others a chance.

Thank you, Mr. President,
Senator Gonzales. Thank you, Mr. President.

The President. Are there any further interpellations?
Senator Pimentel is recognized.

Senator Pimentel. Mr. President, will the Gentle-
man yield to a few questions?

Senator Gonzales. Gladly, and I am honored to be
interpellated by the distinguished leader from Mindanao.

Senator Pimentel. May we kindly just discuss the
matter of the distribution of certificates, election returns,
voters election certificates, et cetera.

Senator Gonzales. Yes, Mr. President.

Senator Pimentel. This has been touched upon by
the Majority Floor Leader, Senator Guingona. I can
understand why it was difficult for the Committee,
headed by the Gentleman, to accept the idea that, per-
haps, other parties which may not qualify as the dominant
opposition or the ruling party should likewise be entitled
to these election documents. The reason is that, techno-
logically, we do not have the capacity to do it in one
setting, in the sense that the eighth copy and copies after
the seventh copy, for example, would hardly be legible as
to be of no use actually to the groups to which these
copies will be furnished.

Senator Gonzales. That is a very fair statement of
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the position we have taken.

Senator Pimentel. But would it not be possible to
provide for two sets, for example, to compel the Commis-
sion on Elections and the board of election inspectors to
provide more than, let us say, two sets of copies with
seven pages each?

Senator Gonzales. The same proposition was made
by the Majority Floor Leader yesterday. This, in fact, has
been done by some boards of election inspectors in the
preparation of returns, considering that some of them
cannot make impressions up to the sixth or even seventh
page. So, what they they tried to do is to divide the set
into two and prepare the first set and thereafter copy it for
the second set. If that can be done to seven, certainly,
that can be done with respect to ten. That is really
logical.

But I pointed out the danger when I said that has been
productive of many errors and mistakes in the copying. I
mean, not through malice but because of so many factors
like fatigue, then oversight or a simple negligence, so
much so that we find there are not a few cases where there
are differences between two or more authentic copies of
the same election returns. That is the only point that we
have pointed out in connection with that proposal.

Senator Pimentel. What about the possibility of
limiting the distribution of these election returns, et ce-
tera to the Commission on Elections? In other words,
instead of giving election returns to the ruling party or the
dominant opposition party only, would it not be possible
to say ‘‘the copies shall be limited only to the Commis-
sion on Elections, and any party desiring to have a copy
should apply to the Commission on Elections to get cop-
ies thereof.”’

Senator Gonzales. Qur answer to that is that the
authentication here by the two principal watchers has
been adopted as an added measure to secure the genuine-
ness and authenticity of the election returns. In this
particular case, to do away with it just because we cannot
furnish all major political parties with copies of the elec-
tion returns might mean a terrible price to be paid as far
as the genuineness and authenticity of election returns in
the event that there be attempts to make substitutions or
intercalations or alterations thereon.

Senator Pimentel. We understand why there should
be some signatures of the political parties involved in the
election returns. But the net effect of allowing only the
dominant opposition party and the ruling party to have
this right to authenticate the election returns, for example,
is to actually straightjacket the constitutional provision.
So that instead of allowing the emergence of a multiparty
system, we are actually forcing two parties to be the
dominant parties involved in the electoral process to,
shall we say, dominate the entire election process,
thereby negating what, probably, is the constitutional
intent when it speaks of the emergence of as many parties
as possible.

Senator Gonzales. In fairness to the Commission on
Elections and the Gentleman’s Committee, there has been
no such intention or motive; but, as we have said, as far
as the returns are concerned, we are just limited by the
technological fact that under the present state of technol-
ogy in our country, increasing the number of returns to
more than seven might already be no longer practical,
because the eight and subsequent copies would no longer
be readable.

I brought up this matter to the Chairman of the
COMELEC personally, that if we can provide at least the
first four political parties copies of the return, I would
have preferred it. But the alternative that they pointed out
to me is that they will increase the number of the so-
called certificates of votes that the Commission will dis-
tribute to the board of election inspectors, because the
certificate of votes will be a certificate of the votes re-
ceived by candidates in that particular precinct, signed by
the Chairman and the members of the board of election
inspectors. In fact, we said that certificates of canvass are
very important political documents now.

Addressing the Gentleman’s concern, on our part, we
initiated this particular provision that instead of only five
copies of the certificate of canvass, seven copies be pre-
pared, and that the sixth and the seventh copies be fur-
nished the third and fourth ranking political parties.

At least, this is a demonstration that we are merely
limited by technology, but it is not really to achieve any
specitic purpose of reviving the two-party system.

Senator Pimentel. Now, what is the distribution
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system as far as certificates of votes are concerned?

Senator Gonzales. Any, Mr. President. Meaning,
the board of election inspectors is required by law to issue
certificates of votes, after the counting and the prepara-
tion of the returns, to the representatives or to the watch-
ers of the candidates or to the political parties who may
request for the same.

Senator Pimentel. In terms of probative value, what
is the difference between a certificate of canvass and a
certificate of votes?

Senator Gonzales. There is indeed a difference in
the sense that the certificate of canvass cannot be used in
the same manner as the election returns, but it will actu-
ally give a candidate a means to determine later if there
had been changes or alterations in the election returns
during the canvass, because the certificate of canvass will
show that a candidate receives so much votes. However,
if during the canvass it would appear that the same
candidate received a different number of votes, then he is
already put on notice that something had gone wrong and,
therefore, the candidate can now pursue the same in mat-
ters of correction or alteration or amendment of returns in
accordance with this procedure provided by law.

Senator Pimentel. Now, if the board of election
inspectors can provide certificates of canvass to just
about any political party that requests it, why is it that the
same principle cannot apply to election returns?

Senator Gonzales. Yes, because the certificate of
canvass need not be prepared in so many copies. In fact,
what will be issued to the representative or watcher of a
candidate or a political party is already the original of the
certificate of votes so requested.

Now, probably, what can be done is that, we can
tighten the safeguards and guarantees as far as the prepa-
ration of the certificates of votes is concerned and give
them a probative value which might be the same as that of
an election return.

Senator Pimentel. Yes. If we can find a formula
there, then, maybe, we can do away with the requirement
that the dominant opposition party, the ruling party only,
will be entitled to election returns, and allow them the
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same privilege as far as the certificates of canvass and the
certificates of votes are concerned. Meaning to say, pare-
pareho silang lahat na entitled sa certificates of canvass.
We can use these to question the results of the election in
our precinct or wherever they are really relevant.

The only reason we are trying to raise this issue is
that, we feel that it is unfair for parties, particularly those
who worked so hard to bring about this Government that

we are now trying to preserve. And yet in the apportion-

ment of the rights of the people participating, precisely,
in the process to continue upholding that Government, a
particular group may be deprived of the rights being
enjoyed by others. That is the main concern that we have.

Senator Gonzales. We are aware of that and we
actually feel with the Gentleman, on that particular mat-
ter, having been together in our struggle during the long,
dark night. But we thought that party copies have a
history; that it was a long fight before the political parties
were given party copies of the election returns. And that
was considered as a step forward towards a clean, honest,
and orderly election.

I do not know whether we are already prepared to do -
away with it just because it is just impossible to treat

equally all political parties.

Senator Pimentel. If we can devise a formula
whereby certificates of canvass, certificates of votes,
would have practically equal probative value in contest-
ing election returns, then, obviously we can have a proce-
dure where the COMELEC may furnish everybody a
copy of the certificates of canvass which is...

Senator Gonzales. As I have said, in fact, if the
Gentleman will recall, immediately it came to my mind
when he explains his opposition thereto that probably this
may be the solution. In which case, we have to add more
safeguards and more guarantees in the preparation of the
certificates of votes, and give them, if not an equal, a
presumptive probative value like election returns, like,
for example, prima facie. Because the fact that it is not
given the same probative value, is merely a matter of
law.

Senator Pimentel. Yes, that is why if we can change
it. '
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Senator Gonzales. And thereforé, that can be
changed through this legislation.

Senator Pimentel. Yes, thank you very much for
that opinion.

On the matter -of the election period, I am of the
understanding that the President and the Vice-President
are given 90 days?

Senator Gonzales. The campaign period before the
day of the election.

Senator Pimentel. Yes, exclusive of the...

Senator Gonzales. Three days, a day before, as well
as Maundy Thursday and Good Friday.

Senator Pimentel. Yes, but exclusive of the nomi-
nation iyong convention.

So, probably, this is one area where we can also
arrive at a compromise. Maybe we can say that the 90-
day period shall already include the nomination process
because, normally, I would think that after nomination,
the nominees will already start to campaign. If we pro-
vide for a 30-day nomination process, in addition to the
90 days campaign period, it will certainly be awkward
that a pair of presidential and vice-presidential candidates
already nominated by the party will have to wait for the
90-day period before they can start campaigning.

Senator Gonzales. We are faced now with the
Supreme Court decision to the effect that the campaign
period, together with all the political activities ensuing
therefrom, should be circumscribed within the election
period as provided for in the Constitution, which means
90 days before the election, at most and except in special
cases, as may be determined by the COMELEC.

If the Gentleman says that immediately after the
nomination the campaign period should already begin, to
comply with this decision, we will make the holding of
the political convention also the beginning of the cam-
paign period.

Senator Pimentel. Of the 90-day period.

Senator Gonzales. In short, we are limited to 90
days. We have been quite long in the practices of politi-
cal parties, but we know that after nomination, a candi-
date who wins the nomination as the official standard
bearer of his party makes so many preparations in order
to be able to get his campaign off the ground. He would
need some time before he can actively engage in the
political campaign. That is why, the political conven-
tions for the nomination or selection of its official candi-
date usually precedes by an appreciable period of time,
the campaign period.  Especially for the candidates for
President and Vice-President, I do not know how they
will really act. We shall provide that the campaign period
should be, at least, 90 days or should be held not earlier
than 90 days before the day of the election.

I think we would have the benefit of the Gentleman’s
views on this matter, since it is a known fact that the
Gentleman, I would say ‘‘amen’’, has been considered as
one of the presidentiables. I think he will make a worthy
President of our Republic.

Senator Pimentel. Thank you. But the thing that I
would like to emphasize is that, on the assumption that in
the month preceding the 90-day period a nominee is
already nominated by his party for, let us say, the pres-
idency or the vice presidency, the tendency, of course, is
that from that very day, the campaign starts for the candi-
date. Whether he likes it or not, people will be going to
his place; he will be going out on speaking engagements
talking about his candidacy, so that, in effect, these extra
30 days are actually an additional campaign period. That
is not really too bad for the candidates. But, I was just -
thinking that, perhaps, to make the fact coincide with the
intention, the campaign period should already cover the
period during which nominations are made. That is the
thrust of my observation,

Senator Gonzales. The Gentleman will recall that
under Republic Act No. 7056 which we have approved,
the period for the holding of political conventions shall
not be earlier than 180 days before the day of the election.
In the COMELEC submission, it is 120 days before the
election,

Now, trying to find out a compromise, in this bill, we

have reduced it to 150 days before the day of the election.
But, as long as the presidentiables can agree on this
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matter, we really will not have very strong objections
thereto.

Kayo rin ang aming injisip. Baka kayo masyadong
mahirapan. Sa amin ay walang problema because the
campaign period for Senators--at iyon po lamang naman
ang kaya naming takbuhan--is 60 days. The holding of
the convention is 90 days. Tamang-tama po iyon sa
inyong iniisip.

Pero, para sa inyong naghahangad ng pinakamataas
na katungkulan sa pamahalaan na karangalan at karapatan
ng sambayanang Pilipinong ipagkaloob, kayo ang aming
iniisip.

The President. Palagay ko po ay karapat-dapat kayo
sa pinakamataas na katungkulan sa ilalim ng ating Pama-
halaan.

Senator Gonzales. Huwag po naman ninyong pata-
bain ang aking puso.

The President. But in any event, the Chair would
like to ask the question: Is this not subject to the result of
the Motion for Clarification of the Decision that is now
pending in the Supreme Court?

Senator Gonzales. That is correct, and we hope that
before the Conference Committee finally submits its re-
port on this bill, that Motion for Clarification shall have
already been resolved by the Supreme Court so that we
can comply with its provisions.

The President. If the Supreme Court says that the
time for holding the convention should be embraced
within that 90-day period, there is no latitude for us.

Senator Gonzales. Yes, there is no choice.

The President. But if the Supreme Court says that
this may be held outside and ahead of the election or

campaign period, then there is a latitude for us.

Senator Gonzales. The Senate President cannot be
more right.

Senator Pimentel. Shall we then go to the matter
of...
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I'yield to the Majority Floor Leader.

SUSPENSION OF CONSIDERATION
OF SENATE BILL NO. 1861

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, today we agreed
tohave a caucus at four o’clock.

So, with the permission of the two Gentlemen, with
reservation on the part of Senator Pimentel to continue
his interpellation, I move that we suspend consideration
of this measure.

The President.' Is there any objection? [Silence]
There being none, the motion is approved.

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

Let us have our caucus now on the procedliral aspects
of the bases’ treaty. The session is suspended, if there is
no objection. [There was none.]

Itwas 4:22 p.m.
RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION
At 6:30 p.m., the session was resumed.

The President. The session is resumed.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that all
the Members of the Senate be members of the Commit-
tee on Foreign Relations. In accordance with that, we
ask that the Rules be suspended for the hearings on the
issue of the proposed Treaty.

The President. Shall we restate that motion because
it will have the effect of amending the Rules of the
Senate?

SUSPENSION OF THE RULES

Senator Guingona. I move that we suspend the

Rules, Mr. President,

The President. Is there any objection? [Silence]
Hearing none, the motion is approved.



Monday, September 2, 1991 RECORD OF

THE SENATE

Bill on Synchronized Elections

hanapbuhay. Ang panukalang-batas pong ito ang
magagamit na susi upang mabuksan ang nakapinid na
pinto at maiwaksi ang balakid na matagal na nilang
inaasam-asam na mawala.

Sinasaklaw po nito ang mga lugar na urbanisado at
magiging urbanisado na angkop para sa pabahay pam-
pamayanan, kabilang na ang mga tinukoy na areas for
priority development, zonal development sites, slum im-
provement and rehabilitation sites at iba pang kauring
lugar na maaaring ideklara ng Pangulo ng Pilipinas na
saklaw ng programa. :

Hindi ko na po ilalahad ang mga bahagi o compo-
nents ng programa. Ito po ay nakasaad sa ating panuka-
lang batas.

" Habang idinudulog ang pagtangkilik sa panukalang-
batas na ito, dumadagsa naman ang mga mungkahi mula
sa iba’t ibang sektor, kabilang na ang Task Force ng mga
maralitang taga-lungsod at ng mga taong nakauunawa sa
mga usapin hinggil sa real estate at pagmamay-ari ng lupa
upang lubusan nating maisaalang-alang at mapahusay pa
ang panukalang batas na ito.

Atin po ring inilagay sa panukalang-batas kung saan
tayo hahanap ng pondo upang matustusan ang isang ma-
lawak na programang pambahay para sa ating mga
kababayan. Naniniwala tayo na sa pamamagitan ng paba-
hay pampamayanan at pagpapaunlad ng lupa ay lubos
nating mapapasigla ang pagsasalin ng higit pang poder sa
mga local government units na siyang itinatadhana ng
mapagtitibay na Local Government Code.

G. Pangulo at mga minamahal kong Kasamahan,
patungo na tayo sa ika-21 siglo at naniniwala tayo na
matututuhan din natin ang angkop at makatwirang pag-
aari at paglalaan sa ating mga lupain. Ang panukalang-
batas na ito, Senate Bill No. 234, ang sagot ng ating
Senado sa malawak na problema sa pabahay sa ating
bansa na ngayon ay dinaranas ng milyun-milyong marali-
tang taga-lungsod.

Inihahain ko po ito sa ating Senado at nawa, sa tulong
ng Poong Maykapal, ay mapagtibay natin ang Senate Bill
No. 234, ang unang hakbang upang mapalaya natin ang
maralitang tagalungsod sa balon ng kahirapan, lalung-
lalo na iyong mga walang lupa at bahay.

Maraming salamat po, at nagpapasalamat ang marali-
tang taga-lungsod. [Applause]

The Presiding Officer [Senator Mercado]. The Ma-
jority Floor Leader is recognized.

SUSPENSION OF CONSIDERATION
OF SENATE BILL NO. 234

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that we
suspend consideration of this measure.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Mercado). Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the motion is
approved.

Senator Guingona. We were supposed to call for
the Dangerous Drugs Act but in view of the fact that both
Proponents are tired, we are moving it for tomorrow
instead.

BILL ON SECOND READING
Senate Bill No. 1861--Synchronized Elections
(Continuation)

So, I move that we resume consideration of Senate
Bill No. 1861, as reported out under Committee Report
No. 1373,

The Presiding Officer [Senator Mercado]. Resump-
tion of the consideration of the measure is now in order.

Senator Guingona. We are still in the period of
interpellations. I ask that we recognize Senator Gonzales.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Mercado]. Senator
Gonzales is recognized.

Are there any other questions or interpellations on
this measure? [Silence]

Senator Guingona. I was just wondering, if the
Sponsor will agree that we terminate the interpellations
with the understanding that interpellations will be al-
lowed during the period of amendments. Anyway, we are
consolidating all the amendments we talked about in the
caucus.
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Senator Gonzales. That has been my plea ever since
and we would appreciate it if we terminate the period of
interpellations, and go into the period of amendments,
without prejudice, of course, to ask questions on the
proposed amendments.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Mercado]. There is
a motion to terminate the period of interpellations on this
measure, Senate Bill No. 1861.

Is there any objection to the motion? [Silence] There
being none, the period of interpellations is terminated.

We are now in the period of Committee Amend-
ments.

Senator Guingona. Yes, Mr. President. I think the
distinguished Author will distribute copies.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Mercado]. Do we
have any Committee amendments to be read into the
Record?

COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Senator Gonzales. We have the following Commit-
tee Amendments, Mr, President, and I could read them
into the record.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Mercado]. Please
proceed.

Senator Gonzales. On page 4, Section 4, line 10,
change the last word “‘an’’ to A.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Mercado]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Gonzales. On line 11, delete the words
‘‘actual bonafide’’. The rationale for that, is that these
terms would impose requirements more stringent than
existing jurisprudence, and in the case of Fai Pon vs.
Quirino, Lim vs. Pelaez, and other cases, ‘ ‘residence’’ for
purposes of suffrage have been interpreted to mean a
legal or constructive residence. That is the place where a
person has his established home, and when he departs he
intends to return,
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It is always better that we shall have consistency in
our statutes regarding residence and registered voter so
that there will also be consistency in legislative meaning,
Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Mercado]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Gonzales. On page 4, between lines 18 and
19, insert a new paragraph to read as follows:

THE ABOVE APPORTIONMENT OR DISTRICT-
ING NOTWITHSTANDING THE SECTORAL REP-
RESENTATIVES FOR WOMEN, WORKERS AND
OTHER SEGMENTS IN THE SANGGUNIANG BAYAN
AS PROVIDED BY LAW SHALL BE ELECTED AT
LARGE BY THE QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE
MUNICIPALITY CONCERNED. ACCORDINGLY,
THREE ADDITIONAL SPACES SHALL BE PRO-
VIDED FOR THEM IN THE OFFICIAL BALLOTS.

We have to insert this provision because, as we had
pointed out last time, under the proposed Local Govern-
ment Code--and this is already almost through and near-
ing the signing stage--there are three sectoral representa-
tives in the Sangguniang Bayan. They are the Sectoral
Representative for Women, the Sectoral Representative
for Workers--meaning agricultural or industrial workers--
and another Sectoral Representative for the other sectors
like the Cultural Communities.

We have really tried very hard to fit their election in
the system of apportionment that we have previously
adopted; however, we cannot do so. The only remedy
left to us is to propose that they be elected at large by the
qualified electors of the municipality.

In this connection, this proposal even has been initi-
ated by Senator Rasul, who is most concerned about the
women representative in the Sangguniang Bayan.

Senator Osmeiia. Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Mercado]. Senator
Osmeiia is recognized.

Senator Osmefia. Mr. President, will the Sponsor
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just yield to a few questions on this matter?
Senator Gonzales. Yes, Mr. President.

Senator Osmefia. Who will determine whether a
sectoral representative representing the workers is an
industrial or an agricultural worker?

Senator Gonzales. I have read the pertinent provi-
sions of the Local Government Code. The same has not
been provided.

Senator Osmeiia. It has not been provided.

Senator Gonzales. Yes. In fact, I would think that
this is merely a temporary measure awaiting for a defini-
tion of law as to how they are to be determined, whether
or not it is right that those who are not members of their
respective sectors should be allowed to vote for them; but
until such time, we have to provide for the election of
sectoral representatives.

Senator Osmeifia. How about the third sectoral rep-

resentative? Who is going to identify the sector?

Senator Gonzales. In the pertinent provision of the
proposed Local Government Code, it merely says ‘‘and/
or other sectors like cultural communities,’’ et cetera.

So, I think, we have to fill in these matters of details
and I do not think that we should wait for the same, but
instead put them in place before we enact this synchroni-
zation law, because that would incur much delay.

I expect that there will be enacted a detailed legisla-
tion concerning these sectoral representatives, as pro-
vided for in the Local Government Code.

Senator Osmefia. Thank you, Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Mercado]. Is there
any objection to this Committee amendment? [Silence]
Hearing none, the amendment is approved.

Senator Guingona. With the permission of the dis-
tinguished Sponsor.

Senator Gonzales. Yes, Mr. President.

Senator Guingona. May I suggest that all the pro-
posed amendments be embodied already in the new bill.

Senator Gonzales. Yes, we are going to do that, but
I thought that we should first approve it one by one; but
if not, then that would make the work of the Committee
easier. We can incorporate all of these amendments and
prepare a version that would already incorporate the
same. We will probably be ready by tomorrow.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Mercado]. If there
are no objections, then we can approach this particular
procedure in that manner. We will have a new draft,
incorporating the Committee amendments, and approve
the same before tackling the individual amendments.

Senator Guingona. Inview of that, I move that we
suspend consideration of this measure.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Mercado]. Senator
Romulo.

Senator Romulo. Mr. President, I had raised my
hand to interpellate, because I was on the phone and the
Committee amendments were proposed, without preju-
dice to the interpellation continuing. May we know if we
can interpellate now or it would be tomorrow?

Senator Gonzales. We are willing to subject our-
selves to the pleasure of our esteemed Colleague.

Senator Romulo. I am given the signal that mabuti
raw siguro bukas na. So, bukas na po.

Senator Gonzales. Medyo pagod na nga tayo dahil
“buong maghapon tayo naririto. Pinakamahirap po sa
lahat iyong nakaupo at nakikinig.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Mercado). At any
rate, we will have also the Committee amendments incor-
porated in the new draft, and it will be submitted to the
Body.

SUSPENSION OF CONSIDERATION
OF SENATE BILL NO. 1861

Senator Guingona. With that, Mr. President, I
move that we suspend consideration of this measure.
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The Majority Floor Leader.

' CONFERENCE COMMITTEE ON SENATE BILL NO.

76/HOUSE BILL NO. 11281
(Organ Donation)

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that the
following Members of the Senate constitute a panel for
the Conference Committee on the disagreeing provisions
of Senate Bill No. 76 and House Bill No. 11281, the
Organ Donation bills: Senators Angara, Romulo, Mer-
cado, Lina and Enrile.

The President. Is there any objection? [Silence]
Hearing none, the motion is approved.

BILL ON SECOND READING
Senate Bill No. 1861-Synchronized
Elections on May 11,1992
(Continuation)

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that we.
resume consideration of Senate Bill No. 1861 as reported
out under Committee Report-No. 1373,

The President. Resumption of consideration of Sen-
ate Bill No. 1861 is now in order.

Senator Guingona. We are still in the period of -

amendments, Mr. President. I ask ‘that we recognize
Senator Saguisag, who has been requested, in the absence
of Senator Gonzales, to continue sponsoring the same.

The President. Senator Saguisag is recognized.
Sénator Maceda. Mr. President.
The President. Senator Maceda is recognized.

MANIFESTATION OF SENATOR MACEDA
(Status of Senator Gonzales’ trip)

Senator Maceda. Mr. President, just for the record,
may I know the official status of Senator Gonzales? Is he
on mission and to where?

The President. He was supposed to go to the confer-
ence in S_t;asbourg; France, and then to the IPU Confer-

Manifestation of Sen. Maceda

ence in Chile,

Senator Maceda. But the newspapers in Mala-

cafiang claims that he was,sent by Malacafiang to Wash-.

ington.

The President. I have not received any - official
notice yet to that effect.

Senator Maceda. Was his trip, Mr. President, fund-
ed by the Senate?

The President. As far as I know, that Washington

trip is not funded by the Senate,

Senator Maceda. Well, in which case Mr. Pres-
ident, may we request that the Senate President clarlty the
actual status of the trip, and the expenses of Senator
Gonzales?

The President.  All right. Senator Saguisag is
recognized. '

Senator Saguisag. Maraming salamat po.

Noon pong huling araw na nagtagpo tayo at nagpu-
long dito, September 16, 1991, nakiusap si Senador
Gonzales na kung hindi pa siya makababalik sa araw na
ito, paxai hindi naman mabimbin ang napakahalagang pa-

" nukalang-batas na ito, ay ako na é'ng mag-isponsor nito.

He has this note, saying, “Hopefully this will be the final

version.” Mayroon pa pong underscoring iyong “final.”

I think everybody is aware that we have very little
time left. So, ke was hoplng that very quickly, or very
expeditiously, we could approve this, and that those of us
‘who .may have very strong feehngs about certain provi-
sions it contains may be named to the Conference Com-
Inittee without prejudice to questions that may still be
asked this week, Mr. President.

I understand, for instance, that Senator Maceda has
some...

‘The President. Senator Maceda is recognized.

Senator Maceda. Will the Acting Chairman of the
Committee on Electoral Reforms and People’s Participa-
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tion answer a few questions?

Senator Saguisag. Titingnan ko po kung makakaya
ko. Pero hindi po ako in acting capacity. Ako po ay
napag-utusan lamang.

Senator Maceda. I will withdraw the description
and, therefore, say de facto Chairman.

Mr. President, may we know whether the proposed
bill, as revised, as of September 2, 1991, contains any
provisions which, in effect, might run contrary to the
Supreme Court decision which invalidated our previous
bill?

Senator Saguisag. One that may conceivably come
to mind is whether it is the business of the Legislature to
be setting the election period. There is the view that,
maybe, under the Constitution, that is the task of the
Commission on Elections, Mr. President. Other than
that, I cannot, at the moment, recall any that might have
been designed to thwart the intent of the ruling.

Ang punto lamang naman po roon ay hindi maaaring
magkaroon ng halalan na lalagpas sa ika-30 ng Hunyo ng
darating na taon. To me, nagkaroon po siguro ng obiter
dictum na it should be held in one day.

I would really have personally preferred that the Su-
preme Court had stopped at saying that no election
should be held beyond June 30, 1992. I bring this out
because I am really very concernéd by the testimony of
our friends in the Commission on Elections that it will be
a nightmare to go through a single day election.

-That is why the approach taken here by Senator
" Gonzales and our Colleagues is to have some kind of
redistricting that will bring down the number of candi-
dates to no more than 40. I understand from the Commis-
sion on Elections that we are really talking of candidates
ranging from a low of 34 to a high of 38.

So, unless my attention is called by the distinguished
Gentleman to another point that I may have overlooked,
wala po akong nakikita rito maliban doon sa tayo ang
nag-aayos ng election period dahil, ayon sa Saligang-
Batas, iyon ay trabaho ng Commission on Elections.
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Senator Maceda. Well, I was precisely concerned
about that and wanted some clarification. A strict read-
ing of the Supreme Court decision would seem to imply,
if it is construed strictly, that even the nemination and
selection process would be encompassed within the 90-
day election period, and the bill that the. distinguished
Senator is sponsoring, under Section 7, now speaks of a
nomination and selection period 150 days before the elec-
tion.

~ Senator Saguisag. That is correct and I think the
House version even speaks of 180 days. Maybe, we can
pass this, and the Commission on Elections can just

adopt it or set its own period. - Personally, I am hoping

that the Supreme Court will not knock out, so to speak, as
unconstitutional some electoral activity beyond the 90-
day period, because, under the Constitution, the COME-
LEC can fix the election period. Pero, tama po sila;
mukha hong hindi pinuna iyong bahagi ng kapasyahan ng
Korte Suprema dahil the Supreme Court nullified, as I
understand it, the -entire Republic Act that was passed
upon and reviewed by the Supreme Court.

The President. On that point, may the Chair inter-
vene.

Is it not true that the COMELEC already filed a
Motion for Clarification of that particular paragraph in
the Decision of the Supreme Court?

Senator Saguisag. We have no information as to
any action that has been taken on it. Atty. De Lima here
says that for his part he was not aware either that there has
been any resolution. I would have thought that any action
on it would have gotten wide publicity.

The President. But there was a Motion.for Clarifi-
cation of the Decision.

Senator Saguisag. Opo. Maybe, our friends in the
COMELEC can file a motion for early resolution so that
everybody concerned can be guided accordingly.

The President. And if the Resolution of the Su-
preme Court should say that the national convention can
be held outside the 90-day period, then, what is stated in
this bill may therefore be valid?

Senator Saguisag. That is what will be the law on
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the point, Mr. President; so that, personally, I feel there
isnoharmin....

At this juncture, Senator Osmeria approached the
distinguished Sponsor.

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION
May we have a short recess, Mr. President?

The President. The session is suspended, if there is
no objection. [There was none.]

Itwas4:12 p.m.

RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION
At 4:22 p.m., the session was resumed.
The President. The session is resumed.

Senator Saguisag. Mr. President, information was
given to us that, for all we know, maybe, there is even
now a Supreme Court resolution of the subject motion for
clarification that is being verified. In the meantime, in
our huddle, what emerged was a widespread or variance
of opinion as to whether it should be 90 days as the low
period and 180 days a3 the high period. It seems to me
that the consensus reached is that, perhaps, pending clari-
fication or crystalization of the various views on this, we
may want to move on to another point.

Senator Maceda. Yes, Mr. President. Referring to
Section 4 on the matter of districting, in the beginning, all
of us were approaching this matter on the basis of either
49 or 51 total number of posts to be contested. Now, it
would seem, that with the three additional sectoral repre-
sentatives and, I think, two additional provincial, there
could be as much as 56. Certainly, it will now be, at least,
52 or 54, depending on whether we have a city or munici-
pal council of ten or eight.

Senator Saguisag.  Fifty-one was nightmarish
enough, and the information just mentioned is, I think,
true. So, the practical problems will be compounded, if
we are now dealing not only with 51 names but with a
higher figure. That is why I believe Senator Gonzales
had wanted this redistricting done for purposes of the

elections next year.

Senator Maceda. Referring to page 4 in a proposed
amendment, lines 23 to 29, the last two lines: ‘‘Accord-
ingly, three additional spaces shall be provided for them
in the official ballots’’--that is 51 plus three--at least, that
is up to 54 already.

Iunderstand from the Majority Floor Leader that that
is really 56. Maybe, there are two more in the provincial
board area.

Evenif we follow the redistricting principle proposed
by the COMELEC where it sought to bring it down to 38,

with these additional sectorals of five, the minimum will

still be 43.

Senator Saguisag. If that is correct, then there is re-
ally very little that will have been solved--from 51 to 43
will present its own set of very difficult practical prob-
lems.

Senator Maceda. May I know how this proposed
law envisions an election, let us say, the maximum of 56
posts, all on the same date? How are we going to be able
to effect a proper election under this proposed bill?

Senator Saguisag. Well, Commissioner Yorac in-
formally told me,-some weeks ago, that even with 51
names, in some places, the election may stretch it to the
third day. And we are talking of three people who, even
under normal conditions, if working from 6:00 a.m. to
6:00 p.m., would not be functioning optimally towards
midnight. That is why, I suppose, there was this desire
on the part of our Colleagues to advance this idea of re-
districting.

If the Gentleman asks me, my own proposed amend-
ment, which I would like for all concerned to consider is,
perhaps, not to accept the decision of the Supreme Court
that the election can really be held ouly on May 11, 1992,
I was thinking of making the proposal that the COME-
LEC, in the discharge of its constitutional mandate to
hold a clean, honest and credible election, should, per-
haps, be given the authority to hold the local election,
maybe, on May 11 itself or two weeks thereafter, or,
maybe, a month thereafter. Otherwise, I am really very
concerned that the exercise may explode in our faces.
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Fifty-six, 57 names, I just cannot see how it can be done.
So, if an amendment of that type is accepted, and it is
immediately challenged, maybe, the Supreme Court,
given the very powerful and persuasive practical argu-
ments against holding. the election in one day, may be
persuaded to consider its pronouncement as just an obiter
dictum, and that, indeed, the COMELEC should be given
a little leeway to save the exercise and thereby save de-
mocracy in this country which is, really, what is at stake.

Senator Maceda. Considering that reports are to the
effect that the House of Representatives is not going to
adopt the districting principle, what will be the position
of the Senate on this particular matter?

Senator Saguisag. My personal insight is, really,
there is no time to do it. I am sure that there will be an
avalanche of injunctions and challenges that will prevent
the implementation of that idea, given the very limited
time we have. There will be the usual charges of gerry-
mandering, and there is always some court that will al-
low an injunction to issue so that we will have to insist--I
mean, speaking only for myself--that the election be ei-
ther held in one day on the basis of no redistricting. Or,
that I would hope that our Colleagues here and in the
other Chamber may want to consider my formula of
nominally separate elections, dalawang linggo lamang po
0 isang buwan.

Siguro, pag nakita ng Kataas-taasang Hukuman na
hindi natin malulutas ngayon ang problemang ito, baka
payagan at bigyan ang COMELEC ng discretion to hold
the elections either on May 11 for all, or only the national
elections on May 11, and the local elections either two
weeks later or a month later.

One Commissioner was telling me that any sort of
breathing spell would be appreciated as, perhaps, the only
way out.

Senator Maceda. Is the Committee going to pro-
pose that formally?

Senator Saguisag. Iyon po ang nais ko sanang gaw-
ing individual amendment. Alam na po natin iyong
premises. Ito po ang gusto kong imungkahi, for the
record:
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“HOWEVER, IN THE SOLE JUDGMENT OF
THE COMMISSION ON ELECTIONS ON THE BASIS
OF WHAT IT BELIEVES AND DETERMINES MAY
BEST ENSURE THE DISCHARGE OF ITS CONSTI-
TUTIONAL MANDATE TO HOLD FREE, ORDERLY,
HONEST, PEACEFUL AND CREDIBLE ELECTIONS,
THE COMMISSION MAY CHOOSE TO HOLD AND
CONDUCT THE NEXT LOCAL ELECTION ON ANY
OTHER DATE BEFORE JUNE 30, 1992, BUT PREF-
ERABLY ON ANY OF THE FOLLOWING ALTER-
NATIVE DATES: (1) ON MAY 25, 1992 OR ON
JUNE 11, 1992.”’

It is the individual opinion of this Senator that at least
one Commissioner of the COMELEC supports it. I am
not sure whether this new idea may be received with fa-
vor by enough Members of this Chamber and enough
Members of the other Chamber, if only because the alter-

natives are really frightening and impractical in the Senator's ‘

view

Senator Maceda. Be that as it may, going back to
the redistricting principle, it looks like there is more
complaint on the level of the municipalities, and there is
comparatively more acceptance on the level of the pro-
vincial boards. Meaning to say, that the opinion there is
really divided between those who feel that they have a
better chance of winning province-wide, and those who
feel that it is okay with them, or they have a better chance
of winning in a district.

Now, the thing that bothers a lot of people is the fact
that not all the provinces are divisible by two districts-
wise. That is why, in the version I presented, I was pro-
posing that the simplest way to handle the redistricting of
provinces is to have a provincial board of two board
members per congressional district with a minimum of
four. Meaning to say, if it is two districts or one district,
then they will have four, which actually will be at least
seven, when we consider that we will have the representa-
tive of the Provincial Federation of Barangays, the Pro-
vincial Federation of Kabataang Barangays. And then, if
am not mistaken, the President of the Mayors League is
also suggested to be ex officio. So, we will already have
seven, minimum. But then, it will simplify--if there are
three congressional districts, they get six. The maximum
number, of course, of congressional district is six in only
three provinces--Cebu, Negros and Pangasinan--which
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can really afford the addition of two additional members
from the present 10 to 12.

Now, that might be acceptable even to the Congress-
men if there will no longer be any discretion on the part
of the COMELEC or anybody on how to divide. There
are quite a few provinces with ten and with four districts,
so that there is going to be attached or annexed to the
COMELEC proposal some sort of a 3-3-2-2 formula
which becomes objectionable to those two districts which
will only get two each.

But my feeling is, if we have a uniform two each per
district with a minimum four for the one-district prov-
inces, when we say the small provinces, that might be--
finally, of course, there will always be those who will ob-
ject, but that might get the majority acceptance.

Senator Saguisag. If only because it will minimize
or remove the element of discussion because that is really
where the quarrel will start. There will be the suspicion
that any use of discretion will reflect the local power situ-
ation. In other words, puwedeng i-gerrymandering.
Pipiliin kung saan ang malakas, kung saan ang mahina.
Pero kung mawawala iyong discretion, that may be one
creative way of reducing the practical problems that we
confront now, kung napahaba po ang iboboto ng
mamamayan sa isang taon. So, certainly, I suppose our
Colleagues will support any idea along that line.

Senator Maceda. Now, let us go to page 4.

On the addition of the words ‘‘AND A REGIS-
TERED VOTER’’ on line 15, somehow I do not feel
comfortable with this new variation because there are
people who are, considering limited employment possi-
bilities, principally being limited to the urban areas or the
populous and progressive towns. For convenience, let us
.say, a lawyer who is practicing in Lucena rather than in
Alabat, Quezon, but he is really by family, in intention
and everything, a resident of Alabat. We might be reduc-
ing the number of qualified people who can run.

Normally, those who are in Metro Manila should re-
ally be encouraged if they are willing to go back to Alabat
or if they are willing to go back to Babatngon, Leyte, and
run for office where their family and personal ties have
been there for years, except that they have found employ-

ment here. Let us say, even if they are only appointed as
a government clerk or lawyer in one of the government
departments, again, relating it also to the related question
of difficulty of transportation and expense of transporta-
tion, and there is no law now, even at the moment, which
excuses a government employee or a private employee to
go home to his own town for two or three days to register.

I just do not feel comfortable that the requirement of
a registered voter would improve the quality of our lead-
ership in the sangguniang panlalawigan, sangguniang panlungsod
or sangguniang bayan to which this particular paragraph refers
to.

Senator Saguisag. I am really in an awkward posi-
tion where this is the handiwork of an esteemed Col-
league. I cannot help but share the concern of the Gentle-
man from Manila and Ilocos Sur. I am not sure that this
is a constitutional requirement, and every time we add a
requirement, I am not confident that it can survive a
constitutional challenge.

In other words, it is entirely possible for a citizen not
even to be interested in public life for sixty years. He
may not vote, he may not be registering, and then when
he gets to be 60, he suddenly developed some interest in
public life. Even if he is not a registered voter, he may
want to join the exercise for the first time.

Maybe, we want to review this, both on the policy
grounds raised by the Gentleman and, maybe, on the ad-
ditional constitutional ground that I am raising. Hindi ko
po alam kung sino ang nagmungkahi nito, at ano ang
paliwanag, but this really may rate a second look,
whether we should delete the requirement of being a reg-
istered voter. Siguro po in fairness to Senator Gonzales,
he should be heard on this.

Senator Maceda. I am just moving along quickly
and intend to ask a few more questions and then reserve
my right. Page 9, Section 13 - Absentee Voting.

I am not sure, that is why I am asking whether absen-
tee voting was first allowed under Executive Order No.
157, dated March 30, 1987 or was there absentee voting
even before 19877

Senator Saguisag. I am informed, that in the past,
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only the members of the Board of Election Inspectors
assigned to a place other than their residence were al-
lowed to vote. So, this innovation apparently took effect
only beginning 1987.

Senator Maceda. Actually, 1988, because when this
Executive Order was signed, the presidential elections
were finished, so this was really more in terms of the next
elections.

For the record may we know whether the Committee
has studied the question of whether this should only be
limited to President, Vice-President, and Senators?

Senator Saguisag. I think this was taken up in one
of the caucuses. That is the limit of my personal recollec-
tion on it, that the decision reached was to limit it to these
public officials. Incidentally, EO No. 157 was dated
March 30, 1987,

Senator Maceda. That is right.

Senator Saguisag. And I am informed this was not
enforced or applied in 1988 since there was no election
for national officials then,

Senator Maceda. Again, this is one of those things I
am just raising where I am not sure about the pros and
cons. Of course, the pro is possible not to disenfranchise
people. The only problem is, one should start using that
as the principal argument. Remember that there is a very
strong lobby for the enfranchisement of people who are
still Filipino citizens paying taxes and using Filipino
passports who are abroad, whether it be in the United
States, in the Middle East or in Japan.

I guess the principle of absentee voting must have to
be adopted, either all the way or not at all. But any
halfway measure is going to raise even a question of
discrimination.

- Senator Saguisag. I think in one of our meetings,
Senator Pimentel also raised, if my memory is true, the
phenomenon that sometimes the number of soldiers as-
signed, let us say, in Cagayan de Oro, can be decisive of
the result of the elections.

I am not sure, however, if the analogy is correct in
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regard to oversea absentee voting which presents its own
set of difficult problems.

For myself, I do not think we are ready for that,
especially since Filipinos are scattered all over the globe.
Can we imagine the effect if the election, for instance, in
Pasig will be decided only by ten votes and then we
would await the result of the votes from Abu Dhabi, or
from Antarctica or from Alaska? So, maybe, that will
have to be decided on the basis of committee hearings on
the measures pending on that idea for a later time.

My point is that, perhaps, there is really a substantial
and valid distinction between absentee voters in other
countries and absentee voters within the Philippines, be-
cause public servants, by force of circumstances, are
assigned to some other place.

Ang natatandaan ko pong nangyari roon, kung
boboto sa national officials, it does not really matter
where one is in the Philippines during election day. But,
it can be so manipulated or it can even be by accident that
in view of the temporary presence of some voters, they
may affect the voting locally where they may not really
be interested at all. So, maybe, we need more time to
refine this, whether we will go back to the old practice of
limiting it to the electoral officials. Because I agree, once
we broaden it, then there we draw the line.

Senator Maceda. I can think of one possible misuse
of this. Presumably, the Administration, if we go by the
past, controls the bigger portion of the soldiers and po-
licemen, especially since they usually follow superiors.
So, we can imagine a situation where the incumbent
President, knowing that he is, probably, going to lose in'a
certain province where he is weak or which is the baili-
wick of the Opposition, will assign a certain number of
soldiers and police personnel to that province to make a
fraudulent return from that province believable on the
premise that all the soldiers or policemen who were
assigned there voted for the Admunistration.

I am just thinking out aloud, relating it to a master
plan of cheating on a province-by-province or municipal-
ity-by-municipality basis, because it is clear that if it is
just the traditional voters there, we will know, more or
less, that in this municipality or in this province, that
candidate should win by a certain percentage overwhelm-
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ingly, probably. But then, one w111 say: ‘“Well, he lost
after the results were tampered, because the soldiers and
the policemen we assigned there all voted for the Admini-
stration candidate.’”

Senator Saguisag. So long as there was no addi-
tional vote and it involves only national officials, at the
end of the count, the results should be the same. But I
can see that happening if they are sent to another place,
especially elements of the police and the military who
may so believe in the fundamental right to vote that they
exercise it more than once in a certain election. But
otherwise, we have to balance it against the claim of
disenfranchisement, a very valuable right on the part of
hundreds of thousands of our brothers and sisters in uni-
form. Kaya, iyon ho ay mabigat din naman ang kaparu-
sahan na dahil nagsisilbi ay hindi makaboto.

So, to me, that in itself may not be enough of an
objection as long as the right to vote is limited to national
officials. Wala po sigurong distortion iyon dahil sa huli
susumahin iyong national results. But if the idea is to
allow or employ those elements to intimidate some voters
or fabricate results, then I can see how this can be used
for mischievous ends.

Senator Maceda. Just for the record, may we know the
rationale why candidates for President, Vice-President, and
Senators are limited to® 1.50 per voter, while candidates for the
Members of the House of Representatives and local officials may
spend P3.00 per voter?

Senator Saguisag. The original idea, I believe, was
in the Batasan days when it was unicameral. Then the
idea was to make it uniform. In fact, there was no other
choice but to make it uniformi. But when the system
reverted to the bicameral one, the distortion became very
clear.

In other words, in 1987--let us assume that there were
25 million voters--each of us was entitled to spend, if my
recollection was right, P1.00 or #1.50 at that time. Na-
pag-iwanan po nang todo ang congressional candidates.
In other words, if there would be only 50,000 voters in a
district, the congressional candidate could spend only an
unrealistically modest sum.

I assume that the figures that have just been identified

represent an attempt to be realistic. Pero napakalayo pa
rin po dahil ang laki rin ng magagastos natin sa congres-
sional candidates. I am not sure whether it is still on the
low side, given the very low purchasing power of the
peso today.

So, I do not know if the intent of the Gentleman is to
modify the figures. I am not very satisfied with these
figures that may have been very arbitrarily chosen.

Senator Maceda. I certainly agree with the Gentle-
man, Mr. President, if he is saying that these amounts are
unrealistically low. What I was just trying to bring out
was the other point.

I would assume that candidates for President and
Vice President should really be expected to spend more
per voter than candidates for the House or for elective
local officials. In any event, I think the minimum formu-
lation should be that they should be allowed to spend the
same amount, because the control is not in the amount to
be spent but in the number of voters per constituency. .
So, a candidate for mayor, we will only be talking about
5,000 to 10,000 votes for the municipality. Candidates for
President, we are talking about 30 million votes.

So, unless the rationale is, the smaller the constitu-
ency the more expensive the election is--which is the
public perception of how elections are in the Province of
Batanes which is supposed to be on a per capita basis--the
most expensive place in the country to run for an elective
seat....

Senator Saguisag. I guess we are dealing here, with '
one of the permanent problems of elections in this coun-
try. For whatever it may be worth, in the United States

where we borrowed some of our electoral concepts, in -

case it is the personal money of the candidate, there is, in

fact, no limitation. If he is a billionaire, he can spend his ;
entire holdings, and that has been ruled constitutional. In

the US, the limitation is on campaign contributions
from other people.

So, here, I suppose we will have to push pencils and

review the figures we have given as to whether they

correctly respond to the widely felt need of checking -
what is believed to be overspending by the richer candi--
dates. :
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.But, frankly, I.am personally at a loss on what is the
criterion to be used--why not 4.50?, why notP3.75? So,
it is bound to be arbitrary anyway. Will making it uni-
form be the answer? Perhaps, we can leave it to the
Body.

Senator Maceda. I have no problem with whatever
amount is agreed upon. I was just trying to suggest that,
probably, whether it is President, Vice-President, Sena-
tor, or local, the amounts should be the same, because,
really, on an across-the-board basis, the expenditure is the
same, except that, as I said, it is limited by the number of
voters. Let us say, for propaganda, for 30 million voters,
we have to print 300 million pieces of propaganda; for
10,000 local voters, we have to print 100,000 pieces of
propaganda. So, the limiting factor is not the amount, but
the number of yoters, unless the representation is that
there will be economies of scale-on the bigger amount of
propaganda that we are printing, which I do not think was
really the consideration involved here.

Would the Gentleman--I know that he is just the
Acting Chairman--be inclined to the proposition that be-
sides raising these to realistic leyels, the amounts should
be uniform for both national and local candidates?

Senator Saguisag. My problem really is, I have
never been comfortable with the huge amount that is
allowed a Senator because of the huge national base on
which we compute the total. Even if it is made uniform,
the differential criterion really is the number of voters in
the area concerned where it involves nonnational candi-
dates. I am talking really of the wide disparity between
what is allowed a senatorial candidate and a candidate for
the House of Representatives. :

¢

But I have really no strong feelings, speaking for
myself. Maybe, we will just have to take a consensus on
the part of our Colleagues as to whether it is better made
uniform, as suggested by the Gentleman, on the basis of
the persuasive logic that has been spread on the Record.

Senator Maceda. I will leave to the other Members
of the Chamber, particularly Senator Pimentel, the ques-
tion of official watchers.

My last point for today is, considering that we seem
to be reversing gears now in the direction of a truly
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synchronized elections involving at least 51, maybe 54,
or 56 positions and the corresponding implications of
that, would the distinguished Gentleman agree that the
proposed increase of 200 per day toP400 is inadequate,
considering that now we are talking not two days but
probably at least three days. And so my proposal has
always been on this case, that they should be paid P200 a
day or a total of P600.

Senator Saguisag. Number one, I am not sure
whether we have the resources; number two, if they will
be paid on a daily basis, maybe if they can do it in one
day, they will stretch it to three days. So I may have
problems with that. There will be a built-in temptation to
stretch the exercise, and in the wee hours of the morning,
that is when all sorts of mysteries can happen.

Kaya siguro kung ipa-flat natin ng 500, kung kaya,
which is collectible after they shall have served, baka ho
lalong bumilis ang proseso.

So I have no problem giving an affordable amount,
but not on a daily basis.

Senator Maceda. Of course, it is to be expected that
I have tested this matter in some of the local dialogs I
have conducted, but even the 600, they do not seem to
be happy with it.

By the way, I was wondering whether the Gentle-
man’s consultant can inform us whether it is correct,
based on the answers I have been getting from teachers in
the field,'that they have the right to refuse to serve as poll
clerks, or are they mandated to serve as poll clerks.

Senator Saguisag. The information given here by
Atty. De Lima is that, it is really a duty that cannot be
shirked. Itend to share that. I mean, that is what being a
public servant is all about. Among the powers of the
Commission on Election under Section 2, subsection 8,
of Article IX, is to recommend to the President the re-
moval of any officer or employee it has deputized, or the
imposition of any other disciplinary action for violation
or disregard of or disobedience to its directive, order or
decision. I think this is a very good policy unless there is
really...

Senator Maceda. But I really doubt whether the
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Gentleman can, as a rule, compel people to serve. Thatis
against his human rights orientation. How can we com-
pel teachers to serve if they do not want to serve? Pre-
cisely I am raising that point because some of them in the
field have already told me that if it is only 500, with all

the problems that will be attendant to this election, they

would rather not serve.

So, we really have to look for an amount that will at
least be acceptable as a minimum for these people to
serve. Not only that. As a result of certain bad practices
adopted during the Martial Law years, teachers have been
known, especially in Metro Manila, to receive per diems
or money from political parties or candidates. So theo-
retically speaking, one way of assuring that there will be
less temptation to receive money from political parties
and political candidates is to make their election day pay
realistic.

Senator Saguisag. In 1978, that was the Laban
campaign where the distinguished Gentleman was among
the candidates--to me, it was a very proud moment when
the teachers of Marikina and Pasig laid down--

Senator Maceda. And Parafiaque.

Senator Saguisag. --maybe all over, were ready to
give up even their own lives to insure the integrity of the
process. And if after the lapse of 13 years, we are now
told by public schoolteachers that they would not serve
unless they are properly paid, then this country is really
going down the tubes. This is democracy. I would have
thought that the last consideration would be money, and
it is very depressing to be told that there are public
schoolteachers, whom everybody used to look up to in
very high regard, now look at this as something na na-
paka-materialistic na po. I do not know what has gone
with the wind in the last 13 years. But as I said, that was,

.to me, one of our proudest moments, as a people, when
teachers stood up against threats and blandishments to
see to it that the electoral process was insured.

So, maybe, we need to talk with them again and try to
reorient them; that it is not a question of stinginess on the
part of the National Government, but there are just too
many valid competing claims and very scarce resources.
If we had the money, we might give them even P2000.
Pero kung wala na po naman sa ibang basic social serv-

ices, and then we are told that, ‘‘Unless you give us the
money or the amount we like, we are not going to serve,’”’
then, we might as well fire all of them. I do not think that
they deserve to be teaching our students na everything
boils down to pesos and centavos.

I do not know what has happened to the old values
that we used to admire in the system. Baka po hindi
‘naman representative iyon nakausap natin, baka po
mangilan-ngilan na nabigla lamang dahil napakataas po
ng paggalang natin sa tinatawag na mga maestro at
maestra noong araw.

Senator Maceda. I hope the Gentleman is correct
and expresses the same hope as he does. The only thing I
would like to add is, I have talked to some teachers down
the field, and they have impressed me that they are now
organized especially in the light of the provision to or-

ganize which the Constitution afforded public sector em- -

ployees. In effect, even their tone of voice and their
statements were more of a demand than a request. Usu-
ally the president of the teachers association in this mu-
nicipality is the one who comes up.

In fact, over the last week, in at least two municipali-
ties, they were angrily demanding, if not suggesting or
asking, when they would get their 5,000 a month. As a

matter of fact, it was only watered down by the fact that °

in, at least, one municipality the president of the teachers’
group who was demanding 5,000 a month was saying

‘““Why are you concerned only with the employees in

Olongapo when, we, the teacherfam not being prOper1y~
given the attention that we deserve?”’ :\ o

Senator Saguisag. They may lose the Fl,OOO f%or —

$2,000 they may want, but the entire country may lose
democracy in the process. So, dapat po siguro ay kausa-

pin natin uli, dahil I still like to think that by and large, .

our public servants, teachers or whoever have the coun-
try’s welfare at heart and if properly talked to, maybe _

they will realize that we have a common stake because $O

much depends on the success of the next elections. Baka
po maghangad ng kagitna ay isang salop po ang mawala

Senator Maceda. I have been ordered by Vlce-Pres1dent |

Guingoona and President Pimentel to terminate my

interpellations for today. So, I will just reserve my other
questions to another less tight day. : ~
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SUSPENSION OF CONSIDERATION
OF SENATE BILL NO. 1861

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, without preju-

dice to the distinguished Senator’s continuance of the

" interpellation, I move that we suspend consideration of
this measure for the purpose of going into caucus.

The President. Is there any objection? ([Silence] "

Hearing none, the motion is approved.

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

The session is suspended for our break. We shall
have a caucus, if there is no objection. [There was none.]

Itwas 5:10 p.m.

\,\
/
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RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION
At 7:31 p.m., the session was resumed.
The President. The session is resumed.
Senator Guingona. Mr. President, tomorrow, we
will take up the Synchronization measure and the Base
Conversion Authority.

ADJOURNMENT OF THE SESSION

I move that we adjourn the session until three o’clock
tomorrow afternoon.

The President.- The session is adjourned until three
o’clock tomorrow afternoon, if there is no objection.
[There was none.]

Itwas 7:31 p.m.
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SPECIAL ORDERS

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that
Committee Report No. 1407 on House Bill No. 34160,
entitled

AN ACT TO REHABILITATE THE PHILIPPINE
VETERANS BANK CREATED UNDER
REPUBLIC ACT 3518 PROVIDING THE
MECHANISMS THEREFOR AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES,

be transferred to the Calendar for Special Orders.
[Silence]

The President. Is there any objection?
Hearing none, the motion is approved.

BILL ON SECOND READING
Senate Bill No. 1861 - Synchronized
Elections on May 11, 1992
[Continuation]

Senator Guingona. Mr. President. I move that we
resume consideration of Senate Bill No. 1861 as reported
out under Committee Report No. 1373.

The President. Resumption of consideration of Sen-
ate Bill No. 1861 is now in order.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, we are still in the
period of amendments. I ask that we recognize Senator
Saguisag.

The President. Senator Saguisag is recognized.

Senator Saguisag. Mr. President, is the parliamen-
tary situation the continuation of interpellations?

The President. Senator Guingona.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, we are actually
in the period of amendments. This revised copy embod-
ies already all the Committee amendments proposed as of
September 2.. We just want to clarify certain matters
before introducing our own personal amendments.

Senator Saguisag. That was my understanding, that
we close the period of interpellations proper, but when

proposing amendments, we were made to understand that
questions would be entertained like the way they were
yesterday.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, under the pro-
posed revised amendment, there will now be five copies:
of the certificates of canvass instead of seven. Would that
be correct?

Senator Saguisag. May we have time to look at the
page?

Senator Guingona. I am looking for it.

Senator Saguisag. So that everybody here can fol-
low the discussion. I think it is on page 21.

At this juncture, the Senate President relinquished
the Chair to the President Pro Tempore.

Are we referring to the election returns?
Senator Guingona. Yes, to the election returns.
Senator Saguisag. Section 26.

My recollection, which seems to be confirmed by the
draft before us, is, we are talking of seven copies for the
national officials, and in the election of local officials, six
copies. We are not aware that there has been a reduction
as to election returns to five copies only. Maybe, we are
referring to the certificate of canvass, page 23, where, as |
understand it, we are talking of five copies. Pages 23 and
24, Section 28, under the ‘ ‘Resectioning’’.

Senator Guingona. Yes. Has the distinguished
Sponsor any objection to making these seven copies? 1
understand that there were objections from the smaller
parties, that they would be at a disadvantage because this
is actually a return to the inspectorial system of favoring
the dominant party and the opposition party, thereby en-
couraging or giving more rights to two political parties.

Senator Saguisag. For some reason, the technical
advice that has been given me here is, there seems to be a
difficulty, according to the COMELEC representative
who is present here, in making clear copies exceeding
five. T just wonder why it is possible to have seven
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legible copies of the returns and not as to the certificates
of canvass.

May we have a brief recess, Mr. President?
SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION
The President Pro Tempore. The session is sus-
pended for one minute, if there is no objection. [There
ws none.)
It was 4:20 p.m.
RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION

At 4:25 p.m., the session was resumed.

The President Pro Tempore.
sumed.

The session is re-

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, during the break,
the consultant from COMELEC informed us that the
House of Representatives has provided for eight copies
instead of five for the certificates...

Senator Saguisag. For the election returns, and
seven for the certificates of canvass.

Senator Guingona. Yes. And I have my reserva-
tions concerning the distribution, because it says a num-
ber of congressmen, I think, belonging to political parties
in the House of Representatives. So, perhaps, that should
be amended.

I will make a reservation to present the proper
amendment either here on the Floor or, because of exi-
gencies of time, in the Conference Committee.

Senator Saguisag. We are open to it, except that we
want to be convinced that as a practical matter it can be
done. The concern of our consultant here is that on the
basis of the COMELEC experience, beyond a certain
number of pages the extra copies may no longer be leg-
ible.  But, otherwise, the intent is laudable, and we
would be very glad to hear an appropriate proposed
amendment which may be more equitable than the one
that was presented to us during the break.

¢

Senator Guingona. Yes. [ think seven copies
would be legible enough using thin paper, Mr. President.

The President Pro Tempore. May the Chair ask if
these are carbon or carbonized copies?

Senator Saguisag. They call it as chemically treated
or sensitized paper which, I believe, is superior than
carbon copies, Mr. President.

The President Pro Tempore. Please proceed.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, may I go now to
the issue of redistricting.

I understand from the House of Representatives that
they have deleted the redistricting concept for both the
municipal as well as the provincial board nominees.

My question is: Is this not found in the Local Gov-
ernment Code?

Senator Saguisag. That really seems to be the case.
In fact, I would want to have a second look at the new
Local Government Code. If all goes well, that should
enter into force after the year turns. I do not recall that
there is any excepting proviso, although the spirit of the
Conference Committee deliberations was that 1992
would be premature.

However, just this afternoon, I was on the telephone
talking with Chairman Christian Monsod, and he was
really pleading with us to give it a chance. He says it can
be done within 90 days; I am not so sure, but he is of the
view that may be the only way of saving the exercise. He

" really feels that if we do not bring down the number of

those to be voted on below 40), anything beyond that may
just be unmanageable.

So personally, I am beginning to get, sort of, con-
vinced that, for lack of any viable alternative, we might
have to do that either here or by virtue of the Local
Government Code, Mr. President.

Senator Guingona. So we retain the provision on
redistricting, although we have reservations really--I,
myself, Mr. President, have reservations--on how this
will be implemented in due time without much confusion
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and legal petition that may tie up the process.

Senator Saguisag. The Chairman of the COMELEC
really sounded like Pollyanna when I was discussing this
with him earlier today. I was raising the spectre of
injunctions, of gerrymandering, but his formula is to al-
low this to come up from the grassroots level, in consul-
tation with the local COMELEC officials. And if all
goes well, he believes that it can, in fact, be done within
three months.

However, ‘we are also aware that, with so many
lawyers with very few cases or no cases, there will be a
spate of lawsuits challenging this redistricting.

Pero ang sabi po niya, ‘‘Sige, kung hindi ninyo mata-
tanggap iyan, ano ang alternative natin?”’

So for now, personally, I am, perhaps with a great
deal of reluctance, in favor of giving the COMELEC a
chance to work it out dahil iyon din po yata ang epekto
nitong Local Government Code.

Senator Guingona. With the understanding that we
will propose our amendments as far as the distribution is
concerned. I think the distinguished Sponsor can accept
the proposal of seven copies, instead of five.

Senator Saguisag. In principle. Personally, I would
really want to see an actual physical demonstration. Sa-
pagkat kung gagawa man tayo ng pang-anim at pampito
under the best condition, using the optimum sensitized
paper that the COMELEC has, baka ho hindi na talagang
mabasa tyan.

Iyan ho ang sinasabi nila, and they are the experts in
this. But, to me, the more copies the better, as long as the
extra copies are going to serve the purpose by being
legible. Otherwise, I really have an open mind on the
proposed amendment.

Senator Guingona. When can we expect the physi-
cal scrutiny and response of the distinguished Sponsor?

Senator Saguisag. As soon as possible and conven-
ient. We would like to request our friends from the
COMELEC to show us, by actual demonstration, that it is
not feasible, as a practical matter, to have more than ‘X’’

10

number of copies.

Senator Guingona. Yes, but I understand that if we
use a thin paper, we can have legible copies. So, I hope
that the samples that will be brought to us will be both the
ordinary and the thinner kind of paper.

Senator Saguisag. May we just make of record, in
the presence of the COMELEC representative here, that
the next time he is able to come--and he says, ‘‘As early
as tomorrow,’’--we can have that demonstration.

Senator Guingona. Thank you, Mr. President.

The President Pro Tempore. The Chair would like
to know, to be told: Why in some cases, five copies; in
others, six; and, still others, seven?

Senator Saguisag. Doon po sa certificate of can-
vass, ang karanasan nila, hanggang lima lamang. Tila
mas makapal iyong papel. Pero iyong sa election returns
ay mas manipis po, kaya kahit iyong ikapitong sipi ay
nababasa pa. At iyon daw pong ikapitong kopya, medyo
may kahirapan na ring basahin ng interesadong partido.
Nangako sila na magpapadala rito ng mga samples, so we
can satisfy ourselves.

The President Pro Tempore. Very well, thank you.

" Senator Pimentel. Mr. President.

The President Pro Tempore. Senator Pimentel is
recognized.

Senator Pimentel. Mr. President. Just a few ques-
tions, if the Gentleman will allow.

Senator Saguisag. With pleasure, Mr. President.

Senator Pimentel. In that seventh copy, Mr. Presi-
dent, which according to the Gentleman will no longer be
legible--

Senator Saguisag. Hardly.

Senator Pimentel. --hardly legible, why do we not
require the Board of Inspectors to authenticate it?

q1
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I mean, if it is a question of legibility, that is not a
reason why the copies should be limited to only those that
are legible. Ido not find that logical at all, Mr. President.

Senator Saguisag. Ang karanasan daw po ng
COMELEC, sapagkat karamihan ng mga titser ay mga
babae, ang pressure ng mga maestra ay hindi kasinlakas
ng pressure ng mga maestro.

So it is very hard to have anybody, I guess, change
her sex for the purpose. But without meaning to be light
about it, that is the experience.

Is there a possible way of addressing the very valid
concern of our good Friend from Cagayan de Oro?

Over the years, they find that the forms that are filled
up by the women teachers do not register well on the
seventh copy, and then they also tell us that this is done
towards the end of the exercise when the teachers are
tired. Iyon ang ibinigay nilang dahilan kung bakit daw
hardly legible iyong ikapitong sipi.

Senator Pimentel. Yes, we can understand the
physical constraints really, Mr. President, and the only
other alternative probably is not to give any copies to any
of the parties. Just leave the copies with the COMELEC,
and subsequent copies can be given upon request.

In other words, maybe a time, let us say, within one
week after the counting is over, that is when the tolling
of the period for filing of electoral protests shall also
begin. Meaning to say, within those five days after the
elections, after the counting, requests’can be addressed to
the COMELEC .to furnish the parties concerned with
copies of these electoral documents, which cannot be
done legibly on the election day itself.

Senator Saguisag. I think this issue, which remains
unresolved, has been discussed thoroughly. I do not
believe that a consensus has been reached. Maybe, at the
proper time, when the appropriate amendment is pro-
posed, we have to have an up or down vote on this.

Senator Pimentel. Yes.

Senator Saguisag. The choice is--leave it as is. Try
to give more, if it is practically feasible, or the suggestion

of the Gentleman is, wala na lamang pong bibigyan para
wala nang problema, but it may also present another set
of problems. Iyon na lamang po siguro. Baka magboto-
han na lamang tayo pagdating doon.

Senator Pimentel. Yes.

Senator Saguisag. Personally, I can accept the pro-
posed amendment, but my guess is that it will be objected
to by certain of our Colleagues, so let us have a show of
hands at the proper time.

Senator Pimentel. Yes. Unless we are clear about
this, Mr. President, then we will be forced to oppose this
bill to death; because this means also the demise of the
smaller parties, and it is not fair that the smaller parties
who fought hard to bring about the democratic space we
are now enjoying will now be deprived precisely of the
fruits of democracy itself, under this kind of proposal,
which actually reduces the viability of the smaller parties.

Senator Saguisag. I am not supposed to be interpel-
lating really, but I wonder what the Gentleman might say
as to a proposal I heard earlier: Might it be done on a
localized basis? Meaning, perhaps, on a provincial level
or aregional level, a party that may not satisty the criteria
or criterion nationally may be the emergent or the quali-
fied party on a local basis. Is that the kind of compromise
that we might settle on?

Senator Pimentel. Mr. President, there is no ques-
tion that can be a compromise, but since we are talking of
national elections, I was thinking really of a national
formula also or national compromise. Meaning to say,
that parties which have garnered, let us say, 10 percent of
the votes of the last national elections could be consid-
ered or entitled to these electoral documents that we are
speaking of.

Regarding the other problem, which the distin-
guished Gentleman adverted to it, the limiting of the
numbers, let us say, only to the Commission on Elec-
tions, subject to the furnishing of these documents upon
demand, subsequent to the termination of the electoral
proceedings in the precinct concerned--meaning to say, if
we give the parties five days within which to get these
documents for substantiating electoral protest, that
should be embodied also in the law. By doing so, the
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pressing requirement of furnishing the parties immedi-
ately upon the termination of the counting in the precinct
is obviated; and yet, the right of the parties to question
the results is not precluded, because they have five days--
this is just an offhand observation--after the counting
shall have been made within which to request or demand
for the copies of these documents from the Commission
on Elections.

Senator Saguisag. Speaking only for myself, I have
had a lifelong bias for the deserving underdog, but, as I
said, maybe we will find out when we vote whether the
overdogs will prevail. The concerns raised are very valid.
I think the Chamber is really divided on this. Kung ako
lamang po, 1 can personally commit my vote. 1 can
accept it, and then let us go through the process of having
an institutional position..

Senator Pimentél. Thank you, Mr. President.

Just one more point. I heard the Minority Floor
Leader discuss the redistricting proposal. I am sorry that
I did not get the Gentleman’s reply.

This is what I gathered fro.n my conversations with
local government officials around the country. I have
been to about six or seven provinces in the last two weeks
and the local government officials concerned are practi-
cally unanimous in objecting to the redistricting, let us
say, of a municipality or a city that has only one congres-
sional district, obviously, because of the perception that
there will be no adequate consultation with them. And
that, very likely, therefore, the Commission on Elections
will be compelled to execute a table map division.
Meaning to say, they will get a piece of map of a munici-
pality and decide arbitrarily--we will cut this map into
four parts or into two parts--and that will be the basis of
the redistricting, which the local officials 1 have talked
with would find very inadequate.

Senator Saguisag. Since the Gentleman is the Au-
thor of the Local Government Code, ano po ba ang sabi
nila? Iyan ay napag-usapan din namin ni Senator
Guingona kanina. Iyon po bang provisions in the New
Local Government Code, as to the redistricting, ay for
19957 Or did we put in a provision that will make it not
applicable to 19927
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Senator Pimentel. Mr. President, for the sake of
accuracy, we will have to recheck. But my impression
is--that was a broad grant of power to the Commission on
Elections para ma-redistrict nga nila, but not necessarily
in connection with the 1992 elections. Anyway, we will
have to recheck the exact wording, Mr. President. I do
not really quite recall it now.

Senator Saguisag. Yes. Because that is precisely
what the COMELEC is now invoking. And unless that is
suspended in this bill or in some other bill, they can
proceed. Kasi po, ang dating naman ng information kay
Chairman Monsod «ay receptive daw po iyong mga
nakausap niya. But our good friend here has also been
going around, and again raises the spectre of all those
possible complications that many of us are very leery of.

So I do not know. Dahil ako man po ay kinakaba-
han, but here is Chairman Monsod assuring me that many
local government ofticials have assured him of coopera-
tion and support, especially if the initiative would come
from the grassroots.

So again, we have some kind of collision of opinions
here.

Senator Pimentel. Yes. For the Record, Mr. Presi-
dent, I can mention particular governors: Governor
Barbo of Eastern Samar, Governor Oscar Tan of Leyte,
whom I have met personally within the last few days;
Governor Melvin Vargas of Cagayan, Governor Deloso
of Zambales, Congressman Tuzon of Cagayan, Governor
Emano of Misamis Oriental, Mayor Magtahas, Mayor
Lita Nunez of General Santos; and in Cebu, they are also
objecting to the redistricting act, not because they do not
want the redistricting but iyong posibilidad po na walang
.adequate consultation with them, because of time
constraints. Iyon talaga ang main objection doon.

Senator Saguisag. Kasi, the moment that is identi-
fied as a problem, as I have said, mahuhulaan na natin
diyan na may mga abogado at partido na magdede-
manda, mga injunction. Kaya, I do not know whether we
really have the time.

So we have to make a choice. Nakikiusap po si
Chairman Monsod, that unless we approve a redistricting
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formula here, he is very concerned about the credibility
and success of the 1992 electoral exercise.

Senator Pimentel. Yes. And I can see the validity
of that point. That was precisely why we attempted to
separate the national elections from local elections.

Thank you, Mr. President.
Senator Saguisag. Wala pong anuman.

The President Pro Tempore. The Chair will recog-
nize Senator Romulo, and then Senator Lina.

Senator Romulo. Mr. President, will the distin-
guished Acting Chairman answer a few questions, long
delayed?

Senator Saguisag. Very willingly, pero hindi po
ako Acting Chairman.

Senator Romulo. Vice-Chairman.

Gusto ko lamang po sanang talakaying muli itong
nabanggit na redistricting. Tama ba iyong narinig kong
binigkas ninyo na very much concerned ang COMELEC,
particularly Chairman Monsod, na kung hindi natin
mailalagay itong formula for redistricting, that he fears or
he is apprehensive about the credibility of the coming
1992 election? ‘

Senator Saguisag. That was what he told me earlier
this afternoon. They will do whatever we tell them to do.
Pero naninikluhod po, dahil ang lenguwahe kasi nitong
Resolution, noeng motion for reconsideration--the Reso-
lution was dated September 5, 1991--ay talaga pong
wala raw silang choice kundi simultaneous, May 11.
And they are really afraid that if we are talking of 51 to 57
candidates, they may not be capable of handling the exer-
cise in a credible way.

So they are pleading with us to give this formula.
Well, the reception that they feel it deserves so that they
can discharge their constitutional mandate.

Senator Romulo. And the Gentleman has just
stated, Mr. President, that it seems the resolution passed
by the Supreme Court, dated September 5, is quite clear

that there is no other formula that could be resorted to,
constitutionally, other than a constitutional amendment
to change the simultaneous, on the same day, holding of
both the national and the local elections. Is that correct?

Senator Saguisag. Iyan po ay paulit-ulit na
binigyang-diin dito sa mga companion cases of Lopez vs.
Comelec, G.R. No. 100420, at iba pang mga asunto. 1
was really personally hoping that some leeway could be
given to the COMELEC so that the local elections can be
held, say, a week or two or three, later.

But when I took this up with Chairman Monsod also
early this afternoon, the problem he raised was, again, on
the management or administrative side, meaning, a new
set of ballot boxes. And, maybe, two or three or four
weeks after May 11, he fears that many of his people will
still be engaged in many post-electoral duties in connec-
tion with the May 11, 1991 exercise.

So I think they are resigned that, as of today, nothing
more can be done to change the intent of the decision and
resolution of the Supreme Court, mandating that the
COMELEC hold a single, simultaneous, and synchro-
nized election, all on May 11, 1992, Mr. President.

Senator Romulo. Ang pagkapaliwanag po ninyo,
hindi lamang iyong constitutional issue kundi maging
iyong administrative problems would be involved doon
sa nabanggit ninyo kahapon. Na maski na in a space of
one month, assuming that this was constitutional, sang-
ayon sa paliwanag sa inyo ni Chairman Monsod, we
would encounter many administrative problems and diffi-
culties?

Senator Saguisag. Iyon po ang binigyang-diin niya
dahil 1 was discussing with him: What about another
effort to separate the elections? My conviction from the
very beginning was, definitely it would be difficult to
support a proposition separating the elections if the local
elections would be held beyond June 30, 1992. But I had
hoped that the Supreme Court would not have been so
strict as to the simultaneous holding of the elections,
given the predictable problems of having the exercise
held in one day, if we will be dealing with the 51 to 57
names to be listed on the ballot.

On top of the constitutional concerns, the Chairman
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impressed on me the managerial and administrative
nightmares that may accompany an election space S0
close to each other.

Senator Romulo. Because of the difficulty that
would be met, if we do not change through the electoral
reform law, this law, the number of positions to be voted
upon, which is anywhere from 51 to, possibly, even 56,
our COMELEC Chairman is very apprehensive about the
credibility of the election.

That is why the message, I think, that we are getting
from him based on the Gentleman’s statement is that
since there is no other means by which we can separate
the two before June 30, 1992, in order to make this a
more manageable election process, the only recourse,
other than a constitutional amendment, is to see how,
through the redistricting process, we can reduce that 56 or
51 to a lesser number, a more manageable' number. Is
that the message that I get, Mr. President?

Senator Saguisag. Ganoon na nga po iyon. If we
cannot have what we like, we have to like what we have.
Wala pong choice. Because, earlier, I was so impressed
by what Chairman Monsod was telling me, and then
when I heard Senator Pimentel, na-impressed din po ako.
Ngayon, noong nakikinig ako sa inyo--

Senator Romulo. Mas lalo.

Senator Saguisag. --nai-impress na naman po ako.
I am so impressionable, Mr. President.

Senator Romulo. Ngayon, wala na po tayong
magagawa, ang sabi nga natin, other than a
constitutional amendment--which I do not know if that is
one the Gentleman is proposing. I do not know that--
apart from that, the only way is to reduce the number of
positions. llan' pong number of positions ang maaari
nating i-reduce to make it manageable?

Ang akin pong bilang, before we went into this exer-
cise, I have 51 positions. Obviously, I was not accurate
there because I understand that there are more than that,
probably, 56. By how much can we reduce the number?
The COMELEC gives us a formula: first of all, a man-
ageable number and secondly, a formula that would
enable us to attain this number. Let us say, ano ba ang
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target natin out of 51 or 56, 35?7 And ifitis 35,1 mean, I
am just getting figures from the air because, ang sabi ko,
kung 51 or 56, obviously, kung 45 lamang, siguro halos
ganoon din. So,1 am trying to hit a moderate figure, 35
or 37, therefore, that would reduce it from 56 to 37 by
20. Siguro po, this is a reasonable deduction to meet the
requirements to make it a credible election.

Now, if it is 36 or 37, what is the formula in order to
attain this number? Mayroon po ba kayong napag-usa-
pan?

Senator Saguisag. Ang figure pong ibinigay sa atin
ng COMELEC kahapon which is I reiterated now, is, it
will be somewhere in between 34 to 38.

Senator Romulo. Isee.

Senator Saguisag. And the formulation is found on
page 2, Section 4, Election of Members of the Sangguni-
ang Panlalawigan, Sangguniang Panlungsod and
Sangguniang Bayan by district.

In other words, the way to visualize it is to remind
ourselves of how they do it in Manila, for instance,
where it is not voting at large in relation to the councilors.
So roughly, iyon ang approach na gagamitin sa panuka-
lang batas na ito. It follows that if we are not going to
vote at large, then the number will be reduced. So, the
maximum that I hear is that, no more than 38, which in
the belief and the opinion of the COMELEC is something
that it should be able to deal with.

Senator Romulo. Maganda po iyan, sapagkat kung
56 or 57, we would be able to reduce it by 20 and that
certainly, I think, would work towards our goal of having
a credible and doable election. '

Ngayon, ito bang 38--siguro ay hindi tama iyong
question ninyo--na-test na ba ng COMELEC iyong 38
na maximum number with the present provision, Section
4, as written here? Makikita natin talaga iyong 38, based
on those in the municipality who are voting; those who
are in urbanized cities who are voting; and those who are
in other cities who are voting. Iyan lamang naman po--
municipalities, urban centers and urbanized cities.

Iyan po ba ay na-test na ng COMELEC na under all
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those circumstances, ang pinakamataas, under Section 4,
as written and as drafted, would not exceed a maximum
number of 38 positions?

Senator Saguisag. My understanding is that the bill
before us was drafted in very close consultation with the
COMELEC. : -

I have been handed here now a detailed summation of
how the profile will be throughout the country. It begins
with the City of Manila where we have 27 national posi-
tions--one mayor, one vice mayor, and six councilors, or
a total of 35 positions. This identifies the situation for
every city and municipality, Quezon City, Kalookan
City, Cebu, Davao, Pateros. So it is very detailed. Ap-
parently, the proper homework was done by our friends
in the COMELEC, in consultation with Chairman Nep-
tali Gonzales.

Senator Romulo. If the Vice-Chairman is satisfied
that under all circumstances, hindi sosobra sa 38 ang
number .of positions, then I am also satisfied, and of
course, I want to have a copy because I want to assure
myself also that this is really a doable and credible elec-
‘tion.

I share that apprehension that if we load the ballot
with too many positions and we have to contend not only
with the position but with the proliferation of parties and
candidates, then truly, it may be an election that is almost
a farce. Therefore, why-hold an election at all?

What I am saying is that since we are holding an
election, we must ensure and assure that it is a doable and
credible honest election. Therefore, kung iyon po ang not
over 38, siguro po okay iyan.

Senator Saguisag. In fact, I have also been shown
the prototype ballots here. So this Senator is not really
hard to please, but this study has also satisfied the more
fastidious standards of the Chairman. Kaya po siguro,
this must be workable; this must be practical.

I give due deference to the experts in the field. And
as I said, ito po ay natanggap ni Chairman Neptali
Gonzales, so that if we are committed to redistricting,
maybe, it can be done, subject to the reservations raised
by Senator Pimentel who says that he has also gone

around, and there had been objections. So we just have to
concentrate on satisfying those objections about possible
discrimination and gerrymandering.

But as I have said, and the Gentleman, as I uhder-

stand it, agrees with me, it may not be the best or ideal

arrangement, but there is nothing better, it seems, if we
are to have that very vital exercise carried out in 1992,

Senator Romulo. They are hard choices, Mr. Presi-
dent, and I, myself have gone around. They have really
posed strong objections to this redistricting, because they
said that if we redistrict, we are reducing the councilors to
glorify barangay captains. There is a prestige thing there.

" So I think in the case, for instance, of the councilors,
they are almost unanimously against redistricting for that
reason. But they also pose the other reason, and I am just
mentioning this for the record. They said, ‘“Well, you
are going to balkanize the municipalities.

So instead of all the councilors working together to

have projects in places where they ought to be, the coun-
cilors in the balkanized areas will then want those proj-
ects--particularly since they have the resources now--
placed in their respective districts, regardless of whether a
certain district deserves it or not.

I am just enumerating some of the reasons why these
councilors, it seems to me, supported by the other local
officials, are against redistricting. As the Gentleman
said, these are hard choices. Between those objections
posed and the fact that we really want an election that is
credible, a true election that will reflect the will of the
people, is there any choice, Mr. President?

Senator Saguisag. That is really the problem. The
choice is between being balkanized, which is bad enough,
and being fractionalized and atomized, which is going to
be worse if we do not have a credible election next year.

Senator Romulo. One other point of clarification. In
the case of Manila, the number of 35 positions was men-
tioned. I understand there are sectoral representatives to
be elected. Have we included there the sectoral represen-
tatives?

Senator Saguisag. What we have before us now is

15

2




Bill on Synchronized Elections

RECORD OF THE SENATE

Vol. II, No. 35

35. If there will be sectoral representation, there will be
an additional three.

Senator Romulo. So, 38.

Senator Saguisag. Yes, Mr. President, which
should still be manageable. Anyway, for all we know,
maybe, in the election in Manila, only Mr. Romulo may
be chosen for the Senate. So, that should bring it down.

Senator Romulo. If Senator Saguisag will run, he
will be number one in the City of Manila.

How about the others where the maximum of 38 is
reached, does that include also the sectoral representa-
tives to be elected? Just for the record.

Senator Saguisag. I understand that there are really
very few with 38. So, it will be a maximum of 41. There
could really be a problem.

Senator Romulo.. With a few, at most. So, by and
large, the 38 maximum, which‘includes sectoral represen-
tatives, would be in most polling booths.

Senator Saguisag. That probably will be the norm
which can be handled adequately by the COMELEC.

Senator Romulo. I would like to move on to the
other topic which I mentioned to the distinguished Sena-
tor yesterday. We are seatmates, and we have been
talking. This refers to the campaign and election period.

I think it is very clear, both in the constitutional
provision and the Supreme Court decision, that the cam-
paign period--which includes the election period, or the
election period which includes the campaign period--
shall not exceed 90 days before the day of the election. Is
that correct, Mr. President?

Senator Saguisag. Maybe, for the guidance of eve-
rybody, we can read into the Record the pronouncement
of the Supreme Court last September 5.

Senator Romulo. Yes, Mr. President.

Senator Saguisag. It reads:
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On the motion for the issuance of clarifying
resolution filed by the Office of the Solicitor General
whereby respondent Commission on Elections seeks
a clarification of the issue on whether or not in the
exercise of its authority under Section 9, Article IX of
the Constitution it can set the nomination and
election of candidates by political parties on a date
earlier than the start of the election period, suffice it
to state that this issue was not raised by the parties
and, therefore, could not be a proper subject of a
motion for clarification.

However, the Supreme Court went on to say:

At any rate, Section 9, Article IX of the
Constitution provides:

Sec. 9. Unless otherwise fixed by the
Commission in special cases, the election period shall
commence ninety days before the day of election and
shall end thirty days thereafter. -

It is clear, therefore, from the foregoing section that
the election period is what is stated in said provision.

Likewise, nomination is not necessarily the start of
the election period. This seems to be open to the reading
that if a political party nominates its candidates in No-
vember, December, or January, that may be acceptable,
especially if the Commission on Elections will set it as a
proper time to do it. Sapagkat ang sabi po dito ay hindi
raw kasama iyon sa election period.

That is why it is probably constitutionally permis-
sible--and this is the more likely interpretation--to hold
conventions as early as 180 days, 150 days, 135 days, 120
days, if the Commission on Elections, in the exercise of
its duty under the Constitution, so fixes.

At lalo na po kung pagkakahati-hati ng kuru-kuro
riyan, may nagsasabi na ‘‘it is not in our province for us
to set this election period.”” Pero kung iyon pong period
na ilalagay natin dito ay iyon din ang tatanggapin ng
Commission on Elections, then I will be very comfort-
able in saying that that will survive any constitutional

challenge.

Senator Romulo. The Gentleman is correct, Mr.
President. But there are two significant points there that I
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gathered from his answer. The first is in the reading of
the Supreme Court Resolution, which says that, “like-
wise, nomination is not necessarily the start of the elec-
tion period,”” which means that the Constitution has not
" categorically made a statement that it is not part of the
election period.

The other significant point that the Gentleman has
mentioned is, if the COMELEC so provides, or So agrees,
or so concurs. I think those are significant, because it
may be constitutional to hold the nomination or conven-
tion ahead of the election or campaign period, but do we
want to hold the nomination or convention ahead, espe-
cially way ahead of the campaign or election period? If
we do that in effect, means--and I think the Gentleman in
the past had objected to this. For instance, we set it at
180 days, probably by October or November, when we
have this convention, although the Supreme Court says
“‘not necessarily the start of the election period’’, that, in
fact, is the kickoff and the start.

Practically speaking, for one to go back here while he
has been chosen and selected, I think his attention would
be divided and certainly his output would suffer. That is
the reason, why it is my own humble opinion that the
shorter this period is provided, the better.

Anyway, the Constitution states: ‘‘unless otherwise
fixed by the Commission in special cases.”” Therefore, if
I have my druthers--precisely because there are a lot of
work needed to be done in the Executive and in Congress,
particularly with the problems of Mt. Pinatubo--that we
should include the nomination and convention on that 90
days. Anyway, the COMELEC can so fix a different date
in special cases. So, I think we owe it to our people that
we stay in our jobs. As the Gentleman himself stated, we
were elected to do our work. Therefore, if we are going
to kick off and go to the hustings, then, we are, in effect,
reneging on our pledge to our people.

That is just my humble submission. Just to repeat,
anyway, if itis valid and meritorious, the COMELEC can
so provide 90 days, siguro 15 days, or 30 days puwede
Lyan.

Perhaps, if this is already the period of amendments,
and I have the support of the Gentleman, I would like to
propose that even the nomination and convention be

within those 90 days. Anyway, the Constitution takes
care of exceptions. Do I have the support of the Gentle-
man?

Senator Saguisag. May mga problema po dito sa
pananaw ko, kung bakit nagkakaroon, ng obiter dictum.
Likewise, nomination is not necessarily the start of the
election period. Malinaw po itong Section 9, *‘the elec-

tion period shall commence ninety days before the day of

election’’.

It can only be changed by the COMELEC in special
cases: Now, I do not really know what a special case
could be. But as a practical matter, ang kursunada po
yata ng COMELEC gy 135 days, which will mean early
January--January 2.

Ang totoo po, in a certain sense, we are dealing with a
phantom concern because the election period started, for
a number of us, yesterday, so to speak. But still, I am
very concerned, for instance, as to what will happen in
regard to the next Members of the House of Representa-
tives. They will have only three years. And if we set this
dangerous and mischievous precedent of not working for
six months, a neophyte congressman may take one year
before he locates the comfortroom. And then the last six
months, he will not be doing anything either.

I think that is really unfair to the electorate if we
approve, in this particular case, the proposed calendar
that beginning December, we will be taking off and we
will not be seeing one another again here until May 25
when we will, by then, know who is the next President
and the next set of Senators.

In fairness to the Chamber, last September 16, action
on that calendar was deferred. To me, I am in accord with
anything that will cut short that period. It also magnifies
in an artificial sense, the importance of politics in this
country.

There may be some facets of American life that we
may not like. And yet, I am impressed favorably by the
fact that in the U.S., not. even election day itself is a
holiday. If one is a candidate for public office, and he is
a schoolteacher, he votes at seven o’clock because he is
expected to be at his post at eight o’ clock.
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So, it is very important to impress on the youth that
we should not have an overheated political culture here.
Ito po ay anim na buwan. Ang akala tuloy ng ating mga
kabataan, everything should revolve around politics.
That is what we are going to do with what we have done
in regard to that calendar. Na hindi importante ang
magtrabaho, hindi importante ang work ethic, kundi ang
importante ay politika. And, we, in this Congress, will
be blamed. We promised in 1987 that we will have an
ethical and a moral high-minded Congress. That is what
we are saying. But what are we doing?

So to me, talagang masyado ang hilig ng Pilipino sa
politika. Iyan nga po ang biro ko dito sa mga Kasama
natin' na kapag tinawag ninyong ‘‘Mr. President,”’
naluluha na gayong kay layo pa ng May 11, 1992.

To me, 180 is out; even 150, I find unacceptable.

Maybe at least, the year should turn and, maybe occasion-
ally we should even be meeting in February or March,
kung iyon po ang magiging kapasyahan ng nakararami
sa atin---That may be too hopeful and optimistic on my
part. But, as I have said, the Senate will partly be judged
by the way we handle that Calendar.

o Tayo ang nangako na iba ang ating political values.
That we will set a new ethical and moral infrastructure,
And then, what are we doing? Six months ng bakasyong
grande. We will continue to get paid not doing our job. I
do not know of any parliament in the world that takes off
for six months to campaign. Sa palagay ko po, mahihira-
pan tayong i-justify sa kasaysayan kung sakaling itong
Senado ay papayag doon sa panukala ng mga Kasama
natin sa higit na Malaking Kapulungan,

So in the period of amendments, personally, I will be
sympathetic to any proposal to shorten the period within
reason. I do not know if 90 days is really enough. Ido
not think it will receive enough votes. But definitely, I
hope that the period will not start within the year.

Ngayon, kung iyon po ang ise-set nila sa
COMELEC, sa palagay ko, if there is a conflict between
what the Congress will set and what the COMELEC will
set, I think the COMELEC wil] prevail, anyway. Their
thinking as of the moment is 135 days to commence on
January 2. If we cannot shorten it to 90 days, baka po
iyong 135, especially if it is set by some other body.

18

Senator Romulo. Yes.

Senator Saguisag. But for the Record, I do not think
that this Congress should go on record na 180 days or
some such days.

In other words, kung ang magse-set ng 180 days ay
ang COMELEC, hindi po tayo masisisi. But it seems SO
self-serving if we are going to do it. Anyway, there is
really great doubt as to the constitutionality of the Con-
gress doing it. So, why risk being criticized by the public
and by history when, probably, the proper instrumentality
to do it is the Commission on Elections anyway?

Senator Romulo. I agree with the distinguished
Gentleman. We should set the example and we should
set the model. That is why in my view, Mr. President,
that model should be including the nomination and con-
vention, 90 days.

Now, it is up to the COMELEC, and the people
repose that in the COMELEC, precisely. The people
repose that in the COMELEC to extend it and expand it,
if in the view of the COMELEC, in special cases, there is
need otherwise for another period.

That is why, for the reasons that the distinguished

Gentleman has stated, the provision here should be, for
our purposes, not exceeding 90 days. Let the COMELEC
rule on what is meritorious, whether to extend it or not,
provided that there is a petition.

Also, we have not yet finished the budget. I recall
that in 1991, it took us up to June to finish the 1991
Budget. Now, we should, at least, clear the year, up to
the end of the year, to have that budget finished before we
engage in any electoral campaign or nomination activi-
ties. So that at the very least, 1991 should be completely
clear without conventions and all of these sort of things.
And hopefully, depending on the COMELEC action, if
there is a petition, that all of these will start only on the
second Monday of February 1992 to complete that three-
month process up to the second Monday of May, 1992,

Senator Saguisag. My belief is that, that will be
appreciated by the public. That this is a very responsible
Congress--up to its duties. Whereas to the budget, as
long as the P6.5 billion for the Bataan Nuclear Power
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Plant is deleted, maybe, I can close my eyes to the other
items. But I think we should really give a fight or,
maybe, even meet to try to override a predictable veto. I
do not know. This can be done only in January or early
February.

Senator Romulo. That is the whole point. I think
the distinguished Gentleman has given another reason
why we should not be engaged in this electoral campaign
or convention hullabaloo until we give ourselves that
opportunity beyond December 31, because I would go
not only for a deletion of the Bataan Nuclear Power Plant,
but the entire debt structure, Mr. President, if we want to
be able to provide more for the social sector, social serv-
ices.of our people.

Therefore, that is another reason, why not only for
the entire 1991 should we clear the deck for our legisla-
tive agehda, but even for the first two months of 1992, so
that we can truly tell the people that we have done our
job, and we did not *‘play hooky’’ for our own personal,
presidential, senatorial, or whatever, ambitions.

Senator Saguisag. In fact, I would like to think that
is the smartest way of campaigning, by being seen here
working very hard. So instead of engaging in certain
practices, I think the best recommendation that one
should be returned here is that one is really working very
hard for the welfare of the people. According to an
unsolicited advice here, it is even less expensive. I am
beginning to imagine the genius behind the recommenda-
tion, Mr. President.

Senator Romulo. Since the Gentleman mentioned
those who are running--naturally they want to win, and
this, as he said, is the most winning formula--I hope that
his pleas and aspirations have touched the right chord
and, therefore, give the necessary majority to so provide
when we discuss that particular provision and when we
propose that amendment..

Senator Saguisag. I have no doubt that such a
posture will heighten the risk of winning, Mr. President.

Senator Romulo. Moving to another topic and this
was the other topic that I mentioned to the Gentleman--
the potential employment of guns and goons during the
electoral process. I do not know if any of us here are

concerned about this, about having an arsenal, or whether
we do not want to have an arsenal, or whatever. Since
we are talking here of electoral reforms, does the Gentle-
man think that there is need to touch on that matter here
in the supposedly electoral reform bill? Or, is that al-
ready provided elsewhere?

Senator Saguisag. For instance, in Section 261 of
the Omnibus Election Code, subsection *‘p’’ and *‘q’’,
they deal with deadly weapons and carrying firearms
outside one’s residence or place of business. But I guess,
our experience here does not match the intent of the law.

This Representation is open to concrete suggestions
in this respect. As of now, I am really at a loss as to how
we can further refine what is in the statute books. It
remains one of the serious problems in the way of having
apeaceful and credible exercise.

At this juncture, the President Pro Tempore relin-
quished the Chair to Senator Mercado.

Kaya kung mag-iisip tayo ng maaari pang maisama
sa mga panukala dito, dahil sa posibilidad na magkaka-
roon na naman ng dahas, nandiyan po iyan.

Senator Romulo. In fact, I mentioned that because
one, two or three weeks ago, may nagpatayan na sa
Makati gayong hindi pa man election. Of course, I do not
know if that is related to any election contest. But the
fact that the bodyguards of certain politicians were in-
volved, I think is already some telltale sign to us that if
we do not do something about the so-called ‘‘body-
guards’’--I am not even saying ‘‘goons’’, just ‘‘body-
guards’’--with deadly weapons, perhaps, in the heat of
the campaign, yamang mayroon pang iba na gustong
gawing 180 days or 210 days ang nomination process,
kahimanawari ay hindi mangyari iyon. This could be a
very--whatever we may call it--deadliest or bloodiest
campaign.

Let us remember na pagsasamahin natin ngayon ang
local passions with regional and national passions. Kaya,
iyan ang isang punto kung bakit dapat nating paikliin
ang election period. Siguro, kung shorter ang total
election, bago uminit ang ulo o mag-build up ang init ay
tapos na ang eleksiyon. But, also, during that process ay
kailangan po nating pag-isipan iyan. Kung hindi, baka
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maraming madamay.

Siguro po ay dapat din nating hingin iyan sa
COMELEC, sapagkat nag-volunteer sila na they are not
using firearms. I read that in the papers, even COME-
LEC personnel voluntarily decided not to wear or use
firearms but, instead, surrender them to the COMELEC
storeroorm.

Kaya, ito po siguro ay kailangang pag-isipan sa-
pagkat naniniwala ako na kung hindi natin ilalagay iyan
dito, or in the other laws that are pertinent to this, we
would be recreant or remiss in our duties. But, of course,
kailangan din po ang enforcement, that is why COME-
LEC is there. ‘

Wala po akong katanungan except that I am express-
ing my deep concern about the situation. :

Hindi ko po alam kung may bodyguard kayo at may
mga UZIs ang bodyguard ninyo. Hindi ko po alam.
Hindi ko naman sasabihin kung sino ang may mga
bodyguard at may mga UZIs dito. Siguro iyan ay judicial
notice na. I hesitate to make a statement because I do not
want to be accusing anybody.

Kayo po ba ay may bodyguard na may UZI at kung
anu-ano pa?

Senator Saguisag. Alam ninyo, iyong nangyaring
putukan sa Makati kamakailan ay sa barangay namin
Iyon,

Senator Romulo. Ganoon pala.

Senator Saguisag. Tungkol po sa bodyguard,
magastos po iyan. Kaya nga pinag-aaralan namin iyan.
Kung hindi man kami mamatay sa bala ay baka naman
mamatay kami sa gutom. :

It is very difficult maintaining security personnel.
Iyong panganay ko na 18 taong gulang at iyong anak
kong babae na 17 taong gulang--sa Palanan po kami
nakatira--ay nagbu-bus lamang araw-araw. Kaya hindi
ko po kaya ang mag-bodyguard.

Anyway, ang paniniwala ko naman diyan ay, when
the good Lord calls, we report. Even if we are not the
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worse lawyer in town, it is very seldom that we succeed
with the motion for reconsideration. '

Iyon po ay ipinasasa-Diyos ko na. Wala naman
akong inaagrabiyado sa buhay. Kaya, bahala na po ang
Diyos. ’ :

On principle, I do not believe in having bodyguards.
I know I am not the only one here. But those who feel
that they need them, I also recognize that, maybe, given
the unique circumstances they are in ay kailangan iyan.

Mayroon nga lamang obserbasyon dito na kapag
may baril ang isang Pilipino ay tumatapang ito. So, if
they are not properly tested, maybe, by a psychiatrist, et
cetera, we know how dangerous an instrumentality a
weapon could be.

So for those of us in public life, or even in private
life, who may feel the need, because of unusual circum-
stances, we can only hope that they will be very circum-
spect in selecting those who will protect them.

Some of the sad stories we hear and read s, probably,
traceable to the fact that some of those given guns have a
very low threshold for tolerance. So, it is a problem.

The only thing I see in the law now regarding fire-
arms during elections ay ito pong Section 261, subsection
(q): Carrying Firearms Outside The Residence Or Place
Of Business.’

And I quote:

Any person who, although possessing a permit to
carry firearms, carries any firearm outside his
residence or place of business during the election
period, unless authorized in writing by the
Commission, is an election offense.

Iyan lamang ang masasabi ko riyan. Alam ko pong
sila ay hindi rin naniniwala sa bodyguards, and we know
how unfair some reportage were, when two soldiers, who
are supposed to have been assigned to the Gentleman,
never reported even for a single day and yet the military
records would show that they were supposedly detailed to
him. We hope that that has since been corrected.

Iyon na nga. Different folks have different strokes,
wika nga.
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Maybe there is a reason for each one of us in public
life to behave the way we do but, as I said, we cannot be
too careful in arming anybody, especially given the sorry
record of some of those concerned, na dahil lamang sa
walang kakuwenta-kuwentang bagay and at the slightest

provocation, they end up with a bloody mess.

T hope that in the period of interpellations, we will be
able to add some more teeth into the present state of the
law, but the distinguished Gentleman is the first to say
that he does not have really concrete suggestion at this
point. Sana po ay makaisip tayo ng paraan kung pa-
paano lalong mahihigpitan at sana ay gumanda ang im-
plementasyon nito.

Senator Romulo. Totoo po iyan at sa gayon ay
mere-testrict natin ito. Naniniwala po ako that the sys-
tera of regulation and licensing of firearms is still too
loose. Kagaya po ng sinabi ninyo, at the slightest
pr 'vocation, kapag may baril ang isang tao ay nagiging
la.ong matapang. Sa eleksiyon po, hindi tyan slightest
provocation. That, to many, is life and death. ‘Kaya
ka'langan talagang magbuklud-buklod tayo at pag-isi-
pe 1 kung paano mare-regulate at mare-restrict ito.

Siguro ay hindi lamang kailangang ma-restrict kundi
me.alis din iyan with the proper penalties at nang sa
8a-oon, we can ensure not only a peaceful but a credible
election. Ngunit kung pababayaan natin tyang local,
regional, national candidates with armies bristling with
the latest weaponry and technology, sa palagay ko po,
kagaya ng sinabi ko, we would be missing the boat in this
electoral reform no matter how beautiful it is crafted.

Maski na- po_i-reduce pa natin iyong number of..

candidates, kung mayroon pa ring threat of violence--our
past experience would probably be our good guide. Kaya
kailangang pag-isipan nating mabuti ito with the
COMELEC upang mailagay natin dito or in other laws
more restrictions and limitations and elimination, if pos-
sible, of deadly weapons and guns.

Senator Saguisag. Mr. President, I am informed by
our companero here that, in fact, later this week, the
Commission will be sitting down with General Abadia,
General Nazareno and General Lim in an effort to address

-a very valid concern that has been raised by the Gentle-
man.

Senator Romulo. Finally, siguro kung walang mga
armas, the most is suntukan, maski na batuhan lamang,
ngunit that is not final. Ngunit kapag may arsenal, that is
an action with finality. Kaya po siguro ay dapat nating
pag-isipan itong mabuti.

- Marami pong salamat sa pagkakataong ibinigay

ninyo sa akin, lalung-lalo na sa napakagandang mga
sagot at ideya ninyo.

Salamat po.
Senator Saguisag. Maraming salamat din po.
SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

The Presiding Officer [Senator Mercado]. The
Chair -will declare a suspension of the session for our
usual break, if there is no objection. [There was none.)

It was 5:40 p.m.
RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION
At 6:11 p.m., the session was resumed.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Mercado]. The ses-
sion is resumed.

The Chair recognizes Senator Lina, who wishes to
interpellate the Sponsor of the measure, Senator Sa-
guisag.

Senator Lina. Ako po ay pinakiusapan na bukas na
lamang daw magtanong. Kaya, bagama't enthusiastic

akong magtanong, ipagpapabukas ko na rin. O kaya,

kakausapin ko na lamang po kayo--hindi ko na ilalagay sa
Record--para marinig ko na lamang sa aking kaibigan
iyong aking katanungan,

The Presiding Officer [Senator Mercado]. The
Chair appreciates all efforts to speed up deliberations on
this measure.,

Are there any other interpellations of the Sponsor?
SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

The Presiding Officer [Senator Mercado]. The ses-
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sion is suspended, if there is no objection. [There was
none.) :

Itwas 6:12 p.m.
RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION

At 6:19 p.m., the session was resumed with the Hon-
orable Jovito R. Salonga, President of the Senate, presid-

ing.
The President. The session is resumed.

SUSPENSION OF CONSIDERATION
OF SENATE BILL NO. 1861

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, Senator Laurel
has manifested his desire to continue the interpellation on
the Synchronization of Elections Bill. I, therefore, move
that we suspend consideration of this measure.

The President. Is there any objection? [Silence]
Hearing none, the motion is approved.

BILL ON SECOND READING
Sénate Bill No. 1648 - Creating Baselands
Development Authority
(Continuation)

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that we
resume consideration of Senate Bill No. 1648, the Base-
lands Development Authority measure, as reported out
under Committee Report No. 1329. I ask that we recog-
nize Senator Shahani.

The President. Senator Shahani is recognized.

Senator Shahani. Thank you, Mr. President. I
just would like to remind this Chamber that I gave the
Sponsorship Speech on the Baselands Authority on June
5, 1991. This was before we adjourned our Fourth Regu-
lar Session, and this was also before Mt. Pinatubo
erupted. Of course, since then, Mr. President, so much
has taken place. '

Your Chairman of the Foreign Relations has made it

a point to be in touch with the Special Operations Team,
which made a preliminary study on the viability of the
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Legislative-Executive Bases Conversion Plan. On con-
sultation with them, they are of the view that the conver-
sion plan still is valid especially for Subic, but the plan
for Clark has to be revised, although proposals, like the
setting up of an industrial estate in Clark, would still be
viable. ’

This evening, I should like to inform this Chamber of
the following: Committee Report No. 1329, which em-
bodies the amendments to the piece of legislation before
us, was jointly submitted by the Committees on Foreign
Relations; Government Corporations and Public Enter-
prises; National Defense and Security; Economic Affairs;
and Finance,

This aggrupation of Committees was made just be-
cause there were so many items which needed the deci-
sions and the attention of these Committees concerned.

The Committee amendments are numerous and they

appear in the Committee Report. We also have included,
as part of the Committee amendments, those portions
which figured in the House Resolution, concerning the
conversion of the Baselands Authority. The version of
the House was in the form of a Joint Resolution. But we
decided that it would be better if the Senate came up with
a proper bill, because there are appropriations required in
this bill, and we felt that a bill would be the proper
vehicle,

MANIFESTATION OF SENATOR SHAHANI
(Bill Version to Include All Amendments)

In view of the many Committee amendments, I
should like to make the manifestation that a version be
prepared by the Bills and Index Division which would
include all of the Committee amendments. This will
really make the discussion on this important piece of
legislation easier to follow by all concerned.

The President. And that will be our working basis
for discussion.

Senator Shahani. This should serve as ouf working
document.

The President. Is there any objection to that sugges-
tion?
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School in Bangued; Benguet School in Bokod;
Pangasinan School in Lingayen; Bicol College in
Naga City; Camarines Norte School in Jose
Pangasinan; Zamboanga del Norte School in Dipolog
City; Zamboanga School in Zamboanga City; Pandan
School in Catanduanes; Hadji Butu in Sulu; Sorsogon
College in Sorsogon; Camiguin School in Mambajao;
Agusan del Sur School in Patin-ay Prosperidad;
Ozamis City School in Ozamis City; and Northern
Mindanao School in Agusan Del Norte.

The President Pro Tempore. Referred to the Com-
mittee on Finance.

The Majority Floor Leader is recognized.

BILL ON SECOND READING
Senate Bill No. 1861 - Synchronized Elections
(Continuation)

Senator Guingona. I move that we resume consid-
eration of Senate Bill No. 1861 as reported out under
Commiittee Report No. 1373.

I ask the we recognize Senator Saguisag.

The President Pro Tempore. Senator Saguisag is
recognized.

Is there any member who wishes to submit amend-
ments?

Senator Guingona. Mr. President.

The President pro Tempore. The Majority Floor
Leader is recognized. ’

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, the Consultant of
the COMELEC showed us a copy of the election returns,
and he says that the use of a thinner paper and some
chemicals, the seventh copy can be legible. Therefore, I
am proposing that election returns and certificate of can-
vass be in seven copies.

The President Pro Tempore. What does the spon-
sor say? ' :

Senator Saguisag. I have before me a sample set of
election returns . A number of Senators have tried by my
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~ way of an experiment, using our normal writing norms.

Except in the case of one of us who deliberately used
added or extra force, the signature either were not legible
as to sixth and seventh copies or were hardly legible.
Kaya, kung ang pagbabasihan po ay iyong ginagamit na
papel ngayon, kapag nagdagdag pa ng ika-walo ay tala-
gang lalong hindi na mababasa.

Now, I am not sure whether the COMELEC has had
the time to experiment with thinner material. Maybe,
they need time to do that.

Senator Guingona. That is what the consultant,
Atty. de Lima, and Chairman Monsod himself told me.

Senator Saguisag. The representation being made to
me now is, if thinner paper is used, thinner than the one
that I am holding now, the maximum, according to Atty.
de Lima, is still seven?

Senator Guingona. That is right, seven. Because in
the present bill, which is five for the certificate of can-
vass, I want to make it uniform--seven--for all.

Senator Saguisag. In other words, kung ang gaga-
mitin pong papel sa certificate of canvass ay kamukha
nito, puwedeng pito. So, for both documents, the same
materials will be used so that the amendment proposed
will apply to the certificates of canvass para po maging
pitorin. Well, we can accept it.

Puwede po ba iyon? We are consulting now with
Atty. de Lima. [Atty. de Lima nods his head.] The
representation made to me is not as a technical matter.
The problem may be soluble.

Kaya, ang gagawin po natin, when the formal pro-
posal is made for seven, maybe, I can accept it now. We
will change the figure from five to seven in the appropri-
ate parts of the bill before us.

The President Pro Tempore. Is that satisfactory to
the Majority Floor Leader?

Senator Guingona. Yes, Mr. President.

The President Pro Tempore. So, it is being ac-
cepted by the Sponsor.
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Senator Rasul. Mr. President.

The President Pro Tempore. Senator Rasul is rec-
ognized.

Senator Rasul. Before I introduce my amendments,
Mr. President, I would like to ask some clarificatory
questions. This has to do Section 25 on page 18.

Section 25 mentions the provisions of watchers for
every registered political party, coalition or political par-
ties, and every candidate shall each be entitled to one
watcher in every polling place. However, in the subse-
quent provisions, only two parties are provided with
watchers--the ruling party and the dominant opposition.

1 would like to ask a clarification as to which one
should should prevail. Is it all political parties or is it just
the two political parties that will be provided with watch-
ers?

The President Pro Tempore. The Sponsor.

Senator Saguisag. It is really a policy choice. The
Chamber is really divided on it.

I can accept an amendment, as suggested, that we
eliminate-- dahil ang alternative po ay technically insur-
mountable. Not enough copies can be produced in one
act or writing to enable each party to obtain one. That
was also raised earlier by some colleagues of ours and as I
said, just to resolve the issue, I will be open to accepting
proposal to do away with the preferred positions enjoyed
by the majority party and the dominant opposition party
to put everytody on the level of playing field, so to
speak. Pare-pareho na lamang ho. Tutal, 1ahat naman dy
mabibigyan ng certificate of votes.

Senator Rasul. Since that has been clarified, I
would like now to introduce and amendment that all
parties which garnered at least 10 percent of the votes in
the last national elections should be entitled to watchers,
to election returns, and to certificate of canvass.

Senator Saguisag. The problem is, if the members
of the qualified parties will exceed seven, then unless
there is a separate set of documents, which will mean
more expense, more time, it is not physically feasible.

Senator Rasul. Perhaps, the COMELEC should
look for measures to make it feasible inasmuch as the
Constitution, no less, provides for a multiparty system.

The President Pro Tempore. With the permission
of the Senators on the Floor, the Chair will recognize the
Minority Leader.

Senator Enrile. May I ask some questions of the
Lady Senator,Mr. President, in relation to her proposed
amendment.

What political parties does the Senator have in mind
to be able to determine whether they got 10 percent of the
votes during the last national elections? If I remember
correctly, there were only two or three contending forces
during that election. We have the coalition headed by
President Aquino, of which the Senator is one of the
candidates; the there was the Grand Alliance for Democ-
racy, of which this humble Representation was one of the
candidates; and there was the Kilusang Bagong Lipunan.
So that, if we now talk of 10 percent of the votes during
the last national election, I think that is going to be
difficult to determine.

Actually, we were the dominant political opposition
in the election of 1987, and also in the election of 1988. 1
think that the role has still remained with us up to the
moment. We have had no other election. To deprive the
Opposition, at this late hour, of that role is not only a total
departure from the facts of the last two elections, but, I
think, it is an arbitrary effort to deprive the Opposition
the privileges that it deserves.

Senator Rasul. There is no intention to deprive the
Opposition. What I am saying, is that in addition to the
ruling party and the dominant opposition party, and other
political parties should also be provided -with watchers,
canvassers, as well as election returns. This can easily be
determined by the COMELEC be4cause when the candi-
dates file their certificates of candidacy, they indicate
therein to which political party they belong, even if they
belong to one grand coalition. :

Senator Enrile. My reading of the bill is that the
candidates are given watchers. The political parties are
given watcher. But there are two principal watchers-- one
for the ruling majority and one for the dominant opposi-
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tion or coalition.. These are the principal watchers who
must get a copy because, evidently, the assumption of the
law is that these are the political parties that contended
with one another in the previous elections. Therefore,
they must be provided with these privileges, in recogni-
tion of their performance in the last elections. To deprive
them of that now, I think, is not correct.

Senator Rasul. I am afraid I did not make myself
clear. There is no intention her to disenfrachise the
opposition. What I am saying is, in addition to the
dominant opposition and the ruling parties, the other
smaller parties which garnered at least 10 percent of they
total votes based on the last national elections should
also be provided with the same privileges.

Senator Enrile. In the last national elections, there
was a coalition of forces.

Senator Rasul. Yes, actually, there were four or five
coalitions, but these were composed of deferent political
parties which were not merged. THe candidates files
their certificates of candidacy based on their political
affiliation; that is why they were Liberal Party, they were
PDP-Laban, they were Lakas ng Bansa. I think there
were other parties that fall under the grand coalition.
Unless there will be a move to coalesce as in 1987, the
political parties which formed the Laban Coalition, there
will be no difficulty. But as it is, we do not know because
it seems the Liberal Party now is no longer coalesced
with the ruling political party.

Senator Enrile. Is it the position now of the propo-
nent that the Liberal Party now is an opposition party?

Senator Rasul. No, I am saying that the Liberal
Party is not in coalition with the ruling party. I did not
say that it is an opposition, in the same manner that the
PDP-Laban is not an opposition party.

Senator Enrile. What is the ruling party now? If I
may ask the opinion of the distinguished Lady Senator.

Senator Rasul. If it is based on the number of
elected officials, itis the LDP.

Senator Enrile. And what is the party of the admini-
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stration?

Senator Rasul. The LDP, The Liberal Party, and the
PDP-Laban.

Senator Enrile. That is the party of the administra-
tion?

Senator Rasul. They are notin oppbsition.

Senator Enrile. No, so-that we can settle this, I
would like to know, what is the party of the administra-
tion of President Aquino.

Senator Rasul. The President does not belong to
any political party. If she were to say that she was one
with one political party, then we will know that, that is
the ruling party or the majority party. But the President
has not say to which party she belongs.

Senator Enrile. Am I to understand that the PDP-
Laban is supporting the policies of the administration?

Senator Rasul. The PDP-Laban has always been
supportive of the administration of President Aquino.

Senator Enrile. Therefor, it is not in opposition. It
is not articulating an opposition position to the position
of the administration as a general rule?

Senator Rasul. Yes.
Senator Enrile. How about the Liberal Party?

Senator Rasul. It is also supporting the administra-
tion of President Aquino.

Senator Enrile. And that is also true with respect to
the LDP?

Senator Rasul. As a matter of fact, even the Nacion-
alista Party also supports President Aquino, although it is
the dominant opposition now.

Senator Enrile. The Nacionalista Party to which I
belong is an opposition party. With due respect with my
colleagues here in the Senate, they are Nacionalistas, but
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so far as I know, our roster has not yet registered them as
such, as officially with us in the party.

Senator Rasul. Well, I would not know that, since I
am not a member.,

Senator Rasul. Actually, it is on Section 25, page
18.
Senator Enrile. It says here:

EVERY REGISTERED POLITICAL PARTY,
COALITION OF POLITICAL PARTIES., AND

Anyway; T-would-tike-to-know;
whether the distinguished Lady Senator agrees that it is
essential to our democratic evolution that we have to have
a dominant opposition party?

Senator Rasul. Originally, we only had two politi-
cal parties, but the Constitution has made possible by
enunciating a policy of multi-party system. Since we
have vowed to uphold the Constitution, I think we have
to implement what is in the Constitution. And since the
political parties are to be given watchers, precisely I am
introducing an amendment to also afford the other politi-
cal parties that are either dominant opposition or a ruling
party, provided they have garnered the 10 percent votes in
the last election.

Senator Enrile. Historically, I would like to find out
if the distinguished Lady Senator is aware that in the
election of 1987, we ran the election on the basis of the
present Constitution. Does the Lady Senator agree with
this?

Senator Rasul. In the 1987 election, there were
several political parties, but they just came into an alli-
ance or coalition,

Senator Enrile. Precisely, while the Constitution
recognized multi-party system, yet, it also recognized, as

—a.matter-of_historical fact,-the.- presence_ot.-aa dominant.-

political opposition party.

Senator Rasul. Yes, I think as far a the opposition is
concerned, there is no problem there, because there is
only one dominant opposition party. The problem is with
the ruling coalition, because there are so many other
political parties. If they were to coalesce, there would be
no problem. But the reality of the situation is, we may
have several political parties all presenting their own line-

up.

Senator Enrile. Iam trying to find out the provision
which authorizes the presence of watchers.

EVERY CANDIDATE SHALL EACH BE
ENTITLED TO ONE WATCHER IN EVERY
POLLING PLACE AND CANVASSING CENTER:
PROVIDED, THAT CANDIDATES FOR
MEMBERS OF THE SENATE OR HOUSE OF
REPRESENTATIVES OF THE SANGGUNIANG
PANLALAWIGAN, SANGGUNIANG  PAN-
LUNGSOD, OR SANGGUNIANG BAYAN, AND
FOR CITY OR MUNICIPAL. COUNCILORS
BELONGING TO THE SAME SLATE OR TICKET
SHALL COLLECTIVELY BE ENTITLED ONLY
TO ONE WATCHER.

THERE SHALL ALSO BE RECOGNIZED
TWO  PRINCIPAL WATCHERS, ONE
REPRESENTING THE MAJORITY PARTY OR
COALITION AND THE OTHER DOMINANT
OPPOSITION PARTY OR COALITION.

Would that not be enough to satisfy the distinguished
Lady Senator?

Senator Rasul. Iam talking of providing also elec-

tion returns and certificate of canvass to the political

parties that I mentioned earlier, which has garnered at
least 10 percent of the votes in the last national elections.

When we actually read on, effectively it is only the
two political parties that will be provided watchers.

That is why I thought there was some kind of incon-
sistency, because later in this provision, the enumeration
is seven watchers, but there is no mention of providing
other political parties with election returns or certificates
of canvass. So, if the political parties will be given the
same privileges or rights as the two principal parties,
there should be a provision here which says that the
parties that so qualify should also be provided with elec-
tion returns, as well as the certificates of canvass.

Senator Enrile. I have no special objection to that,
as long as the opposition of the dominant opposition
would not be affected.
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Senator Rasul. As a matter of fact, in a democracy,
it is important that we have a vibrant and effective oppo-
sition, and there is no disagreement there.

The President Pro Tempore. Senator Tamano is
recognized.

Senator Enrile. Mr. President.

The President Pro Tempore. With the permission
of the Senators from the floor. Senator Tamano had
raised his hand early enough, so we will recognize him.

Senator Rasul. The distinguished Sponsor has not
given his reaction to the amendment that I proposed.
Does he agree or...?

Senator Saguisag. I keep consulting the representa-
tive of the COMELEC here, and he validates the observa-
tion that it is physically impossible. There are enough
problems even getting the eight copy, because ideally
every interested party should be given a copy, but with
the new Local Government Code, there will be 57 candi-
dates now.

The worse scenario of Commissioner Haydee Yorac
is that the election may take three days , and with the
additional new set to provide every party, my own prefer-
ence is the formulation of Senator Pimentel that we might
as well do away with giving the majority party and the
dominant opposition party, since everyone concerned
will have a copy of certificates of votes anyway.

Incidentally, there is no problem as to the watchers
themselves, because as along as they can be accommo-
dated, even the members of the public can take part.

Ito pong insurmountable physical aspect of having
more than seven copies is what I am afraid the COME-
LEC is not ready to deal with. The reason I prefer na
wala na po ay dahil mismo sa dominant opposition party,
even on the basis of these criteria, there will be chal-
lenges. Maybe the Liberal Party and the PDP-Laban will
say that: ‘“What did it take to shoot down the Military
Bases treaty?”’ It was the Liberal Party and the PDP-
Laban who formed a majority against it.

Kaya baka mas madali pong sabihin na wala na la-
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mang at bigyan na lamang ang lahat ng certificate of
votes.

Senator Rasul. I would like to ask the distinguished
Sponsor. Under the present setup, which is now the
ruling party? I will repeat the question of Senator Enrile.

The ruling party is LDP. The Liberal Party will not
be afforded all these election returns and the certificates
of canvass.

Senator Saguisag. That is why there is the possible
challenge that the Liberal Party will claim na mas marami
silang Senador. Sapagkat ang nakalagay dito ay: ‘‘the
number of Senators, Members of the House of Represen-
tatives, Provincial Governors...”” So there will be the
argument that even within the coalition, on the basis of
the established record, they have, in fact, been perform-
ing the role of the dominant opposition party.

That is why to avoid into the political morass, I am
receptive to the idea of Senator Pimentel-- why not just
eliminate the need to provide copies to the two parties
sidestep all those arguments. If it were only physically
convenient and feasible to give everybody a copy, wala
na po tayong pag-uusapan. Pero ang sabi ko sa kaibigan
natin sa COMELEC, there is just no way it can physically

‘be done except to have another set prepared, and there are

enough problems as it is in dealing with 57 names.

Kung mayroon lamang magsasabi sa atin na kayang
gawin iyon maski hanggang sampung kopya o labing
apat na kopya o dalawampung kopya, why not?

Senator Rasul. But, in this computer age, I suppose
the COMELEC should be able to deal with the problem.
We can have original duplicates.

Senator Saguisag. Iyon pong pagpirma ang
problema. There limits as to what machines can do, and
there is a phobia in the use of the computers. In fact, ang
bintang po sa atin ng iba diyan, tayo raw ay mga com-
puter Senators.

So, if we can find a physical or a technical solution,
this Senator would be very willing to accept the amend-
ment. But, on top of the problems of determining as to
who will qualify, I am personally inclined to accept the
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proposed amendment of Senator Pimentel--na wala na
lamang pong bigyan.

Senator Rasul. I think, the only parties that will be
affected by this provision are the Liberal Party and the
PDP-Laban. Because in the Nacionalista Party, there is

--------

tion. But is it the Liberal Party, of which the Gentleman
is a member, and the PDP-Laban?

The Gentleman is saying that these parties will not be
provided with these documents.

Senator Saguisag. In terms of parity, why not give
the PNP also a copy?

Senator Rasul. Wala silang ten percent (10%) of the
votes cast in the last election.

Senator Saguisag. Well, I do not know. In terms of
fairness, the more the merrier, so to speak.

Pinurbahan namin physically itong pitong kopya.
Pagka normal po ang pagsulat, hindi na mabasa ang ika-
pitong kopya. Iyon pong ika-anim na kopya ay malabo
na rin. Kaya po kung dadagdagan po ng dalawa o tatlo,
or whatever, the eighth or ninth copy, using the same
stroke, will not serve the purpose that it is intended to
serve.

So, it is really a technical problem. It is not a policy
problem. It is not a philosophical problem, but there are
limits. Even in this technological age, raw po talagang
maaring lumampas sa pito.

Senator Saguisag. Siguro po, pag nandito na si
Senator Pimentel, who makes a powerful representation
on behalf of the historical record of the PDP-Laban and
the Liberal parties.

The President Pro Tempore. The Chair has previ-

Ousiy Tecoghized Senator Tamano, and thei we will g0
again to Senator Enrile.

Senator Enrile. Mr. President, this is a matter of
personal privilege. I amleaving now because I have to go
to the MOPC. I would like to reserve my right to ask
some more questions tomorrow or next Monday.

The President Pro Tempore. Reservation is duly
made.

Senator Enrile. Thank you.

The President Pro Tempore, After Senator Ta-
mano, Senator Maceda. Please proceed.

Senator Tamano. Will the distinguished Sponsor
yield to a few questions?

Senator Saguisag. Willingly.

Senator Tamano. In the province of Lanao del Sur,
where I come from, a very important factor in the elec-
tions is the teachers and the manner in which they are
appointed and selected. Will the distinguished colleague
tell me what are the rules concerning the designation of
teachers as members of the board of election inspectors
under the present law?

Senator Rasul. In fact, these amendments were
proposed by Senator Pimentel,

Senator Saguisag. Siguro po ang solusyon na la-
mang diyan, I think, is to submit it to an up or down vote
once I accept it. I mean, I can accept the elimination of
the need or the duty to give the two parties a copy. And
then, the Chamber may decide whether to overrule me or
to accept my acceptance.

Senator Rasul. In that case we will have to submit
the amendment in writing.

Senator Saguisag. I am informed that the practice in
this respect is for the local COMELEC representatives to
coordinate with the education officials, the supervisors in
the place or the pertinent area concerned, and they select
those who will be members of the board.

Senator Tamano. Now, the teachers, as I said, play
a very important, if not dominant, role in the conduct of
elections in every election precinct. Is it possible or
would the distinguished Sponsor accept some amend-
ments that would make it more difficult for the teachers
to be partisans or to rig the election in favor of certain
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candidate that will be embodied in this proposed law?

Senator Saguisag. I think that will really promote
the common objective- of the Chamber. WE would be
very glad to listen to specific suggestions along that line.

_ Senator Tamano. For example, I am thinking of the
candidates having some sort of participation in the desig-
nation of certain teachers as members of the Board of
Election Inspectors. Take for example , a candidate or a
political party would object to the designation of the
teacher in that particular precinct for being obviously
partisan or against a certain candidates, what procedure

——-——Can be done to_have this teacher transferred elsewhere for.

the purpose of the election or disqualified from being a
member of the board of election inspectors for that par-
ticular precinct?

Senator Saguisag. I will have no problem with any
proposed selection challenge, but if there will be an a
priorirole in the selection of the teachers, that may politi-
cize the teaching service, because in the future appoint-
ments teachers will be approdching politicians who will
then be indebted to those who have something to to with
their appointments. So I would rather indulge in the
presumption that our public teachers are patriotic enough
to be relied upon, and the burden of proof is on the
interested party in a specific case to make a case for
showing that in this particular case, he or she must be
transferred elsewhere.

We are not unsympathetic to the particularly unique
problems that may be obtaining in Lanao Sur, but to have
a general rule for the entire country where it may not
even be a problem today-- because I would like to think

‘that, by and large, the selection process works. Ang
problema ko lamang po ay kung magkakaroon ng a priori, say
that may create more problems and it may solve them in the
long run,

Senator Tamano. ¥ think it has to be a priori.
Perhaps, it would be in the interest of fairness to all the

-really against appointing relatives. That is why, since

be a priori determination.

But it also involves an element of time, because
things are moving so fast during this selection period that
a particular candidate or political party may not have a
chance to express an objection against a particular
teacher. So, these are points that we would like to submit
for some amendments.

The other amendment that I would like to propose is
on the matter of... This is also practiced in Lanao where,
immediately after the voting, all the ballot boxes are
brought to the provincial capital to canvass the votes

~there:—We-can imagine-the-confusion-when-these-ballot——

boxes are coming from municipalities as distant as, say,
forty miles away from the provincial capital, and there is
no chance for watchers to really watch the process of
counting votes, because the people i that distant munici-
pality are not able to come.

Also, when the counting of votes is centralized, the
military, acting as guards surrounding the place where the
canvassing is held, keep away the general population or
waichers of the different candidates. So many things
happen that are against the-interest of certain candidate.;
or even the opposition.

Perhaps, the rules could be clarified in this respect to
have some requirements whereby the counting of the .
votes should be done in the municipality, at least where
the election has taken place, and not to the provincial
capital, which is prejudicial to the interest of the Opposi-
tion or even candidates coming from the distant munici-

pality.
Senator Saguisag. On the first point, there are rules

there are so many positions at stake in 1992, many teach-
ers may, in fact, not be qualified.

So, it is entirely possible that maybe ail qualified
teachers are going to be appointed anyway, and even

Political parties aid (e candidates it they were furnished,
Say, some two weeks in a advance a list of the teachers
proposed for a electoral precinct so that they make the
necessary objection, if the teacher has a record of parti-
sanship, of being easily influenced by certain candidates
because of relationship of kinship. So, I think this has to
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today, maybe the list of their names could be made avail-
able.

On the second point. Personally, I have no strong
feelings either way, whether it would be done at the
municipal level or at the provincial level. The only
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observation I would like to make is that, maybe, there is a
feeling of greater security in the provincial centers that
may not be obtaining in the remote towns where a lot of
things can happen. I mean, it is up to the Chamber.

As T have said, I can accept it, and then let the Body

The President Pro Tempore. Is there any objec-
tion? [Silence] Hearing none, the motion is approved.

- THE JOURNAL

Senator Guingona.— L move-that-we-dispense-with

—decide; Whethet ~a departure, Suppose that is departure

from a long established practice, is going to be an im-
provement over the current state of the law.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President.

The President Pro Tempore. The Majority Floor

Leader is recognizetl.

SUSPENSION OF CONSIDERATION
OF SENATE BILL NO. 1861

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, with the permis-
sion of the two gentlemen since it is already seven
o’clock, I move that we suspend consideration of this
measure without prejudice to Senator Tamano’s interpel-
lation, if he so desires to continue the same tomorrow.

the reading of the journal of the previous session and
consider the same as approved.

The President Pro Tempore. Is there any objec-
tion? [Silence] Hearing none, the motion is approved.

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

Senator Guingona. I move that we suspend the
session until ten 0’clock tomorrow morning,

The President Pro Tempore. The session is sus-
pended until ten o’clock tomorrow morning, if there is no
objection. [There was none.] [

Itwas 7:00 p.m.
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Senator Guingona. Thank you, Mr. President.
The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there any
other interpellation? [Silence]

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION -

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, may I move for a
minute suspension. '

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. The ses-
sion is suspended, if there is no objection. [There was
none.)

Itwas 4:45 p.m.
RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION
At 4:46 p.m., the session was resumed.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. The ses-
sion is resumed. '

MOTION OF SENATOR GUINGONA
(Referral of His Privilege Speech to the
Blue Ribbon and Banks Committees)

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I reiterate my
motion to refer this to the Blue Ribbon Committee and
the Committee on Banks so that joint investigation can be
held concerning this issue.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the motion is
approved.

BILL ON SECOND READING
Senate Bill No. 1861--Synchronized Elections
(Continuation)

Senator Guingona., Mr. President, I move that we
resume consideration of Senate Bill No. 1861 as reported
out under Committée Report No. 1373.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Resump-
tion of copsideration of Senate Bill No. 1861 is now in
order. ‘

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, we are in the
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period of Committee amendments. I ask that we recog-
nize Senator Saguisag.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator

Saguisag is recognized.

Senator Saguisag. Marami pong salamat.

The Presiding Officer [Seﬁator Tafiada). Are we |

still in the period of interpellations?

Senator Saguisag. Ang impormal understanding po
natin, kahit tayo ay nasa panahon na ng pagsususog, any
Member of the Chamber is free to interpellate preparatory
to proposing amendments.

I understand that Senator Laurel made a reservation,
and we will honor that, Mr. President.

Senator Maceda. Mr. President.
Senator

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada].
Maceda is recognized.

Senator Maceda. Mr. President, last time, I was
following the distinguished Sponsor’s interpellation with
the distinguished Lady from Sulu and Tawi-Tawi on
Section 25, Official Watchers.

I looked at the Constitution again. There does not
seem to be any provision in the Constitution which di-
rectly authorizes the resumption of what is a de facro, a
two-party system of government when we designate two
principal watchers: one representing a so-called ‘‘major-
ity or coalition’’ and the other, a so-called ‘‘opposition
dominant party.””

Now, is this not subject to constitutional question in
view of the clear adoption of a multiparty system by the
new Constitution?

Senator Saguisag. It can really be so argued if we
are agreed that there is in the spirit of the new Constitu-
tion the desire to promote a multiparty system. To dis-
criminate in favor of only a couple of parties may be
incompatible with such a concept.

Kaya ang sabi ko nga po, kung praktikal lamang na
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mabibigyan ang lahat, siguro iyan ang sagot. Pero ang
sabi po sa atin ay baka hindi po makayang gawin iyon.
So, for myself, I am open to an amendment that may do
away with this preferred position enjoyed by only two
parties, Mr. President.

It is not a constitutional question; it is a policy one
that we may have to resolve here by an up or down vote.

Senator Maceda. So, at the proper time, Mr. Presi-
dent, maybe Senator Pimentel, Senator Rasul, two others
and myself may present an amendment to delete this
whole concept of two principal watchers.

Senator Saguisag. We will just have to be careful.
If that is the intenf, maybe some research should be done
whether that is provided for in some other laws as well.

We may need to look at Republic Act No. 6646, if
that is there. Sapagkat maski nga po tanggalin natin dito,
baka mayroon itong ibang basihan. So, it may require a
negative statement here, eliminating watchers. Kailan-
gang pag-aralan po natin iyon para pagdating ng
panahon ng pagsususog ay iyong gusto natin ang ma-
tupad.

Senator Maceda. Mr. President, just to go direct to
the point, would the Gentleman, at the proper time, ac-
cept an amendment limiting the convention period to 120
days?

Senator Saguisag. My own preference is, perhaps,
to have the COMELEC do it, but we may state any period
here that should provide guidance, especially if it is going
to be adopted.

So, I am open, whether it is 90, 120 or 135 days; but
maybe that is my upper limit--135 days, Mr. President.

Senator Maceda. One hundred thirty-five days, Mr.
President.

Senator Saguisag. Itis in the old law; 135 days is in
the Omnibus Election Code. So, unless we pick another
period, in our informal conversations with the Chairman
of the COMELEC, the sentiment I got is that that body is
leaning towards adopting the 135-period, which will
mean early January, Mr. President, as a practical matter.

Senator Maceda. That seems to be fair enough,
because if we really accept the proposal of 150 days, that
will put the convention some time in December, and I
doubt if any political parties will really call a convention
during the Christmas season, unless they are really that
moneyed and would like to give extra Christmas gifts.

So if the Gentleman will go down to less than 150
days, meaning to say, if the campaign period starts Febru-
ary 11, T would be asked--having been in so many
political conventions--and I would be reasonable enough
to say that a convention any time in January would be
acceptable, whatever the period is. Meaning to say, in
principle, T do not mind having the convention outside of
the 90-day campaign period, but as much as possible
really as near to the 90-day period.

Senator Saguisag. I am reassured here that the
prevailing sentiment in the COMELEC is not to author-
ize anything partisan or political in this context within
the year; so that the convention, as far as I can tell, would
not be held under the rules and regulations to be promul-
gated by the COMELEC earlier than the turn of the year.
So we are looking, perhaps, at the first or second week of
January, 1912. Kasi po, kung gagawin din nating mas
mahaba iyan, 1 cannot imagine, as the Gentleman has
said, any party staging it in the last two weeks of Decem-
ber.

To begin with, it really complicates the traditions
that we like to observe during Christmas time when eve-
rybody would like to be with his family at that time.

That is what I can tell the Body. Hindi po siguro
gagawin naman ng COMELEC na itong taong ito. The
135-day period may be a good figure, Mr. President.

Senator Maceda. That is correct, Mr. President.
The other reason is that there are five or six presiden-
tiables and vice presidentiables in the Senate. There is
probably one presidentiable and several vice presiden-
tiables from the House. There is, of course, talk about the
Chief Justice. Meaning to say, in the context of the Con-
gress, by moving it to January, there is a better chance
that we could get to act on important legislation, at least,
up to the end of the year. But we can imagine, if we have
our conventions in November or December, either we
throw out any chance of real legislative work for the rest
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of the year or the legislative work will be so tainted
already with politics. That is the other reason.

If we, at least, move it to around the second half of
January, and giving these people, between our recess on
December 16 up to January 15, to make the final phase of
the campaign for the convention, there is hope that we
can still do real work here, especially in the light of the
fact that we are going to go up against this question of:
Do we pass the budget before the year is over or not?

I would just like to add that practical consideration as
to why my inclination is not to allow any conventions
before the end of the year.

Senator Saguisag. My own concern as well, which
is not incompatible with the position taken by the Gentle-
man and why I, in fact, might want to prefer that we have
a few session days in 1992, could be:

1. If some kind of an executive agreement is submit-
ted to us on the bases by December, it can no longer be
passed upon, except by the next Senate.

2. As has been stated this afternoon by the distin-
guished Majority Floor Leader, which reflects what I
understand to be the position of the House, in the House,
they are for scrapping the item for the Bataan Nuclear
Power Plant. If we have the same position here and it is
vetoed by the President, there is no longer any opportu-
nity to override it next year.

So, mas maiksi nga po, mas maganda. 1 would like
to appeal to both Houses of Congress that, maybe, there
are good reasons why we should meet even if ever so
briefly next year. As I have said, that may be the best
way of campaigning anyway. I know that, at least, six of
us, we are told, want to be President or Vice President. In
the House, maybe, the same number.

So the shorter the period is, the better. Anyway, kung
wala pong ibang figure, 135 may be a good golden mean,
Mr. President. ‘

Senator Maceda. Last point, Mr. President. We
already stated previously that the House version did not
follow the COMELEC recommendation of holding pro-
vincial board and municipal council elections by districts.
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Shortly after that became known, the COMELEC has
again issued an appeal to consider the same seriously.
Does not the Gentleman think that it might be better so as
to keep it alive, at least, and debate on it in the Confer-
ence Committee, that we should approve some form of
districting in our own version? Because if we also knock
out the districting in the Senate version, then certainly,
automatically, it becomes a dead issue that cannot be
evenresuscitated in conference.

Senator Saguisag. That is a very good practical
insight. I hope that our Colleagues will support that, just
to keep the issue alive without it being questioned. Al-
though, I can tell the Body that our friends in the House
tell me that, for the first time, the Conference Committee
of the House will be given really a limited mandate, that
they cannot negotiate, That point is not negotiable. They
will never agree to any districting in 1992, and they are
very candid with us because it is, they say, a reflection of
the local power situation. It is not to their interest, so
they will not support it. '

Senator Maceda. With that insight, Mr. President,
again, going back to the previous question, that is why it
is really useless to talk in terms of 180 or 150 days
convention period, because it looks like we are not going
to have a simple Conference Committee. So, if this is
passed before the end of this session--which is barely two
weeks from now--and there will be a recess of two weeks,
I personally do not think that we can resolve these issues
of difference with the House during the month of October
or November. So, almost automatically, the - 180-and
150-day periods are knocked off by reality.

Senator Saguisag. That is correct, Mr. President.
Although, as difficult as the Conference Committee proc-
ess will be, the alternative is that there will be no election
unless we pass some law. And, I guess, a good number of
us are really eager to keep their appointments with des-
tiny. They do not want a stand-up on what probably
they believe is written in the stars. So, one way or the
other, some agreement may survive. But the Gentleman
is correct, by the calendar, talking of 180 days is really
moot and academic at this point.

Senator Maceda. Mr. President, the Gentleman is
correct that a good number of us, will like to have their
appointments with destiny. But, I guess, the great major-
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ity will have their disappointments with destiny.
Senator Saguisag. We will see about that.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any other interpellation? Senator Romulo.

Senator Romulo. Mr. President, I have already been
through with my interpellation. I just want to remind the
distinguished Sponsor that when the real period for
amendment comes, that I am not forgotten by him.
Thank you, Mr. President.

 Senator Saguisag. How could we? Anyway, I
suggest that the Committee will now be allowed to intro-
duce certain amendments, by way of Committee amend-
ments, without prejudice to anybody standing up on any
matter.

Senator Guingona. Yes. Specifically, Senator Lau-
rel, Mr. President, made a reservation to interpellate. He
is indisposed today. So, without prejudice to that reser-
vation, I suggest that the distinguished Sponsor introduce
his Committee amendments.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the motion is
approved.

COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Senator Saguisag. The first one is on page 1. This
is something that I thought I should propose, in light of
the representation made to us by the House, that under no
circumstances will they agree to districting. So, the
formula that I thought of is that, given the fact that there
may be 57 candidates next year, in view of the additional
six sectoral candidates, that really compounds the prob-
lem we have identified. That is why, I am going to
revive, Mr. President, the idea of allowing the COME-
LEC to separate the local elections. And this i$ the way I
formulated it. It will not be the Congress doing it, but it
will be the Commission on Elections.

Kaya, dito po sa page 1, line 11, for the record, it
now reads:

“SEC. 2. Date of Election. - In accordance with the

policy hereinbefore declared, there shall be held an elec-
tion for President and Vice-President, twenty-four (24)

Senators, all elective Members of the House of Represen- |

tatives, and all provincial, city and municipal elective
officials on THE SECOND MONDAY OF MAY, 1992,
AND ON THE SAME DAY EVERY THREE YEARS
THEREAFTER EXCEPT THAT WITH RESPECT TO
SENATORS ONLY TWELVE (12) SHALL BE
ELECTED IN SUBSEQUENT ELECTIONS IN AC-
CORDANCE WITH THE NEXT FOLLOWING SEC-
TION.”

Another defect that I would want to remedy here is
that we should not fix the next set of Senators at twelve.
It may be that there could be vacancies. Kaya, maaari
pong trese, maaaring katorse.

So Section 2, the way I reformulate it will read as
follows:

“Date of Election. - In accordance with the policy
hereinbefore declared, there shall be held an election for
President and Vice-President, twenty-four (24) Senators,
all elective Members of the House of Representatives,
and all provincial, city and municipal officials on THE
SECOND MONDAY OF MAY, 1992, AND ON THE
SAME DAY EVERY THREE YEARS THEREAFTER
EXCEPT THAT WITH RESPECT TO SENATORS
ONLY TWELVE, OR SUCH NUMBER AS WILL
COMPLETE A SENATE OF FULL MEMBERSHIP OF
TWENTY-FOUR SENATORS, SHALL BE ELECTED
IN SUBSEQUENT ELECTIONS IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE NEXT FOLLOWING SECTION. HOW-
EVER, IN THE SOLE JUDGMENT OF THE COMMIS-
SION ON ELECTIONS ON THE BASIS OF WHAT IT
BELIEVES AND DETERMINES MAY BEST EN-
SURE THE DISCHARGE OF ITS CONSTITUTIONAL
MANDATE TO HOLD FREE, ORDERLY, HONEST,
PEACEFUL, AND CREDIBLE ELECTIONS OR TO
PREVENT A POSSIBLE OR LIKELY FAILURE OF
ELECTION THE COMMISSION MAY CHOOSE TO
HOLD AND CONDUCT THE NEXT LOCAL ELEC-
TION ON ANY OTHER DATE BEFORE JUNE 30,
1992, BUT PREFERABLY, ON ANY OF THE FOL-
LOWING ALTERNATIVE DATES: (1) ON MAY 25,
1992; OR (2) ON JUNE 11, 1992.”

Bahala na po ang COMELEC dito. The hope is that
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the COMELEC may want to avail itself of this provision,
and somebody can immediately go to the Supreme Court
to test it. I am hopeful that the Supreme Court, when
they are told that districting is out of the question and that
there will now be 57 names, under the new Local Gov-
ernment Code, may this time allow the COMELEC to
exercise some discretion, at least, as to the local elections.

Ang mahirap po kasi doon sa naging kapasiyahan o
main decision ng Korte Suprema, talagang ipinako
lamang sa May 11 ang eleksiyon. But with 57 names,
we have to suggest something like this. If we are able to
impress on the Supreme Court that the elections may
likely fail, baka po naman pagbigyan sila. Tutal, sino po
ba ang mas eksperto dito kundi ang COMELEC mismo.

So I hope that this will be approved by the Body. My
contacts in the House tell me that this is something that
they will look at with favor, considering their inability to
give in in regard to districting.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection?

Senator Guingona. Mr. President.

The Présiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Guingona is recognized.

Senator Guingona. Not really an-objection, Mr.
President, just reservations, because I understand that the
real reason for the suit--and the legal objections--stems
from the local government officials who are running in
1992, they really wanted not only the legalistic approach
but also the practical one of having joint elections with
the national officials. By this reformulation, we may be
opening ourselves again to another suit, and I do not
know whether we can stand another judicial, although,
impractical rebuff based on the rulings that they already
made that it must be on the same date,

If we legislate again, and we get a second suit or a
second rebuff, does the Gentleman not think that we may
not be able to afford the time nor the loss of face being
rebuffed twice possibly in a matter of months? We have
to be very sure that this is constitutional, legal, and that
will not meet the same objections and possibly the same
result, because we cannot afford time anymore.

Senator Saguisag. The local officials objected to the
first one on the clear constitutional ground that no elec-
tions could be held beyond June 30, 1992 because of the
holdover problem; the second one, the practical aspect, if
I can define the Gentleman’s thoughts on the point, is that
they thought that they would be holding the shorter end
of the stick as it were. But a difference of a few weeks
will not result in the same consequence. In other words,
their hope is that by running with the national officials,
there could be some kind of expense sharing; they could
even piggyback on the national candidates.

Kaya kung gagawin pong June 25 Q June 11, siguro
ay hindi na sila magdedemanda. Of course, there is
always the possibility of a suit, but in this particular case,
it will not be a decision to be made by this Congress. It
will only be stating what is already in the Constitution
that the COMELEC has a special mandate to do certain
things,; it could take steps so as not to prevent the failure
of election,

And also I am hoping that the Supreme Court, upon
being told: ‘‘Kgg. na mga Mahistrado, 57 pangalan na
po ito, baka naman po kung puwede nang pagbigyan ang
Senado at ang Kamara de Representantes,”’ - they may
say: ‘“‘Kayo ang COMELEC, kayo naman talaga ang
mga eksperto dito, we will give you benefit of the doubt
this time.”” But the thing is, I am just afraid that if
Commissioner Yorac is correct, even with 51 names,
there will be places that even on the third day, magbibi-
langan pa po.

So the Supreme Court, I hope, this time, may be
more realistic and be impressed by the forceful presenta-
tion of our experts on elections in the COMELEC that
““Kung hindi po ninyo kami pagbibigyan dito, the entire
exercise may just explode in our faces.’’

‘Senator Guingona. Isuppose that the distinguished
Sponsor has conferred with the COMELEC on this, and
that there will be no practical difficulties because they
will be attending to the canvassing and the tabulation of
the national officials. With the short space of few weeks,
I doubt very much whether the COMELEC can judi-
ciously, diligently and correctly handle that gigantic task,
because we have experienced that in the past, election
controversies take time. If they are doing something, and
at the sayne time attending to the coming election of the
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locals, I doubt very much whether they can do justice to
both tasks.

So I was wondering whether the distinguished Spon-
sor will consider two ballots, one for the national and one
for the local. Maybe he fills up one-half of one ballot and
one-third. of the other, but that is up to him because we
are faced in a situation like this.

Senator Saguisag. In fact, I would rather put it in
one ballot, because the elector may just really select a few
senatorial bets anyway. I have taken this up with Chair-
man Monsod. He is not really very keen on the idea
either, because he is hopeful that the districting formula
will be accepted. But, I think, on the basis of my conver-
sation with our House contacts, that is just not going to
happen. So that, in here, despite the obvious deticiencies
of my proposal, I am trying to look for something that is
better.

Senator Guingona. Yes, I understand that.

Senator Saguisag. This one, I know, nus magastos
po iyan, dahil more ballot boxes. Pero kung iyong 51
names aabutin ng May 13, can we imagine three public
officials starting to work at six o’clock on May 11, work-
ing for 48 hours, sunod-sunod two days lamang tyon.
Kung lumagpas pa po, tayo po, kamukha nila machong-
macho, pero pag nagtrabaho siguro ng Six to six,
pagdating siguro ng hatinggabi medyo wala na ring
gaanong ibubuga.

This is a very difficult decision to make. I am just
throwing this in as part of the menu of options. I think it
is just a little better than gambling with having a two or
three-day election.

I hope that subject to further refinement here or imthe
Committee, this can be approved tentatively, then maybe
we can go back to this before we finally act on the
entirety of the law. Pero iyan po nagtatapat ako sa inyo,
asang-asa ang COMELEC na lulusot ang districting.
Pero kung hindi siguro lulusot iyon, they may want to
look at this, it is not really a new idea, this was really the
proposal of Senator Neptali Gonzales from the beginning.
He wanted the local elections to be held on June 11,
1992, dahil ang attitude ni Senator Gonzales diyan, e,
maski pa mag-atubili ang COMELEC pagka inutosan na

natin iyan, kailangang gampanan nila.

Senator Guingona. Okay, but it might be physi-
cally, if not impossible, very, extremely difficult for
COMELEC to handle. That is my reservation.

Senator Saguisag. Pero ang tingin po natin diyan,
let us say, if it is held three weeks later or four weeks
later, 1 imagine that in a great part of the country, the
exercise will be completely finished. Hindi po naman
siguro hundred percent iyan may mga protestd. The hope
is that in most places, it will be over in two to three days.
So that three or four weeks later, enough resources and
personnel of the COMELEC will have been liberated to
focus on another exercise. 1 do not know, baka ang
gawin dito ng COMELEC ay geographical. Baka
puwedeng one week later, sa Luzon; one week later sa
Kabisayaan, et cetera. It may be a rolling election. 1do
not know if it is constitutional, but we really need to be
creative to avoid the spectre of having a three-day elec-
tion, Mr. President.

Senator Guingona. Has the distinguished Sponsor
considered the alternative checkings? ‘

Senator Saguisag. I guess anything that conduces to
easier cheating is very hard to sell. Bloc-voting is contro-
versial enough, pero alam ninyo po pagsulat ng Tito
Guingona mas mahirap palsipikahin iyon, e. Pero iyong
checking po, iyon nga po, a few golden arms may decide
for the entire country. So that may be false economy.
We may lose our democracy if we take such a shortcut,
given the empirical evidence in some places in the coun-
try.

I am open to it if a proposal is made, but that may
generate a new fire storm of controversy, Mr. President.

Senator Guingona. Ihave my reservations. For the
record, Mr. President, let us continue to look for alterna-
tives.

Thank you.
The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. All right.
Is there any objection to the proposed amendment of

Senator Saguisag? [Silence] Hearing none, the amend-
ment is approved. " '
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Senator Saguisag. Page 2, wala po. Page 3, wala
po.

Sa Page 4, I wonder what the consensus of the Body
is in regard to the--I hate to have to do this. This may
have been the idea of Senator Gonzales, but I am very
uncomfortable with the proposal that the candidate be a
registered. voter as pointed out by a Colleague. I do not

CITY THAT DOES NOT VOTE IN THE ELECTION
OF PROVINCIAL OFFICIALS SUCH THAT AN
EQUAL DISTRIBUTION OF THE SANGGUNIAN
MEMBERS DOES NOT RESULT IN EQUITABLE
APPORTIONMENT ON THE BASE OF POPULA-
TION IN THE PROVINCE, THE COMMISSION
SHALL ALLOCATE THE NUMBER OF
SANGGUNIAN MEMBERS AMONG THE DIS-

know whether I should be the one to propose it. This may
be the pet idea of someone who just asked...

On page 4, line 15, I think any time we add to the
qualifications of a candidate, we run into policy and
constitutional problems. I may be indifferent to public
life for a long time. I may not be registered. But if I,
otherwise, qualify, I do not think I should be disenfran-
chised.

So the preference of this Senator, Mr. President, is to
move for the deletion of the qualification ‘‘AND A REG-
ISTERED VOTER’ on' policy and constitutional
grounds.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Saguisag. [fo po ang masarap nang nag-
{ISponsor.

On page 5, wala po. On page 6, wala rin po.
May we just move back to page 3, line 4. Iagree with the
proposal of the distinguished Gentleman from Manila
and Ilocos Sur. Let us not touch the districting aspect.

But, there is a good suggestion here from the COME-

“LEC which T'would like-to-introduce-after-line-4-of page———-

3, between lines 4 and 5. This takes into account the
situation wherein some cities are not allowed to vote for
the provincial officials. Kaya po, pagka nag-compute sa
mga bilang ng botante, mayroon pang distortion. An ex-
ample given here is that of Butuan City. So, to me, this
is well-taken, Mr. President.

May we propose, between lines 4 and 5, the insertion
of the following:

“IF A LEGISLATIVE DISTRICT COMPRISES A
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TRICTS IN~PROPORTION-TO-FHE-POPULATION
OF THE CONSTITUENCIES VOTING FOR PROVIN-
CIAL OFFICIALS.”’

Mukha pong generally self-explanatory ito, dahil ta-
laga namang masyadong magiging disproportionate.
Dahil hindi po sila maghahalal, madi-dilute tyon. We try
to approximate the idea of one men, one vote. So, that is
the proposal of the COMELEC which I adopt, Mr. Presi-
dent.

Senator Maceda. Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator

‘ Maceda.

Senator Maceda. There was a representation by the
City of General Santos, Mr. President, which I would like
to place for the record, that precisely, because they are
also not allowed to vote for the provinces, and for provin-
cial officials, maybe, there is no need to redistrict the -
cities because there would be ten less. Or as a compro-
mise, why do we not adopt the usual concept of dividing
the city into two like municipalities instead of, in effect,
saying that there could be more than two districts?

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

‘Senator_Saguisag. May we have a short recess, Mr.

President?

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. The ses-
sion is suspended, if there is no objection. [There was
none.)

Itwas 5:24 p.m.

RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION

At 5:44 p.m., the session was resuried.
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The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. The ses-
sion is resumed. ‘

Senator Saguisag. Mr. President, I think the con-
cern raised in regard to the new proposal has been suffi-
ciently addressed. Gayun pa man, ito po ay dadaan sa
Conference Committee. So, I believe no one is objecting
to the very sound proposal of the COMELEC which I

Senator Romulo. Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). Senator
Romulo.

Senator Romulo. Mr. President, just to clarify that
this is still the period of Committee amendments, and
that individual amendments may be accepted after the

—am-adopting, Mr-President;-to-take -care-of -the-situation,-—round-of Committee amendments have beenconcluded.

such as that in Butuan and Las Nieves.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Romulo is recognized.

* Senator Romulo. Mr. President, just to restate and
clarity that under the COMELEC proposal which is being
proposed and adopted here, the number of candidates in
totality would not exceed 35, and I think 38, at most.

Senator Saguisag. It is again confirmed we are
dealing with 35 and 38, depending on the ...

Senator Romulo. Thank you, Mr. President.  The
Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there any objec-
tion? [Silence] There being none, the motion is ap-
proved.

Senator Saguisag. I would like to spread upon the
Record the background given here. Doon po sa Butuan,
dahil hindi mabibilang ang boto sa Butuan, ang matitira

. sa Las Nieves na mayroon lamang anim na libong bo-
tante, magkakaroon ng tatlong provincial board mem-
bers as against the other districts where there will be 10
towns with about 112,000 voters. The disparity is so
glaring. Six thousand voters will have three representa-
tives in the Board, while 110,000 or so will have the same
number. So, this is what this amendment is proposed to

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. That is
correct.
Senator Romulo. Thank you.

Senator Saguisag. Section 11, page 9, Annulment of
the List of Voters, it now reads:

Any book of voters the preparation of which has been
elfected with fraud, bribery, forgery, impersonation,
intimidation, force or any other similar irregularity or
which is statistically improbable may, motu proprio,
be annulled by the Commission.

This, I understand, is taken from the old law. But, I am
very uncomfortable with its phraseology and I would like
to recast it without affecting the meaning to read as
follows: THE COMMISSION MAY, MOTU PRO-
PRIO, AMEND ANY BOOK OF VOTERS THE
PREPARATION OF WHICH HAS BEEN PER-
FORMED WITH FRAUD, BRIBERY, FORGERY, IM-
PERSONATION, INTIMIDATION, FORCE OR ANY
OTHER SIMILAR IRREGULARITY OR WHICH IS
STATISTICALLY IMPROBABLE.

Iyon pong unang formulation is so awkward, Mr.
President.

address.

May I move on to page 6. Wala po ritong Committee
amendment. Sa pahina 7 ay wala rin pong amiyenda. On
page 8, line 29, there is a very minor stylistic error. The
word "eight" should end with an "H".

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the motion is
approved.

The-Presiding-Sfficer-{Senater—Tafiadal—Is-there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Saguisag. On page 10, line 19, I am given
to understand--and this is subject to verification--that
there is no longer any distinction between donor’s or -
donee’s taxes today. lisa na lamang po yata at tila tyon
ay donor’s tax. I think it is superfluous. May I move for
the deletion of (DONOR’S OR DONEE’S).
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The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment

is approved.

| Senator Saguisag. On page 11, lines 13 to 18 shall
now read:

““The fine shall be paid within thirty (30) days from
receipt of notice of such failure from the Commission on
Elections to the city or municipal treasurer of the city or

——municipality~whichsaid —candidate-declared -ashis resi=

dence in his certificate of candidacy.’’

Mr. President, may I just propose that on line 18,
after the words “‘of candidacy’’, we change the period to
a comma to be followed by the words, WITHQUT
PREJUDICE TO ANY VALID DEFENSE OR EXPLA-
NATION. The way it is worded now, para bang kapag
tinanggap dang notice, kailungang magbayad. 1 know
that this is implied but, out of abundant caution, may we
add this insurance of due process?

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment is
approved.

Senator Saguisag. On line 12, no proposed Com-
mittee amendment.

On page 13, none either.

On page 14, line 11, the word “‘his”’, I think, refers to
a plural set of antecedents so it should be THEIR.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment

is approved.

Senator Saguisag. Mr. President, the following

“ORAL’’, Mr. President?

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Saguisag. On line 20, simultaneous with
“verbal”’, may we have again the same change from
*‘verbal’’ to ‘““ORAL, Mr. President.

~—The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. ~Is there

any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment is
approved.

Senator Saguisag. On page 15, line 11, just a matter
of style, Mr. President. Since we are saying ‘‘summa-
rily’’, may we replace ‘‘without delay’’ with IMMEDI-
ATELY for parallel construction so that it would read
“‘summarily and IMMEDIATELY.”’ It is just a matter of
style, Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved. ‘

Senator Saguisag. On line 15, the term ‘‘manifest’’
seems too high-flown. Can we just replace it with IN-
FORM? ““Manifest’’ should be replaced by INFORM.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Saguisag. On page 16, line 13, *‘brought to

it on appeal by the losing party’’, place a period after the

word “‘party’’ and delete the word ‘‘and’’. Then, in the
word ‘“‘any’’, capitalize the first letter ‘‘a’’ just to break
up a very long sentence. It is just a matter of style, Mr.
President.,

word is ‘“‘verbal’’. I think, what we mean here is
“ORAL’’, because ‘‘verbal’’ really means ‘‘ORAL”’ or
“WRITTEN"’ from the Latin verbum or word. This is a
. common error. Some people believe that if one is making
a verbal objection, he is making an oral objection. Even a
“‘written’’ objection is, in fact, ‘‘verbal’’ because we use
words.

So can we just replace the word ‘‘verbal’’ to
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The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Saguisag. On page 17, no proposed Com-
mittee amendment.

On page 18, line 20, just a matter of style. The
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““4th’’ should be spelled out, ‘‘PAR.”’ should be spelled
out, *‘SEC.”’ should be spelled out, ‘“‘R.A.”’ should also
be spelled out as ‘‘Republic Act No.”” On line 21,
*‘SEC.”” should also be spelled out for consistency with
the way these phrases are used in the other parts of the
bill. -

In fact, may I propose in an omnibus manner, Mr.
President, that this be made consistent. Hindi iyong iba-
iba dahil nandoon din po sa line 17. So, can we make
these uniform? ‘‘Paragraphs’’, ‘‘Sections’’, and ‘‘Re-
public Act’’ should all be spelled out in full, Mr. Presi-
dent?

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. All right.
Is there any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the
amendment is approved.

Senator Saguisag. Line 25, “VIEW TO THE
BOARD’’. It seems to me that the better preposition to
replace ‘‘TO’’ is OF, VIEW OF THE BOARD.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Saguisag. Page 19, line 21, I have always
been uncomfortable with the use of the words ‘“TRACK
RECORD’’ in legislation, maybe, we just say the ES-
TABLISHED RECORD.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved. :

Senator Saguisag. Page 20, no proposed amend-
ment by the Committee. Page 21, none either. Page 22,
wala din po. Page 23, wala din po. Page 24, wala din
po. Page 25, wala din po. Page 26, line 5, nandiyan po
iyong ‘“‘SEC.”” May I just make of record that that should
be covered by the omnibus correction. Line 10, I have
always maintained that we should specify ‘“NATIONAL
newspapers’’ because a local paper can also be of general
circulation.

So may we insert between the word and figure ‘‘two
(2)’” and ‘‘newspapers’’ the word NATIONAL.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Saguisag. Page 27 which is the last page,
can we use for the effectivity clause our ‘‘de cajon’
formulation that ‘‘This Act shall take effect upon FIF-
TEEN DAYS AFTER’’ or maybe it should be shorter,
UPON ITS PUBLICATION IN FULL IN AT LEAST
TWO NATIONAL NEWSPAPERS OF GENERAL
CIRCULATION.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Saguisag. Mr. President, I just hope that
this amendment proposed by Senator Guingona earlier as
to the number of copies from five to seven will be
accommodated in the clean copy that perhaps we ought to
have before I start entertaining individual amendments.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. All right,
Senator Maceda is recognized.

Senator Maceda. Without having to go through

this page by page, why do we not attempt to have a few -

major individual amendments for whoever is interested
right now and see what the reaction will be, Mr. Presi-
dent?

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. What does
the Sponsor say?

Senator Saguisag. I would be delighted to go as far
as we could. Everybody is under the gun as it were from

the time-frame aspect.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. So, let us
move on to the individual amendments.

Senator Saguisag. Incidentally, if I may still be
allowed, if I may just step back, and I will just reserve
this that I will amend the title-at the end, Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. All right.

Senator Maceda. On page 6, line 18, may I move
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that the figure ‘‘one hundred fifty (150) days’’ be reduced
to ONE HUNDRED TWENTY (120) days?

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). Is there
any objection?

Senator Saguisag. Mr. President, I would just want
to make of record that Senator Osmefia was telling me
earlier that he personally would be for deleting mention
of these figures in light of the constitutional provision, as
sustained by the Supreme Court, that the Congress,
apparently, is not the proper Body to fix these dates,
anyway. :

So I do not know whether it is fair to Senator Os-
mefia, who made that particular reservation. He wanted
to be heard on this. That is why, I am reluctant to accept
it or not to accept it in view of the personal representation
made to me by the Gentleman from Cebu earlier.

Senator Enrile. Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator

Enrile is recognized.

Senator Enrile. Maybe, Mr. President, we should
leave the matter--I agree with the Sponsor, that we should
leave this--with the COMELEC. After all, the decision

of the Supreme Court has indicated this; but that we’

should, at least, suggest in some form of language that the
COMELEC should consider the period that would enable
the political parties to prepare themselves for the political
contest, and by giving them enough time to select their
official candidates so that they could prepare the neces-
sary materials in order to run a meaningful political cam-
paign that would enable the public to fully understand the
issues and the personalities of the candidates, and give
them a chance to develop a firm understanding of the
character, the issues involved, and to form an intelligent
opinion about the candidate they are going to vote for.

I would suggest that, perhaps, a period of 180 days--
as this Representation suggested in the past--would be
enough time, but if a shorter period is needed, maybe 150
days would be sufficient; because what is an added 30

days. Therefore, I think that would be a reasonable time -
within which the parties could now elect their ofﬁmal.

candidates.
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Senator Saguisag. For the record, Mr. President,
according to Atty. de Lima here, the COMELEC will
choose from 120 days to 150 days.

Persohally, my own preference is, I hope they will -

settle for 135 days. My own preference is to have it start
in the coming year, but maybe the political parties and
other interested parties can make representations with the

COMELEC, if the institutional decision here is to delete,

in recognition of the Supreme Court pronouncement on
the point. So, maglalaro po sa 120 days to 150 days.

Senator Enrile. So as long as we are authorized to

file petitions before the Commission on Elections within
a period, and let the Commission decide when the actual - -

convention of a given party be held, within a time frame
of 150 days before election day.

Senator Maceda. Mr. President, I shall not dis-

agree with the distinguished presidentiable of the Nacion-
alista Party on this matter. I just want to say that the
farther we get away from 90 days, the more what the
Gentleman is seeking to accomplish might be negated by
a possible constitutional challenge again. I think if the
Gentleman would, let us say, put here a 180-day period,
then maybe this Representation will file a challenge in
the Supreme Court.

Senatoxj Saguisag. Mahirap po.

Senator Maceda. So the idea really is, if we can
agree on something which would be generally acceptable
S0 as to prevent any possible constitutional challenge, in
view of the established orientation already of the Su-
preme Court on the matter.

Senator Enrile. Mr. President, I am not really sug-

gesting here that we should provide a provision authoriz-
ing political ‘parties to hold their convention within a
period of 180 days from election day, but that the politi-
cal parties may petition the Commission on Elections at
any time at the beginning of the period of 180 days from
election day to conduct their political convention in line
with the Constitutional mandate that it is the Commission
that would authorize the period of political conventton
mcludmg the campaign period.

Senator Maceda.  There is a slight change there. 1 -
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think the Sponsor caught the nuance of it. What the
distinguished Gentleman from Cagayan is now proposing
is that, within the period which would be agreed upon,
the political parties shall be allowed to file a petition to
set a conivention.

Senator Enrile. Yes.

Senator Maceda. So the necessity for a petition
must now be placed in this law. If that will be the
_formulation, then we might agree to a 150-day period,

other.

Senator Saguisag. I suppose that what will happen
here is, after we pass the law, the COMELEC will issue
the pertinent rules and regulations. Let us assume that it
is fixed at 135 days, it seems to me that what will happen
is that all the parties will just comply. But, if an inter-
ested party might want to lengthen it to 150 days, then it
may be up to that particular party to file the necessary
petition, if there are special reasons under the Constitu-
tion to justify another period. Pero iyong pong 135 0 120

because then we would have time to oppose their petifion,
anyway, in the COMELEC and delay it.

Senator Saguisag. What might be the phraseology?

Senator Enrile. Anyway, Mr. President, I think it
stands to reason that any political party that wants to hold
a conventlon prior to the 90-day officially declared cam-
paign, or before the election period contemplated in the
Constitution, since the matter is authorized by the Consti-
tution to be within the discretion of the Commission,
there must be some form of a petition. We are willing to
consider the issue of challenge by anybody I think, we
are all lawyers we can consider the reasonableness of the
petition and the challenge. Let the Commission decide. I
am sufe the Commission, in this particular case, has the
final say on the matter.

Senator Maceda. I am just even retreating in a

sense that I said I would be willing, let us say, to consider .

a 150-day or 135-day period, not as the date within which
a convention will be set. But as stated by the Gentleman,
the period now, which by this law will be by petition to
hold a national convention, may be filed with the COME-
LEC.

Senator Enrile. But when the distinguished Gentle-
man talks of a petition to be filed with the COMELEC,

that means.a nermnn could.be F]Pri letus say., dnrm(r the

to 150 probably will meet with geéneral approval.

Senator Enrile. Kung. pabayaan na lamang natin
kaya iyan sa 150. Mahirap naman iyong nagmamadali
ang mga tao sa kanilang preparasyon. Ang pinag-uusa-
pan natin dito ay halalan ng isa sa national, sa pagka-
presidente, Alam po ninyo, kaming nasa opposition ay
karaka-rakang bumuo ng aming samahan noong 1987.
Wala ‘kaming preparasyon noon sapagkat madalian.
Kaya dahil sa eksperensiya po naming iyan, iniisip ko na
reasonable na sigurong pagbigyan iyong mga

‘nagpaplanong kumandidato na bagamat mahina raw sa

survey ay magkaroon naman ng pagkakataong lumahok
sa eleksiyon. Iyong malalakas sa survey, pabayaan na
natin kung gusto nila ng mas maikling panahon.

Senator Maceda. In any event, Mr. President, the
parliamentary situation is: I presented an amendment for
120 days. In effect, the Gentleman from Cagayan is
trying to present an amendment to the amendment or an
alternative of 150 days, and the Sponsor has said that
there are reservations by other Senators. Then, I would
be willing to defer the consideration of this matter until
we have a fuller Senate in attendance on the Floor.

Senator Saguisag. Kung bukas po wala pa si Sena-
tor Osmeiia, then we can vote on it,

The Prpciding Officer [Senator. Tafiadal..So.we.will

180th day to hold the convention 15 days later and the
COMELEC be asked to set the matter for a hearing. Iam
sure that the COMELEC, considering its desire to set the
stage for political contest, may authorize that conven-
tion. After all, it is just to allow the political parties to
perform their internal act of selecting their own candi-
dates. I think we are all interested in fairness in a
political contest here not to take advantage one over the

defer consideration of the amendment of this Section.

Senator Maceda. Page 8, line 6, this registration of
voters on the 15th Saturday before the day of the election.
That means to say within the fourth month before. May I
just know from the Gentleman or from his consultants
what is the rationale for choosing the 15th of Saturday
before?

95

/24




Bill on Synchronized Elections

RECORD OF THE SENATE

Vol. 11, No. 38

Senator Saguisag. I thought that this came up dur-
ing the caucus, that is, if my memory serves, and that was
proposed, again, if my recollection is not inaccurate, by,
perhaps, Senator Lina. I do not note the presence here of
Senator Lina, but this was I think reached in caucus.

Senator Maceda. Now, is the act of registration of
voters considered part of the election period or is it a
separate matter altogether?

stances may warrant.

Senator Maceda. Part of the problem of elections in
this country in the past is that, the COMELEC has had -
too much discretion in a lot of things. My feeling is to try
to limit the discretion of the COMELEC as much as
possible.

Senator Saguisag. I am not really sure whether it
should be included in either concept. It is so fundamen-
tal. I'think it is just a matter of convenience that that is
done. In fact, we will recall that there used to be a time
WITen it was done on a continuing basis, without any
reference to any period. But, to me, the shorter it is, I do
not know. Is the COMELEC comfortable with this for-

mulation? This was just pulled out by Senator Lina, and
the caucus approved it. ’

Senator Maceda. I am jugt assuming that, even
granting that we have four Saturdays in a month. it ,would
have been more logical to say the 16th Saturday’
four months, precisely, before. But | am ,
what the 15th Saturday was based on.

which is
just wondering

Senator Saguisag. Accepted, if the 16th is being
proposed.

Senator Maceda. That makes it, at least, four full
months before the second week of January

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is that
being proposed as...

Senator Saguisag. The COMELEC representative
says... -

Senatgr Mz}ceda. I'am consulting the presidentiable
of the Nacionalista Party. It does not really matter, one

way or the other. 1 am just trying to put some rationale
into this.

Senator Saguisag. The feeling here of the COME-
LEC representative is that, maybe, it is better to retain it.

Baka raw ho masyadong lumayo, Anyway, there is a
discretion for the Commission to designate an additional

date of registration, appearing on line 10, as the circum-
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" Senator Maceda. That iS exacily the same problem—

Anyways-just-for-the-heck-cf-it-se-to-speaks-it-locks
or sounds more rational if we make it the 16th because
that means to say one month before the election period.

Senator Saguisag. Can we just defer action on it
until I am able to take it up with Senator Lina who was
the proponent of it? Kung wala pa po bukas, then the
Body may act, if the Gentleman would not mind.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. All right.
We will defer action on this proposed amendment of
Senator Maceda until tomorrow.

Senator Maceda. Page 9, Section 13. May I suggest
that this be limited to President and Vice-President, or if
it will include Senators or Members of Congress, then it
should also include Congressmen, either or. There seems
to be a discrimination as to allowing absentee voting for
the Members of the Upper Chamber and not allowing
absentee voting for the Members of the Lower Chamber.

Senator Saguisag. It seems to me that a case can be
made for the differential treatment. No matter where
someone is, in the end, the national total will prevail.
However, for district elections, it may be possible for a
powerful Congressman to have many transient voters
vote in his place at a given election and may distort the
results. So, thatis whyL...

we were discussing here, Mr. President. The voter might
vote in Pasig before he goes to his place of assignment in
Malolos. And then, since he is assigned there as a police-
man, as an armed forces government employee, he will
vote in the place where he is assigned, and the members
of the board of election inspectors have really no way of
determining whether he has voted already in his place of
residence.

The situation is very clear if he is a voter of Metro
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But how about
within traveling

Manila and he is assigned in Mindanao.
in those situations where he is assigned
distance from his fixed voting residence?

Senator Saguisag. No. 1, I am informed that in
1987, under Executive Order No. 157, such absentee
voting was conducted one week ahead.

Senator Enrile. Let us suppose, Mr. President, that
a policeman who is a registered voter in Pateros is as-
signed in Taguig or vice-versa. Now, the same voter can
vote in his place of assignment in Taguig and he can go
back to Pateros and vote again. It is within concrete
possibility. How would the Sponsor prevent the situation
to happen? :

Senator Maceda. Many of us believe, including the
Genfleman from Cagayan and this Representation, that
we were cheated in 1987 and some COMELEC registrars
cooperated with the cheating. So, do not use the 1987
experience as a pattern to follow. I would rather like to
forget the 1987 experience.

Senator Saguisag. In fact, I am not even endorsing
it. 1am just spreading it upon the Record. Indeed, that
does not really help the case at all, since if one is minded
to cheat in the same day, it is, in fact, easier to cheat if
one is given a one week interval. But the policy choice
here really is, in case of doubt, does the Gentleman re-
solve it in favor of enfranchisement Or disenfranchise-
rient? This is the possibility of fraud.

Senator Enrile. Mr. President, with the permission
of the Chair, and the distinguished Members on the

Floor.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Enrile is recognized.

Senator Enrile. Suppose the voter soldier or police-
man was out of his station on a furlough, where would he
vote, in his own district, in his home precinct? And if it
happens that it was the day which would be the end of his

————furlough,-using.-the_same ex ample as the distinguished

Senator Saguisag. The flying voter problefi has
really nothing to do per s with being a policeman or a
soldier. In other words, if one is minded to cheat, well,
unfortunately, there are ways of doing it. But the policy
choice is: Do we then prevent the policemen and the
soldiers from voting who, in fact, gave the Gentleman
from Cagayan... He was a topnotcher in the absentee
voting in the 1987. They should not be denied the same
pleasure in 1992, Mr. President.

Senator Enrile. I am just raising this, Mr. President.
For instance, we have some mijlitary people who are
assigned overseas, like those people who aré now as-
signed to the Peacekeeping Force in Iraq. Are these
people going to be entitled also to absentee voting?

Senator Saguisag. They have to make a choice. I
think we are not ready for overseas absentee voting. The
various measures are still in the committee. So that
seems to be a problem distinguishable from those who
are in the country on election day, Mr. President.

Senator Enrile. Anyway, I am just raising this issue
so that we can really decide on this point, Mr. President.

Senator Saguisag. May we also defer this? I think
the interested party here is Senator Pimentel on the basis
of his experience in Cagayan de Oro. So, can we decide

Gentleman from Manila and Ilocos Sur says, he would
vote in the morning and goes back t0 his station in the
afternoon, he could vote again in his station.

Senator Saguisag. Iassume that the premise of this
is, if someone by force of circumstances cannot vote in
his own district or his hometown, then he can vote else-
where. So, in the case of someone who is on furlough, I
would assume that the only place he can validly vote in is
in his hometown. Because if he were to vote in his place
of assignment... To begin with, he is not supposed to be
there at that time.

tms"tcirribrrovr,MrrPresident—?

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Yes.

Senator Guingona is recognized.

Senator Guingona. May 1 ask, Mr. President,
whether the intended provision would cover CAFGUs?

Senator Saguisag. I think the idea is not to disen-
franchise anybody. The spirit of this innovation should

cover paramilitary units which may be assigned in some
other town and, in obedience to a lawful command,
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should be allowed to serve the people, but, at the same
time, should not be unnecessarily deprived of a very
important right of suffrage.

Senator Guingona. That is a very good principle,
Mr. President, but we have also civilian employees who
are, urfortunately, absent in their residences during elec-
tion day and they are disenfranchised by circumstance,
not by intent.

Here, we are making a special provision for Army
personnel, including CAFGUS, and the experience, un-
fortunately, is that this is open to abuse.

I remember that there were truckloads of military
personnel who rode from one area to another, and if by
the nature of the CAFGUs they are assignable anywhere,
Mr. President, this opens up the door to a lot of abuse.

So if the distinguished Sponsor is willing, why not
delete this entire portion?

Senator Saguisag. No, I am not inclined to join the
general bias against our brothers and sisters in uniform. I

am not convinced that they are less patriotic than the rest

of us. If there are provisions to cover the other situ-
ations, I would be more open to that. But the deletion of
this is a blanket condemnation that these are very bad
people who cannot be trusted to perform their jobs prop-
erly, and this is part of the reason why we are never able
to achieve national reconciliation.

We have this. Itisin the law books, and then we will
step backward. I am willing to submit it to a vote. But, I
am just not convinced that all of them are bad. I mean,
these are the people who are dying for us even as we
speak. Some of them are rotten eggs, in the same manner
that a number of us in the civilian bureaucracy have a lot
to account for themselves, but once a right has been
enjoyed, it is very hard to withdraw. We can expand the
enjoyment of it, but do we have any evidence that this
right was irresponsibly exercised by hundreds of thou-
sands of them? In the absence of empirical evidence, I
think the presumption of good faith should prevail; that
the right was properly exercised. These are the signals
that caused some restlessness unnecessarily in some sec-
tors of the public service.
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Personally, Mr. President, I am not convinced that
there is evidence to support the premise of the proposal.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I do not think
this provision was in the original election measure. This
is an exception that was introduced, if I am not mistaken,
during martial rule.

Senator Saguisag. This is one of the innovations of
this Government, because this is under Executive Order
No. 157, dated March 30, 1987, when Secretary Joker P.
Arroyo was Executive Secretary. He is someone who
may be considered by some as harboring certain antimili-
tary sentiments, and yet the egalitarian sentiments in his
heart apparently prevailed. So, it is a new idea. Let us try
to expand it to cover other absentee situations, but let us
not delete it. If we want to include even those residing
overseas, we should look forward, not backward.

Kaya ito po ay ideya ng Administrasyong ito, and 1
want to be shown evidence that this was irresponsibly
exercised by many power brokers in the military service
who are partly responsible for our ability to continue
deliberating today.

Senator Guingona. I may be mistaken, Mr. Presi-
dent. I think this was an adaptation of a measure that was
adopted in 1978, and in the 1984 elections. However, if
that is the submission of the distinguished Sponsor, then
we should allow for those civilian personnel in the Gov-
ernment who are likewise assigned such as, for example,
auditors who are assigned to different fields during the
day of election.

Senator Saguisag. But, thatis a holiday. In fact, we
have a very long holiday during elections to enable every-
one to go home. But these are people who are away from
their homes, because they are assigned in such faraway
places for the performance of election duties, to enable
the rest of the country to vote.

But the Gentleman and I know that the practice in
this country is like here: It will be a Monday. So they
can go home, Friday, Saturday, Sunday, and even the
following day, Tuesday, is normally declared a holiday.
They have no reason to claim and tell their wives that
they are performing auditing duties some place else.
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Maybe, it is some kind of duty not compatible with
auditing. Hindi nila gustong umalis, pero tungku?in nila
iyon para matuloy ang halalan. Kaya hindi po sila dapat
parusahan,

Senator‘ Guingona. May we know the meaning of
“‘temporarily’’?

Senator Saguisag. Sa sundalo po, halimbawa, kung
sabihing may trouble spot sa Lanao, doon muna siya.

~ Senator Guingona. So it can be the day before that
they are iemporarily assigned?

Senator Saguisag. It is subject to a rule of reason,
dahil baka po may masaker doon the day before. So, the
soldier residing in Pateros may be flown that day.

Senator Guingona. That is no longer in his per-
formance of election duties? That is peace-keeping
which has nothing to do with elections.

Senator Saguisag. I think there is some relation
between having a peaceful...

Senator Guingona. The question of massacre?

Senator Saguisag. I think if some bullets are ring-
ing or zinging our ears, it tends to affect our equanimity.
We may change our minds about voting at all or who to
vote for. '

Kaya iyong nakikita ninyong mga law enforcement
authorities ay nakakatulong. ButI guess the experience
here was that the election was done a week before.

Senator Guingona. Is this going to be a week be-
fore?

Senator Saguisag. Under EO No. 3187, because it
is impossible to hold it on the same day since they will be
busy attending to this. Pero ang bilangan po ay hindi
agad ginagawa. Dito ginagawa sa central office.

Senator Guingona, May we know from the COME-
LEC officials, how many absentee voters were there in
the 1987 elections?

Senator Saguisag. It was close to 200,000 voters.
Senator Guingona. Malaki.

Senator Saguisag. There were 191,000 votes for
Senators daw po. So, there may be more. But I knew
that most of us did very badly, because Senator Enrile
was far and away No. 1.

Senator Guingona. Yes.

Senator Saguisag. Tayo po ay pinulot sa kangku-
ngan. But, to me, that is no excuse. We have to elevate
and expand the concept of enfranchisement.

So, 191,000 for senatorial bets, nationwide raw po.
Senator Guingona. And this applies only to national in
1988.

Senator Saguisag. The President, Vice President,

and Senators, because precisely, wherever they may vote

is neither here nor there. They cannot affect the local
power situation in terms of election dahil po puro
Presidente, Bise Presidente at Senador lamang ito. Iyon
din po ang intensiyon natin, kung makakalusot ito.

Senator Guingona. We will hear out Senator Pi-
mentel since the distinguished Sponsor has suggested
that we defer. But I have those reservations, and I may
move for an extension.

Senator Saguisag. We appreciate them, Mr. Presi-
dent.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Maceda is recognized.

Senator Maceda. I will not press it, but my pro-
posed amendment is in the Record, and that is to delete
the position of Senators. Or, if the Senators are going to
be included, then I think the COMELEC can make ar-
rangements that Congressmen should also be included.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada].
will vote on this proposed amendment tomorrow.

So, we

Senator Saguisag. Kung puwede po. Natatandaan
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kong may mga komentaryo dito si Senator Pimentel on
the basis of his experience in Cagayan de Oro. Ngayon
po, ang mga naka-assign, -tila ilang libo doon, would
always defeat the votes cast by the ‘‘locals’’, so to speak.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. All right.

MACEDA AMENDMENTS

wonder whether all of these things, especially in munici-
palities and provinces, could really be done within 24
hours.

I assume that the sooner it is
It can be directory,

Senator Saguisag.
required to be done, the better.
subject to circumstances obtaining.

Senator Maceda. On page 10, line 4, TEN PESOS.

Senator Saguisag. Mabuti po at nakakapit ako rito,
dahil kamuntik na akong mabuwal. Medyo po yata may
kataasan iyon. How many voters do we expect to have in
19927 '

Senator Maceda. Maybe, we can divide this: Ten
pesos for candidates for President and Vice President.

Senator Saguisag. Yes. ‘Maybe, for the President
and Vice President...

Senator Maceda. TEN PESOS, and then under
*‘(b)”’ for candidates for Senators, Members of the House
of Representatives, and elective local officials, THREE
PESOS.

Senator Saguisag. I can accept those, Mr. President.
Senator Maceda. Allright.

The Presiding Ofﬁcer'[Sénator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved. ‘

Senator Maceda. On page 11, lines 10 and 11,
Members of the Sangguniang Bayan and Barangay Offi-

——cials, ONE HUNDRED PESOS EACH._These are really

simple people. The idea is really just to put a penaity.
Senator Saguisag. TWO HUNDRED PESOS po.
Senator Maceda. Allright.
The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection to the TWO HUNDRED PESOS? [Si-

lence] Hearing none, the amendment is approved.

Senator Maceda. Page 14, lines 23 and 28. I really
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—Sapagkarangpagbibilaniganditoday walagang e
tukan po. So, in our own experience, despite the con-
straints, this can be done because this is very informal, na
kahit anong papel pa, et cetera. But if we lengthen it,
baka po lalong magkaroon ng mga irregularities. But
like the law saying we have to decide in six months,
always in its implementation, it is subjected to a rule of
reason.

Kaya, hindi po talagang masasabing impraktikal ito.
But there will be flexibility on that basis. Let us put on
the Record that it is merely directory, depending on cir-
cumstances.

Senator Maceda. I will not press that point with that
explanation. But on page 15, lines 21 and 22, consider-
ing that it is *‘written and verified notice of appeal”’, we
cannot even find somebody to verify it immediately, I
propose that this be changed to FORTY-EIGHT (48)
hours. .

Senator Saguisag. Acceptéd, Mr. President.

- The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Maceda. The last point, Section 25, page
19 up to page 20, from line 9, the deletion of the concept__
of two principal watchers, which I suppose we cannot
decide today.

Senator Saguisag. I am inclined to accept, but
maybe, we will just have a short break, Mr. President.

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION
The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. The ses-

sion is suspended, if there is no objection. [There was
none.] :
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It was 6:36 p.m.
RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION
At 6:38 p.m., the session was resumed.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. The ses-
sion is resumed.

event, we will defer approval of this proposed amend-
ment until tomorrow.

Senator Maceda. Last point which is not controver-
sial, Mr. President: Page 25, line 26; the same with page
27, line 3, increase the amount “P400°" to ‘P600’’, with
the expectation that the voting and counting will really
reach three or more days.

We will defer action on this particular amendment.

Senator Saguisag. May we just state that there are
really varied views strongly expressed here. Infairness to
them who may not be around this evening, may we also
have this decided tomorrow, Mr. President?

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Allright.

Senator Maceda. May I just place my comment on
the Record, Mr. President, that strictly speaking, this may
create a lot of problems because, as far as I know, the
dominant party in the last elections is the Lakas ng
Bansa. So I am not about to concede that the LDP is the
same as the Lakas ng Bansa. -

The dominant opposition party in the last elections
was the Grand Alliance for Democracy, and certainly,
the Nacionalista Party now is different. Just today, I read
Mr. Francisco Tatad saying that they are activating the
Grand Alliance for Democracy.

So we are going to have a lot of unnecessary quib-
bling about this if we insist on this particular provision,
not to mention the constitutional question that we have
already raised.

——————Senator-Saguisag- Indeed, even in determining the

Senator Saguisag. Does the Gentleman know how
much that will add to the appropriation aspect?

Senator Maceda. I guess the Gentleman is talking
about the 165,000 times three. It would be about 500,000
teachers times 200--another hundred million.

Senator Saguisag. I also have this proposal about a
possible separate local election, but what do we use for
money? I mean, do we have the resources? I know that
the standard reply is that we have to produce same.

Senator Maceda. For the small province of
Camiguin with 30,000 voters, the President was able to
release P143 million plus P10 million. That does not
seem to be any shortage of money these days. When the
President goes around, although there is a shortage of
money when we asked for our P5 million countryside
development fund, and for one school in Camiguin, she
can release P10 million just like that. So, it really is
réiative depending as to whether the President agrees
with the availability of money or not.

Senator Saguisag. Since I am not running, can I ask
that it be reduced to P500?

Senator Maceda. I guess we can discuss that in the
Conference Committee with the House, which has its

dominant opposition party, someone may claim that the
Liberal Party which has just been reinforced, which led
the defeat of the Treaty, may, in fact, be the opposition
party. So, I am inclined to accept, to eliminate this very
difficult problem of determining who are the two favored
ones. I just do not want to do it in the absence of some of
the others. But I am on record that I am sympathetic to
the proposal, and if it is repeated tomorrow, i will accept
it, Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. In any

views also on money... But really, when we come to
think of it, it is going to be at least a three or four-day
election process. If it was P200 in 1987, five years ago,
extrapolate the inflation factor on what was P200 in 1987,
then there we are. How can we pay even P400 right now
in 1987 prices? There is no argument. :

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

Senator Saguisag. May we have a very briet recess,
Mr. President?
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The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. The ses-
sion is suspended, if there is no objection. [There was
none.]

Itwas 6:42 p.m.

RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION

At 6:43 p.m., the session was resumed.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. The ses-
sion is resumed.

Senator Saguisag.
proponent...

After conferring with the

Senator Maceda. This is in line with the Gentle-
man’s announced concern for 35,000 workers in Olon-
gapo. Here we are only suggesting another P20 for
500,000 poor struggling teachers. I do not see how he
can refuse to accept.

Senator Saguisag. My concern for Mt. Pinatubo
victims, I think, covers 5.3 million voters. Anyway, after
discussing it with the proponent and the representative of
the COMELEC during the break, we are accepting it, Mr.
President.

Senator Maceda. Thank you, Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, in view of the
reservations of some to interpellate, may we just request
that a clean copy be made for tomorrow including all the
amendments as thus approved.

SUSPENSION OF CONSIDERATION
OF SENATE BILL NO. 1861

Pursuant to that, I move that we suspend considera-
tion of this measure.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). Is there

any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the motion is
approved.

102

SPECIAL ORDERS

Senator Guingona. I move that Committee Report
No. 1339 on Senate Bill No. 807, entitled

AN ACT GRANTING TAX EXEMPTIONS TO
WHOEVER SHALL GIVE REWARDS TO
ANY FILIPINO ATHLETE WINNING A
MEDAL IN THE OLYMPIC GAMES,

be transferred to the Calendar for Special Orders.

- The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the motion is ap-

proved.

Senator Guingona. Likewise, Senate Bill No. 561,
Mr. President, entitled

AN ACT REDUCING THE COMPULSORY AND
OPTIONAL RETIREMENT AGE OF
GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES AMENDING
FOR THE PURPOSE PRESIDENTIAL
DECREE NUMBER ELEVEN HUNDRED
AND FORTY SIX (1146), OTHERWISE
KNOWN AS THE REVISED GOVERNMENT
SERVICE INSURANCE ACT OF 1977,

be transferred to the Calendar for Special Orders.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

Senator Guingona. May I ask for a minute suspen-
sion, Mr. President?

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. The ses-
sion is suspended for one minute, if there is no objection.
[There was none.)

Itwas 6:45 p.m.

RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION

At 6:46 p.m., the session was resumed.
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APPROV AL OF HOUSE BILL NO. 32761

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that we
vote on House Bill No. 32761 on Second Reading.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. We shall
now vote on the bill on Second Reading. As many as are
in favor of the bill will please say Aye. [Several Sen-
ators: Aye.] As many as are against will please say Nay.
[Silence] House Bill No. 32761 is approved on Second
Reading.

Senator Guingona. I so move, Mr. President, for
the approval of this measure.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, House Bill No.
32761 is approved on Second Reading.

BILL ON SECOND READING
Senate Bill No. 1861 - Synchronized Elections
(Continuation)

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that we
consider Senate Bill No. 1861, Synchronized Elections. 1
ask that we recognize Senator Saguisag.

The President Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Saguisag is recognized.

Senator Saguisag. Marami pong salamat, G. Pan-
gulo.

Mayroon na po yatang naikalat na mga sipi nitong
amendments or the state of the méasure containing
amendments as of yesterday. For the Record, may we
just introduce certain clerical or stylistic amendment?

Sa page 1 po, line 15, before ‘‘Senators’ and
‘“‘elected’’, na-omit iyong ‘‘shall be”’. It should read:
“TWENTY-FOUR (24) SENATORS SHALL BE
ELECTED.” Na-overlooked po yata kahapon.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. So the
words ‘‘SHALL BE’’ should be inserted between the

words ‘‘Senators’’ and ‘‘elected’’ online 15.

Senator Saguisag. That is correct, Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Saguisag. Page 3 po, line 13 and line 20,
iyon hong open quotation mark (*‘) and close quotation
mark (**) should go out.

The Presiding 0Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Saguisag. Doon ho sa line 4, I moved
yesterday for the deletion of ‘‘and a registered voter’’.
But my Staftf has called my attention to the fact that that
is a requirement under the Local Government Code
which will take effect soon. So I suppose, for purposes of
consistency, we should bring back what we deleted yes-
terday, dahil iyon ho ang naging kapasyahan ng Kon-
greso dito po sa Local Government Code, and I have
really no strong feeling either way.

So, may I formally move that on line 27, page 4, we
remove the open and close brackets, and reinstate the
requirement of ““AND A REGISTERED VOTER"’.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Saguisag. Sa page 6, nandito na po si
Senator Osmefia, and we have also checked with some of
our Colleagues, and I think the consensus really is to
obey the observation of the Supreme Court that the mat-
ter of nomination and selection of official candidates as to
the period is really better left to the discretion of the
Commission on Elections.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Osmefia is recognized.

Senator Osmena. Mr. President, Section 7 on page
6, in view of the Supreme. Court decision, should be
worded: ‘““THE POLITICAL CONVENTION OR
MEETINGS FOR THE NOMINATION OR ELECTION
OF THE OFFICIAL CANDIDATES OF ANY POLITI-
CAL PARTY OR ORGANIZATION OR POLITICAL
GROUT OR COALITION THEREQOF SHALL BE
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HELD WITHIN THE PERIODS PRESCRIBED BY
THE COMMISSION ON ELECTIONS’’, and lines 24 to
31 should be deleted.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. What does
the Sponsor say?

Senator Saguisag. Subject to possible stylistic re-
finements, we accept the same, Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Osmefia. Thank you, Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). Senator
Laurel is recognized.

Senator Saguisag. Puwede po bang matapos muna
iyong Committee amendments? Doon po ba iyon? Kasi
we are just looking at the clean copy and there are just
Some minor errors.

Senator Laurel. Afterwards.
Senator Saguisag. Salamat po.

Iyon hong sa page 8, nandito na po si Senator Lina,
and I think he is standing by his preference that the
registration of voters will be conducted on the 15th, Sat-
urday. Page 8 po iyan, line 10. Hindi po natin pi-
nasyahan ito kahapon.

Like in the case of Senator Osmefia, he made the
reservation that it is better to check with the proponent.
There was a suggestion yesterday on the 16th, but I was
taking this up with Senator Lina and he felt, if I under-

-Stood him correctly, na medyo po yata may kalayuan
iyon, So, personally I am for maintaining the present
phraseology.

So, may we move on to page 9.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. So, we
retain. ..

Senator Saguisag. Oho, there is no motion to delete

130

or to modify that I will make.

Another point, now that we notice the presence here
of Senator Pimentel, dito naman sa ‘‘Absentee Voting’’,
page 9, there was the thought floated by Senator Maceda,
why not include in the absentee voting, the election of
representatives?  If my recollection is correct, Senator
Pimentel made the observation that that can distort the
resultin certain places, like in Cagayan de Oro.

It seems to me that really, there is a reason to separate
the President, Vice President, and Senators, since no mat-
ter where the voters are, at the end of the day, so to speak,
iyon pong national total ang importante.

So, T also helieve that we should just maintain the
present phraseology.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. All right.
Senator Guingona on this point?

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I will not pose
the issuc raised last night, if the distinguished Sponsor
will object to an amendment to delete. But I would just
like to point out that the original election bill did not have
a provision allowing absentee voting for military and
public officials temporarily assigned in places other than
their own places of residence where they are registered.

Since this applies also to public officials or govern-
ment officials assigned elsewhere on a temporary basis,
this number could really swell to more than 200,000. I do
not know it that is the intent, because there are also
students who may not have the means to go back to their
respective places where they are registered.

So, if the principal is sick, we are going to extend it
to some absentees temporarily, because of the perform-
ance of their duties, that is extended to as many as pos-
sible, otherwise, we might as well delete the whole thing.

Senator Saguisag. Even if we delete this, I think,
they can still vote, unless we are going to repeal Execu-
tive Order No. 157.

What I am saying is that, in addressing the problem
of absentee voting whether here or abroad, it is good
enough that we are able to solve some problems at a
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certain point. But, as I have said, if we allow the military
or any other sector to enjoy a certain right, and then we
withdraw it, we have problems with that. I have no prob-
lems with trying to expand if that can be done as a
practical matter.

Pero ito wala namang tayong naging masamang
eksperyensiya noong 1987, and then we will now tell the
military what we allowed them to do before, we will
withdraw. I am not sure that in case of doubt, we resolve
it in favor of disenfranchisement.

Senator Guingona. May we have the definition of
“‘temporarily’’ thirty days before?

In other words, if it is an spontaneous assignment to a
nearby province, that is an occasion for possible misuse
or abuse. But if they are temporarily assigned, then let it
be really temporary on a showing of substantial temporar-
iliness, and not two days before the elections.  The
CAFGU especially are roving military personnel, Mr.
President.

The CAFGUs are not necessarily assigned to a per-
manent place, and they can be shifted from one area to
another.

That is my only concern, that 200,000 military per-
sonnel can make a difterence where there are many candi-
dates. We certainly would not like to disenfranchise
them; but, at the same’ time, [ think it is our duty to
minimize the possible sources of misuse and abuse.

So, there it is, Mr. President.- The nature of the
CAFGUs is that they can be assigned anywhere and eve-
rywhere.

Senator Saguisag. Yes, but they will vote only one
time a week before. That was what was done. How far
can we really assign?

Senator Guingona. As far as the civilian compo-
nent is concerned, I do not think they--the public offi-
cials, the personnel--availed themselves of this.” This was
limited to the military.

Senator Saguisag. I am informed here, that this is
exactly how it was done in 1987. So, there is no expan-

sionary feature in the way it is worded now. Kaya, iyon
po ang concern ko, na kung pinayagan na noon ay
mahirap nang tanggalin,

Senator Guingona. May we know how many civil-
ian public officials and government personnel availed
themselves of this in 19877

Senator Saguisag. The figure given me here--1 did
not get it very clearly last night. I thought 191,000 was
for the military alone. Iyon po palang 191,000 in 1987
covered also the civilian component.

Senator Guingona. Is there a breakdown, Mr. Presi-
dent?

Senator Saguisag. We do not have a breakdown.
But out of 200,000, it is very hard to assume that all of
them are people with evil designs. Really, the 191,000
voters, substantially, maybe--I like to think--all that deci-
sive in electing a President, Vice President, or Senators. 1
know that in a close election, it could make a difference.
But we have to make a very big assumption that the
191,000 votes were all cast under dubious circumstances;
and, I guess, without any empirical evidence, it is a very
uncharitable assumption that we should not indulge in.

So, in case of doubt, I am pleading that it be resolved
in favor of maintaining a privilege or a right that was
enjoyed in 1987.

Senator Guingona. If given time, Mr. President, I
can get the empirical data on issues of abuse. But,
because of lack of time, and to give the distinguished

- Sponsor the benefit of the doubt, I certainly will not press
for it. I just would like to register those observations and
reservations.

Senator Saguisag. At suka hanggang Conference
Committee po, it is just really that we are all under the
gun, so to speak, from the standpoint of a time frame.
But we realize the validity of the concerns raised by the
distinguished Majority Floor Leader.

So, may we move on to page 15, line 13, after the

word ‘‘[manifest]’’ in brackets that has been deleted, the
word ‘‘to”’ that follows it should likewise go out.
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The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Saguisag. Hanggang nandito pa iyong
interesadong mga partido, this is now the crucial policy
decision as to whom we give copies of these electoral
documents. The choice is between maintaining the pres-
ent practical arrangement of only going up to the seventh
copy or not giving any party these copies of the electoral
documents,

I think the Body is ready to vote on this. If a proper
motion to delete is oftered, I am... There is someone who
has raised his hand, the distinguished Colleague of ours
from Cagayan de Oro.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). Senator
Pimentel is recognized.

‘ Senator Saguisag. So this will be, I guess, in the
form of an omnibus motion if one is forthcoming.

Senator Pimentel. Yes, Mr. President. T would like
to make that motion as indicated by Senator Saguisag;
but before I do that, I would like to point out that even as
we are saying that all the copies of these electoral docu-
ments should be retained by the COMELEC, there should
be a period after the counting is over within which the
parties who might wish to get copies of these documents
should be allowed to do $o in connection with the elec-
toral contest, electoral protest, et cetera.

Senator Saguisag. They are scattered. Like on page
20, lines 25 to 30: ““The sixth copy shall be delivered to
the representative of the majority party or coalition; and
the seventh copy, to the representative of the dominant
opposition party or coalition.”’

Nandoon din po ito sa page 21, lines 8 to 12. Nan-
doon din po sa page 23, lines 30 to 34. Nandoon din po
sa page 24, lines 17 to 22.

lust in case I have overlooked any other part, the
intent of the motion is omnibus in nature to cover similar
situations na kung may ibibigay na kopya ay hindi na po
makakalamang ang majority party or dominant Opposi-
tion party dahil tila pinapaboran ng ating kaibigang taga-
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Cagayan de Oro.

Mayroon na pong mungkahi na in such a case, the
COMELEC as duty bound, will have to furnish copies of
those documents upon request within 24 hours from the
time that the request is filed.

May we have a brief suspension of the session, Mr.
President?

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. The ses-
sion is suspended, if there is no objection. [There was
none.)

Itwas 6:43 p.m.
RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION
At 6:51 p.m., the session was resumed,

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. The ses-
sion is resumed.

Senator Saguisag. G. Pangulo, mayroon na po yata
kaming napagkasunduan. On page 18, lines 17 and 18,
the phrase: **The Chairman shall face the public’’ will be
recast to read as follows: *“THE CHAIRMAN SHALL
ASSUME SUCH A POSITION AS TO ENABLE ALL
OF THE WATCHERS AND SUCH MEMBERS OF
THE PUBLIC AS MAY BE CONVENIENTLY AC-
COMMODATED TO READ SUCH NAMES.”’

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Saguisag. May we move to the previous
item in regard to who will be entitled to copies of the
electoral documents?

Senator Pimentel. Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Pimentel is recognized.

Senator Pimentel. Mr. President, this is an anterior
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amendment to the proposed amendment that will be pre-
sented by Senator Maceda in behalf of all of us.

Mr. President, on page 19, are we ready to tackle
page 197

Senator Saguisag. Maski saang pahina po, pupunta
tayo sa kursunada ninyo.

Senator Pimentel. Okay, iyon ang gusto ko sa inyo.

On page 19, Mr. President, may I propose this
amendment. Let me explain that the intention is to do
away with the so-called ‘‘principal watchers’’. There-
fore, on line 2, I move to delete the period, after line 2, so
that the sentence will continue to line 6 starting from the
pronoun ‘‘Who’’, thereby eliminating or deleting lines 3,
4,5 and 6 up to the word *‘Coalition”’.

Just for clarity, may I read, Mr. President, from line
1: “THE SAME SLATE OR TICKET SHALL COL-
LECTIVELY BE ENTITLED TO ONE WATCHER
WHO SHALL SIT AS OBSERVER IN THE PRO-
CEEDINGS OF THE BOARD OF ELECTION IN-
SPECTORS, THE MUNICIPAL BOARD OF CAN-
VASSERS AND THE CITY, DISTRICT OR PROVIN-
CIAL BOARD OF CANVASSERS.”’

Thereafter, the rest of the provisions from line 9 after
the period immediately following the word ‘‘Canvas-
sers”” will be deleted up to page 20, line 2.

The whole idea really, Mr. President, is to do away
with the so-called principal or dominant opposition
watchers, because that will be inconsistent with the pro-
posed amendments later to be presented by Senator
Maceda.

Senator Saguisag. Accepted, Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection?

Senator Laurel. Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada].
Laurel, then Senator Osmeiia.

Senator

Senator Laurel. Ano ho ba ang ibig sabihin nito?
Wala na ho bang dominant minority party? Kung wala
nang dominant minority party, wala na ring majority
party?

Senator Saguisag. Well, for purposes of ...

Senator Laurel. Because we must understand the
setup as established and practiced before this bill was
presented with these suggestions or amendments now.
The whole system was based on this majority party and
the dominant minority or opposition party. Are we really
disregarding already that concept of the dominant and the
minority party or parties”?

Ibig ho naming malaman iyan sapagkat kami nina
Senador Tamano at Senador Enrile belong to a party that
might be considered on the basis of still existing criteria,
as the dominant minority party.

Senator Saguisag. The ideal is, sana ay mabigyan
ang lahat. Unfortunately, because of technical limita-
tions, we tried it. It is not possible for copies beyond a
certain number to remain legible, especially considering
that the new Constitution encourages political pluralism,
a multiparty system. The Sponsor is really inclined to
accept the amendment on those two reasons, subject to
possible additional policy consideration that the Movant
may have in mind, Mr. President.

Senator Laurel. Pero kung susundin natin ang
logic na binanggit ninyo, ang ibig sabihin noon, dapat
ang majority party ay wala narin.

Senator Pimentel. Wala nga.

Senator Saguisag. Wala na.

Senator Laurel. Nobody will have any watcher.

Senator Pimentel. No.

Senator Saguisag. Hindi ho. Lahat ho ay may mga
watchers.

Senator Laurel. I mean inspector, halimbawa.

Senator Saguisag. Mayroon po silang lahat. Kung
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anuman ho iyon, it is really the distribution of a limited
set of documents. So, everybody will be entitled to have
watchers, pero mawawala na iyong karapatang tu-
manggap ng mga sipi ng ilang electoral documents, dahil
ang sabi nga ho ay bakit hindi bigyan ng kopya ang lahat.
And that was the problem we were grappling with and
could not resolve because of practical and technical diffi-
culties.

Senator Laurel. Can we ask for a few minutes
suspension?

Senator Pimentel. Yes.
SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

The Presiding Officer {Senator Tafiada]. The ses-
sion is suspended, if there is no objection. [There was
none.]

Itwas 7:00 p.ni.
RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION
At 7 :04 p.m., the session was resumed.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. The ses-
sion is resumed.

Senator Saguisag. Mr. President, on the typically
persuasive and compelling request of our distinguished
Colleague from Batangas, maybe, we can slip over that
controversial provision.

May I just take the liberty, for the purpose of expedi-
ency, of reading the proposed amendments of Senator
Romulo. This will be Sections 30 and 31 on Firearms.

Ito pong Section 30 will read as follows, to be in-
serted at the appropriate space:

“WHO MAY BEAR FIREARMS. - DURING THE
ELECTION PERIOD, NO PERSON SHALL BEAR,
CARRY OR TRANSPORT FIREARMS OR OTHER
DEADLY WEAPONS IN PUBLIC PLACES INCLUD-
ING ANY BUILDING, STREET, PARK, PRIVATE
VEHICLE OR PUBLIC CONVEYANCE EVEN IF LI-
CENSED TO POSSESS OR CARRY THE SAME.

134 .

ONLY REGULAR MEMBERS OR OFFICERS OF
THE PHILIPPINE NATIONAL POLICE, THE
ARMED FORCES OF THE PHILIPPINES AND
OTHER LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES OF THE
GOVERNMENT WHO ARE DULY DEPUTIZED IN
WRITING BY THE COMMISSION FOR ELECTION
DUTY MAY BE AUTHORIZED TO CARRY AND

POSSESS FIREARMS DURING THE ELECTION PE-

RIOD: PROVIDED THAT, WHEN IN THE POS-
SESSION OF FIREARMS, THE DEPUTIZED LAW
ENFORCEMENT OFFICER MUST BE (a) IN FULL
UNIFORM SHOWING CLEARLY AND LEGIBLY
HIS OR HER NAME, RANK AND SERIAL NUMBER
WHICH SHALL REMAIN VISIBLE AT ALL TIMES;
AND, (b) IN THE ACTUAL PERFORMANCE OF HIS
OR HER ELECTION DUTY IN THE SPECIFIC AREA
DESIGNATED BY THE COMMISSION.”

Section 31 is a companion provision. So, I would
want to read the same together with the first for consid-
eration. The caption is ‘‘SECURITY PERSONNEL
AND BODYGUARDS."’

“DURING THE ELECTION PERIOD, NO CANDI-
DATE FOR PUBLIC OFFICE, INCLUDING INCUM-
BENT PUBLIC OFFICERS SEEKING- ELECTION
TO ANY PUBLIC OFFICE, SHALL EMPLOY,
AVAIL HIMSELF OF, OR ENGAGE THE SERV-
ICES OF SECURITY PERSONNEL, BODYGUARDS,
WHETHER OR NOT SUCH BODYGUARDS ARE
REGULAR MEMBERS OR OFFICERS OF THE
PHILIPPINE NATIONAL POLICE, THE ARMED
FORCES OF THE PHILIPPINES, OR OTHER LAW
ENFORCEMENT AGENCY OF THE GOVERN-
MENT; PROVIDED THAT, WHEN THE LIFE AND
SECURITY OF THE CANDIDATE IS IN JEOPARDY,
HE MAY BE ASSIGNED BY THE COMMISSION,
UPON DUE APPLICATION AND AFTER NOTICE
AND HEARING, NOT MORE THAN TWO (2)
REGULAR MEMBERS OF THE PHILIPPINE NA-
TIONAL POLICE WHO SHALL PROVIDE HIM SE-
CURITY FOR THE DURATION OF THE ELECTION
PERIOD.

THE POLICE OFFICERS ASSIGNED FOR SE-
CURITY DUTY TO A CANDIDATE SHALL BE
SUBJECT TO THE SAME REQUIREMENT AS TO
WEARING OF UNIFORMS PRESCRIBED IN THE
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IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING SECTION. IF AT ANY
TIME DURING THE ELECTION PERIOD, THE
‘GROUND FOR WHICH THE AUTHORITY TO EN-
GAGE THE SERVICES OF SECURITY PERSONNEL
HAS BEEN GRANTED SHALL CEASE TO EXIST
OR FOR ANY OTHER VALID CAUSE, THE COM-
MISSION SHALL REVOKE THE SAID AUTHOR-
ITY.” :

Section 32...

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, some Senators
are requesting that they be allowed time to study because
the amendment is really long.

Senator Saguisag. Tatapusin ko na lamang po itong
huli. It is one sentence na lamang po.

“SECTION 32.- THE FIREARM OR OTHER
DEADLY WEAPON FOUND IN THE POSSESSION
OF THE PERSON PROSECUTED FOR THE ELEC-
TION OFFENSE SHALL BE CONFISCATED IN
FAVOR OF THE STATE TO BE DISPOSED BY IT
ACCORDING TO EXISTING LAWS, WHETHER OR
NOT THE ACCUSED HAS BEEN CONVICTED.”’

So, may we ask the Secretariat, Mr. President, to
furnish us first hour tomorrow morning a copy of what I
have just read.

Senator Guingona. We so request that the Secretar-
iat do the same, Mr. President,

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada.] The Sec-
retariat is so instructed.

SUSPENSION OF CONSIDERATION
OF SENATE BILL NO. 1861

- Senator Guingona. Mr. President, in view of the
lateness of the hour, I move that we suspend considera-
tion of this measure.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada.] IS there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the motion is
approved.

ADJOURNMENT OF THE SESSION

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that we
adjourn the session until three o'clock tomorrow after-
noon.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada.] The ses-
sionis adjourned until three o’ clock tomorrow afternoon.

Itwas 7:09 p.o.
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lieve in a rule of law.

He is a good friend of ours. We went through a lot
with him. But [ do not hesitate to criticize him now. Ido
not believe that that is the way a public servant should
behave if we are to progress and if we want to recover all
those ill-gotten gains.

A Filipino affiant gave me a reason to be nervous for
a while. We thought that the ruling would come out very
quickly. But when there was a delay, that really was
bothering me.

Baka po ang sabi ng huwes, kamukha ng naging
komentaryo sa New York, ano ba ang pakialam nila.
Baka sasabihin ni Judge Debevoise, ultimo iyong Fili-
pino ay tumetestigo against his motherland, bakit akong
Amerikano ang tutulong sa inyo?

We are just glad that the position of Ambassador
Pelaez and company ang na sustain, at na-reject po iyong
paninindigan o kuru-kuro ng ating kaibigang si Prof.
Perfecto V. Fernandez, none other.

The President. The distinguished Gentleman was
expressing surprise why suits here in the Philippines are
moving very slowly, whereas suits in the United States or
in other jurisdiction have already been finished or are
proceeding very fast. Is it not true, of all suits that were
initiated after February 1986, we were able to win in New
Jersey right away against the Marcoses, but there is no
suit we won here at home?

We were able to win in New York, I remember, on
the injunction suits. We have never won here at home.
We were able to win in Switzerland. We have not yet
won here at all. What does that suggest to us?

Senator Saguisag. It is really something to be sad
about. In the case of Judge Debevoise, he had set the
hearing for February 6, 1992, and it is nontransferrable.
It may take six to eight weeks. They are very efficient
and systematic as to this. Pero dito po sa atin, ni hindi
tayo maka-first base doon sa Sandiganbayan, ika nga. Ni
hindi pa nase-serve ang summons, our term is winding
down,

Without holding any brief for anybody, just to name
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one example, how come na mas mabilis po yata ang
arraignment of someone like Secretary Popoy Juico na
nag-umpisa lamang ang kaso very recently, samantalang
iyong karumaldumal na nangyaring katiwalian noong
panahon nila ay tila nabibimbin?

I have difficulty understanding this. I am not out to
protect anybody, but fair is fair. Meaning, kung na-
arraign na iyong isang kasama natin in the struggle, what
about those whom we struggled against. Many people
will have to explain why this is happening, not only to
our people now bhut to posterity.

The President. Marami pong salamat.
Senator Saguisag. Wala pong anuman.
The President. The Majority Floor Leader.

BILL ON SECOND READING
Senate Bill No. 1861 - Synchronized
Elections on May 11, 1992
(Continuation)

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that we
resume consideration of Senate Bill No. 1861 as reported
out under Committee Report No. 1373,

The President. Resumption of consideration of Sen-
ate Bill No. 1861 is now in order.

Senator Guingona. We are now in the period of
amendments.

I move that we recognize Senator Saguisag.
The President. Senator Saguisag is recognized.
Senator Saguisag. May I ask for a brief suspension.

Senator Guingona. May we have a suspension of
the session, Mr. President.

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

The President. The session is suspended, if there is
no objection. [There was none.)
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Irwas 4:45 p .

RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION
At 4:56 p.m., the session was resumed.
The President. The session is resumed.

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE ON SENATE BILL
NO. 1404/HOUSE BILL NO. 21223
(Logging Ban)

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, before we pro-
ceed with the Synchronized Election Bill, may I move
that the following Senators be named conferees on Senate
Bill No. 1404 on the Logging Ban, and in consideration
with House Bill No. 21223 on the similar measure: Sena-
tors Alvarez, Mercado, Pimentel, Angara, Romulo, Guin-
gona, and Enrile.

The President. Is there any objection? [Silence]
Hearing none, the motion is approved.

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE ON SENATE BILL
NO. 686/HOUSE BILL NO. 32276
(Literacy)

Senator Guingona. And on Senate Bill No. 686 and
House Bill No. 32276 on literacy, Mr. President, the
following: Senators Rasul, Laurel, Angara, and Enrile.

The President. Is there any objection? [Silence)
Hearing none, the motion is approved.

Back to Senator Saguisag on the Synchronized Elec-
tion Bill.

Senator Saguisag. Yes, Mr. President. The parlia-
mentary situation was that, last night, on the request of
our Colleagues, they asked for a clean copy of the lengthy
amendment proposed by our distinguished Friend from
Tarlac. May we request him to read into the Record the
amendment he proposed in the way it appears now?

Senator Romulo. Yes, Mr. President, This would
appear on page 27.

Senator Saguisag. Excuse me, Mr. President. We

are using for the Record, this version containing amend-
ments on page 26 as of § October 1991.

Senator Romule. That is correct. So it would start
appearing on page 27, line 3.

And the proposed amendment would be: SEC. 30.
WHO MAY BEAR ARMS. - DURING THE ELEC-
TION PERIOD, NO PERSON SHALL BEAR, CARRY
OR...

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

Senator Saguisag. Excuse me, Mr. President. May
we have a short recess?

The President. The session is suspended for one
minute, if there is no objection. [There was none.]

Itwas 4:59 p.m.

RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION
At 5:01 p.m., the session was resumed.
The P‘resident. The session is resumed.

Senator Romulo. With the permission of the Spon-
sor, on page 26 of Senate Bill No. 1861, amendments as
of October §, 1991.

Last night, we proposed these amendments and we
would like to read them again for the Record. On page
26, after line 18, we proposed the following section:

SEC.30. WHO MAY BEAR FIREARMS. - DUR-
ING THE ELECTION PERIOD, NO PERSON SHALL
BEAR, CARRY OR TRANSPORT FIREARMS OR
OTHER DEADLY WEAPONS IN PUBLIC PLACES,
INCLUDING ANY BUILDING, STREET, PARK, PRI-
VATE VEHICLE OR PUBLIC CONVEYANCE, EVEN
IF LICENSED TO POSSESS OR CARRY THE SAME.

ONLY REGULAR MEMBERS OR OFFICERS OF
THE PHILIPPINE NATIONAL POLICE, THE ARMED
FORCES OF THE PHILIPPINES AND OTHER LAW
ENFORCEMENT AGENCY OF THE GOVERNMENT
WHO ARE DULY DEPUTIZED IN WRITING BY THE
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COMELEC FOR ELECTION DUTY MAY BE AU-
THORIZED TO CARRY AND POSSESS FIREARMS
DURING THE ELECTION PERIOD: PROVIDED,
THAT WHEN IN THE POSSESSION OF FIREARMS,
THE DEPUTIZED LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER
MUST BE (A) IN FULL UNIFORM SHOWING
CLEARLY AND LEGIBLY HIS OR HER NAME,
RANK AND SERIAL NUMBER WHICH SHALL RE-
MAIN VISIBLE AT ALL TIMES; AND (B) IN THE
ACTUAL PERFORMANCE OF HIS OR HER ELEC-
TION DUTY IN THE SPECIFIC AREA DESIGNATED
BY THE COMMISSION ON ELECTIONS (COME-
LEC). '

The next will be Section 31.

Senator Saguisag. Mr. President, maybe it is better
to act on each section separately. ’

The President. Why do we not deal with it, para-
graph by paragraph?

Senator Maceda. Mr. President.
The President. Senator Maceda is recognized.

Senator Maceda. Mr. President, I do recognize and
laud the good intentions of the Proponent, but may I just
point out certain things.

First, it is with respect to the election period. I as-
sume that is at least 90 days, Mr. President. There is an
assumption here that in this whole 90-day period, people
would just be concerned with elections. But the peace
and order situation is such that this may unnecessarily
expose people who have, after all, been licensed to carry
firearms. Meaning to say, in the light of such places like

Marag Valley, Kalinga-Apayao, or Bondoc Peninsula, on

the other extreme, I can understand the rationale if it is,
let us say, only for election day or election week.

But once we cover the entire 90-day priod, we are
really making a judgment here that it would be safe to
dispossess or disauthorize people who are licensed to
carry firearms all over the country, even in areas where
there are real peace-and-order problems. During the 90-
day period, bank managers, municipal treasurers, city
treasurers and the like, who have legitimate reason for
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carrying firearms, would also then be covered.

I just want to point out that based on the phraseology,
as it is phrased, to disauthorize anybody to carry firearms
even if licensed to possess or carry the same during the
90-day period, we may be prejudicing certain legitimate
needs for some people to carry firearms.

Senator Romulo. Mr. President, as the Gentleman
stated, this refers to all, including those who are licensed
to possess or carry firearms, So, the phrase and the
paragraph really speak clearly on that point.

Senator Maceda. Exactly, Mr. President. What
happens, for example, to bank managers or bank employ-
ees in Cagayan de Oro when they transport money from
place to place? Under the Section, as phrased, they are
covered. As the Gentleman said, they are covered.

I am wondering whether it should really be as abso-
lute as it is meant to be.

Senator Romulo. Mr. President, we also feel that
the law enforcement agencies, the Philippine National
Police and the Armed Forces, should be able to take care
of the situation. Our problem is that, once we start
making exceptions, then where do such exceptions end?

The only exception, which is not really an exception,
is that those who should really bear arms like the Armed
Forces and the Philippine National Police, would, of
course, continue to bear arms, subject again to the super-
vision and control of the COMELEC.

Senator Maceda. We have seen that a certain num-
ber of public officials have been killed this year, which
included policemen or Armed Forces officers, two or
three Congressmen and the like, a lot of barangay chair-
men, munjcipal officials, and provincial officials. There
will be a real problem here.

I see the point. Once we start making exceptions,
there will be certain grey areas. I suppose there is no big
debate in making an exception for people who carry large
amounts of money like the municipal treasurers, bank
managers, big supermarket managers, who have to de-
posit money in the bank.

/H/
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The other point is, I do not even know whether even
restricting this to a shorter period before election day
proper may achieve the purposes for which I am trying to
find out whether there could be some middle ground. But
my gut-feel is that, if we make this as absolute for 90
days, we will paralyze a certain number of activities
which involve either carrying huge sums of money or
public officials or persons travelling to dangerous areas.
People would hesitate then to go to certain areas, unless
they feel safe that they, at least, have a licensed firearm to
protect themselves.

Senator Romulo. Mr. President, my own feeling is
that this is really a very important feature of this reform
election law, because any other way by which we allow
guns, I think that is about the way we can best frustrate
the electoral process. Even now, we know that many
politicians have bodyguards and carry guns. [ think this
will only add to more killings, not to speak of terrorizing
the electorate and the voters. We know from experience
that this has been the practice, especially so now that the
elections are held on simultaneous days when the passion
from the local level up would be tremendous.

Therefore, we felt, in consultation with certain law
enforcement agencies--the Armed Forces and the Philip-
pine National Police--that this may not be a perfect pro-
posal, but taken all in all, we would come out a lot better
in the ledger, in the final day or in each, than if we do not
prohibit the carrying of firearms.

Senator Maceda. Mr. President, as I said, I am not
about to dispute everything that the Gentleman says. I
am just putting everything on the Record, and may I add
another point.

Whether it is Section 3() or Section 31, to begin with,
this must only refer to licensed firearms because unli-
censed firearms are already covered by criminal law.
Illegal possession of fircarms is highly penalized under
our jurisdiction.

Now, in a manner of.speaking--and probably, the
distinguished presidentiables here should take note--these
two sections, led to the usual conclusions based on previ-
ous practice, would, in effect, totally disarm the opposi-
tion. The normal way things go, it is the Administration
candidates that have access to assistance and protection

by the PC or police agencies.

The fact remains that in many cases in the past,
including Pangasinan and, of course, even Malabon is
always a hot spot, or Las Pifias and Muntinlupa, the
people who are in the Administration have a tremendous
advantage in the use of fircarms. When we were in the
opposition, there were several times our people had said:
‘“We are helpless to protect ourselves or protect the ballot
because it is the Administration candidates whom the
policemen are helping.”’

This happened also in Makati, perpetrating whatever
is perpetrated, accompanied by the use of firearms.

My gut-feel also tells me that one bad result of this, is
that we are, in effect, totally disarming the opposition
while in reality, the Administration will never be dis-

.armed.

Senator Romulo. Mr. President, my only response
to that is, we believe that the Armed Forces, the Philip-
pine National Police, and the other law enforcement
agencies are not really for the Administration but for the
people and for the enforcement of a free, peaceful, or-
derly elections. But let us not forget that there is also the
COMELEC, and that the COMELEC is mandated and
they have pledged themselves to really stay in this elec-
toral process to lend protection to all, so that we are not
prepared to concede the premises that the distinguished
Senator has stated.

Senator Maceda. I cannot, of course, dispute what
is a textbook answer of my distinguished Colleague from
Tarlac. But I think many of us here, who have been in
politics for a long time and on both sides of the fence--
whether Administration or Opposition--know that if ever
certain election offenses or abuses are committed with the
use of firearms, I will not say absolutely 100 percent, but
I would say, in at least nine out of ten, if not eight out of
ten cases, it would probably be on the Administration
side.

As I said, in the case and at the times when we had
been in the Opposition, whether it was in the LABAN
campaign of *78, or in the Marcos campaign of ’65 when
we were still in the Opposition, and of course, in the last
few elections when we were in the Opposition to Mr.
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Marcos, our people always came to us and said: ‘‘We are
helpless to prevent these abuses. We cannot even hold
meetings. We cannot even enter that place because we
are met with firearms from the other side,”” and these
people using these firearms are even usually police agen-
cies.

Could we have a one-minute recess on this matter? I
do not know what could possibly be worked out.

The President., The Chair would like to ask Senator
Romulo a question or two.

Senator Romulo. Yes, Mr. President.

The President. Would the distinguished Gentleman
consider the Department of Interior and Local Govern-
ment a law-enforcement agency?

Senator Romulo. Mr. President, we can put limita-
tions that...I do not know if they are really considered as
such. I do not think so. But in the event that they are so
considered, I think, perhaps, that we should put that re-
striction. I merely referred here to Armed Forces of the
Philippines, Philippine National Police.

The President. But the Philippine National Police is
under the Department of Interior and Local Government.

Senator Romulo. But, Mr. President, during the
election period, the Philippine National Police, as well as
the Armed Forces of the Philippines, would be under the
supervision, monitoring, and control of the Commission
on Elections.

The President. But they do not cease to be con-
nected with the Secretary of Interior and Local Govern-
ment.

Senator Romulo. But for the purpose of the per-
formance of their duties, Mr. President, I believe that they
are answerable only to the Commission on Elections
during that period.

The President. What I am really hitting at is that,
under the Code of Conduct and Ethical Standards, all
- government agencies must be nonpartisan. But we have a
partisan Secretary of Interior and Local Government, how
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can that be? We have the Code of Conduct and Ethical
Standards. And now, we have this Election Law.

Senator Romulo. Mr. President, I believe, pre-
cisely, that the Commission on Elections would have

control and supervision. Therefore, I believe that the
National Police Force would be completely under their -

control, and not under the direction of the Secretary of the
Department of Interior and Local Government.

The President. Can the Commission on Elections -

remove the Secretary during the election period?

Senator Romulo. No, Mr. President. But these

police would be answerable . directly and solely to the‘

Commission on Elections during this period.

The President. But we know the harsh realities of
political life in the Philippines. I am just suggesting that
thought for the sake of all the people and all the political

parties. Actually, that has been the objection of Senator -

Pimentel since more than a year ago.
S‘USPENSION OF THE SESSION

Senator Romulo. Mr. President, I understand there
is a request for a one-minute suspension.

The President. Allright.

The session is suspended for one minute, if there is
no objecton. [There was none.]

Itwas 5:20 p.m.

RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION
At 5:28 p.m., the session was resumed.
The President. The session is resumed.

Senator Saguisag. Mr. President, I think in the
conference, we have reached an agreement as to how to
address the valid concerns of the two Gentlemen. If I
may take the liberty ot reading into the Record what we
have agreed on--doon po sa Section 30, at the end of the
paragraph iyong ‘“‘CARRY THE SAME”’, change the
period to a comma and then we add ‘‘UNLESS AU-
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THORIZED IN WRITING BY THE COMMISSION’’ or
the COMELEC.

May we just make an omnibus amendment that it be
made uniform, if it is ‘““COMMISSION"’ or *‘COME-
LEC’’. That was the formula that the three of us agreed
on. :

The President. I just want to pose the question:
Does the COMELEC have the necessary organization or
machinery to do that?

Senator Saguisag. They have a presence all over the
land.

The President. Are they knowledgeable about fire-
arms?

Senator Saguisag. They are knowledgeable about
danger to life and limb, because I think that is really all
they need to do and then they can deputize anybody who

is competent, the PNP or the CAFGU. So, I think that is’

manageable. The problem is that we cannot think of a
better body.

The President. How about a special authority issued
by the PC and countersigned by the COMELEC?

Senator Saguisag. Our history is that, the COME-
LEC has proven to be less partisan.

The President. That is why it must be counter-
signed. :

Senator Saguisag. 1 would have thought that,
maybe, the main authority is the COMELEC counter-
signed by... :

The President. But they do not have the organiza-
tional machinery.

Senator Saguisag. I am saying that during the elec-
tions, the entire bureaucracy can be deputized by the
COMELEC.

The President. But that is really more fiction than
fact during the elections.

Senator Saguisag.
Commission on Elections.

I just have more faith in the

The President. Anyway...
Senator Guingona. Mr. President.
The President. Senator Guingona is recognized.

Senator Guingona. Just a few clarificatory ques-
tions to Senator Romulo, Mr. President.

Does the COMELEC deputize selectively or totally?
When it deputizes the Armed Forces, for example, is it
total armed forces or is it selectively batallion per unit, et
cetera?

Senator Romulo. I believe, Mr. President, it is total
deputizing.

Senator Guingona. Is it total?
Senator Romulo. Yes, Mr. President.

Senator Saguisag. May I volunteer that our resource
person from the COMELEC tells us that the practice is to
deputize a Firearms Committee in every province all over
the land.

Senator Guingona. A Firearms Committee? I do
not know where...

Senator Saguisag. In practice, the Chairman is the
provincial election supervisor, and the members are the
Provincial Commander or the now PNP Provincial Direc-
tor and the National Bureau of Investigation.

That has been the practice, Mr. President. The pro-
vincial level is headed by the prowvincial elections super-
visor and assisted by the PNP Director, who used to be
the Provincial Commander, and the National Bureau of
Investigation.

Senator Guingona. And this committee would se-
lectively recommend the deputization of certain units of

the Armed Forces?

Senator Saguisag. Ithink what they do is to process
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applications to carry firearms. They do it themselves
without deputizing anybody, Mr. President, on the basis
of COMELEC experience. ‘

Senator Guingona. I see. What I am concerned
with here is, the amendment seeks to impose a ban on all,
except those who are deputized.

My specific question, as a consequence, would be:
Would this include the CAFGUs?

Senator Saguisag. It is not a question of deputiza-
tion. Itis a question of authorizing,

Senator Guingona. No, the exception is the deputi-
zation. If they are deputized to do electoral duties, then
they can carry firearms on such and such a date and
within such and such a place. Am I wrong? Is that not
the intent of the amendment? May I ask Senator Ro-
mulo?

Senator Romulo. We are talking about the
CAFGUs. I am talking about the Armed Forces and the
Philippinc National Police. I would like to...

Senator Saguisag. In the meeting last Friday of
those concerned headed by Chairman Monsod and Gen-
eral Abadia, along with General Nazareno and General
Lim of the NBI, one observation made is that the
CAFGU is considered now as an integral part of the
military organization. So, they are subject to military
discipline.

Senator Guingona. All right. But the thing is, are
the CAFGUs going to be deputized? In other words, this
is related to my question previously. Is the deputization
for all or for some selectively?

Senator Saguisag. No, it is not necessary, perhaps,
in Palanan, Makati. But, maybe, in Lawan, Eastern
Samar, where they have just killed the Mayor--

Senator Guingona. Precisely.

Senator Saguisag. --some use has to be done or it
has to be made of people we pay to protect the citizenry.

So, it is on a case-to-case basis. Sa iba pong lugar ay
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hindi naman kailangan.
Forbes Park.

Maaaring hindi kailangan sa

So, it is not going to be done in a blanket manner,
but as the need may arise, Mr. President.

Senator Guingona. So, the deputization is on a
case-to-case basis and is not total. The previous answer
seems to be total.

Senator Romulo. I think that was answered in the
Firearms Committee that the Gentleman stated.

Senator Saguisag. In other words, it is really a
nationwide organization. But some places are hotter, so
to speak, than others, and it may be in a place like Lanao
or some other places where there may be a bigger concen-
tration of law enforcers.

In theory, the deputization of a national organization
is, of course, on a national basis. But on the crucial days
themselves, nothing may happen in many places. So,
case to case po.

Senator Guingona. So that CAFGUs who are not
deputized cannot carry firearms on that day?

Senator Saguisag. I do not really know because if
they are in the camp, anyway, where nothing is happen-
ing, I am not aware that there is need to disarm even a
soldier during election period, especially if he is staying
in the camp defending the same.

Senator Maceda. With the permission of the Gen-
tlemen, may I just put this into the record?

I am, of course, gratified that the COMELEC people
seem to be very confident about enforcing these rules.
Since time immemorial and into the future, for example,
in the Muslim areas, nobody has been able to implement
any ban against the carrying of firearms at any time.

And with regard to the CAFGUSs, in many areas,
whatever we say here today, no COMELEC can enforce
this ban.

Senator Guingona. So, with that dictum, what is
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the use for this amendment‘7 May we know the existing
law?

Senator Saguisag. It is Section 261 (q) of the Omni-
bus Election Code where it says: ‘‘Carrying firearms
outside residence or place of business. - Any person who,
although possessing a permit to carry firearms, carries
any firearms outside his residence or place of business
during the election period unless authorized in writing by
the Commission...”’

PERIOD, NO PERSON SHALL BEAR, CARRY OR
TRANSPORT FIREARMS OR OTHER DEADLY
WEAPONS IN PUBLIC PLACES, INCLUDING ANY
BUILDING, STREET, PARK, PRIVATE VEHICLE
OR PUBLIC CONVEYANCE, EVEN IF LICENSED
TO POSSESS OR CARRY THE SAME UNLESS AU-
THORIZED IN WRITING BY THE COMMISSION ON
ELECTIONS.

Senator Enrile. Mr. President.

[t0 po ang enurmieration ng election Of fenses.
S0, that is the present state of the law, Mr. President.

Senator Guingona. Yes. And the amendment
seeks to impose a ban except for those who are duly
deputized. Is that correct?

Senator Romulo. I think we have said that the
purpose of this amendment is to avoid too many guns
unless they are authorized and deputized by the COME-
LEC, because the COMELEC is the constitutional body
charged with the enforcement of election laws during
election. So, what we want to do, if not eliminate which,
probably, we cannot do that, is to minimize.

Senator Guingona. I have no quarrel with the laud-
able objective. T am just posing the question because,
realistically, in Mindanao, for example, there are a num-
ber of CAFGUs who carry firearms. I would like to
know, assuming that they are not deputized, would they
be banned under this amendment from carrying fircarms”?

Senator Saguisag. But they are in the military or-
ganization and military people are supposed to carry fire-
arms if they are told by the Commander in Chief. Other-
wise, only those outside the law will be carrying firearms.

In other words. this is sunnosed.to cover the concern

The President.” Senator Enftile IS recogmized.

Senator Enrile. With the permission of the distin-
guished Gentleman. .

Will this amendment cover the security guards of
business establishments even if they are closed on that
day? Let us say, some buildings or some private houses
are secured by security guards. Are we going to disarm
these security guards on election day? Who will answer
for any injuries to these public places? Would the Propo-
nent of the amendment answer for the injuries? Would
Congress, the COMELEC, the Repubhc of the Philip-
pines answer for the injuries?

Senator Saguisag. No, Mr. President. Certainly,
the COMELEC will authorize such because it is in the
nature of business. Para pong kahero iyan, eh.

Senator Enrile. Mr. President, we are dealing here
with a nationwide situation, and this will require a burden
on the citizens that we could otherwise obviate in this
Chamber.

Senator Saguisag. Mr. President, this is really
nothing more than implementing what has always been
done. I do not suppose there were really insurmountable
problems in the past.

of Senator Maceda. Paano nga naman iyong mga kahero,
iyong kailangan sa negosyo. So, mayroon pong basehan.

Senator Guingona. May I have the amendment read
again, please?

Senator Romulo. The amendment reads: WHO
MAY BEAR FIREARMS. - DURING THE ELECTION

Senator Enrile. Was there any rule like this in the
past that security guards must be disarmed on election
day?

Senator Saguisag. They are not really being dis-
armed, Mr. President. They will be authorized. The
representation here is that it is like a cashier, and they are
normally, as a matter of course, allowed because they
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really have a good reason to be allowed. Wala pong
assumption na sila ay idi-disarm. In fact, they have a
very good case to be allowed.

Senator Enrile. And how would the authorization
be done? By blanket authorization or individual authori-
zation? Will it be authorization by unit? Will the
COMELEC simply issue an announcement that security
guards will be allowed to carry their firearms on election
day? Will ““Tal Pulano’’ or ‘‘Sal Mulano’’ go to the
COMELEC office and get an exemption?

Senator Saguisag. I suppose, in the same manner
that it was done before. I am not sure whether there were
too many complaints in the past but, apparently, the
Firearms Committee System has, by and large, worked
very well in the absence of complaints of which I know.
This is not really a new problem or situation on the basis
of COMELEC experience, Mr. President.

Senator Enrile. How did we handle this problem in
1987, Mr. President? Was there a ban already in 19877
How was the manner of handling guns handled by the
COMELEC then?

Senator Saguisag. A Firearms Committee is created
in every city and province, and the provincial or city
election supervisor is the Chairman. He is assisted by the
provincial or city commander or director and the NBI.

- This is really an old law. This even antedated EDSA.
By and large, it seems to be functioning fairly well, Mr.
President.

The President. The Chair visited Jolo very recently
and was informed that during election time there, that
kind of a ban never worked. ’

Senator Saguisag. We will have to legislate for the
general...

The President. I just wanted to comment on the
statement that this has worked well in the past.

Senator Saguisag. Mr. President, murders will con-
tinue to be committed, but we will not repeal the law on
murder. No law is ever legislated on the basis that it will
work perfectly. We are trying to legislate for the-general
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kind of situation, but if we want a law to be perfect before
establishing it, we will have to repeal all these laws
against robberies, against rape, against everything, be-
cause violations continue to occur.

. The President. Ang itinatanong ko lamang ay kung
ang COMELEC ay mayroong makinarya for that pur-
pose.

Senator Saguisag. There are limits, Mr. President. I
think it will take several generations before cultural val-
ues or patterns are changed in certain places. Will we
wait for that day before we legislate for 90 percent of the
population, especially if it is an old provision?

Senator Enrile. Mr. President, how about the body-
guards of politicians who would be running for reelec-
tion? Would we deprive them of their right to carry their
firearms?

Senator Saguisag. Hindi po.

Senator Enrile. How about the members of the New
Peoples Army? How about the members of the secession-
ist movement? How about the members of the crime
syndicates? How about the members of the private ar-
mies of other people, especially those who are very close
to the Administration? How are we going to equalize the
political interests of all the-political actors in the country,
if this is going to be?

Senator Saguisag. The law today is for a soldier to

go after the NPA and kill him, not disarm him. It is now
being done. I mean...

Senator Enrile. But, Mr. President, the problem is
that sometimes--

Senator Saguisag. It is a little inconvenient.

Senator Enrile. --the ones who are the law enforcers
are the ones who are actually being used by the Admini-
stration to run after the opposition.

Senator Saguisag. Which Administration?

Senator Enrile. This present Administration.
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Senator Saguisag. Ah, this present Administration.
Senator Enrile. They killed them inside vans.

Senator Saguisag. Really, as if it happened only
today.

Senator Enrile. I do not think in my 17 years, Mr.
President, as Secretary of National Defense, I doubt
whether anybody was ever killed inside a van. I could
challenge anybody here to tell me that somebody was
killed inside the van.

Senator Saguisag.  Someone stepping off an
airplane, and was shot on August 21, 1983, or Guillermo
de Vega was shot in Malacafiang. [ mean, we can start
comparing notes on this. But we have this proposal of
Senator Romulo to cover certain situations.

But, as I said, if we are going to pass a law to make
this a paradise, a millennium, it could be rather difticult
for us to do.

Senator Enrile. But I am just raising this question
and clarifying it. T would posit the same question: What
is the utility of this amendment? It cannot be enforced
anyway.

Senator Saguisag. It is going to deter a good num-
ber of our citizens, because all the laws that we have
passed here have not been implemented 100 percent; but,
by and large, the Filipino is a law-abiding one. So, we
will have them behave accordingly, with the proper al-
lowances for the in the situation of most everyone. It just
s0 happens that nuances the constitutional body, which is
supposed to be the expert in this, is the COMELEC.

So iyon pong sa mga bodyguard ng mga kandidato,
nagkaroon narin po ng kasunduan, aalisin na rin po iyong
limitasyon para Komisyon na po ang magpapasiya kung
isa, kung sampu, kung dalawampu, as the situation may
warrant,

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

The President. Why do we not declare a break in the
meantime, S0 we can exchange views? Is there any

objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the session is sus-
pended.

Itwas 5:48 p.m.
RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION

At 6:18 p.m., the session was resumed with the Hon-
orable Wigberto E. Tafiada, presiding.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). The ses-
sion is resumed.

Senator Saguisag. Mr. President, the parliamentary
situation is, we are supposed to vote on Section 30, as
refined and amended. The formula agreed on by the
Gentleman from Ilocos Sur and the Gentleman from Tar-
lac and Quezon City, as a Section 30, is to add after line
5, “UNLESS AUTHORIZED IN WRITING BY THE
COMMISSION.””

Senator Pimentel. Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Pimentel is recognized.

Senator Pimentel. If the Gentleman will kindly
yield to a clarificatory question, we would like to find out
whether the COMELEC, under this Section, is being
authorized to issue licenses. Or, are we talking here of
firearms which are already licensed, but the intention is to
allow the carrying of the same? Is that the situation here?

Senator Saguisag. It seems from the wording on the
fifth line that since we mentioned ‘“‘EVEN IF LI-
CENSED TO POSSESS OR CARRY THE SAME,”’ it

is really the authority to carry a licensed firearm. It is an |

ad hoc arrangement.

Senator Pimentel. Therefore, for the duration of the
election period, the COMELEC can issue an authority to
carry the firearm, but there is no intention to invest the
COMELEC with the power to issue licenses.

Senator Saguisag. That is correct on the basis of
present practice.

Senator Pimentel. Can we say that during the elec-
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tion period, licenses may still be issued by, I suppose
now, the Philippine National Police?

Senator Saguisag. I believe that that is an entirely
different process, but the ability to carry it under the
circumstances will be subject to the temporary authoriza-
tion from the COMELEC. But they are two distinct
processes, Mr. President.

Senator Pimentel. Yes, that seems clear enough to
me. Therefore, if the intention is to help prevent the
proliferation of firearms, why do we not suspend the
power to issue licenses for the duration of the election
period?

Senator Saguisag. I suppose the main Proponent is
open to it, as the Sponsor is.

Senator Pimentel. During the interpellation of the
Gentleman by the Majority Floor Leader, I do not know if
he mentioned CAFGU, in jest, as a group that is author-
ized to coordinate with the COMELEC for the issuance
of firearms. I merely want to clarify that because that is a
very dangerous jest, I think, if the Gentleman meant it as
ajest.

Senator Saguisag. The representation made to me
here is that, as of today, the CAFGU is considered, ac-
cording to General Abadia, as an integral component of
the military organization. That was what I had wanted to
convey. They are military units, subject to the supervi-
sion of the regular military officers. Iyon po ang ibig
naming sabihin kanina.

Senator Pimentel. At any rate, maybe we should
clarify, because the second paragraph of Section 30 actu-
ally speaks of “REGULAR MEMBERS OR OFFICERS
OF THE PHILIPPINE NATIONAL POLICE.”

I suppose the words ‘‘REGULAR MEMBERS OR
OFFICERS’”’ would also be connected with the Armed
Forces. If that is so, then CAFGUs are not really regular
members.

Senator Saguisag. I will have to ask the main Pro-
ponent as 1o the scope he would like this Section to have.

Senator Romulo. Mr. President, I do not know
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much about the integration of the CAFGU, that whether
or not we specity ‘‘REGULAR’’ Armed Forces of the
Philippines, it would, in fact, exclude the CAFGU. 1
would not have any objection to putting also the
“REGULAR”’ to modify or describe the Armed Forces
of the Philippines.

Senator Saguisag. Meaning, it is a decision we can
make if by “REGULAR”’ we mean to exclude paramili-
tary units like the CAFGU, then we should spread upon
the record that that is our intent.

I am assured here that there seems (o be enough
members of the regular Armed Forces to take care of the
situation. So I do not know whether we should still state
it in the bill, or whether we just state for the record that
“regular’’ means precisely that. It does not cover the
CAFGU or similar paramilitary units.

Senator Pimentel. Yes. Essentially, I would be in
agreement with that interpretation. My only, shall we
say, reservation, Mr. President, is that even during the
election period, we cannot assume that there will also be
a cessation of insurgent activities in the remote places of
the country. So, we probably will run into some real,
concrete problems if we limit the authorization only to
the regular officers and members of the Armed Forces
who carry firearms. Although I am inclined to agree with
that.

That has always been our stand even during the past
regime, that paramilitary units should not be allowed to
indiscriminately carry firearms not only during election
time but even outside of the election period. '

Senator Romulo. I think Senator Pimentel is say-

“ing, if I got it right, that because of the problems that

may arise, he is not going to insist that we put the word
“‘regular’’ before the Armed Forces of the Philippines.

Senator Saguisag. Mr. President, we have just read
into the Record that as suggested by Senator Maceda, we
will add to line 5, change the period to comma, and then
add ““UNLESS AUTHORIZED BY THE COMELEC
OR THE COMMISSION IN WRITING,”’ depending on
whatever we have been using. A matter of style po kung
“COMELEC”’ or ‘““COMMISSION"’.
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Then we add a sentence: ‘‘THE ISSUANCE OF
- LICENSES SHALL BE SUSPENDED DURING THE
ELECTION PERIOD."”’

If it is acceptable to the main Proponent, maybe the
Body is ready to act on it.

Senator Romulo. Accepted, Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment

ITY TO ENGAGE THE SERVICES OF SECURITY
PERSONNEL HAS BEEN GRANTED SHALL CEASE
TO EXIST OR FOR ANY VALID CAUSE, THE
COMELEC SHALL REVOKE THE SAID AUTHOR-

ITY.

Subject to the amendment proposed by Senator
Maceda.

Senantor Saguisag. The suggestion of Senator
Maceda is to delete page 2, line 3, the fragment “NOT

MORETHAN-TWO(2):*

1s approved.

Senator Saguisag. Nais ko lamang linawin na wher-
ever ‘‘COMELEC”’ appears, to make it consistent with

the other use of it in ather parts of the law.

So, may we move on to Section 31. May we request
the Proponent to read it for the record.

Senator Romulo. SECTION 31. SECURITY PER-
SONNEL AND BODYGUARD. DURING THE ELEC-
TION PERIOD, NO CANDIDATE FOR PUBLIC OF-
FICE, INCLUDING INCUMBENT PUBLIC OFFI-
CERS SEEKING ELECTION TO ANY PUBLIC OF-
FICE, SHALL EMPLOY, AVAIL HIMSELF OF OR
ENGAGE THE SERVICES OF SECURITY PERSON-
NEL OR BODYGUARDS, WHETHER OR NOT SUCH
BODYGUARDS ARE REGULAR MEMBERS OR
OFFICERS OF THE PHILIPPINE NATIONAL PO-
LICE, THE ARMED FORCES OF THE PHILIPPINES
OR OTHER LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY OF
. THE GOVERNMENT: PROVIDED, THAT, WHEN

THE LIFE AND SECURITY OF A CANDIDATE IS IN
JEOPARDY HE. MAY BE ASSIGNED BY THE
COMELEC, UPON DUE APPLICATION AND AFTER
NOTICE AND HEARING, NOT MORE THAN TWO
(2) REGULAR MEMBERS OF THE PHILIPPINE NA-
TIONAL POLICE WHO SHALL PROVIDE HIM SE-
CURITY FOR THE DURATION OF THE ELECTION

Senator Maceda. Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator

Maceda is recognized.
Senator Maceda. Just for the record, Mr. President.

Among other things, the proposed amendment did
not distinguish between candidates for President and can-
didates for councilor. In my experience even when we
were in the Opposition, whenever the presidential candi-
date travels, we have a team of 12 that goes out ahead,
and then, about 12 to 24 accompany the presidential
candidate.

For that matter, even in the United States, even the
Secret Service is provided as many as are necessary to all
presidential candidates of all major parties.

So, whether it is 12, or 6, or 2, I guess the needs of
even mayors, governors, congressmen, or for senators for
that matter, depends on each and individual case.

For example, if one belongs to the Espinosa faction
in Masbate, or he belongs to the Lim faction in Masbate,
certainly if he has only two security people, the chances
are that they will knock off each other.

PERIOD. THE POLICE OFFICERS ASSIGNED FOR
SECURITY DUTY TO A CANDIDATE SHALL BE
SUBJECT TO THE SAME REQUIREMENT AS TO
WEARING OF UNIFORMS PRESCRIBED IN THE
IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING SECTION.

IF AT ANY TIME DURING THE ELECTION PE-
RIOD, THE GROUND FOR WHICH THE AUTHOR-

So in that context, a certain number of security
people, while on the one hand it may be abused, on the
other hand, the other useful function of having several
obvious security people is the deterrent factor.

In my five years in the Senate where, because of

certain exposes, I have been under threat in one form or
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another including the President, the usual recommenda- Senator Guingona. May we have the amendment
tion of security consultants is to show some force or read again, please?

show several backups, show several long firearms, more _
for the deterrent factor than for using it actively. Senator Romulo. The amendment would read:

Meaning to say, that in view of the fact that all of SEC. 32. THE FIREARM OR OTHER DEADLY
these factors come into a determination of whether it is WEAPON FOUND IN THE POSSESSION OF THE
needed, whether two are needed or not, whether six oo PERSON PROSECUTED FOR THE ELECTION OF-
twelve or twenty four, I guess there would be no hard- FENSE SHALL BE CONFISCATED IN FAVOR OF
and-fast rule. In which ease, by agreeing to the amend- THE STATE, TO BE DISPOSED OF BY IT ACCORD-

ment of deleting the not more than two regular members_ING TO EXISTING LAWS

or security personnel, then the COMELEC really would .
be in a proper position to decide. After all, it says here: Senator Guingona. Prosecuted for what, illegal

“AFTER DUE NOTICE AND HEARING’’, whether possession?
one reully need any and how many does he really need
depending on special circumstances, and especially, as I
said, one will have to have really a much bigger number  fense.
- allowed for presidential candidates.

Senator Romulo. Prosecuted for the election of-

Senator Guingona. So, even if the person con-
cerned has a mission order and has the authority to carry
firearms, it the authority does not come from COME-
LEC, he will be liable to this offense.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. 1Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Romulo. The next section, Section 32: Senator Romulo. T believe so, Mr. President.
THE FIREARM OR OTHER DEADLY WEAPON
FOUND IN THE POSSESSION OF THE PERSON
PROSECUTED FOR THE ELECTION OFFENSE
SHALL BE CONFISCATED IN FAVOR OF THE
STATE, TO BE DISPOSED BY IT ACCORDING TO
EXISTING LAWS.

Senator Guingona. And it is an election offense,
not an illegal possession.

Senator Romulo. It is an election offense, Mr.
President.

Senator Guingona. So, if it is an election offense,
why should it be confiscated after the election period?
That is his. It might be undue deprivation of property
without really due process. We are prosecuting him for

Senator Romulo. Yes, Mr. President, and if there is an election offense, but why confiscate the firearms?
an amendment to add--

Senator Saguisag. Should there be the preposition
“OF” after ‘‘DISPOSED’’?

Senator Saguisag. I wonder whether it is acceptable

Senator Saguisag. Iso have. to the main proponent, if we are to recast it to read this
wayTHE ~FIREARM—OROTHER DEADLY
Senator Romulo. --we accept. WEAPON FOUND IN THE POSSESION OF THE
PERSON PROSECUTED FOR THE ELECTION OF-
The President. Is there any objection? FENSE SHALL BE DISPOSED OF ACCORDING TO
EXISTING LAWS; just in case there is a valid offense.
Senator Guingona. Mr. President. Wala pong automatic confiscation, baka nga may due

process concerns. Meaning, bahala kung maganda ang
The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator  depensa... So, it will read: THE FIREARM OR OTHER
Guingona is recognized. DEADLY WEAPON FOUND IN THE POSSESSION
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OF THE PERSON PROSECUTED FOR THE ELEC-
TION 'OFFENSE SHALL BE DISPOSED OF AC-
CORDING TO EXISTING LAWS.

Senator Romulo. Accepted, Mr. President.

. The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Romhlo. The final Section 33, Mr. Presi-

FOR IN SECTIONS 261, 262 AND 264 OF BATAS
PAMBANSA BLG. 881, INCLUDING THE PENAL-
TIES OF DISQUALIFICATION TO HOLD PUBLIC
OFFICE AND DEPRIVATION OF THE RIGHT TO
SUFFRAGE.

Senator Saguisag. May we just insert after Section
32 the words OF THIS ACT.

Senator Romulo. Accepted, Mr. President.

SECTION 33. Penalties. ANY VIOLATION OF
THE PROVISIONS OF THIS ACT SHALL BE
EQUIVALENT TO AN ELECTION OFFENSE AND
SHALL CARRY WITH IT ALL THE PENALTIES
THEREOF AS PROVIDED FOR IN SECTIONS 261,
262 AND 264 OF BATAS PAMBANSA BLG. 881,
INCLUDING THE PENALTIES OF DISQUALIFICA-
TION TO HOLD PUBLIC AND DEPRIVATION OF
THE RIGHT TO SUFFRAGE.

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

Senator Saguisag. May we have a short recess?

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. The ses-
sion is suspended, if there is no objection. [There was
none.]

Itwas 6:37 p.m.

RESUMPTION OF.THE SESSION

At 6:38 p.m., the session was resumed.

. The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. The ses-
sion is resumed.

The Presiding Officer [Senafor Tafiada]. IS there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment

is approved.

Senator Romulo. Thank you, Mr. President.

Senator Saguisag. Correspondingly, may we ask for
the renumbering of what used to be Section 30, et cetera
to reflect this insertion. So, Section 30 should now be
Section 34, and so on correspondingly.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] There being none, the motion is
approved.

Senator Pimentel. Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Pimentel is recognized.

Senator Pimentel. Mr. President, just a matter of
style in Section 30, paragraph 2. Second line of para-
graph 2, ‘‘Armed Forces’’, just strike off ‘“OF THE
PHILIPPINES’’, the usual thing we are doing.

Senator Saguisag. Maybe we can make that omni-
bus.

Senator Romulo. Mr. President, let me read again
that last section.

SECTION 33. Penalties. ANY VIOLATION OF
THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 30, SECTION 31,
AND SECTION 32 SHALL BE EQUIVALENT TO AN
ELECTION OFFENSE AND SHALL CARRY WITH IT
ALL THE PENALTIES THEREOF AS PROVIDED

Senator Pimentel, Yes, 1t Should Be af omnibus

amendment.
Senator Saguisag. We accept, Mr. President.
The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there

any objection? [Silence] There being none, the amend-
ment is approved.
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Senator Saguisag. Also for clarity, I was advised
here that, maybe, in regard to the sentence, same section,
‘“The issuance of licenses’’, we insert ‘‘FIREARM’’ be-
fore ‘“LICENSES’’, to read ‘‘THE ISSUANCE OF

FIREARMLICENSES”’,

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] There being none, the amend-
ment is approved.

————Senator-Saguisag—A-few-other-matters of style,-on.....

page 3, line 17, ““THE BASE"’ should be “THE BA-
SIS”.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] There being none, the amend-

ment is approved.

Senator Saguisag. Page 6, line 20, ‘‘Nomination
and of Selection’’ should be ‘‘NOMINATION OR SE-
LECTION’.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] There being none, the amend-
ment is approved.

Senator Saguisag. Page 9, line 17, “Amend”’
should be changed to ‘“‘ANNUL"’.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] There being none, the amend-
ment is approved.

Senator Saguisag. Page 10, Mr. President, line 18,
remove the bracket before the words ‘‘And Senators,’’
and then instead of ‘‘One peso and fifty centavos
(P1.50)’, it should be ‘‘THREE PESOS’’.

So that lines 18 and 19 will read: ‘‘PRESIDENT,

(P3.00),”” to be followed by ‘‘FOR EVERY VOTER”'.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? There being none, the amendment is

approved.

Senator Saguisag. Line 21, Mr. President, same
page, delete ‘<‘FOR SENATORS"’.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Taflada). Is there
any_objection?__[Silence]_There being none, the amend-

ment is approved.

Senator Saguisag. Page 19, Mr. President, line 6,
the word ‘‘ACCOMODATED’’ should have another
‘(M!!.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). Is there
any objection? [Silence] There being none, the amend-
ment is approved.

Senator Saguisag. There was the intention or con-
sensus last night that wherever there may be a require-
ment to give copies of electoral documents to the two
parties, majority and dominant opposition, they be re-
placed.

I am sorry to note that Senator Maceda is not here at
the moment, but the consensus forged was to give the
firsi copy meant now for the majority party to the Execu-
tive Judge in the place concerned, and the other copy for
the dominant opposition party is to be given to the cred-
ited Citizens Arm, if any, in the place concerned, subject
to stylistic refinement.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] There being none, the motion is
approved.

TEN PESOS (P10.00y AND SENATORS;, THREE PE-
SOS (P3.00).”

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] There being none, the amend-

ment is approved.

Senator Saguisag. On line 19, may we just make an
additional minor correction.  After ‘“Three pesos
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Semrator—Saguisag—Finally;—kung—wala~na-peng
amendment, may I move to the title to accommodate an
amendment I propose, which is being received with a
great deal of reluctance, if at all, by the COMELEC
Chairman. I was confronted with the situation of what to
do if there would be 57 names, and the House does not

agree to districting.

Dito po sa titulo, line 3, after ‘“‘MAY 11, 1992,
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insert “‘OR ON SUCH OTHER DATES BEFORE JUNE
30, 1992 AS THE COMMISSION ON ELECTIONS
MAY DEEM FIT FOR LOCAL ELECTIONS,".

The Presiding Officer (Senator Taflada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Saguisag. May we just make of record that
itis not received really with unanimity here,

Senator Romulo. Mr. President, with regard to the
honorarium and per diem ...

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Before we
g0 to that point, ...

Senator Saguisag. Mr. President, maybe, we might
just leave it at that. So that if it is more convenient to go
to the municipal level, then let it be so. Maybe, the
COMELEC can, in the issuance of the rules and regula-
tions, handle the matter,

May-T-also~make-of record thatin regard t0 the
increase from P400 to P600, I would be very much
guided in conference by our distinguished Chairman of
the Committee on Finance, Senator Gonzales. But we

have accepted it for now.
Wala na po yatang...
Senator Pimentel. Mr. President,

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Pimentel is recognized.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, before Senator
Pimentel...

The Presiding Officer [Senator Taflada]. With the
permission of the two Gentlemen, yes, Senator Guin-
gona.

Senator Saguisag. May I just clarify, Mr. President,
that in regard to the Executive Judge, it will be the Re-
gional Trial Court Executive Judge.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Taftada). Of the
Regional Trial Court?

Senator Saguisag. Right.

Kaya, hindi na po namin ipagagalaw iyon. Salamat
po.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). All right.
Senator Romulo.

Senator Romulo. Mr. President, we are not object-
ing to any of those that have been previously cited. We
just want to put it on the record that Senator Herrera and
this Representation had proposed, because of the serious

responsibility and magnitude of the work of the teachers,

principals and supervisors, that the per diem or honorar-
ium should be P1000 per day, and P1200 for principals,
supervisors and other administrators,

We just want to put it on the record that Senator
Herrera and myself had filed a bill to this effect. That is
all, Mr. President, and we leave it to the good graces of
the Chamber to consider this proposal.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. All right.
Senator Pimentel. Senator Herrera.
%

Senator Herrera. On page 5, Mr. President, the
campaign period of 90 days is too long. I think we have
to reduce this. We know very well that during elections,
the expenditure is tremendous and has inflationary ef-
fects;...so-that-the-sherter-the-peried~the-better-for-the

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Romulo, Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Yes, Sen-
ator Romulo.

country.

After all, all these presidential and vice presidential
candidates have been campaigning for the past two or
three years. We have surveys every month going around
the country. We know who these candidates are. The
people, I think, know already who are these candidates.

-.Some of them might withdraw or may not pursue their
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presidential or vice presidential candidacies. But those
who will pursue them are already known by the people.

So, I would suggest, Mr: President, that the campaign
for President and Vice President will be only for 60 days.

Senator Saguisag. The vice presidential candidate
of the Liberal Party is shaking his head.

Senator Herrera. Senator Guingona has made
known his intention to run as early as 1987. [Laughter]

RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION
At 6:52 p.m., the session was resumed.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. The ses-
sion is resumed.

What is the pleasure of the Sponsor to the proposed
amendment?

Senator Saguisag. Iaccept, Mr. President.

Senator Saguisag. But may we hear from the other
body, meaning, for those...

Senator Herrera. And I have been campaigning for

him since 1987 also.

Senator Saguisag. Itis very hard for someone like
me, who is returning to private life to comment on this.
Maybe the interested parties should be the ones to, let us
say, comment on this. We can begin with the Presiding
Officer. He is grinning from ear to ear.

Senator Herrera. My point here is that, I think,
everybody will agree that the election expenses will be
highly inflationary. This is nonproductive expenditure,
and I feel that the shorter the period for campaigning, the
better for the country. I do not think that the country can
afford to go beyond the 19.7 inflation rate which we have
now.

So, I would like to propose that we reduce the cam-
paign period from 90 days to 60 days. Then, for Senators
together with the Congressmen we can go down to 30
days.

Senator Saguisag. May we have a short recess, Mr.
President?

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection?

Senator Guingona. Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Guingona is recognized.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I think we
should decide on this when there are more presidentiables
present.

Senator Herrera. I would just like to put on record
that my favorite candidate for the presidency, Senator
Pimentel, agreed to this proposal.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. All right.
So, we will withhold consideration of this proposed
amendment until tomorrow when the other presiden-
tiables are around.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator

Guingona is recognized.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I have a copy of
a letter...By the way, Mr. President, Senator Laurel has

semernm e someer

SUSPFENSION OF THE SESSION
The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. The ses-
sion is suspended, if there is no objection. [There was

none.]

Itwas 6:51 p.m.
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requested aeterenit and reser vation 10f nis e to Thter-
pellate. He wanted to do so earlier but he had to leave.

Senator Saguisag. I just hope that we can prevail on
him to complete the process tomorrow since we are so
much behind in regard to this very important electoral
exercise.
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Thank you.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I have here a
copy of a letter from the Chairman of the COMELEC. It
contains proposals to include redistricting and reserva-
tions concerning the double elections, two elections.

I will just hand this over to the Sponsor. I initially
wanted to have a motion to delete that portion on two
elections, but I will defer to the wishes of the Sponsor

Senator Saguisag. Anything that comes from Sena-
tor Gonzales on election matters, I really must give im-
portant consideration to. The situation has changed. The
51 names was bad enough but if there is a challenge in the
Supreme Court, assuming this will be given any impor-
tance at all, if Chairman Monsod has no consideration at
all for the experience of Chairman Gonzales, then it is up
to him.

This is something that I would like to preserve, and
then I will abide by whatever may be the decision of

1, certainly, share the reservations of the Chairman of the
COMELEC here.

Senator Saguisag. For the record, the idea of hold-
ing a separate election on June 11, 1992 was something I
borrowed from the Chairman of the Committee, Senator
Gonzales. I, myself, am not very keen on it. I just
thought of it because after talking with our contacts in the
House, they told me that, definitely, there is no way they
could agree to redistricting.

I do not know why the COMELEC should feel upset
about this. It is just an option. They are not obligated to
do it. They can just ignore it as something that they do
not believe is workable,

But what is the harm in giving that option. It is
entirely up to them on how to regard it. If they choose to
ignore i, there is no problem as far as we are concerned.

~ Senator Guingona. Yes, but I think the public, the
candidates, and the ones involved should definitely know
what the mandate of the law is. If there are options given
to another Body, the determination of which has great
reservations, I do not think it is fair or wise to pursue the
matter. . :

Chairman Neptali Gonzales. When we test the paternity
of this amendment, it is mostly his. There is a question of

another week.

Kung talagang makukumbinsi natin si Senator Nep-
tali Gonzales sa walang kuwenta, kung gayon ay burahin
natin ito sa Conference Committee. But I am just pre-
serving his idea, which our contacts in the House encour-
aged me also, to put in here because they said there is no
way they will ever agree to redistricting. So, let us see
what will scare Chairman Monsod more, 57 names or two
elections.

Senator Guingona. Iwould just read the paragraph
for the record.

The alternative proposal from some quarters
for two separate elections before June 30, 1992 would
be a logistical nightmare, would cause an additional
P350 million, and might be contrary to the Supreme
Court decision on R.A. 7056,

I will not press the matter, Mr. President.

Senator Saguisag. We are all aware of that, Mr.
President, but having elections for three days as raised by
Commissioner Yorac is equally scary. Anyway, I am just
pleading that we await the pleasure of the Chairman, and
I will abide by whatever Senator Gonzales will go for. 1
think be.is coming.back the middle of next.week

the COMELEC can immediately set those dates and say
that all 57 candidates will be voted for on May 11, 1992,
That will be done in a very quick order, even within the
month.,

Senator Guingona. Why do we not say so now
why we deleted? I also consulted with the counsel, and
he himself hasreservations.

So, personally, hindi ko po ito ipinagigiitan. Gusto
ko po lamang makausap ang kasama nating si Senator
Gonzales..

SUSPENSION OF CONSIDERATIN
OF SENATE BILL NO. 1861

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, since Senator
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Laurel has requested for time, I ask that we defer consid-
eration of this measure.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the motion is
approved. '

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, tomorrow we
will take up again the Synchronized Election Bill and the
measure Creating_the Baselands Conversion_Authority,

Disabled Veterans, Operations of Rural Banks, Alloca-
tion of Certain Percentage of Loanable Banks to Small
Enterprises, Restitution of Losses of Sugar Prices,
Peoples Television Network, the Use of Firecrackers and
Pyrotechnic Devices, the Bill Allowing Qualified Voters
of Ormoc City to vote in the Province of Leyte, Creating
the Iligan State University, and Benefits to the Elderly.

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

plus a number of other bills because, as I understand it,
there are some who will go to Malacanang to attend the
signing of the Local Autonomy measure.

The bills that we will consider tomorrow will be on
the Veterans Bank, Strategic Environmental Plan for Pa-
lawan, Countryside Industrializatin, Magna Carta for

Mr"President, T move that we suspend the session
until 10:00 o’clock tomorrow morning.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). The ses-
sion is suspended until 10:00 o’clock tomorrow morning,
if there is no objection. [There was none.]

Itwas 7:01 p.m.
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of that individual in the Philippines? Senator Laurel Senator Salonga
Senator Lina Senator Shahani
Thank you, Mr. President. Senator Maceda Senator Tafiada
Senator Mercado Senator Ziga
The President. Are there any questions? NO - 0

Senator Maceda. Mr. President.
The President. Senator Maceda is recognized.

Senator Maceda. Ihaveno question, Mr. President,

ABSTENTION - 0

RESULT OF VOTING

except to put on record that on the day I took my oath as
Minister of Natural Resources, I formally wrote the U.S.
Embassy and returned my green card which was issued
because of political asylum and was of a different cate-
gory, so to speak. But, as far as T am concerned, on or
about February 27, 1986--I have the receipt by the U.S.
Embassy of my letter--I formally surrendered my green
card and stated that I was a resident of the Philippines.

The President. The Majority Floor Leader.

BILL ON THIRD READING
House Bill No. 32761 - Special Nonworking Holiday
in Zamboanga City

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that we
vote on Third Reading on House Bill No. 32761, entitled

AN ACT DECLARING OCTOBER 12 OF EVERY
YEAR A SPECIAL NON-WORKING
HOLIDAY IN THE CITY OF ZAMBOANGA..

Copies of the bill were distributed to all the Mem —

bers on October 9, 1992,

The President. The Senate will now proceed to vote
on the bill. The Secretary will please call the roll.

The Acting Secretary called the roll and the result of
the voting was as follows:

tive vote, no abstention, House Bill No. 32761 is ap-
proved on Third Reading.

BILL ON SECOND READING
Senate Bill No. 1861 - Synchronized Elections

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that we
consider Committee Report No. 1373 on Synchronized
Elections. I ask that we recognize Senator Saguisag.

The President.  Senator Saguisag is recognized.
May the Chair know the parliamentary status of this bill?

Senator Saguisag. Mr. President, on the basis of
the reservation made by our distinguished friend from
Batangas, he is supposed to interpellate this Senator this
afternoon.

The President. Senator Laurel is recognized.
Senator Guingona. Mr. President, we are in the
period of individual amendments, but because of the res-

ervz}tion of Senator Laurel, he is scheduled to do the
interpellation now.

Senator Laurel. Thank you, Mr. President.

I would just like to propound certain questions, if I

The President.-With 20 affirmative votes; no nega-—————
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YES - 20
Senator Alvarez Senator Osmefia
Senator Angara Senator Paterno
Senator Enrile Senator Pimentel
Senator Estrada Senator Rasul
Senator Guingona Senator Romulo
Senator Herrera Senator Saguisag

may, preparatory to introducing or proposing my amend-
ments.

Senator Saguisag. Willingly, Mr. President.

Senator Laurel. Now, Mr. President, there is a
provision here in this bill under consideration, more par-
ticularly Section 3 of page 2 of the amended version
dated October 9, 1991, to the effect that the various
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elective officials of the Government shall have a definite
term, with provision also on limitation of number of
times that they may be reelected.

I'have been curious to observe and to ask, therefore, a
question. All these elective officials here start with the
Vice President down to the level of the provincial, city,
municipal elective officials. The term of the President--
the President herself, and I suppose that should apply to
all incoming Presidents--is not included in this bill. I
would like to know why, Mr. President.

And this is followed by another sentence in the same
section, which provides:

No person who have succeeded as President and
has served as such for more than four years, shall be
qualified for reelection to the same office at any time,

That second sentence is very important. Why? Be-
cause it says that any person who succeeds the incumbent
President for more than four years and serves as such,
shall not be eligible for reelection at any time. Meaning,

Mr-Presideit; if the ificimbent Vice President--who hap-

Senator Saguisag. Mr. President, the main Author
of this bill is Senator Gonzales, whom we cannot ask now
why there was such an omission. If the intent is to
include a statement as to the limitation on the President,
certainly, we would be very willing to accommodate such
an amendment. I do not know if it is an oversight, I
believe it must have been.

Senator Laurel. In other words, there would appear
to be good ground to introduce an amendment for the
purpose of including a provision on the term of office of
the President and the number of times or the fact that the
President may not be reelected at any time subsequent to
her serving her term of Office. Is that correct?

Senator Saguisag. At the appropriate time, cer-
tainly, we would be delighted to entertain such proposed
amendment,

Senator Laurel. I would like to advert to a funda-
mental reason why the term of office, a provision relative
to the reelection or nonreelection of the President, should
be included. If I may, since the Sponsor says that at the
appropriate time, my amendment will be considered.

I would like to state a reason or two why that amend-
ment, which I would like to propose, should be consid-

pens to be my brother--had succeeded to the Office of
President for one reason or another, and had served for
more than four years, he would be covered by the prohibi-
tion. He may not run for reelection as President, although
he merely succeeded.

In other words, Mr. President, the ban against reelec-
tion in this bill covers the person succeeding, although he
was elected as Vice President, even before the new Con-
stitution was adopted and approved.

So, if it applies to the Vice President, there is abso-
lutely every reason, logically, to suppose that the Presi-
dent herself would be covered by the present prohibition
in the Constitution.

Senator Saguisag. Personally, Mr. President, I am
really already converted, so when the proposed amend-
ment is made, I certainly would accept it,

Senator Laurel. Thank you very much, Mr. Presi-
dent. Now, may I go to another point. Here in Section
8--I think it is still Section 8--relative to the filing of
certificate of candidacy, it says here that the filing of a
certificate of candidacy should be made or done not later
than the day before the date legally fixed for the begin-
ning of the campaign period. I am asking this because
there might have been an amendment already introduced.,

ered favorably by this Body;.it.I.might-be-allowed-to-state

right now, since this is the period of amendments already.

The first reason is the fact that here in the second
sentence of Section 4, Article VII, of the Constitution, we
have specifically the following, and I quote:

The President shall not be eligible for any
reelection, .

If that provision is there, or is stil] there, then I ask
the question: Why should a certificate of candidacy be
filed during office hours, when during the period of the
filing of candidacy, when certificates of Candidacies may
be filed, the Office of the COMELEC is supposed to be
open?

Senator Saguisag. May W€ know the intent of the
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question, Mr. President. Is it to allow the filing of the

certificates even beyond...?
Senator Laurel. It says, ‘‘even after office hours.”’

Senator Saguisag. Well, if there will be an amend-
ment to that effect, I would accept it. I remember that on
December 11, 1985, after Mrs. Aquino and Mr. Laurel
filed their certificates of candidacies earlier in the day,
they returned after office hours, and such were accepted.
So, maybe, we should really liberalize it.

Senator Laurel. Yes, I think so, Mr. President. I
wish to thank the Sponsor of the bill for his position.

“In other words, our thinking is that every opportunity
should be given to any person to be able to file his
certificate of candidacy even outside of office hours when
the receiving office is supposed to be open anyhow for 24
hours a day.

Senator Saguisag. It seems to be well-taken, and we
are disposed to accept it at the proper time, Mr. President.

Senator Laurel. Thank you very much.

With respect to the registration of voters, is that co-
vered by Section 107

Senator Saguisag. Section 10, page 8 po.

Senator Laurel. It says that inclusions, exclusions,
and corrections, if any, shall be made in the list of voters

before voting starts on election day. I think that is a very

dangerous provision and very susceptible to abuse.

In other words, a voter may be excluded from the list
of voters on the very day that he appears to vote. There-
fore, he will have no time to protest or to appeal. That is
a very dangerous provision.

My proposal, is that the deadline for inclusion, exclu-
sion, and correction of the list of voters should be done
several days before voting time; perhaps, five days before
actual voting time.

Senator Saguisag. I have no strong feelings one
way or the other. Anyway, even on the date of the
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election, the capacity of a voter to vote may be chal-
lenged. But we agree with the Gentleman that, maybe,
there should be some cutoff dates, because there may be
all sorts of unfair surprises, if we are to allow it on the
election day itself.

So, we are comfortable with the five-day period, Mr.
President,

Senator Laurel. At saka ang nakalagay dito ay
““shall.”” Exclusion shall be done on the day of the
election. ‘

Thank you very much, Mr. President.

Section 17, relative to Summary Disposition of Pre-
proclamation Controversies. I do not know if that is the
correct number at the moment, because we have a number
of versions.

Senator Saguisag. Mr. President, are we referring
to Section 17, on top of page 14?

Senator Laurel. Yes, Summary Disposition of Pre-
proclamation Controversies.

Nakalagay dito na ‘“The COMELEC decision shall
be executory after five days from receipt of decision.”’

In other words, the COMELEC may decide to throw
out a case or it may render a decision, and the decision
becomes executory after five days from the date of receipt
of the decision. Kawawa naman iyong talo, hindi
makaka-appeal.

Senator Saguisag. To me, it is compatible with the
view that it gives the party five days to take some action.
If he does nothing, then it becomes final.

I mean, it is like saying that in the ordinary case, it
becomes final within 15 days. But during that span of
time I do not see here any preclusive language that will
bar the affected party from going up to some authority to
modify or reverse the questioned ruling.

Senator Laurel. Ang ibig pong sabihin, Mr. Presi-
dent, is that I do not know that five days are reasonable
enough particularly where the bases of a petition will be
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for certiorari and for abuse of discretion. And, I do not
know that limiting it to five days would be constitutional.
Baka unreasonable, Mr. President.

I mean, limang araw na lamang, kung hindi ay execu-
tory na; hindi na kaya makaka-apela sa Supreme Court.

Senator Saguisag. But, usually, Mr. President, in
the context of election controversies, normally the liti-
gants really move very fast. Also, there is nothing to
prevent the losing party from filing with the Supreme
Court a petition for extension. Because the period is
normally extended not by the lower court but by the
Supreme Court. '

In other words, kung kailangan po 15 days--ang
karanasan pO natin dito, normally it is allowed as a matter
of course by the Supreme Court which already has juris-
diction over the case.

Senator Laurel. Pero ang ibig sabihin ay--if the
Gentleman will permit, Mr. President--if there is no ap-
peal by certiorari within five days, immediately execu-
tory ang desisyon ng COMELEC?

Senator Saguisag. But in five days almost any
lawyer can file the appropriate petition for extension of
time in the Supreme Court.

Senator Laurel. But what I am saying is: then,
there is no reason for this time limitation.

Senator Saguisag. Well, the normal rationale is that
election cases have been resolved very quickly. If we
give 30 days, then the situation remains in suspense.
While it requires only a one-page petition to be filed in
the Supreme Court to get 15 days, 30 days...

Senator Laurel. Ibeg the Gentleman’s pardon, Mr.
President. It will not be in suspense because hindi siya
nag file, within five days. He files it after ten days, at
iyan ay lampas na sa taning which is five days.

Senator Saguisag. If we make it 30 days, then
within that span of time the public does not know what is
going to happen. Why not just say five days, it may be
construed by the public--well, the losing party has ac-
cepted the result graciously.

Senator Laurel. Why not say, without prejudice to
the right of the losing party to file the corresponding
special proceeding or appeal to the Supreme Court for
certiorari?

Senator Saguisag. I have no problem with that. I
am just saying that, normally, what is done here is that
the lawyer seeks in the Supreme Court the period that he
needs to frame the appropriate petition. So, we will be
open to any amendment at the proper time to preserve
that concern, Mr. President.

Senator Laurel. Thank you very much, Mr. Pres-
ident.

Then Section 23: This is relative to the signature of
the Chairman of the Board of Inspectors at the back of
every ballot in order for the ballot to be validated. Failure
to so authenticate shall constitute an election offense.
But that is not what is grave and dangerous about that.
Any ballot which is not so authenticated shall be deemed
spurious. It can lead to disenfranchisement of the voter.

Kung medyo antipatiko tayo o kung antipatiko sa atin
ang chairman ng board of canvassers at hindi pirmahan
agad iyon o hindi pirmahan, hindi tayo makakaboto.
Baka ay kailangang dagdagan natin ang pipirma. Hindi
lamang iyong chairman, baka kailangan din iyong two
other members of the board. He will be a one-man
despot.

Senator Saguisag. Well, I agree with the concern
raised. I am not so sure about the remedy proposed
because it can happen, really, that someone displeased
with the result of the count, may not sign and may result
in disenfranchisement. But I agree that it would be so
easy to defeat the will of the people if all that is necessary
is for the signature not to appear and without more--ito
po ang nasa batas.

So, again, at the appropriate time, Mr. President, we
will be glad to listen to how best we can resolve that
concern. '

Senator Laurel. Thank you.

Then Section 26, relative to election inspectors. The
three election inspectors shall sign and affix a thumbmark
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on the election returns. What does this Section 26 mean?

Senator Saguisag. Anong pahina po iyan? Mahaba
poitong...

Senator Laurel. Mahaba nga yata. Nadagdagan nga
ho.

Senator Saguisag. Oho. Ito po ang nasa page 22,
lines 12 to 15:

Senator Laurel. Maybe I should preface this point
first with a question. Is the Provincial Board of Canvas-
sers supposed to receive the election returns from the
municipal, city board of canvassers? Or, is it the certifi-
cate of canvass at the same time, and the basis for the
canvass by the provincial board is going to be the canvass
of the municipal and city board of canvassers, or the
election returns themselves?

Senator Saguisag. I am informed here that the
practice really is, it is the certificates of canvass coming

The board of election inspectors, together with
the two (2) principal watchers, if available, shall sign
and affix their right thumbmark on the election
returns.

To begin with, we have now problems with the
watchers.

Senator Laurel. Well, maybe we should put this
last. We will put this at the latter part.

May I go, if I may be permitted, Mr. Chairman, to
Section 27. We shall leave aside Section 26 first.

Section 27, ‘‘Canvassing by Provincial, City, District
and Municipal Boards of Canvassers.’’

This section mandates the city, municipal board of
canvassers to also canvass election returns for President
and Vice President, and prepares certificate of canvass for
said officials to be submitted to the provincial board of
canvassers who will canvass this certificate of canvass. Is
that correct, or that has been amended?

Senator Saguisag. Anong pahina po iyan?

Senator Laurel. Section 27.

tion, Mr. President?

Senator Laurel. Page 22?

Senator Saguisag. Kung Section 27 po, it begins on
line 19, ““Canvassing by Provincial, City, District and

Municipal Board of Canvassers.”” Which portion are we
calling the attention of the Body, Mr. President?
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from the municipal board of canvassers.

Senator Laurel. Well, then, the provincial board of
canvassers makes its own canvass on the basis of the
certificate of canvass of the municipal and city board of
canvassers, to be forwarded to the Senate President, is
that correct? ’

Senator Saguisag. That has been the consistent
practice, and that is the intent of this measure, Mr. Presi-

dent.

Senator Laurel. If that is true, then there is need for
an amendment, unless I am wrong in making this state-
ment that the wonderful or, shall we say, the open oppor-
tunity for some sort of cheating is in the municipal or city
level.

The election return in every precinct is canvassed by
the municipal or city board of canvassers, and here is
where the possible cheating can take place. If cheating
has been done there, then that is the one contained in the
certificate of canvass to be forwarded to the provincial
board of canvassers.

The provincial board of canvassers will no longer
conduct a canvass of the election returns, but will merely
depend on the certificate of canvass. that has been some-

canvassers. Is that correct?

Senator Saguisag. Well, it is really a policy choice.
I am informed here by our resource person that in the
appropriate consultations on the point, all the political
parties wanted this arrangement, that it should be based
on the canvass at the provincial level. Pinag-usapan daw
po iyan and, for some reason, the political parties unani-
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mously preferred this arrangement.

Specifically, I am informed now that the one who
vigorously pushed for this was the representative of the
Nacionalista Party, according to Atty. De Lima. I guess
that should be backed up by records; I mean, I am relying
on the representation made to me here.

Anyway, at the appropriate time, if an amendment
would be introduced, then the Body could resolve it.
Whether it is one or the other, if some people are minded

Colleagues. Kaya, sinasabi ko lamang po iyon by way of
background kung bakit ho nagkaganito ito. Iyon daw ho
ang lumabas sa consultation process.

Senator Laurel. Our suggestion is that, the provin-
cial board of canvassers should conduct its own canvass
of election returns or results on the basis of the election
returns in the municipality and/or city and not depend on
the canvass already conducted and, perhaps, doctored in
that level. Mag-conduct precinct by precinct, not depend
on the canvass by the municipality or city board of can-

to cheat, it can be done at any level.

Senator Laurel. I would like to take an exception to
that ]ast statement about the proposal being pressed in
particular by the representative of the Nacionalista Party.
As a matter of fact, one representative of the party was
the one who presented to me this point to be raised here
on the Floor--that the opportunity for cheating is usually
at the municipal or city level, and that cheating is carried
on unnoticed from the municipal or city level to the
provincial, and then to the President of the Senate.

Wala nang nagtse-check because the canvassing by
the provincial board of inspectors is made on the basis
already of what has been canvassed in the municipal or
city level.

Senator Saguisag. That can be the subject matter of
an appropriate amendment, but I am informed that it was
Mr. Adaza who, in representation of the Nacionalista
Party, wanted this arrangement.

Senator Laurel. Ito pong si Adaza ay hindi yata
miyembro ng COMELEC.

Senator Saguisag. Hindi ho, ng Nacionalista Party
daw po.

vassers.
That is all.

Senator Saguisag. So, it will be a second count
really, Mr. President?

Senator Laurel. That is correct. In other words,
nagsisiguro tayo sapagkat para bang nangyayari ang
dayaang iyan sa ating bayan, lalung-lalo if it is a very
close fight. Siyempre, bawat panig ay ibig manalo, kaya
maaaring magpatuloy iyan.
tant to introduce safeguards to ensure the purity and
credibility of our elections.

Senator Saguisag. Well, we just want to be sure that
this would not create an uproar because, according to
COMELEC representative, virtually the ninth part which
is represented during the hearing insisted on the canvass
of the returns. And then if this will represent only the
will of a particular party, we may have some problems.

Iyon lamang ho ang gusto kong paratingin. If the
representation is correct, then it could present its own set
of problems if we will modify this. But, anyway, time is
really late, so the agreement we reached is that, anytime
there is a controverted proposal, we just have to vote up
or down.

So, we should not be hesi-

Senator-faurel—Butthe-one-who—presented-to-me
this point--I will not mention his name--was a former
member of the COMELEC.

Senator Saguisag. Panay ho ang punta dito ng taong
iyon, kaya kilala natin kung sino iyon. But he need not
be named. Anyway, as I said, it is a policy choice. Wala
hong guarantee, either way, which is superior. I do not
know. I mean, I have to defer to the judgment of our

Senator Laurel. If I may be permitted to just read
the representation forwarded to this Representation by the
former member of the COMELEC:

Page 22, Section 27, Canvassing by Provincial,
City, District and Municipal Boards of Canvassers
states that the city or municipal board of canvassers
shall also canvass the election returns for President
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and Vice President, and shall prepare the certificate
of canvass for the said officials. This certificate of
canvass will then be submitted to the provincial board
of canvassers who will canvass the certificate of
canvass submitted to it and prepare its own certificate
of canvass for President and Vice President. The
certificate of canvass from the provincial board of
canvassers will then be submitted to the Congress
through the Senate President who will canvass votes
for President and Vice President.

Cheating could be done in the municipal level in
the preparation of the certificate of canvass for
President and Vice President, for submission to the

provincial board of canvassers.

The provincial board of canvassers can again
cheat since their basis for the preparation of their
certificates of canvass is the certificate of canvass of
the municipal board of canvassers and not the
election returns.

Recommendation: Adopt the procedure in the
August 26th version of the bill, Section 24, which
mandates the provincial board of canvassers to
canvass the election returns for the precincts for
President and Vice President positions.

Iyon ho ang payo nila.

Senator Saguisag. When we assume really as to the
nature and extent of cheating in this country, wala pong
katapusan iyon. We all know that, for instance, in some
places, there will be accusations that even if one votes at
eight o’clock, ayaw na raw pong pumasok ang balota
dahil puno na. Mayroon diyan ang magpapalit ng kahon.
Mayroong magki-kidnap.

So, to me, it is up to the Body. As someone who is
not really involved in the 1992 exercise, I leave it to my
betters in this Chamber to decide what can better ensure a
cleaner election. So, at the appropriate time, the Body
can select between that proposition and the way it is
worded now.

Senator Laurel. Thank you.

Senator Saguisag. Wala pong anuman.

Senator Laurel. Page 7, Section 8: Filing of Cer-
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tificates of Candidacy. 1 do not know that this section
covers a case that happened sometime before; and that is
the Antonino case. The candidate died sometime before
the election day. The wife, Mrs. Magnolia Antonino,
was able to file her certificate of candidacy. Pinayagan.
Ngayon, damdam ko, Mr. President, hindi na covered
ang case naiyon.

Why not allow the filing of such candidacy by some-
body to take the place of the candidate who died, other-
wise, wala nang representation iyong partidong walang
kandidato. There should be a way of allowing somebody
representing the person who died or his party to file the
certificate of candidacy.

Senator Saguisag. This measure is really of a lim-
ited scope to cover only the elections of 1992--

Senator Laurel. Baka mangyari po naman.

Senator Saguisag.--but, meaning the entire purpose
of the other laws: Republic Act No. 6646, the Omnibus
Election Code, all survived and should be read together
with this. It is allowed under the Omnibus Election
Code. That was why, in the case of Governor Padilla, he
was able to win in substitution for his father.

So, that portion of the law is not incompatible with
this. It is, therefore, not repealed. I am just assured that it
is extant in the Omnibus Election Code, which is a thick

. one covering so many situations not mentioned here. But

since repeals by implication are not favored, and the
provision is very good in itself, it is part of the governing
regime as to the totality of the laws that will apply to the
1992 exercise.

Senator Laurel. Perhaps, we should check that, if
that provision in the Omnibus Election Code is really
preserved here in this particular case.

I was about to suggest this addition or insertion of
this sentence: IF THE CANDIDATE DIES BEFORE
NOON OF ELECTION DAY, ANY QUALIFIED PER-
SON CAN FILE A CERTIFICATE OF CANDIDACY
IN HIS PLACE.

Thatis all.
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At this juncture, the Chair relinquished the Chair to
Senator Wigberto E. Tafiada.

Senator Saguisag. It is being checked, Mr. Presi-
dent. I have really no problem with it, but it really, may
be superfluous. So, it is being checked.

Mr. President, here is, in fact, a broader statement of
the same. It is in Section 77, and it covers not only death
but disqualification or withdrawal of another. It says
here:

malaman kung susceptible to administrative fines only.
That is only the purpose. I am wondering whether that is

constitutional.

Also, there is this provision in Section 15 to the effect
that there is grant of amnesty pa yata.

Senator Saguisag. If the two Houses and the Presi-
dent agree, then that may be the statement of the national
policy on the matter. Kasi po, marami ang nabibigatan
doon sa parusa.

If after the last day for the filing of certificates of
candidacy, an official candidate of a registered or
accredited political party dies, withdraws or is
disqualified for any cause, only a person belonging
to, and certified by, the same political party may file
a certificate of candidacy to replace the candidate
who died, withdrew or was disqualified.

Senator Laurel. May I know when he dies or is
disqualified? Does it say when?

Senator Saguisag. Sandali lamang po.

The substitute candidate nominated by the political
party concerned may file his certificate of candidacy
for the office affected in accordance with the
preceding sections not later than mid-day of the day
of the election....

So, he should choose not to die after noon of the day
before. May problema po siguro.

Senator Laurel. Thank you very much. It says here
“‘after the last day for the filing of certificates of candi-
dacy.”

Senator Saguisag. Yes, Section 77 of the Omnibus
Election Code.

Senator Laurel. Ito po ay parang labag doon sa not
only the Constitution but also the declared policy of the
State to eradicate or minimize misfeasance, nonfeasance,
violations of the law, et cetera, para pakakawalan na natin
ang mga nagkakasala. That seems to be reflected in many
moves now of our Government.

With respect to amnesty, I think there is a provision
in our Constitution. Nawala lamang po ang aking mga
papeles kaya medyo magulo.

Senator Saguisag. Nandito po sa Section 19, second
paragraph of Article VII. It says that the President shall
also have the power to grant amnesty with the concur-
rence of a majority of all the Members of the Congress.

So, the theory is that, if the two Houses will pass this
and the President signs this into law, it seems to be a
substantial compliance. But this is really nothing more
than the repeal of a penal law. If it can retroact favorably,
then so be it. Maybe, a compromise here is that he can
only be absolved upon payment of the appropriate fine.
Dahil ang nabibigatan po kasi niyan ay nakukulong.

Senator Laurel. There is another provision: Section
5 of Article IX (C).

Senator Laurel. Salamat po. Dito naman sa Section
15, I do not know if this question has been raised, that for
violations of election laws in the past, shall we say, 1987
or the subsequent ones that were held, there is this provi-
sion, Section 15, to the effect that even the condenado or
the convicted will not serve sentence anymore, or he will
be released from prison, if he is imprisoned, and if the
case is just pending, itutuloy lamang ang asunto para

Senator Saguisag. Sa Commission on Elections po.
Senator Laurel. Opo. It says here, and I quote...

Senator Saguisag. Kailangan mayroong recommen-
dation po yata.

Senator Laurel. Sa COMELEC. It says:
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No pardon, amnesty, parole, or suspension of
sentence for violation of election laws, rules, and
regulations shall be granted by the President without
the favorable recommendation of the Commission.

Kailangan ho iyon. So that even if the Senate and the
House were to pass a bill to that effect, still governed by
the particular section of the Constitution, kailangan ay
more than just that bill or that authorization; kailangan ay
favorable recommendation by the COMELEC before
granting pardon, amnesty, parole, or suspension of sen-

attention to it.

Senator Laurel. I am not sure but I have my reser-
vations on that proposal that we shall get in advance a
supporting statement or recommendation from the
COMELEC, and then pass this kind of bill or law.

Senator Saguisag. I am hesitant really to give up
our prerogative to criminalize or decriminalize any act
here. That is why I, myself, am reluctant. I do not want
to_see. Congresswoman_Baby. Puyat-Reyes .in_handcuffs

tence.

So, itong ating probisyon might be constitutionally
subject to attack. '

Senator Saguisag. I am looking for the appropriate
documentation, because really, this bill was prepared by
the COMELEC essentially, along with Senator Gonzales.

- But we may need something more formal.

That is why, maybe, a compromise could be--Para
hindi naman total obliteration, maybe the party concerned
should be willing to pay the appropriate fine. But for the
Record, 1 have here--There is no covering letter I can
present now, but I do know that in a meeting we had with
the COMELEC some weeks ago, they prepared this bill,
and one of the recommendations is No. 11.

Ito po ang nakalagay. Galing po ito sa COMELEC.,
We may need some more appropriate formalization later
on. But it says here: Modify the penalty imposed by the
Omnibus Election Code for the nonsubmission of state-
ments of contributions and expenditures by candidates
and treasurers of political parties.

Siguro, para malinis ang rekord, we may ask our
friends in the COMELEC to send a formal affirmation
that they are supporting this particular proposal, which, in

_fact, came from the COMELEC upon the representation.

and putting up bail. [Laughter] But, definitely, whether
it comes before or after, since this is really COMELEC-
supported and sponsored, I think that the spirit of the
Constitution is met.

Senator Laurel. With some reservations.

Senator Saguisag. Siguro po ay maganda ngang
pagbayarin din natin sila ng multa kaysa naman alto-

gether ay wala nang kaparusahan. The reason they are -

complaining about this is that the penalty of imprison-

ment seems too stiff. But ifit is a question of fine, maybe
that satisfies the principle concerned.

Senator Laurel. Mr. President, if I may bring up
something that has been the proposition of the distin-
guished Sponsor himself that any penalty in the form of a
fine is pro-rich and anti-poor. We might be penalizing
people, the poor practically, who violate the election laws
and send them to jail if there is subsidiary imprisonment
penalty, and therefore, might go against the very grain of
his position in the death penalty debate. .

Senator Saguisag. Gayunman, kailangan pag-aralan
natin dahil baka naman may substantial compliance
diyan. But the Gentleman is right, na pag dating na sa
mga piyansa, sa mga fines ay medyo nakakalamang

iyong nakakaangat sa buhay. So, maybe, we try to rem-.

e e NS,

I guess, of some Members of the House who were publi-
cized as not having complied with the requirement. Kaya
mabuti sigurong magkaroon ng formal endorsement; oth-
erwise, we could be charged with passing a law that is
self-serving, dahil tila may mga nasabit tayong mga
Kasama sa Higit na Malaking Kapulungan. But it did
come from the COMELEC; there should not be any prob-
lem getting substantial compliance with the requirement
that we are grateful to our Colleague for calling our
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edy that by really bringing down to a very low level the
fine for barangay officials to P200.

So, that was our effort. Pag Presidente po, P30,000.
Iyon po ay barya lamang. Pero tingnan po natin ito at the
appropriate time. Really, that concern should be looked
at more deeply.

Senator Laurel. May I go to another point?
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How about absentee voting? This applies to our
members of the Armed Forces and the PNP who are
assigned and, probably, other officials. Mayroon yatang

nadagdag?

Senator Saguisag. Those who are compelled to be
away on official business, that is election-related.

Senator Laurel. Ang aking pangamba lamang dito
ay, baka naman kung pababayaan natin silang lahat na
ma-assign sa iba’t ibang lalawigan o bayan ay hindi na

I am mentioning this only as incidental, just to em-
phasize this point, and that is, where nobody is entitled to
any principal watcher and to copies of the election re-
turns except, probably, a few. I do not know if we shall

supply all of them.

Senator Saguisag. The certificate of votes is given
to everyone.

Senator Laurel. To everyone. Pero iyong election
return ang importante. And in such a case where there is

sila makaboto doon sa kanilang pinanggalingan. Be-
cause on the day of the election ay ipadadala sila sa iba’t
ibang lugar. Baka ho mangyari ito. How do we avoid
that? Sapagkat ang nakalagay dito, for security purposes,
ipadadala natin iyong mga commandant, mga dalawang
sundalo sa isang bayan. May halalan na doon sa araw na
iyon, pero nakaboto na rin sila on the same day early in
the morning doon sa kabila. Baka naman ho madagdagan
at magkadoble-doble ang boto. How do we avoid that?

Senator Saguisag. That is possible with or without
that context, but here we have people who, during elec-
tion day--if we are to recall our history--in fact, even
really laid down their lives. Hindi na ho natin dapat ulit-
uliting isipin kung ano ang mga nangyayari sa Cavite, na
dahil sa pagtupad ng kanilang mga tungkulin ay nag-
bubuwis sila ng buhay.

- To me, I would rather resolve the doubt in favor of
our brothers and sisters in uniform who, even now, are
complaining that they are at the receiving end of so many
discriminatory policies and objectives.

S0, to me, although there is that possibility, we also
know that because of certain hot spots, members of the
police and the military are really moved around all over
the country. And since they will be voting, anyway, only
for national officials without any impact on the local

nobody entitled to it or everybody is just entitled to the
certificates of votes, ang tunay na nakakalamang ay
iyong Pamahalaan. Just like this, it can assign PNPs and
soldiers to every part of the country.

Mayroon pa ho sana akong ibang ibig itanong, but
because of constraints of time, I can understand. I can set
my few questions another hour later on or even tomor-
row. Dadating pa naman ang panahon na tayo ay magpa-
pasok ng susog at the proper time alinsunod sa distin-
guished na Senador ng Mauban, Manila and Pasig.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. The Ma-
jority Floor Leader is recognized.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, at the last ses-
sion, Senator Herrera introduced a proposal for ar
amendment. We suspended the same because many oi
the presidentiables and those affected and who are all
concerned with said amendment should be present. So, I
ask now that Senator Herrera be recognized to continue
with his proposal.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Herrera is recognized.

HERRERA-AMENDMENT S e

—m-eleet-i@n-s»as-a-—p@l—iewh@iee-,—-my—preferemeﬁs-—fe—givc .

them the benefit of the doubt, Mr. President.

Senator Laurel. 1 was just worried about some
abuses, intentional or otherwise. That is one of my
concerns with respect to having no principal watchers
because neither the majority party nor the dominant op-
position party will have any principal watchers. Lahat ay
may watchers.

Senator Herrera. Thank you, Mr. President.

Let me just reiterate my proposed amendment on
page 5, starting from line 24, paragraph ‘‘a’’: ‘‘For
President, Vice President and Senators, SIXTY (60)
days before the day of the election.”” Then, eliminate

paragraph ‘‘b”’,
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On paragraph “‘c’” which is now paragraph ‘‘b’’:
‘‘All Members of the House of Representatives and
local elective provincial, city and municipal officials,
THIRTY (30) days before the day of the election”,
instead of ‘‘forty-five (45) days’’.

These are the two major amendments, Mr. President.

My justification on this is the present inflation rate
which is something like 19.7 percent. We know very

Thank you, Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. What does
the Sponsor say?

Senator Saguisag. Well, I really would prefer to
hear from our Colleagues. I am personally disposed to
consider it favorably, but we have to take into account the
sentiments of the other Members of the Chamber. I have
an open mind, Mr. President.

—well that"election expenses are nonproductive; and this

will push up the inflation rate. :

My sentiment is that, the shorter the campaign pe-
riod, the better for the economy. That means that we will
be able to control to a certain extent the increase of
inflation rate. Therefore, it will be beneficial not only for
the candidates because they will be spending less, but
also for the economy and for the entire country.

Of course, there is this issue of whether this will be
fair to the candidates. My answer to that question is that
all the presidential and vice-presidential candidates are
already well-known. In fact, they have been campaigning
already, if we have to be very frank about it. They have
been going around the country. They have been organijz-
ing. All of them are well-known as they are prominent
personalities.

So, whether it is 90 days or 60 days, that would not
make a difference. The only advantage there is that, as I
said, the shorter the campaign period, the better for the
economy and these candidates.

For senatorial candidates, it is possible that this will
be a disadvantage to those who are new faces who would
like to throw their hats in the senatorial election, because
‘that will give an advantage to the incumbent. But we

Senator Enrile. Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Enrile is recognized.

Senator Enrile. Mr. President, for my part, I will
object to this amendment, because I think our people are
entitled to be exposed personally to the candidates who
will rule over their lives for the next six years. I think 90
days is even short for them to make an assessment of the
character, the qualities, and the intellectual acumen of the
people that are pretending to become President.

Here is a man or a woman who is going to rule them,
to whom they will entrust their fate for six years, and we
are going to do it in 90 days. I think we are joking. I do
not think this is a proper time to joke, especially in the
selection of a leader.

On the issue of economics, I do not think it will affect
the inflation rate if we will make it 90 days or 120 days.
What affects the inflation rate is the mismanagement of
the economy more than the election of 1992. The econ-
omy is already heated up and hard up anyway, as it is.

Now, as far as knowledge of the people is concerned,
the electorate may have heard of people but I think it will
be dishonest to pretend that a candidate can cover 75

cannot-do-anythimg-aboutit,since-the-incumbents—2re
there. They have been elected in 1987. However, our
experience is that a 60-day campaign is sufficient Space
even for senatorial candidates.

These are my proposed amendments, Mr. President.
I hope these will be accepted by the Sponsor of the bill
and I am hoping these will get the support of my Col-
leagues in the Senate,
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provinces in this country in 60 days. I think it is too
much to expect for one to be able to travel around the

. country and just speak in the provincial capitals of the 75

provinces to be able to be known by the people in the
rural areas. I think we would be doing a disservice to our
voting population if this is the way we are going to deal

‘with them.

We might just as well scrap the election if this is the
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way we want it. That would be better, I think, unarguable
as a means of staving off the inflationary pressure if that
is indeed the purpose of this amendment. That is why I
- object, Mr. President.

Senator Herrera. Mr. President, if  may justreact.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Herrera is recognized.

Senator Herrera. I respect the opinion of the Mi-

Anyway, Mr. President, I would object to this
amendment on the ground that I think, precisely, the
Constitution spoke of an election period of 90 days be-
fore and 30 days after. In fact, under existing law, the
election period is a total of 135 days, I think, before,
precisely, because of the realization that presidential and
vice-presidential candidates cover the entire Nation from
Batanes to Tawi-Tawi. For us to expect that they could
cover 75 provinces in 60 days, I think is just too much.

By the way, let us say, that there are nine presidential
candidates, that is only P2.7 billion. Ido not think that it

nority Floor Leader. But may Tjuststate; that T think-itis
not fair to inject malice in the intention of the proponent
of this proposal. I was not joking. I am serious.

Now, we can disagree on the matter whether this is
inflationary or not. I think that is a very good point to
argue. But to say that I am not serious in proposing that
amendment, is another thing. I think we should respect
each other’s opinion. We can disagree; we can debate,
but let us respect each other’s opinion.

My position is that, I feel that this is inflationary

because election expenses are not productive. When

expenditure is so high and there is no contribution to the
increase of our gross national product, that will be infla-
tionary. Of course, both of us are not economists, but
this is a point that I am stressing.

Now, if such is the majority decision, and the Spon-

- sor will not accept my proposal, so be it. But I would just

like to appeal that let us not inject malice in any of our

proposals here, otherwise, we will end up insulting each
other. '

Thank you, Mr. President.

Senator Enrile. Mr. President.

will mean too much in the inflationary conditionof the
country, on the assumption that we are spending P10 per
voter, as I understand, now being proposed assuming that
that is so.

Senator Saguisag. The reason I have an open mind
on this is, in 1986, it was in fact shorter than 60 days. It
started on December 11, and the election was held on
February 7. Originally, it was January 17. Because the
assumption is, by then, everybody is already known.

I have an open mind, but I am just saying that this is |
not unprecedented in our country’s history.

Kung hindi nga ho naipagpaliban iyon, Janaury 17 pa
lamang, a little over a month, ay mayroon nang halalan.

So, I will leave it to the Body. What I am trying to
say here is that the proposition is a very serious one and
really merits some debate in the Chamber.

Senator Enrile. If I may just add to that, I believe
that the 1986 election was a freak election. It was a snap -
election. We are not talking of a snap election now. We
are talking of a regular election.

Besides, the protagonists in that election were al-
ready known. One was the incumbent President, and the

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tanaaaj. Senator
Enrile.

Senator Enrile. Mr. President, ] am not saying that
the proposal is a joke. I said we would be joking if we
would say that we could cover the entire country in 60
days. If we do not understand the semantics of our
statements, I am sorry but that is not what I meant.

other-one-was-the-widew-of-a.man.who. was supposed {0
have been assassinated and martyred. So, their names
were actually spoken of inside every household in the
country.

But this Representation, assuming that he is favored
by events to become the standard bearer of my party, I do
not think that I am well-known throughout the country,
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unlike the others who are well- known.

So, I would like an equal chance to reach as many
people as I could.

Senator Herrera. Mr. President, may I say some-
thing?

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Herrera is recognized.

ment, if we have any. We must allow the people to
search our soul and our hearts, our minds if, indeed, we
have the capability and the vision to’become a President.
We cannot do that in 60 days unless we are just articulat-
ing some innocuous, parochial issue in front of a camera
or a television.

But to run for the Presidency, we should take it a
little bit more serious in the sense that we should allow as
wide an area of our Nation and our people to know the

Senator Herrera. I think we are less than candid if
we will not admit, Mr. President, that all the prospective
candidates for president and vice president are not well-
known because they are all well-known and have been
going all over the country since, well, some of them
started campaigning since 1987.

S0, I do not believe that they are not well-known.
- Especially in the case of the Minority Floor Leader, I
think he is just too modest. But, the point is, he is well-
known. For many years, during the past regime and the
present regime, his participation in EDSA made him a
very well-known personality.

So, the point of reaching the people in order that he
will be known by the people, I think, will not hold water
because all these presidential candidates are well-known.

Except, perhaps, in the case of Chief Justice Fernan,
if he will eventually decide, I think he will be disadvan-
taged. But all these presidential candidates are well-
known. They have been going all over the country.

Now, Mr. President, as I said, I clearly understand the
semantics. Let us just argue this objectively. I feel that
the 60-day period is more than enough, in fact.

Senator Enrile. Mr. President.

to become the leaders of this country. And I would
challenge anybody here if they know the programs of
government of the other candidates, whether they have
really seen what these programs are. If they do not know
that, how can a person in Tawi-Tawi, for instance, or
Itbayat, in Batanes, know it unless we give the presiden-
tial candidate a chance to discuss it even before a minis-
cule of people belonging to that population?

Senator Herrera. The modern and advanced tech-
nology in communication will make it very convenient
for candidates now to reach the people. One can have his
television show in Manila, and it will be shown all over
the country through satellite. Broadcasting now is also
very effective. DZRH or DZNN is hooked up to all
stations all over the country. Many of the candidates now
have airplanes, they have choppers. I do not think there is
aproblem in meeting with the people.

Senator Enrile. I think the distinguished Gentleman
has just contradicted himself. He is talking about econo-
mizing on the budget of the candidate. I would like to tell
him that a 30-second spot on television will cost at least
P30,000 now. Who among the candidates can afford a
P30,000 per 30 second television spot?

Senator Herrera. One does not even have to pay for
television time,

program.of.each and-everyone-of-us-who-are -pretending—-

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Enrile is recognized.

Senator Enrile. True, I think, I am well-known as a
Juan Ponce Enrile. But there is a difference between
being well-known as Juan Ponce Enrile, and being
known as Juan Ponce Enrile as the candidate for Presi-
dent. Because we must present our platform of govern-
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Senator Enrile. I do not think that we should run
our campaign just before a television. Our people de-
mand a flesh-and-blood appearance before them. That is
the tradition of our politics in this country. We are not in
Anmerica, or in France, or in England, in Germany, or in
Japan. We are in the Republic of Juan dela Cruz. Our
people have not yet reached that degree of modernity
where they would want to just view their candidates
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before a television camera. They would want their candi-
dates to appear before them, talk to them, and know their

body language.

Senator Herrera. Mr. President, as I said, with the
exception of Justice Fernan, all the candidates have been
traveling all over the country. In the case of the Minority
Floor Leader, maybe twice, thrice, or four times a week,
he is always in the media and has been going all over the
country. He is well-known.

running for President.

The point that I am saying is, when one is already a
candidate, the perception of the people would become
different. They would now assess him not as just Juan

Ponce Enrile, the actor Juan Ponce Enrile, the Secretary -

of National Defense Juan Ponce Enrile, the Senator Juan
Ponce Enrile, but Juan Ponce Enrile, the candidate for the
presidency. They have lots of questions to ask from him,
sometimes personal, or they would want to see him as a
person and, if possible, in their localities. We cannot do
that in 60 days, Mr. President.

Senator Herrera. As I have said, I have made a

proposal. If the Proponent is not in a position to accept it

and throw it to the Body, we can always vote on it. I
think the point that is worth stressing here is whether the
60-day period is enough to give sufficient exposure to the
‘presidential, vice-presidential, and senatorial candidates.
Of course, the other factor that we have to consider is the
cost of the election.

Thank you, Mr. President.
Senator Guingona. Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator

Guingona is recognized.

making known the issues to the people. It also involves
tremendous organization, especially because this will in-
volve the President down to the last councilor.

While it is true that there is a theoretical separation
between the President and the Vice President and the
other candidates--the Senators and Congressmen--and
because of the demands of a synchronized election, nec-
essarily, the organization will have to involve all and this
will entail a little more time.

Representatives bill is, I think....

Senator Saguisag. It is 190; 180 is for the conven-
tion, but it is also 90 days, Mr. President. We have a
copy of the bill.

Senator Guingona. In that case, I hope that the
Proponent can reconsider so that the reasonable period
can be 90 days, especially because of this synchronized
organization, transport. And as far as communication is
concerned, it is not as sophisticated because there are
many towns in Mindanao where telephones do not work.

Senator Herrera. Mr. President, political parties
have started organizing since Day One. I am referring to
the senatorial election of 1987. Once upon a time, I was
also a member of a political party. And we had been
conducting seminars and grassroots organizational cam-
paigns.

So, to say that we will start the organizational cam-
paign on the first day of the 60-day period, I think, is not
accurate. The truth of the matter is that we have been
campaigning since, as I said, after our election to the
Senate. And those probable presidential and vice presi-
dential candidates have made known already their desire
to participate in the presidential and vice presidential
election a long time ago. They have been campaigning

Semator-Enrile:—And-so-is-Bolphy;-but-he-is-not——The-Constitution-speaks.of 90_days. __The House_of. .

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, certainly, I re-
spect the views of the distinguished Proponent of the
amendment. I also understand that the motives are very
lotty, especially as far as the expenditures are concerned.

We are here faced with an election that is synchro-
nized. Campaigning does not involve merely the act of

also.

The truth of the matter is that the presidential ambi-
tion of one or two of these candidates, I think, has been
known even before the 1987 election.

So, the point of being known as presidential candi-
dates, scrutinizing their background, their platform of
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government, I think, are known by the people. On the
matter of organizing, we have been organizing since, as I
said, after the election of 1987, because we already
anticipated that the 1992 election will be a very exciting
election, since many will be participating, thinking that
the present Government is just merely transitory.

So, these are the arguments that I think would sup-
port the proposal that the 60-day campaign period is more
than sufficient to conduct a presidential and vice presi-
dential election, together with the senatorial election.

which will now become full-fledged provinces, as a result
of the Local Government Code and the subsequent refer-
endum provided in the Code.

Therefore, the 60-day period proposed by Senator
Herrera might not really suffice for purposes of dissemi-
nating the information required by our people relative to
presidential and vice presidential candidates.

So, T hope that he will consider amending the pro-
posal, increasing it maybe to 90 days, so that it will

Senator Estrada. Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafada]. Senator
Estrada is recognized.

Senator Estrada. G. Pangulo, ako po ay tumututol
doon sa sinabi ng Kgg. na Senador mula sa Cebu, sa-
pagkat ang aking partido ay na-accredit lamang ng
- COMELEC noong nakaraang Agosto, kung kaya hindi
pa ito organized, di-tulad ng mga dominant majority

party. Paano naman ang magiging kalagayan ng aming’

partido?

Kaya ako po ay tumututol doon sa sinasabi niyang 60
na araw, sapagkat mayroon tayong 73 provinces, 61 cit-
ies, and 1,500 municipalities. At may mga pag-ulan at
bagyo pa kung minsan. Ano na ang mangyayari if within
60 days ay inabot kayo ng tatlong linggo na bagyo?
Mababawasan iyon ng mga 20 o 21 araw, kaya 39 na
araw na lamang ang matitira sa pagkakampanya. Sa
nakikita ko ay masyadong maliit o kulang na kulang ang
panahong iyan para sa isang presidential election.

Senator Pimentel. Mr. President.

~ The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). Senator
Pimentel is recognized.

enable the presidential candidates to cover the 75 prov-
inces, some of the major cities, and some of the urban
centers as well. But short of that, to say that we limit it to
60 days, that will really prevent a thorough dissemination
of the qualifications, the programs, and the platforms of
the presidential candidates, and will, in all likelihood,
limit them only to 60 cities in the entire country,

Senator Saguisag. I wonder whether, after listening

to all who have spoken, 75 days may be sufficient. I
mean, let us face it. We will have another three-week
break. What will all these candidates do? They will all
g0 around the country. What will they do beginning
December, when we will continue to get paid but without
reporting here anymore? They will be campaigning,

So, I am not convinced about how short 60 is. But
just so we can resolve this, listening to Senator Pimentel,
maybe 75 days will give the additional 15 days in addi-
tion to the many years and the coming weeks that will be
devoted for the same purpose. ButI think the public will
appreciate it if we shave up a little of the 90 days. Iyon
po ang nakikita ko. Baka po magkasundo kung magkasa-
lubong sa gitna.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Maceda is recognized, and after Senator Maceda, Senator
Herrera.

Senator Pimentel. If we limit the election period to
only 60 days, that means that, theoretically, the candi-
date can cover only the 6() cities in the entire country.
And even if one takes the possibility that one can cover
one city and one province in one day, that means there
will be 15 provinces that one cannot cover during that
period, because there are actually 75 provinces in the
entire country to date, including the two subprovinces

214

Senator Maceda. I have no objection, to the pro-
posal of Senator Herrera, dahil wala po namang
masyadong pinag-uusapan diyan. Ngayon, iyong 12
Kandidato, with the exception of, maybe, o isama na
natin si Chief Justice Fernan, iyong mga ikut-ikot niyang
mga speaking engagements sa mga Bar Councils, lahat
naman po ay nagkakampanya na.

Aywan ko kung ano itong pinag-uusapan natin--
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whether it is 60 days, 90 days or 120 days. This is not
really going to make too much of a difference. The only
difference that the 60-day or 90-day period will allow is
that one can start posting propaganda with ‘‘Johnny
Ponce Enrile for President’” .or ‘‘Nene’’ and ‘‘Oca’’ for
President and Vice President. One can already formally
say, ‘‘I ask you for your vote.”” Hindi iyong paikut-ikot
pa ngayon na, ‘‘Kung ako po ay kakandidato, puwede ba
ninyo akong tulungan?’’ Iyon lamang ang magiging
diperensiya niyan.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). Senator

Herrera.

Senator Herrera. After listening to the wise man
from Pasig, I am agreeable to his suggestion of 75 days
for presidential and vice-presidential candidates, but for
the Senators, it should only be 60 days.

Senator Enrile. Mr. President, I would insist my
respect for the Constitution, which is 90 days. I think this
is-a-prerogative-of the Commission onElections: T donot——————

So, I think we are debating much ado over nothing
really. Senator Enrile, with his helicopter, is going from
town to town. He is already campaigning even now.
[Laughter]

Senator Enrile. Mr. President.

The Présiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). Senator
Enrile is recognized.

~ Senator Enrile. Ako po ay namamasyal sa mga
bayan-bayan para alamin kung ano ang mga problema ng
mga naninirahan sa mga bayang iyon. Ngunit, ito'po ang
sinasabi ng Saligang-Batas: The election period shall
commence 90 days before the day of election and shall
end 30 days after.

Ngayon, kung gagawin po nating 60 days iyong cam-
paign period, ano ang gagawin natin doon sa election
period na iyon na ‘90 days before election day?”’ Ano
ang election activity na gagawin natin? Ang ibig sabihin
po ba noon ay umuga-uga na lamang tayo diyan? Ang
sabi ng Saligang-Batas ay ‘‘90 days before,’’ na ang ibig
sabihin noon, that is, in effect, the start of the campaign
period.

. Now, I still have my doubt whether we can really
limit it by statute, because the Constitution says: ‘“The
election period shall commence 90 days before the day of

think that we should go below the 90-day period that was
defined in the Constitution. The only one that can change
that 90 days, if at all, and based on special circumstances,
would be the Commission on Elections. That campaign
period is a part of the election period.

Senator Saguisag. There is some debate really
whether election and campaign periods refer to the same
thing. In fact, Mr. President, Section 6, on page 5, line

17, apparently makes a distinction. We are not persuaded

that, to shorten it to a figure below 90, is in contravention
of the Constitution.

Senator Enrile. Anyway, so that we will not pro-
long this matter, I register my objection, and let it be

voted upon.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Taflada]. Senator
Guingona.

Senator Guingona. I think we also have to consider
the Supreme Court decision, when it nullified a previous
law. It said 90 days circumscribing everything. If it
circumscribes the convention, the COMELEC can fix
another date for the convention.

Senator Saguisag. I am not aware that the decision
settled...

the€lection.”” That 1s a mandate, and the only one that
can change it is the Commission on Elections, not this
Congress, according to the Supreme Court.

So, I still insist on my objection even if, according to
some, I can go town by town through a helicopter, which
is not quite correct. I go by land.

. Senator Herrera. Mr. President,

Senator Guingona. That was 90 days, they said.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Enrile. :

Senator Enrile. In that case, Mr. President, I move
to defer action on this matter until we have checked the

. Supreme Court decision.
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The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). There is a
motion to defer action on this proposed amendment.

Senator Saguisag. Well, all it states here really in
the very brief Resolution of September 5, 1991, page 4,
and I quote:

On the motion for the issuance of clarifying
resolution, filed by the Office of the Solicitor
General, whereby respondent Commission on
Elections seeks a clarification of the issue on whether

nomination. But in the clarification, there is now this
obiter, likewise nomination is not necessarily the start of
the election period. That is why we can play around with
November, December, January, February or whatever.

Senator Enrile. What are the activities that are
embraced within the election period?

Is not campaigning a major part of the election pe-
riod?

or.not,-in--the»-exereise—of~its'authority,—underSection
9, Article IX of the Constitution, it can set’ the
nomination and election of candidates by political
parties on a date earlier than the start of the election
period, suffice it to state that this issue was not raised
by the parties and, therefore, could not be a proper
subject of a motion for clarification.

Then this obiter, at any rate, Section 9 Article IX,
Section 9 of the Constitution provides:

Unless otherwise fixed by the Commission in
special cases, the election period shall commence
ninety days before the day of election and shall end
thirty days thereafter.

It is clear, therefore, from the foregoing Section that
the election period is what is stated in said provision.
Likewise, nomination is not necessarily the start of the
election period. 4

So, I take this to mean that the nomination can be
done even way before the 90-day period commences. But
as to the campaign period, I have checked with our re-
Source person, the Constitution and the interpretations of
it are silent. It seems to me that that may be a policy
determination that this Congress can make, Mr. Presi-
dent. ‘

Senator Enrile. Mr, President.

Senator Saguisag. I suppose that that is really the
oneessential part of it, but at the same time, I would have
thought that since we are all elected to serve for a fixed
term, that to the extent possible,we should continue serv-
ing the public.

Thatis why, to me the shorter the campaign period is,
the more the public may appreciate it. I want us to meet
SO that we can override a possible veto of the Bataan
Nuclear Power Plant appropriation. And, as I have said,
working here is the best form of campaigning.

Senator Enrile. I think the people are more inter-
ested to find out who their next legislators, who their next
president, who their next vice president will be than for
us to be staying here during an additional 30 days.

I am not trying to denigrate our efforts, but realisti-
cally speaking, I do not think, we can do much in 30 days
during this period because the attention of our people is
focused already on the political contest that would affect
their lives rather than what would be produced as a piece
of legislation or wise decision in this Chamber.

Senator Saguisag. But it is possible that a new
agreement on the military bases may be submitted by
December or January. I think the people would want to

Aln 111 :
knew-how-the-Senate WITTactomrite

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). Senator
Enrile.

Senator Enrile. I understand that the Supreme
Court decision, the main decision, was the one--in effect
said that the campaign period circumscribes everything,

Senator Saguisag. That is in connection with the
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Senator Enrile. That goes without saying, if that
should be the case, we as Senators of the Republic who
are running around the country campaigning could easily
come back to this Floor and spend maybe a few hours to
participate in the deliberation. But our people should be
allowed to continue to campaign already for their candi-
dates.
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Senator Saguisag. I am not sure. As we have said
most of our supporters for those of us who are running
have really been campaigning. So, I wonder whether the
figure of 75 may be acceptable to the Gentleman.

Senator Enrile. Mr. President, I can truthfully say
that I am not campaigning when I g0 to the provinces,
Maybe that is the impression of others. What I do when I
£0 to the provinces was simply organize or participate in
the organization of the Nacionalista Party.

test, the period where we really launch the competition
for powér before the people is actually 90 days, according
to the Constitution.

We should not limit the right of the candidates by
legislation because they have a vested right on this par-
ticular provision of the Constitution, if they are running
for a public office. That is justlike a law which derogates
or limits the right of a candidate to g0 to the people to
have access before the people.

Now, it would be different when one goes to a town
and then say, ‘I am a candidate for President. I would
like your support. Please judge me.’’

On that point one is, in effect, asking the people to
make their choice in one’s favor. But campaigning in the
sense of just showing one’s face there, Ido not think that
is the campaigning that is contemplated by the Election
Code.

Senator Saguisag. I suppose there is really a differ-
ence of opinion in that respect. I would have thought that
if someone offers himself as a candidate and then an-
nounces that, “‘I am for honoring all our debts, I am
against the military bases,”” to me that is a form of
campaigning. The people gets to know the principles and
the platforms of a certain declared candidate. It may be a
question of semantics, but the people really will use that
as a part of the criteria to be used in selecting as to who
will be the next leadership of the country.

That is why, I was hoping baka naman po iyong 75
days ay puwede na ho si guro,

Senator Enrile, Ako po ay tutol doon sapagkat ang
Saligang-Batas natin ay sinasabing 90 days ang election
period. ‘

Suppose somebody wants to run for President. He
has all the qualifications to run for President, but he has
not been known. He wants to have that 90-day period
given to him by the Constitution to expose himself before
the people. Are we going to deny him that privilege by
restricting it to 50 days, 75 days or 80 days when the
Constitution itself gives him that maximum limit to ex-
pose himself?

Senator Saguisag. I will not deny him what every-
body else is doing now without waiting for the 90 days.

Senator Enrile. But there may be some other people
who are not doing that right now, Mr. President, and yet
they want to run for President. I am not just talking of the
people who have presented themselves as possible candi-
dates.

Suppose a Tal Pulano who feels that none of the
presidentiables matches his qualification, and he wants to
present himself as an alternative. He has the age qualifi-
cation. He has the psychological qualification. He has
the residence qualification, the citizenship qualification.
He has the intellectual qualification, but he has not ex-
posed himself to the people.

Are we going to deny these people the right to be
exposed for 90 days before election day before the people.

.—___.Sen-a:mwsaagnisdg. ATgelection period, pero ang

campaign period ay silent,

Senator Enrile. Sa aking palagay ang talagang in-
tensiyon diyan ay 90 days ang election and campaign
period. Kaya lamang dinagdagan ng 30 days doon sa
panghuli ay sapagkat, realisticall Y speaking, may election
activities, post voting, and that is the proclamation, pro-

tests, counterprotests. But the start of the electoral con-

simply because of our desire to cut inflation, and because
of our perception that, anyway, all the people have
already exposed themselves before the public?

Senator Saguisag. Well, I am not sure whether he
will meet the age qualification. Probably, he was born
yesterday.

Senator Enrile. Mr. President, there are many old-
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timers in this country, maybe older than the distinguished
Gentleman from Pasig and Mauban, who may want to run
for President now that they see that all the presidentiables
are quarelling among each other, and especially if the
President is not going to run.

Senator Saguisag. May we have a short recess, Mr.
President. '

Senator Herrera. Mr. President.

cation of the Senator that we meet halfway between 90
and 60 days. So that the figure now is 75 days.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. So the
proposed amendment is 75 days.

Senator Saguisag. It is 75 days for the President
and Vice President; 60 days for Senators.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). Senator
Herrera is recognized.

Senator Herrera. I just would like to know, Mr.
President, what is now the parliamentary situation be-
cause I accepted the proposal of the Sponsor, and my
presumption is that that is accepted. So, as it is now, it is
75 days for presidential and vice presidential candidates,
and 60 days for Senators.

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION
The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada. Well, the
Sponsor was asking for a suspension at this point. Is
there any objection? [Silence] The session is suspended.
Itwas 5:33 p.m.
RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION

At 5:55 p.m., the session was resumed,

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. The ses-
sion is resumed.

Senator Enrile is recognized.

Senator Enrile. Mr. President, I understand the

any objection?
Senator Maceda. Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Maceda is recognized.

Senator Maceda. Let us finish with the President
and Vice President first.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. All right.
The proposed amendment is to reduce ...

SAGUISAG AMENDMENT

Senator Saguisag. For the Record, Mr. President,
page 5; line 24, the word *‘ninety’’ and the figure 90y

- will be replaced by the word “‘SEVENTY-FIVE’’ and

the figure ‘(75)"’. ‘

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Maceda is recognized.

MACEDA AMENDMENT

PUSitionof My Colleagues on s, Rather than impede
the workings of the Senate, I will withdraw my objection,
but I will take the proper remedies when I participate in
some further proceedings of this bill.

Thank you.

Senator Saguisag. The parliamentary situation, Mr.
President, is that the Proponent has accepted the modifi-
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Senator Maceda. Mr. President, I would like to
make a proposal. The locals are 30 days and the pres-
idency is now down to 75 days. Before, it was 90 days
for the President and Vice President, and 60 days for the
Senators. I think by the same argumentation, the cam-
paign period for Senators should be reduced.

So, I am suggesting that the “*sixty (60) days’’-be
reduced to “‘FORTY-FIVE (45) DAYS.”’
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The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). Senator
Romulo is recognized.

Senator Romulo. I would like to second ...
Senator Herrera. Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Herrera is recognized.

————Senater-Herrera.-Okay,-Mr.-President

Senator Laurel. Ibig ba ninyong ulitin ko?

Senator Saguisag. Hindi naman po. Gusto lamang
po nating malinaw dahil kanina ay medyo may kalawigan
iyong ating talakayan. I am not sure whether the Secre-
tariat was properly guided.

Mayroon pong mga susog na tinanggap ko agad at
mayroon namang Subject to the formulation. Also, in
fairness to the Members of the Chamber, who may still be

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. What does
th{‘? Sponsor say?

4

\"\_‘Sen ator Saguisag. Accepted, Mr. President.
\
\.
The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the motion is
approved.

Senator Aquino is recognized.

Senator Aquino. I am not objecting, Mr. President,
but I am just wondering: Will this not give due advantage
to the incumbents, because we have access to media
every day? Kawawa naman iyong mga bago. I am only
wondering,

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Maceda is recognized.

‘ 'z§enator Maceda. Not necessarily, because if the
Genifleman’s performance in the Senate is not good and it
is pripjected by media every day, he is at a disadvantage.

Slenator Aquino. I am satistied with the explana- -

tion. \I accept the 45 days for the Senators.

Friend from Batangas ...

Senator Laurel. Pero mayroon pa hong iba, siguro

- ay mga sampu pa. Halimbawa, ang gawin ho natin ay

ganito. I will just prepare a list and put the amendments
and give it to the Chair.

Senator Saguisag. I just hope that this will be first
in the...

Senator Laurel. Tomorrow afternoon.

Senator Saguisag. We still have to submit that to
the Body.

Senator Laurel. Certainly, Mr. President, without
prejudice to... '

Senator Saguisag. When may we expect to have...
Senator Laurel. By three o’clock?

Senator Saguisag. Puwede ho, siguro, mga alas dos
para mapag-aralan namin. O alas dos medya?

Senator Laurel. Puwede bang alas dos?

Senator Saguisag. Oho.

able_to_improve_on those_scintillating_suggestions of our

‘Tine Fresidimg Otticer [Senafor Tanadal. Al Tight:
Is therle any other individual amendment?

. Senator Laurel. G. Pangulo, nabanggit ko na ho
lyong akking mga susog. Tinanggap na yatang lahat, ayon
kaySena’q”{or Saguisag.

. Sénat(\ﬁr Saguisag. Well, in principle, but for the
gu}dance ofithe personnel concerned ...

Senator Enrile. Mr. President.

The President Officer [Senator Taflada]. Senator

Enrile is recognized.
Senator Enrile. Personal inquiry, Mr. President.

May I know from the distinguished Sponsor if the
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election of councilors by district was already incorpo-

rated?

Senator Saguisag. It is intact here, Mr. President.

Senator Enrile. I just want to read into the Record,
the position, the letter of the Philippine Councilors

League to this humble Representation.

They said:

of those in power.

It is expected that there’ll be an increase in the
number of candidates for councilors if elected by
district, hence it can result to the disqualification
of many public school teachers to serve as board
members as many of them are related to the
candidates.

It drastically reduces the political clout and/or
influence of the councilors in the City/

October 9, 1991

Hon. Juan Ponce Enrile
Senator, Republic of the Philippines
P. Burgos Street, City of Manila

Sir:

Last September 6 & 7, 1991, we held the First
Island Congress of the City and Municipal Councilors
in the Island of Mindanao, in Davao City.

Among the several resolutions passed and
approved unanimously by the delegates in plenary
session, was ‘‘to oppose the proposed election of
councilors by district come 1992’

The said opposition is shared by the councilors in
Luzon and Visayas, including the National Capital
Region. In brief, the councilors are for the status quo
in the manner of electing the councilors, that is
election at large.

Among the reasons given for the aforesaid stand
are:

1. It will constrict the choice of qualified
candidates. '

2. It will institute/perpetuate feudalism and

10.

11.

12.

Municipality-asa-whole

There are Municipalities/cities where the
distribution of population is uneven. Some
Barangays are densely populated while the
others are thinly populated. Said imbalance
cannot be cured by the districting, on the
contrary, it contributes to the imbalance of
growth and development.

It virtually places the councilors to the level of -

Barangay Chairman.

It gives built-in advantage to those in the
“richer’” and/or center of “‘life’” in the
municipality to be elected to higher position in
the Municipality, to the great prejudice of those
in the outskirts.

It develops “‘division’’ instead of ‘‘oneness’” in
the municipality, especially among the smaller
ones.

The reduction of names to be written in the‘,'
ballot, which is the basic objective of the

election by district proposal, is most unfair to the
Councilors, as they are made as guinea pigs.

To maintain the present system of the election ;élt
large, will not unduly bring about
disenfranchisement. Whether the names in the
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political-dymasties; mostspeciallyimtiedistricts
where the big landlords are.

3. It will provide undue advantage for those who
are in ‘‘poblacion’’ where the ‘“‘Life’’ of the
municipality is. Hence, those outside of the
‘‘poblacion’’ will be relegated to the sides.

4. There'll be perpetuation in power particularly in
areas/districts largely populated by ‘‘relatives’

talior—shouldbereducedor o there ™y o
assurance that, if reduced, the voter will write all
the names. ' ’

. The argument that the names to be written in the

ballot are too many, hence, the voters may r;dt be
able to write all, or will take long period of time
to do s0, is untenable, because there is sufficient
time to finish the writing of names, and s¢condly,
voters must sacrifice a little if they are iﬁterested
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in preserving our democratic electoral system.

The League respectfully recommends  the
following:

A - there should be reduction of number of
voters in each precinct;

B - there should be more precincts;

C - Deputize members of Civic

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I just wanted to
include in the Record the Resolution of a similar nature

by the City of Bacolod.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. All right.

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, can we have a

~ ten-minute break?

Organizations,—tll'e—lntegrated'—B<u ofthe
Philippines, Private School Teachers, and/
or College Students, to do poll duties;

D - Start the election at the earliest possible
time, taking into account local conditions.

E - COMELEC should be given more and
bigger budget.

F - All private communications and
transportation systems$ should be tapped
by the COMELEC for transmission and/or
transportation of the election reports/
returns.

Attached hereto are some of the official Council
resolutions opposing the proposed election by
districts.

It is respectfully requested of His Honor that the
current election of Councilors at Large be maintained
in the Election Law for the forthcoming 1992
elections,

Thank you. We wish His Honor’s continued
health and bountiful blessings.

Respectfully yours,

PONCIANO SUBIDO

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. The ses-
sion is suspended, if there is no objection. [There was

none.]

Itwas 6:06 p.m.

RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION
At 6:20 p.m., the session was resumed.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). The ses-
sion is resumed.

The Majority Floor Leader.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, may I just ask
the distinguished Sponsor concerning the pre-proclama-
tion summary disposition of controversy. This is page
14, I understand. '

This summary disposition in Section 17 is without
prejudice, of course, to the provisions of Republic Act
No. 6646, the measure on electoral reforms that we
passed in 1987, concerning, for example, the establish-
ment of disputable presumption contained in Section 28
of the said law. .

National President
Philippine Councilors League

‘Thank you, Mr. President.

Senator Saguisag. The at-large arrangement will be
followed for purposes of the next elections.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). All right.
'The Majority Floor Leader.

Senator Saguisag. 1do not believe that tﬁe intent is
to modify the existing state of the law regarding those
procedural devices, so to speak.

Senator Guingona. Thank you, Mr. President, I just
wanted to put that into the Record.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. The Ma-
jority Floor Leader.
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Senator Guingona. I understand Senator Estrada
would like to introduce some amendments, and Senator
Shahani also has some amendments.

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

May I ask for a one-minute suspension, Mr. Presi-
dent.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. The ses-
sion is suspended, if there is no objection. [There was

TO BE DETERMINED BY THE COMMISSION AF-
TER NOTICE AND HEARING.”’

My explanation to this, Mr. President, is that the
constitutional mandate is to promote multiparty system
and not a two-party system. The provision allowing only
the majority and the dominant opposition party will favor
existing parties and will be unfair and discriminatory to
newly organized parties.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. What does

none:]
It was 6:22 p.m.
RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION
At 6:29 p.m., the session was resumed.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. The ses-
sion is resumed. '

Senator Estrada. Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Estrada is recognized. .

ESTRADA AMENDMENT

Senator Estrada. Mr. President, on page 19 of
Section 25, delete lines 26 to 33 and lines 1 and 2 of page
20, up to the word ‘‘Coalition’’ and in lieu thereof, insert
the following: ‘““THERE SHALL ALSO BE RECOG-
NIZED FOUR (4) PRINCIPAL WATCHERS REPRE-
SENTING THE ACCREDITED POLITICAL PARTIES
WHO CAN FILL THE COMPLETE SLATE OF CAN-
DIDATES FROM MUNICIPAL LEVEL UP TO THE
POSITION OF THE PRESIDENT OF THE PHILIP-
PINES. IN CASE THERE ARE MORE THAN FOUR
(4) POLITICAL PARTIES WHO ARE ABLE TO FILL

the Sponsor say?

Senator Saguisag. Sino ho ang pipirma sa mga
dokumento? Wala na hong kinatawan ang mga partido?
There are some passages here making mention of the two
watchers signing certain documents.

So, we understand then that the task will be solely
left to the board of election inspectors. Are we clear on
that.

Senator Estrada. But then this is against the consti-
tutional mandate because the constitutional mandate is to
promote multiparty system.

Senator Saguisag. Well, I can accept the amend-
ment, Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. All right.
Is there any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the
motion is approved.

Is there any other amendment, Senator Estrada?

Senator Estrada. I have no more amendment.
Thank you, Mr. President.

Senator Shahani. Mr. President.

THE COMPLETE LIST OF CANDIDATES, THE
FOUR (4) PRINCIPAL WATCHERS SHALL BE CHO-
SEN BY DRAWING OF LOTS FROM AMONG THE
SAID POLITICAL PARTIES. THE AFORESAID
PRINCIPAL. WATCHERS HAVE BEEN DESIG-
NATED BY THE COMMISSION ON ELECTIONS
UPON THE NOMINATION OF THE PARTIES THAT
CAN FILL THE COMPLETE LIST OF CANDIDATES
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The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Shahani is recognized.

SHAHANI AMENDMENTS

Senator Shahani. Mr. President, I would like to
propose two amendments. The first one is on page 17,
Section 22, line 30. After the word ““English’’, insert the
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words “‘AND FILIPINO”. [ think it is important, Mr.
President.

Senator Saguisag. Accepted, Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Shahani. The second one is on page 19,

Senator Estrada. “BUT NOT LATER THAN SIX
MONTHS AFTER THE FILING OF THE APPEAL.”’

Senator Saguisag. We can accept, Mr. President. I
am just concerned as to the meaning of the filing, whether
it means perfection or not. But just so, it drives home the
message about how important it is to be expeditious, We
accept, Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). Is there

Section 24, line 11. The amendment i34—aﬁ—er~me~wmd—any-objecti-on?f[:S’i'lerrce’]*‘Hezﬁ‘ing NoTie, the amendment

“Be’” add the following words “CLEARED OF ALL
WRITING PARAPHERNALIA AND’. 1 think this
would serve as a good security measure to avoid the
tampering of ballots.

Senator Saguisag. ‘‘CLEARED OF ALL WRIT-
ING PARAPHERNALIA’??

Senator Shahani. ‘‘CLEARED OF ALL WRITING
PARAPHERNALIA AND"”’. o

Senator Saguisag. Accepted, Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Taflada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Shahani. Thank you, Mr. President.

Senator Estrada. Mr., President,

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Estrada.

ESTRADA AMENDMENT

Senator Estrada. Just one more amendment. On
page 17, line 13 of Section 21, after the word “‘decision’’,

is approved.
Senator Maceda. Mr. President,

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Senator
Maceda is recognized.

Senator Saguisag. As long as we are here, before
the Gentleman from Manila speaks, I was really waiting
for Senator Laurel to introduce an amendment here, But,
for the Record, may 1 just express this: On line 14, .

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. On what
page? :

Senator Saguisag. On the same page, same subject
matter.

It says here that the decision shall be final, executory,
and unappealable. I just would want to Spread upon the
Record that under settled jurisprudence, it may not neces-
sarily cover a question of law because, under the Consti-
tution, the Supreme Court cannot be deprived of its right
and duty to review matters of law.

Salamat po.

J&MW@FQMH?_N@MWHAN SIX
MONTHS AFTER THE FILING OF THE APPEAL.’

My explanation to this, is that the adjudication proc-
ess of the appeal should be limited to six months in order
to expedite or hasten the disposition of cases.

Senator Saguisag. “BUT NOTLATER THAN SIX
MONTHS...

e
oS R I S

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. All right.
Senator Maceda is recognized.

MACEDA AMENDMENTS

Senator Maceda. On page 6, line 22. Insert be-
tween the words ““‘coalition’ and “‘thereof’” the follow-
ing words: “WHETHER ON A NATIONAL, RE-
GIONAL OR PROVINCIAL BASIS’’.
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Senator Saguisag. It is accepted, Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Maceda. On page 28, line 7, after the words
“NATIONAL POLICE’’, insert, as in the previous lines,
“THE ARMED FORCES OR OTHER LAW EN-
FORCEMENT AGENCY”’.

Senator Saguisag. What page, Mr. President?

Senator Maceda. On page 5, line 3, for clarification.
‘““OTHER SEGMENTS’’ seems to be a vague if not a
broad term. What does this really mean?

Senator Saguisag. We have since traced this during
the break. We discussed this with the Gentleman during
the break. I was given to understand that this was pro-
posed last September 2 by Senator Rasul, I was wonder-
ing whether we could check with her.

Senator-Saguisag-—Itis-accepted-Mr-President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Taflada)]. Is there
any objection? [Silencel Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Maceda. On line 8, same page, delete the
word ‘‘POLICE’’.

Senator Saguisag. It is accepted, Mr. President.
The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment

is approved.

Senator Maceda. On the same page, line 12, “‘un-
less exempted in writing by the COMELEC”’.

Senator Saguisag. It is accepted, Mr. President.
The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the same is

approved.

Senator Maceda. Now, just for the Record, may we
again clarify on page 5, line 3...

Senator Saguisag. Mr. President, if we may just
step back. May we just request that everytime ‘“COME-

It seems to me that, really, “‘Segments’’ should be
“SECTORS”’ in pari materia, *“WOMEN, WORKERS
AND OTHER SECTORS".

So, conditionally, if the intent is to change this to
““sectors’’, I am disposed to accept, but I will verify with
Senator Rasul. ‘

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. So, sub-

jecttothat...

Senator Saguisag. Conditonally accepted, Mr.

President, if we may.

. The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

Senator Maceda. On line 6, same page, between the
words ““ACCORDINGLY”’ and ‘“THREE’, insert the
words “NOT MORE THAN’’,

Senator Saguisag. It is accepted, Mr. President.
The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada). Is there

any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.

LEC™1s mentioned for 1t t0 be replaced by - "COMMIS-
SION", for the sake of consistency. This is an omnibus
motion, Mr. President.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafada]. Is there

any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the amendment
is approved.,
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Senafor Maceda, Thank you.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Mr. Ma-

jority Leader.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I understand that
Senator Laurel will...
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Senator Saguisag. He will submit at 2:00 p.m. to-
morrow his written amendments.

Senator Guingona. And subject to that, Mr. Presi-
dent, because we are running out of time, I move that we
close the period of amendments. Subject only to Senator
Laurel’s presentation. '

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada)]. Is there
any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the motion is
approved.

any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the motion is
approved.

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, tomorrow, we
will continue with the Synchronized Elections to accom-

" modate Senator Laurel’s proposal, the Baseland Conver-

sion, Countryside Industrialization, Strengthening Urban
Development, and Restitution of Loses to Sugar Planters.

ADJOURNMENT OF THE SESSION

SUSPENSION OF CONSIDERATION
OF SENATE BILL NO. 1861

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that we
suspend consideration of this measure.

The Presidinig Officer [Senator Tafiada]. Is there

I move that we adjourn the session until three o’clock
tomorrow afternoon.

The Presiding Officer [Senator Tafiada]. The ses-
sion is adjourned until three o’clock tomorrow afternoon.

- It was 6:42 p.m.
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Women as the lead Committee.
The President. The Majority Floor Leader.

Senator Guingona. We have no objection, Mr.

President.
Senator Herrera. Mr. President.

The President. Senator Herrera is recognized.

resume consideration of Senate Bill No. 1861 as reported
out under Committee Report No. 1373.

We are in the period of individual amendments. As a
matter of fact, we closed it yesterday with the reservation
that Senator Laurel’s amendments be taken into account.

The President. Resumption of consideration of Sen-
ate Bill No. 1861 is now in order.

Senator Herrera. My Senti‘mentgn,_thewmatter,.Mr,.-n—%—Senator--Guingona.---—I---ask—ﬂnat werecognize Senator

President, is that the lead Committee should be the Com-
mittee on Labor. However, may I just suggest that these
two Committees conduct joint hearings. I already sched-
uled it on Friday so that we can have a joint hearing.

The President. Is there any objection? [Silence]
Hearing none, the same is approved.

MOTION OF SENATOR GUINGONA
(Referral of Senator Lina’s Speech to the
Proper Committees)

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move to refer
the speech of Senator Lina to the Committee on Justice
and Human Rights.

The President. Is there any objection? [Silence]
Hearing none, the motion is approved.

Senator Shahani. Mr. President.
The President. Senator Shahani is recognized.

Senator Shahani. Mr. President, may I also suggest
that the Committee on Foreign Relations be considered a
secondary Committee for the situation of overseas work-
ers.

Senator Guingona. Yes, Mr. President, and the

Saguisag and Senator Laurel.

The President. Senator Saguisag and Senator Lau-
rel have the Floor.

Senator Saguisag. Maraming salamat po. Madali
lamang po ito, lalabimpito. Wala pa pong dalawampu.
With varying degrees of acceptability, ang iba rito ay
walang problema.

May we have a few minutes recess, Mr. President?

SUSPENSION OF THE SESSION

The President. The session is suspended for a few
minutes, if there is no objection. [There was none.]

Itwas 4:01 p.m.
RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION

At 4:04 p.m., the session was resumed.

The President. The session is resumed.

Senator Saguisag. G. Pangulo, si Senador Laurel po

ang may mga amendments. Naturally, we will start on
page 1, line 16.

Commitiee.pnL.abor:

The President. Is there any objection? [Silence]
Hearing none, the motion is approved.

BILL ON SECOND READING
Senate Bill No. 1861 - Synchronized Elections
(Continuation)

Senator Guingona. Mr. President, I move that we
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LAUREL AMENDMENTS

Senator Laurel. Yes, Mr. President. The first
amendment is on page 1, line 16. A very minor amend- -
ment, Mr. President. After the word “IN’’, insert the
word “‘EVERY"’.

Senator Saguisag. It is accepted, Mr. President.
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The President. Is there any objection? [Silence]
Hearing none, the amendment is approved.

Senator Laurel. Then, Mr. President, on page 2,
line 20, insert this sentence ‘‘NO PRESIDENT SHALL
BE ELIGIBLE FOR ANY REELECTION.”’

Senator Saguisag. It is accepted, Mr. President.

The President. The Chair would like to ask: Will

~—————that apply-to-the-incumbent-President?—

Senator Laurel. We are just quoting here, Mr.
President, the specific constitutional provision.

The President. I know, but I would like to find out
what is our legislative intent.

Senator Laurel. In the opinion of this Representa-
tion, Mr. President, the incumbent President is ineligible
for reelection.

The President. What does the Sponsor say?

Senator Saguisag. I agree, Mr. President, because if
itis sound, it should apply to everybody.

The President. Is there any objection?

Senator Lina. Mr. President.

The President. Senator Lina is recognized.

Senator Lina. My, President, does this amendment
mean that even the incumbent President is also ineligible

for reelection?

Senator Saguisag. That was the question posed by
‘the Chair, and number one, all that we are doing here is to

Senator Lina. That is not the point, Mr. President.
The person of the incumbent President is incidental. It is
the principle involved that is material in this line of
questioning, because I hold the view that the present
Constitution, as far as the ban on reelection is concerned,
does not apply to the incumbent President, for the Presi-
dent was elected not under the 1987 Constitution but
under a different set of circumstances. Again, we can
debate this question, and it will eat up so much of our
time. There is need to pass this election bill.

I just want to put into the Record that, as far as the
question is concerned on whether the prohibition applies
to the incumbent President, I hold the contrary view, and
let it be a subject matter of an appropriate case before the
Supreme Court.

Senator Laurel. Mr. President, being the Proponent
of this amendment, may I be permitted to just say a few
words in reply to the inquiry and to the comment of the
Senator from Manila. I based my opinion and my answer
to the question posed by the Senate President not only on
the constitutional provision that is Article VII, Section 4,
but also on the proceedings of the Constitutional Com-
mission with respect to this particular provision.

Now, the constitutional provision relative to the
reelection of elective public officials, particularly the
President and Vice President, is covered by Section 4.
The specific provision is contained in this section, par-
ticularly the last two sentences thereof. I shall read them,
as I read them yesterday or last night, Mr. President, and I
quote:

... The President shall not be eligible for any
reelection.

Then follows, what to me is a very significant state-
ment in that same section:

festate the — constitutional language. In the end, in an
appropriate challenge, the Supreme Court will have to
decide it. Butin my view, if thatis a good principle, as I
believe it is, no one in this country should be exempted
“from it. ' :

So, my answer is yes; it applies to someone to whom
the question is academic anyway, because I am sure she is
not running,

No person who has succeeded as President and has
served as such for more than four years shall be
qualitied for election to the same office at any time.

In other words, if there should be a Vice President
who succeeds the incumbent President, for one reason or
another the incumbent President is unable to discharge
her duties as President, if there is a successor, that succes-
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sor is disqualified from running for reelection if he is able
to assume the presidency for more than four years, and
the reason is, this present Constitution applies to him. If
it applies to him, it should also apply to the incumbent
President. That is a matter of simple logic, Mr. President.

And then second, referring now to the Journal of the
Constitutional Commission. So many schemes have
been presented in the Commission, and ultimately the
scheme chosen was Scheme No. 2, which provided that

-——the President shall not.be eligible-for-any-reelection,-and - —please?

that was decided upon. There is nothing which says there
that the President is entitled or is qualified for reelection.

Senator Enrile. Mr. President.
The President. Senator Enrile is recognized.

Senator Enrile. In view of the comments of the
distinguished Sponsor or Proponent of the amendment,
may I propose an amendment to his amendment, if he
will accept or consider my proposal.

His proposed amendment says: ‘‘NO PRESIDENT
SHALL BE ELIGIBLE FOR REELECTION.”” I would
like to change the period (.) to semicolon (;), and add the
following:

NO PERSON WHO HAS SUCCEEDED AS
PRESIDENT AND HAS SERVED AS SUCH FOR
MORE THAN FOUR YEARS SHALL BE
QUALIFIED FOR ELECTION TO THE SAME
OFFICE AT ANY TIME.

Senator Laurel. No objection, Mr. President.

-The President. All right. How about Senator Sa-
+ guisag?

Macapagal?

I mean, do we really have to go beyond the
constitutional language?

The President. Why do we not call a recess, if there
is no objection? [There was none.]

ltwas 4:13 p.m.
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RESUMPTION OF THE SESSION
At 4:16 p.m., the session was resumed.
The President. The session is resumed.

Senator Enrile.
proposed amendment to the amendment.

Will the Gentleman restate it,

The President.

Mr. President, I have a pending -

Senator Enrile. The amendment proposed by the
distinguished Gentleman from Batangas is worded as
follows: ‘“NO PRESIDENT SHALL BE ELIGIBLE
FOR ANY REELECTION period.

I would like to amend this by changing the period to
comma, and add the following: AND NO PERSON
WHO HAS SUCCEEDED AS PRESIDENT AND HAS
SERVED AS SUCH FOR MORE THAN FOUR
YEARS SHALL BE QUALIFIED FOR ELECTION
TO THE SAME OFFICE AT ANY TIME.

May I restate, Mr. President, so that the entire sen-
tence would read as follows: NO PRESIDENT SHALL
BE ELIGIBLE FOR ANY REELECTION comma (,)
AND NO PERSON WHO HAS SUCCEEDED AS
PRESIDENT AND HAS SERVED AS SUCH FOR
MORE THAN FOUR YEARS SHALL BE QUALIFIED
FOR ELECTION TO THE SAME OFFICE AT ANY
TIME period (.).

Senator Laurel. Mr. President, I said I had no
objection to the amendment to my amendment.

The President. Senator Saguisag.
main Proponent, but I can see Senator Maceda raising his
hand, Mr. President.

The President. Senator Maceda is recognized.

Senator Maceda. Mr. President, I guess it is a
matter of public notice that I am not a supporter of Presi-
dent Aquino. I just do not feel comfortable with the fact
that we are starting to discuss a constitutional issue which

se-.r;amr-—s"}gmasagrm-«WiHmthatuapp}ymteml?residentm—seﬂamr*SagﬂisagH——W’@*d@febﬁo-me@leas‘-!'-"ef@fwthef*m
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the mother committee that reported out this measure
never really considered in-depth. I was wondering
whether we can just act on this today without a full-
blown debate on it. There have been many debates in so
many forums on the subject matter under consideration.

One question I would like to ask the main Sponsor is:
Assuming that the Constitution is not clear, would the
proposed amendment of Senator Laurel, as amended, in
effect, plug or clarify an unclear provision, which would
then be_binding on the Supreme Court, if the matter is

amendment of the distinguished Gentleman from Batan-
gas was not directed against anybody. I am just simply
restating in this law the provisions which go into the
qualification or entitlement of Presidents to run for this

office.

Since we already adopted the principle that no Presi-
dents shall be entitled to a reelection, then it stands to
reason that we should continue by saying that no person
who has succeeded to the Office of the Presidency and
has served for more than four years shall be eligible for

brought to the Supreme Court for decision?

Senator Saguisag. Mr. President, the reason I
agreed is that, in effect, what we have done here is merely
restate two separate provisions in the Constitution. But
nothing we do here can really amend the constitutional
intent. At best it just may have some persuasive value,
but it certainly cannot bind the Supreme Court.

Senator Maceda. I just want to put that into the .

record, Mr. President, that the present discussions indi-
cate a clear legislative intent on the part of the whole
Senate. Senator Lina has already said that he is not about
to agree. My lack of objection to the issue at this time is
not because I agree. I am just raising the point that the
matter has not been fully debated upon for us to really
come to a definitive decision on the matter. I wonder
whether it is an issue that should really be brought into
this election.

As a matter of fact, with all of these so many sections
and provisions on restatement of the Constitution into
this law, I really wonder from the very beginning whether
it was necessary at all to start restating the Constitution
all along the way.

Let me just say in closing that while I do not dis-
agree, my lack of disagreement does not mean to say that

election to the same office at any time, because these are
companion provisions,

Senator Laurel. Mr. President, may I just aid

something to what the Minority Floor Leader and {:e

other two Colleagues of ours on the Floor stated.

What we are doing here is only to bring in the pe
nent constitutional provisions affecting the elective p
lic official here mentioned. It seems strange, Mr. Prc
dent, that we have cited the constitutional provisi: :
relative to the Vice President, the Senators, the Congr
men and down the line, but the President is not be ag
included. For what reason, I simply cannot understan . I
feel that this provision affecting the President in this «
should also be cited, because no public official, howt
high, is above the law. '

'er

nt
1at

The second reason is, assuming that the Presic
may run again for reelection, then, that would mean
the provision relative to the Vice President is not cor:
that the Vice President is entitled to run only for
elections.

The President. In any event we are just reprodu:
here what is already provided in the Constitution.

Senator Herrera. Mr. President.

T-ammaking-a-definitive-statement-that-President-Cory
Aquino is not qualified to run irrespective of whether it is
academic before us that she is running or not. I agree
with the statements previously made by the Sponsor that
ultimately it is the Supreme Court and not the legislative
intent in this bill that will decide the question.

Senator Enrile. Mr. President, may I just state for
the record that my proposal to amend the proposed

The President. Senator Herrera is recognized.

Senator Herrera. I would just like to put into the
record, Mr. President, that I associate myself with the
position expressed by Senator Maceda.

Senator Enrile. May I know the pleasure of the
Chair, Mr. President?
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The President. I am going to submit it to a vote
now. Is there any objection? [Silence] Hearing none, the
amendment is approved.

‘Senator Laurel. The next amendment that we are
proposing is on page 2.

Senator Saguisag. Yes, still on the same page, Mr.
President.

Senator Laurel. On line 28, after the word *‘renun-

Senator Laurel. Then on the same page, line 26,
after the word ‘‘bayan’’, delete the words ‘‘as the case
may be’’. It seems there is no reason, Mr. President.

- Senator Saguisag. Accepted, Mr. President.

The President. Is there any objection? [Silence]
Hearing none, the amendment is approved.

Senator Laurel. Then on page 5, line 24, after the

ciation’’, insert the words ‘‘OR ABANDONMENT"’.
Senator Saguisag. Accepted, Mr. President.

The President. Is there any objection? [Silence]
Hearing none, the amendment is approved.

Senator Laurel. The fourth amendment is on page
4. ‘

o Seniltor Saguisag. Are we not going to include the
additional amendment? Are we still on page 27

Senator Laurel. Line 29.
Senator Saguisag. "Opo, line 29.

Senator Laurel. Yes, I think we should, Mr. Presi-
dent. Ibeg your pardon.

On the same page 2, line 29, after the word ‘‘time’’,
insert the following:- ‘‘OR ACCEPTANCE OF AN-
OTHER OFFICE IN- THE GOVERNMENT"’.

Senator Saguisag. Accepted, Mr. President.

The President. Is there any objection? [Silence]
Hearing none, the same is approved.

Good Friday during which’’... But to complete the sen-
tence so that it will be more understandable, I will con-
tinue reading the words to be deleted up to page 6, line 1:
*“...days campaigning is absolutely prohibited.”” So that
that paragraph on page 5, line 32 will read as follows:
However, the foregoing campaign periods shall not in-
clude the day before and the day of the election itself.

Senator Saguisag. Mr. President, we have abbrevi-
ated the periods as they are. We have traditionally ab-
stained from secular activities pagka Huwebes Santo at
Biyernes Santo. Really, in the culture, we recognize
certain cvents like All Saints Day; in fact, they are
holidays.

So, to me, nasa inyo na po iyon. Nasa mga kakandi-
dato na iyon kung gusto nilang mabawasan pa iyong
maigsing campaign periods. In 1987 this was the formu-
lation. I have no strong feelings either way, but I wanted
every Member here, who is running for election or reelec-
tion, to maximize their risk of winning, Mr. President.

Senator Laurel. What we seek to accomplish here,
Mr. President, by eliminating the clause *‘‘Maundy
Thursday and Good Friday, during which days campaign-
ing is absolutely prohibited’’, is not to impose obser-
vance of these religious holidays on non-Christians. It is
better, in our opinion, to leave this matter to the Chris-

trans-whoywithout-this-provision;will-most-tikety outof——————

Senator Laurel. Then on page 4, line 6, insert the
word ““COUNCILORS”’ after the number ‘“(10)’’. That
is somehow an oversight really.

Senator Saguisag. Accepted, Mr. President.

The President. All right. Is there any objection?
[Silence] Hearing none, the amendment is approved.

234

duty to their religion, not campaign on said days.
The President, Tama naman yata iyon.
Senator Saguisag. No, but we have been ...

The President. Bakit natin pipilitin ang mga Mus-
lims na kumomporme sa atin. Kung ayaw ng mga Kris-
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tiyanong magkampanya, that is their own lookout. Pero
bakit natin pipilitin iyong mga hindi Kristiyano?

Senator Saguisag. But in the culture, these are
already holidays, just like Christmas Day.

The President. But not in the Muslim culture,
suppose.

Senator Saguisag. I am leaving it to the Body, but I
am just not persuaded that that is a fair basis since all

Muslims, I think we can frame out an amendment to that
amendment. There is a good reason for this. This is not
only a tradition, but a respect to those days. And it gives
meaning to delete the same just for the purpose of ex-

empting a minority. I think we can frame a postulation

that would.exempt the minority, if that is the purpose of
the Gentleman’s amendment.

Senator Laurel. May I ask, Mr. President, if the
Majority Floor Leader has a suggestion?

these Christian holidays are celebrated nationwide like
during Christimas Day.

Most of our holidays even in the Senate revolve
around Christian holidays. Nandiyan na naman ang All
Saints Day. Nandiyan na naman ang Pasko. But, as I
said, I am indifferent to it. I am just pointing out that all
over the world, there are these things.

Kaya, bahala po sila, I mean, I have my reservations.
But if the Body wishes really to include the two days in
the campaign period, I have no strong feelings about it,
Mr. President.

The President. Senator Aquino is recognized.

Senator Aquino. I just wanted to be enlightened,
Mr. President. With the Laurel amendment, we can now
campaign on Maundy Thursday and Good Friday, is that
correct? '

The President. If we wish.

Senator Aquino. Thank you.

Senator Laurel. Besides, Mr. President, may I add

this reservation, that this provision which we are elimi-
nating says: ‘‘campaigning on said days is absolutely

———prohibited*-~which-means-subject-to-penalties-and-sanc—a-certifieate-of-candidaey—Se-that-semebedy-like-Senator:

tions provided for in this proposed bill and in the other
Election Code provisions.

The President. Is there any objection?
- Senator Guingona is recognized.

Senator Guingona. If the purpose, is to exempt

The President. Probably he will need a little time.
Why do we not skip that and go to the next?

Senator Laurel. This Representation abides by the
suggestion of the Chair--we will skip this at the moment.

Next amendment, Mr. President, is on page 6, Sec-
tion 6, starting from line 2 up to line 7, and I quote:
*‘Any provision of law to the contrary notwithstanding,
any candidate for Senator, Member of the House of Rep-
resentatives or any elective local office may campaign for
the national candidates of his political party during their
campaign periods and even before his own campaign
period.”’

I'move that we delete this paragraph.
Senator Maceda. Mr. President.
The President. Senator Maceda is recognized.

Senator Maceda. Mr. President, I just want to clar-
ify one question from the Proponent of the amendment.
May we know if during the campaign period of the Presi-
dent, the deadline for the filing of the certificate of candi-
dacy for Senators, Congressmen, and Mayors have al-
ready expired? Meaning to say, according to the COME-
LEC, nobody is technically a candidate until he has filed

Saguisag or Senator Paterno, clearly, even if they ap-
peared with a presidential candidate, unless they file a
certificate of candidacy, would not be considered a candi-
date.

So, would the proposed amendment preclude any

elected Senator, Congressman, Governor or Mayor from
campaigning for the President even if he has not filed a
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certificate of candidacy?

Senator Laurel. Even without this provision, which
we are suggesting be deleted, that particular individual
may do so, may campaign. So, what is the use of this one
under that interpretation of the COMELEC, Mr. Presi-

dent?

Senator Maceda. I have no objection to the amend-
ment with the understanding that it means to apply only

that the same be deleted, specifically, starting from the
word ‘‘except’’ on line 10 and ending on line 17 with the

word ‘‘candidate’’.

So that the sentence on line 8 will read only as
follows:

‘“‘Any election campaign or partisan political activity
for or against any candidate outside of the campaign
period her=iu provided is prohibited.”’

filed a certificate of candidacy.

The President. What is the pleasure of Senator

Saguisag?

‘Senator Saguisag. Well, it seems to me it is just a
matter really of a month. Seventy-five days, 45 days--
will this not be an invitation to all sorts of hyprocritical
exercises to go around the prohibition?

Senator Laurel. Pero lalung-lalo na hong hypocriti-
cal ito. It is more hypocritical to provide here that our
campaign period starts on a certain date much later than
the start of the campaign period of the President and the
Vice President, but we can campaign already for those
two candidates.

The President. Ang katotohanan niyan ay, pagka
sila ay kasama noong kandidato sa pagka-Pangulo, talaga
namang nangangampanya na sila para sa kanilang mga
sarili.

Senator Laurel.- Oho, iyon nga ho. Bakit kailangan
paito?

Senator Saguisag. In the absence of any objection
* from anybody here, I am not objecting either.

Then cross out ‘‘except as provided in the next pre-
ceding section.”’

The President. Nawala na iyon.
Senator Laurel. Wala na nga ho iyon.

The President. Is there any objection as far as we
have gone? [Silence] .Then we will go to the next

paragraph.

Senator Laurel. Mr. President, that also...

The President. Let us dispose of that paragraph
first. Is there any objection? {Silence] Hearmg none, the
amendment is approved.

Senator Laurel. Then the next paragraph, starting
from lines 12 up to line 17, I propose that the same be
also deleted.

The President. Why?

Senator Laurel. ‘‘The term ‘candidate’ when used
in connection with election campaign or partisan political
activity, refers to any person aspiring for or seeking an
elective public office who has already filed his certificate

1The President. All right. Is there any objection?
[Silence] Hearing none, the amendment is approved.

Senator Laurel. Mr. President, this one that I have
the honor to propose is not among those contained in the
list that has been distributed. If I might, however, be
allowed to raise the same, I shall do so.

Also on page 6, starting from lines 10 to 17, I suggest
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Of “candidacy or Nas been nominated by any political "

party, organization or coalition of parties as its candi-
date.”’

There is no more reason since the provision is that
campaigning before the start of the campaign period is
prohibited. Wala na.

The President. What is the pleasure of the Sponsor?
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Senator Saguisag. Mr. President, what this will
mean then is, if only those lines 8, 9, 10 will survive,
everything that is going on today in the way of promoting
any candidate will be a violation of the law.

Senator Laurel. Yes. Mr. President, I am referring
in particular to signs coming out now.

Senator Saguisag—Yes; wesee-all of that:

Senator Saguisag. It is not a very good definition
but it is a place to begin.

The President. Actually, this is the COMELEC
definition. ‘

Senator Saguisag. The COMELEC proposal is even
tighter. It does not even refer to filing a certificate of
candidacy.

Senator Laurel. Hindi pa man ho nag-uumpisa ang
election period, not even to speak of campaign period,
mayroon nang mga signs, may mga placards na agad.
Puwede niyang sabihin na ‘‘Hindi ako ang naglagay
niyan. Ako ang kandidato. Aywan ko kung sino ang
naglagay niyan.”’

Senator Saguisag. Yes, but suppose I put up a sign:
1 ina for 1998,’’ will I be in violation of the law?

Senator Laurel, Yes. That is what we seek to
prohibit.

Senator Saguisag. In a democracy, can we really do
that? I mean, some people are thinking of the next
election.

Senator Laurel. But when the law speaks of ‘‘no
politicking,”” ‘‘no-campaigning’’ before a certain pe-
riod, that prohibition applies not only to the candidate but
also to his supporters.

Senator Saguisag. Mr. President, if we will make it

“‘js prohibited,”” maybe it will even be punishable. As

lawmakers, we ought to define what a ‘‘candidate’’ is,
‘otherwise, no successful prosecution will ensue.

Is it really so wrong for me in 1993 to say that *‘in
1998, why. not_Mercado?'”_‘“Why_not Butz Aquino?’’

The definition of the COMELEC, Mr. President, is as
follows:

““The term ‘candidate’ when used in connection
with election campaign or partisan political activity,
refers to any‘ person aspiring for or seeking an
elective office regardless of whether or not said
person has already filed his certificate of candidacy
or has been nominated by any political party,
organization or coalition of parties as its candidate.”’

The President. That seems to be better.

Senator Saguisag. But suppose one starts dreaming
of being a president 12 years from now, and will plan on
that basis?

The President. I think the definition has to rest on a
factual support.

Senator Saguisag. In other words, there has to be
some definition.

The President. Yes.

Senator Saguisag. Otherwise, it will be very hard to
enforce what survives.

Senator Laurel. Mr. President, we will skip this
one, too, until we could arrive at a satisfactory definition

Should I go to jail for doing that when I may be doing the
country a great service?

The President. The Chair would like to intervene.
What lines 12 to 17 merely wish to achieve is to define
the term ‘‘candidate’’ because the preceding paragraph
talks about for or against any candidate. Therefore, we
must define the term, What is so wrong about defining
the term?

SO we can move on.

The President. Allright.

Senator Laurel. On page 7, lines 10 and 11, after
the word ‘‘hereunder’’, delete the following: ‘‘during

regular office hours’”. So, this Section will read:

““The certificates of candidacy of any person
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running for the office of President, Vice-President,
Senator, Member of the House of Representatives or
any elective provincial, city or municipal official
shall be filed in five (5) legible copies with the offices
of the Commission on Elections specified hereunder
not later than the day before the date legally fixed for
the beginning of his campaign period.”’

Senator Saguisag. Accepted, Mr. President.

The Preslident. Is there any objection? [Silence]

Senator Saguisag. Kung dumating daw po ang
ibang pangalan, mga isa o dalawang linggo na lamang
ang nalalabi, kaya wala nang pana